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NOTICE TO THE GOODS AND SERVICE TAX DEPARTMENT UNDER
SECTION 230(5) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

To,

The Goods and Service Tax Department,
6th Floor GST Bhawan,

Plot No 6 EDC Complex,

Patto, Panaji — 403001

Zone - PUNE
Commissionerate - GOA
Division - DIVISION-I

Range - RANGE-II-PILERNE

Dear Sir/Ma’am,

Notice is hereby given in pursuance of sub-section (5) of Section 230 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“Act”), that as directed by the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal,
Mumbai Bench (“Tribunal”) by an order dated 24" October, 2024 (“Order”) under sub-
section (1) of Section 230 of the Act, a meeting of the Equity Shareholders of J M Baxi
Ports & Logistics Private Limited (“Applicant No. 1”) shall be convened on Thursday,
5% December, 2024 at 2:00 p.m. (“Meeting”) through video conferencing (“VC”) / other
audio visual means (“OAVM”) to consider the proposed Composite Scheme of

Arrangement amongst Applicant No. 1, i.e., ] M Baxi Ports & Logistics Private Limited,
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J M Baxi Container Holdings Private Limited, ] M Baxi Ports Services Private Limited
(formerly, J M Baxi Cargo Holdings Private Limited) and their respective shareholders
(“Scheme”).

Copies of the following documents are enclosed herewith:

1. notice of the meeting of Equity Shareholders along with explanatory statement and all
annexures;

2. the Composite Scheme of Arrangement by and amongst ] M Baxi Ports & Logistics
Private Limited, J] M Baxi Container Holdings Private Limited and J M Baxi Ports
Services Private Limited and their respective shareholders; and

3. Order dated 24" October, 2024 passed by the Hon’ble Tribunal.

You are hereby informed that representations, if any, in connection with the proposed
Scheme may be made to the Hon’ble Tribunal within thirty (30) days from the date of
receipt of this notice. A copy of your representation, if any, shall simultaneously be served
on Applicant No. 1 at its registered office at Godrej Coliseum, Office No. 801, C-Wing,
Behind Everard Nagar, Off Somaiya Hospital Road, Sion, East, Mumbai - 400022,

Maharashtra or its e-mail address at cosec@jmbaxi.com.
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In case no representation is received by the Hon’ble Tribunal within a period of thirty (30)
days from the date of receipt of this notice, it shall be presumed that you have no

representation to make on the proposed Scheme.

Yours sincerely,

For J M Baxi Ports & Logistics Private Limited

Nandan Yalgi
Authorized Signatory
Date: 04/11/2024

Place: Mumbai

Enclosures:

1. Copy of notice of the meeting of Equity Shareholders along with explanatory statement
and all annexures;

2. Copy of the Composite Scheme of Arrangement by and amongst J M Baxi Ports &
Logistics Private Limited, ] M Baxi Container Holdings Private Limited and J M Baxi
Ports Services Private Limited and their respective shareholders; and

3. Order dated 24™ October, 2024 passed by the Hon’ble National Company Law

Tribunal, Mumbai Bench.
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NOTICE CONVENING MEETING OF THE EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS OF J M BAXI PORTS
& LOGISTICS PRIVATE LIMITED PURSUANT TO ORDER DATED 24™ OCTOBER
2024 OF THE HON’BLE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL, MUMBAI BENCH,

COURT - III (‘NCLT’ OR ‘TRIBUNAL”)

MEETING DETAILS
Day Thursday
Date 5% December, 2024
Time 2:00 P.M. IST
Mode of Meeting | As per the directions of the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench,

Visual Means (“OAVM”).

the meeting shall be conducted through Video conferencing (“VC”) or Other Audio-

REMOTE E-VOTING

Commencing on | Monday, 2™ December, 2024 at 9:00 A.M. (IST)

Ending on

Wednesday, 4™ December, 2024 at 5:00 P.M. (IST)

Mode of Meeting

Visual Means (“OAVM”).

As per the directions of the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench,
the meeting shall be conducted through Video conferencing (“VC”) or Other Audio-
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BEFORE THE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL,
MUMBAI BENCH
COMPANY APPLICATION (CAA) NO. 154/(MB)/2024
Form No. CAA. 2
[Pursuant to Section 230(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Rule 6 and 7 of the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and

Amalgamations) Rules, 2016]

IN THE MATTER OF SECTION 230 TO 232 AND OTHER APPLICABLE PROVISIONS OF
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH THE COMPANIES (COMPROMISES,
ARRANGEMENTS AND AMALGAMATIONS) RULES, 2016
AND
IN THE MATTER OF COMPOSITE SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT
AMONGST
J M BAXI PORTS & LOGISTICS PRIVATE LIMITED
(“J M BAXI” OR “DEMERGED COMPANY”)

AND
J M BAXI CONTAINER HOLDINGS PRIVATE LIMITED
(“J M BAXI CONTAINER” OR “RESULTING COMPANY 17)

AND
J M BAXI PORTS SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
(FORMERLY, J M BAXI CARGO HOLDINGS PRIVATE LIMITED)

(“J M BAXI DEV CO” OR “RESULTING COMPANY 2”)

AND
THEIR RESPECTIVE SHAREHOLDERS

J M Baxi Ports & Logistics Private Limited

a company incorporated under the provisions of the
Indian Companies Act, 1913 and existing under the
Companies Act, 2013, having its registered office
at Godrej Coliseum, Office No.801, C-Wing,
Behind Everard Nagar, Off Somaiya Hospital
Road, Sion East, Mumbai - 400022, Maharashtra
CIN: U63090MH1947PTC251291 ... Applicant No. 1/ Demerged Company




To,

NOTICE CONVENING MEETING OF THE EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS OF

J M BAXT PORTS & LOGISTICS PRIVATE LIMITED (“J M BAXI” OR “DEMERGED

COMPANY” OR “APPLICANT NO. 1”)

The Equity Shareholders of J M Baxi Ports & Logistics Private Limited

Notice is hereby given pursuant to the directions of Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal
Mumbai Bench (“Tribunal” or “NCLT?”) vide its order dated 24" October, 2024 (“Order”), a
meeting to be held of the equity shareholders of J M Baxi Ports & Logistics Private Limited, for
the purpose of considering, and if thought fit, approving with or without modification(s), the
Composite Scheme of Arrangement amongst J M Baxi Ports & Logistics Private Limited (“J M
Baxi” or “Demerged Company” or “Company”) and J M Baxi Container Holdings Private
Limited (“J M Baxi Container” or “Resulting Company 1) and J] M Baxi Ports Services Private
Limited (formerly, ] M Baxi Cargo Holdings Private Limited) (“J M Baxi Dev Co” or “Resulting
Company 2”) and their respective shareholders on Thursday, 5™ December, 2024 at 2:00 P.M.
(IST) in compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) read with the
applicable general circulars issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, and Secretarial
Standard on General Meetings as issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (“SS-2").

Pursuant to the said Order and as directed therein, the meeting of the equity shareholders of the
Company will be held through Video conferencing (“VC”) / Other Audio-Visual Means
(“OAVM”) on Thursday, 5" December, 2024 at 2:00 P.M. (IST) (“Meeting” or “NCLT
Convened Meeting”, as the context may require) with the facility of remote e-Voting and e-Voting
facility available during the Meeting. Accordingly, you are requested to attend the Meeting.

Copies of the Scheme and of the Explanatory Statement, under Sections 230 to 232 read with
Section 102 and other applicable provisions of the Act read with Rule 6 of the Companies
(Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 (“CAA Rules”), along with the
enclosures as indicated in the Index, can be obtained free of charge at the registered office of the
Applicant No. 1 at Godrej Coliseum, Office No.801, C-Wing, Behind Everard Nagar, Off Somaiya
Hospital Road, Sion East, Mumbai - 400022 during business hours.

The Company shall provide the facility and option of voting on the resolution for approval of the
Scheme by casting their votes(a) through e-voting system available at the Meeting to be held
virtually (“e-Voting”); or (b) by remote electronic voting (“remote e-Voting”) during the period
as stated below:

REMOTE E-VOTING PERIOD
Commencement of voting Monday, 2™ December 2024 at 09:00 A.M. (IST)
End of voting Wednesday, 4™ December 2024 at 05:00 P.M. (IST)

The Tribunal has appointed Mr. Yogesh Chaudhary as the Chairperson and, Ms. Bindu Shah as the
Scrutinizer for the Meeting of equity shareholders including for any adjournment or adjournments
thereof as per the NCLT order/ directions. The Scheme, if approved in the aforesaid Meeting, will
be subject to the subsequent approval of the Tribunal.



The following resolutions are proposed under Section 230 and other applicable provisions of the
Act (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force)
and the provisions of the Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association of the Applicant
No. 1, for the purpose of considering, and if thought fit, approving, the Composite Scheme of
Arrangement amongst J M Baxi Ports & Logistics Private Limited, J M Baxi Container Holdings
Private Limited, J M Baxi Ports Services Private Limited and their respective shareholders.

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230-232 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the rules, circulars and notifications made thereunder
(including any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof) as may be applicable, Section
2(19AA) and other relevant provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961 and the Rules thereunder and
subject to the provisions of the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company and
subject to the approval of Hon ’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench ( “Tribunal”
or “NCLT”) and subject to such other approvals, permissions and sanctions of regulatory and
other authorities, as may be necessary and subject to such conditions and modifications as may be
prescribed or imposed by NCLT or by any regulatory or other authorities, while granting such
consents, approvals and permissions, which may be agreed to by the Board of Directors of the
Company (hereinafter referred to as the “Board”, which term shall be deemed to mean and include
one or more Committee(s) constituted/to be constituted by the Board or any person(s) which the
Board may nominate to exercise its powers including the powers conferred by this resolution),
approval of the equity shareholders of the Company, be and is hereby accorded to the Composite
Scheme of Arrangement amongst J M Baxi Ports & Logistics Private Limited (“J M Baxi” or
“Demerged Company” or “Company”) and J M Baxi Container Holdings Private Limited (“J M
Baxi Container” or “Resulting Company 1) and J M Baxi Ports Services Private Limited
(formerly, J M Baxi Cargo Holdings Private Limited) (“J M Baxi Dev Co” or “Resulting Company
27) and their respective Shareholders (“Scheme”);

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorised to do all such acts, deeds,
matters and things, as it may, in its absolute discretion deem requisite, desirable, appropriate or
necessary to give effect to this Resolution and effectively implement the Scheme and to make any
modifications or amendments to the Scheme at any time and for any reason whatsoever, and to
accept such modifications, amendments, limitations and/or conditions, if any, which may be
required and/or imposed by the Tribunal while sanctioning the arrangement embodied in the
Scheme or by any authorities under law, or as may be required for the purpose of resolving any
questions or doubts or difficulties that may arise including passing of such accounting entries
and/or making such adjustments in the books of accounts as considered necessary in giving effect
to the Scheme, as the Board may deem fit and proper.”

A person, whose name is recorded in the Register of Members or in the Register of Beneficial
Owners as on the cut-off date, i.e., 30™ April, 2024, only shall be entitled to exercise his/ her/ its
voting rights on the resolution proposed in the Notice and attend the Meeting. A person who is not
an Equity Shareholder as on the cut-off date, should treat the Notice for information purpose only.

A copy of the said Scheme, statement under Sections 230 and 232 read with Section 102 and other
applicable provisions of the Act and Rule 6 of the CAA Rules along with all annexures to such
statement are appended. A copy of this Notice and the accompanying documents are also placed



on the website of the Company at https://www.jmbaxi.com/ and can also be accessed on the website
of National Securities Depository Limited (“NSDL”) viz. www.evoting.nsdl.com, being the agency
appointed by the Company to provide the remote e-Voting and e-Voting and other facilities for
convening of the Meeting.

9. The Scheme, if approved at the aforesaid Meeting, will be subject to the subsequent sanction of the
Tribunal and such other approvals, permissions and sanctions of regulatory or other authorities, as
may be necessary.

Dated this the 30" day of October, 2024
Place: Mumbai

Sd/-
Mr. Yogesh Chaudhary
Chairperson Appointed by the National Company
Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench for the Meeting

J M Baxi Ports & Logistics Private Limited

CIN: U63090MH1947PTC251291

Registered Office: Godrej Coliseum, Office No.801, C-Wing, Behind
Everard Nagar, Off Somaiya Hospital Road, Sion

East, Mumbai - 400022, Maharashtra

Website: https://www.jmbaxi.com/

E-mail: cosec@jmbaxi.com

Tel.: +91 22 6153 7900

Notes for Meeting of Equity Shareholders of the Company:

1. General instructions for accessing and participating in the Meeting through VC/OAVM
Facility and voting through electronic means:

a. In terms of the order dated 24" October, 2024 of the National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai
Bench, Applicant No. 1 is convening the Meeting of equity shareholders of the Applicant No. 1
through VC/OAVM in compliance of the Guidelines issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs
and the relevant provisions of the Act and Rules made thereunder. The Meeting will be
conducted in compliance with the provisions of the Act, SS-2, and the requirements prescribed
by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs for holding general meetings through VC / OAVM and
providing facility of e-Voting vide General Circular Nos. 14/2020 dated 8" April, 2020, 17/2020
dated 13™ April, 2020, 22/2020 dated 15" June, 2020, 33/2020 dated 28" September, 2020,
39/2020 dated  31°** December, 2020, 10/2021 dated 23" June, 2021, 20/2021 dated
8™ December, 2021, 3/2022 dated 5™ May, 2022 and 11/2022 dated 28™ December, 2022,
09/2023 dated 25™ September, 2023 and 09/2024 dated 19" September, 2024 (collectively the
“MCA Circulars™).

b. The deemed venue for the Meeting shall be the registered office of the Company.

c. The Statement pursuant to Sections 102, 230 to 232 of the Act read with other applicable
provisions of the Act, and Rule 6 of the CAA Rules, in respect of the business set out in the
Notice of the Meeting is annexed hereto.

d. Only equity shareholders of Applicant No. 1 as on 30" April, 2024 may attend and vote through
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remote e-Voting or e-Voting facility during the Meeting.

. Since the Meeting is being held pursuant to the Order passed by the NCLT and MCA Circulars
through VC/OAVM, physical attendance of the equity shareholders has been dispensed with.
Accordingly, the facility for the appointment of proxies by equity shareholders will not be
available for the Meeting. However, in pursuance of Section 113 of the Act, authorized
representatives of institutional/ corporate shareholders may be appointed for the purpose of
participation in the Meeting through VC/OAVM facility and e-Voting during the Meeting,
provided that such shareholder sends a scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of its board or
governing body resolution/authorization etc., authorizing its representative to attend the
Meeting through VC/OAVM on its behalf, vote during the Meeting, on its behalf. The said
resolution/authorization shall be sent to the Scrutinizer by email through her registered email
address to kbindudshah@gmail.com and to the Company at cosec @jmbaxi.com, not less than
48 hours before the commencement of the aforesaid Meeting, as the case may be. The corporate
shareholders can also upload documents in NSDL e-voting system for verification by
Scrutinizer.

. All documents referred to in the Notice and accompanying explanatory statement are open for
inspection at the registered office of the Company on all working days of the Company between
11:00 A.M. (IST) and 4:00 P.M. (IST) up to the date of the Meeting.

. The Company shall provide a platform for remote e-Voting and e-Voting during the Meeting in
a secured and transparent manner. Detailed instructions for participation in remote e-Voting and
e-Voting during the Meeting are provided in the Notice.

. Please take note that as per the directions of the Tribunal and the discretion exercised by the
Chairperson in consultation with the counsel, the Meeting is proposed to be through VC/OAVM
with the facility of remote e-Voting and e-Voting during the Meeting.

i. The voting rights of the equity shareholders shall be in proportion to their shareholding of the

paid-up equity share capital of the Applicant No. 1 as on the close of business hours as on
30" November, 2024.

j. The quorum of the Meeting of the equity shareholders of Applicant No. 1 shall be 2 (Two) in

number of the total equity shareholders of the Applicant No. 1, present & voting as on Thursday,
5% December, 2024.

. The Notice, together with the documents accompanying the same, is being sent to all the equity
shareholders of the Applicant No. 1 as on 30" April 2024, either by registered post or speed post
or by hand delivery at their registered address available with the Company or via e-mail.

. The notice convening the Meeting will be published through advertisement in (i) The Financial
Express, in the English language and (ii) Navshakti, in the Marathi language.

. In accordance with the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 of the Act, the Scheme shall be acted
upon only if a majority of persons representing three-fourth in value of the equity shareholders
of the Applicant No. 1, voting through remote e-Voting system and e-Voting during the Meeting
agree to the Scheme.

. As directed by the Tribunal, Ms. Bindu Shah has been appointed as Scrutinizer for the said
Meeting of the equity shareholders of Applicant No. 1 to scrutinize the voting through remote
e-Voting and e-Voting during the Meeting in a fair and transparent manner. Post the Meeting,
the Scrutinizer will submit the report to the Chairperson after completion of scrutiny of the
voting process. As per Order of the Tribunal, the Chairperson shall report the result of the said
NCLT convened Meeting to the Tribunal within 7 (seven) days from the date of the conclusion
of the Meeting with regard to the proposed Scheme.

. All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed to
evoting@nsdl.co.in or call on toll free no.: 1800 1020 990 or 1800 22 44 30.
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2. THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING AND JOINING THE

NCLT CONVENED MEETING ARE AS UNDER :

The remote e-voting period begins on Monday, 2" December 2024 at 9:00 A.M. (IST) and
ends on Wednesday, 4™ December 2024 at 5:00 P.M. (IST). The remote e-voting module shall
be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. The Members, whose names appear in the
Register of Members / Beneficial Owners as on the Cut-Off Date i.e. 30™ April 2024, may cast
their vote electronically. The voting right of shareholders shall be in proportion to their share
in the paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on 30" November 2024.

How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system?

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are

mentioned below:

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system

A) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders

holding securities in demat mode

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below:

Type of shareholders

Login Method

Individual Shareholders
holding securities in demat
mode with NSDL.

1.

Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL
Viz. https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or
on a mobile. On the e-Services home page click on the “Beneficial
Owner” icon under “Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’
section, this will prompt you to enter your existing User ID and

Password. After successful authentication, you will be able to see
e-Voting services under Value added services. Click on “Access
to e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you will be able to see
e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service
provider i.e. NSDL and you will be re-directed to e-Voting
website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting
period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

2. If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register
is available at https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select “Register Online
for IDeAS Portal” or click at
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.ijsp

3. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing

the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a
Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-

Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is
available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will
open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit
demat account number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a
Verification Code as shown on the screen. After successful
authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site
wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-
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Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to
e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote
e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the
meeting.

Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App
“NSDL Speede” facility by scanning the QR code mentioned
below for seamless voting experience.

NSDL Mobile App is available on

.’ App Store ’ Google Play

Individual Shareholders
holding securities in demat
mode with CDSL

Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login
through their existing user id and password. Option will be made
available to reach e-Voting page without any further
authentication. The users to login Easi /Easiest are requested to
visit CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and click on login icon &
New System Myeasi Tab and then user your existing myeasi
username & password.

After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the
e-Voting option for eligible companies where the evoting is in
progress as per the information provided by company. On clicking
the evoting option, the user will be able to see e-Voting page of
the e-Voting service provider for casting your vote during the
remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during
the meeting. Additionally, there is also links provided to access the
system of all e-Voting Service Providers, so that the user can visit
the e-Voting service providers’ website directly.

If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is

available at CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and click on login
& New System Myeasi Tab and then click on registration option.

Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by
providing Demat Account Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting
link available on www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will

authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile &
Email as recorded in the Demat Account. After successful
authentication, user will be able to see the e-Voting option where
the evoting is in progress and also able to directly access the
system of all e-Voting Service Providers.



http://www.cdslindia.com/
http://www.cdslindia.com/

Individual Shareholders You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account
(holding securities in demat through your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-
mode) login through their Voting facility. upon logging in, you will be able to see e-Voting option.
depository participants Click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL

Depository site after successful authentication, wherein you can see e-
Voting feature. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e.
NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for
casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual
meeting & voting during the meeting.

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget
User ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical
issues related to login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL.

Login type

Helpdesk details

Individual  Shareholders holding
securities in demat mode with NSDL

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL
helpdesk by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.com or call at 022
- 4886 7000

Individual Shareholders holding
securities in demat mode with CDSL

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL
helpdesk by sending a request at
helpdesk.evoting @cdslindia.com or contact at toll free no. 1800-
21-09911
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B) Login Method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other than Individual
shareholders holding securities in demat mode and shareholders holding securities in physical mode.

a)

b)

c)
()

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website?

Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL:
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.

Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under
‘Shareholder/Member’ section.

A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a Verification
Code as shown on the screen.

Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices ie. IDEAS, you can log-in at
https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after
using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote
electronically.

Your User ID details are given below:

Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat | Your User ID is:
(NSDL or CDSL) or Physical

a) For Members who hold shares in demat | 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client
account with NSDL. ID

For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and
Client ID is 12%***%* then your user ID is
Hq300***12******'

b) For Members who hold shares in demat | 16 Digit Beneficiary ID

account with CDSL.
For example if your Beneficiary ID is

[ 2%k xkHkxkHEHE% then your user ID is
12k sk skt sk e ek sk seokoskoskok

¢) For Members holding shares in Physical | EVEN Number followed by Folio Number
Form. registered with the company

For example if folio number is 001*** and
EVEN is 101456 then wuser ID is
101456001 ***

Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below:
If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing password to login and cast
your vote.

If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the ‘initial password’
which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial password’, you need to enter the
‘initial password’ and the system will force you to change your password.

How to retrieve your ‘initial password’?

If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your ‘initial password’ is
communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox.
Open the email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The password to open the
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.pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio
number for shares held in physical form. The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial
password’.

(i) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in process for those
shareholders whose email ids are not registered.

6. If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “Initial password” or have forgotten your
password:

a) Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your demat account with
NSDL or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

b) Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option available on
www.evoting.nsdl.com.

c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request at
evoting@nsdl.com mentioning your demat account number/folio number, your PAN, your name and
your registered address etc.

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on the e-Voting
system of NSDL.

7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the check box.

8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button.

9. After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open.

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically and join the NCLT Convened Meeting on NSDL e-Voting
system.

How to cast your vote electronically and join the NCLT Convened Meeting on NSDL e-Voting
system?

1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you
are holding shares and whose voting cycle and the NCLT Convened Meeting is in active status.

2. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting
period and casting your vote during the NCLT Convened Meeting. For joining virtual meeting,
you need to click on “VC/OAVM?” link placed under “Join Meeting”.

3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens.

4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number
of shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when
prompted.

5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.

6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the
confirmation page.

7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.
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General Guidelines for shareholders

1. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned
copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with attested
specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the
Scrutinizer by e-mail to kbindudshah@ gmail.com with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.com.
Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) can also upload their Board
Resolution / Power of Attorney / Authority Letter etc. by clicking on "Upload Board Resolution
/ Authority Letter" displayed under "e-Voting" tab in their login.

2. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost
care to keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five
unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In such an event, you will need to go through
the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset Password?” option available on
www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password.

3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders
and e-voting user manual for Shareholders available at the download section of
www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on.: 022 - 4886 7000 or send a request to Ms. Pallavi Mhatre,
Senior Manager at evoting@nsdl.com

Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for
procuring user id and password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the resolutions set
out in this notice:

1. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned
copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card),
AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to cosec@jmbaxi.com.

2. In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16
digit beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self
attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to
cosec @jmbaxi.com. If you are an Individual shareholder holding securities in demat mode, you are
requested to refer to the login method explained at step 1 (A) i.e. Login method for e-Voting and
joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode.

3. Alternatively, shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.com for procuring user id
and password for e-voting by providing above mentioned documents.

4. In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed
Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through
their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are
required to update their mobile number and email ID correctly in their demat account in order to
access e-Voting facility.

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR e-VOTING ON THE DAY OF THE NCLT
CONVENED MEETING ARE AS UNDER:-

1. The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the NCLT Convened Meeting is same as the instructions
mentioned above for remote e-voting.
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2. Only those Members/shareholders, who will be present in the NCLT Convened Meeting through
VC/OAVM facility and have not casted their vote on the resolutions through remote e-Voting and
are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system in the
NCLT Convened Meeting.

3. Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the NCLT Convened
Meeting. However, they will not be eligible to vote at the NCLT Convened Meeting.

4. The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances connected with the facility for e-
Voting on the day of the NCLT Convened Meeting shall be the same person mentioned for Remote
e-voting.

Other Information

a) Pursuant to Tribunal Order, Ms. Bindu Shah, shall act as Scrutinizer to scrutinize the process
of e-Voting at the Meeting in a fair and transparent manner.

b) The Scrutinizer will, after the conclusion of e-voting at the Meeting, scrutinize the votes cast
at the Meeting and make a consolidated Scrutinizer’s Report and submit the same to the
Chairperson of the Meeting. As per the Order of the Tribunal, the Chairperson shall report the
result of the said NCLT Convened Meeting to the Tribunal within 7 days from the date of
conclusion of the Meeting with regard to the proposed Scheme.

c) Subject to receipt of requisite majority of votes in favour of the Scheme i.e., majority in
number representing three-fourth in value (as per Sections 230 to 232 of the Act), the
Resolution shall be deemed to have been passed on the date of the Meeting i.e. Thursday, 5™
December 2024.

d) Equity Shareholders are requested to carefully read all the Notes set out herein and in
particular, instructions for joining the Meeting, manner of casting vote, through e-
Voting at the Meeting.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE MEETING THROUGH
VC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER:

1. Member will be provided with a facility to attend the NCLT Convened Meeting of the Equity
Shareholders of the Company through VC/OAVM through the NSDL e-Voting system.
Members may access by following the steps mentioned above for Access to NSDL e-Voting
system. After successful login, you can see link of “VC/OAVM” placed under “Join
meeting” menu against company name. You are requested to click on VC/OAVM link placed
under Join Meeting menu. The link for VC/OAVM will be available in Shareholder/Member
login where the EVEN of Company will be displayed. Please note that the members who do
not have the User ID and Password for e-Voting or have forgotten the User ID and Password
may retrieve the same by following the remote e-Voting instructions mentioned in the notice
to avoid last minute rush.

2. Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for better experience.

3. Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use the Internet with a good speed to
avoid any disturbance during the meeting.
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Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop
connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their
respective network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to
mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

Shareholders who would like to express their views/have questions may send their questions
in advance mentioning their name demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile
number at cosec @jmbaxi.com. The same will be replied by the Company suitably.
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BEFORE THE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL,
MUMBAI BENCH

COMPANY APPLICATION (CAA) NO. 154/(MB)/2024

IN THE MATTER OF SECTION 230 TO 232 AND OTHER APPLICABLE PROVISIONS OF
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH THE COMPANIES (COMPROMISES,
ARRANGEMENTS AND AMALGAMATIONS) RULES, 2016
AND
IN THE MATTER OF COMPOSITE SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT
AMONGST
J M BAXI PORTS & LOGISTICS PRIVATE LIMITED
(“J M BAXI” OR “DEMERGED COMPANY”)

AND
J M BAXI CONTAINER HOLDINGS PRIVATE LIMITED
(“J M BAXI CONTAINER” OR “RESULTING COMPANY 17)

AND
J M BAXI PORTS SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
(FORMERLY, J M BAXI CARGO HOLDINGS PRIVATE LIMITED)

(“J M BAXI DEV CO” OR “RESULTING COMPANY 2”)

AND
THEIR RESPECTIVE SHAREHOLDERS

J M Baxi Ports & Logistics Private Limited

a company incorporated under the provisions of the
Indian Companies Act, 1913 and existing under the
Companies Act, 2013, having its registered office
at Godrej Coliseum, Office No.801, C-Wing,
Behind Everard Nagar, Off Somaiya Hospital
Road, Sion East, Mumbai - 400022, Maharashtra
CIN: U63090MH1947PTC251291 ... Applicant No. 1/ Demerged Company

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 230 TO 232 READ WITH SECTION 102 OF
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE 6 OF THE COMPANIES (COMPROMISES,
ARRANGEMENTS AND AMALGAMATIONS) RULES, 2016

Pursuant to the Order dated 24™ October, 2024, passed by Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal,
Mumbai Bench in the Company Application (CAA)) No. 154/(MB)/2024 (“Order”), a meeting of the
equity shareholders of the Applicant No. 1 is being convened through VC/OAVM on Thursday, 5%
December, 2024 at 2:00 P.M. (IST) (‘Meeting’), for the purpose of considering, and if thought fit,
approving, with or without modification(s), the Composite Scheme of Arrangement amongst J M Baxi
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Ports & Logistics Private Limited, J M Baxi Container Holdings Private Limited, J M Baxi Ports Services
Private Limited and their respective shareholders.. A copy of the Scheme, which has been, inter alia,
approved by the Board of Directors of the Applicant Companies vide their respective Board Resolutions
dated 29™ February 2024 and 17™ June 2024, is enclosed herewith as Annexure A. Capitalized terms
used herein but not defined shall have the meaning assigned to them in the Scheme unless otherwise

stated.

In terms of the said Order, the quorum for the said Meeting shall be 2 (Two) in number of the total equity
shareholders of the Applicant No. 1, present and voting. If the required quorum is not present at the
commencement of the Meeting, then the Meeting will be adjourned for 30 minutes, and thereafter the
persons present, and voting shall be deemed to constitute the quorum.

1.  Interms of the said Order, the Tribunal has appointed Mr. Yogesh Chaudhary as the Chairperson
and Ms. Bindu Shah as the Scrutinizer for the Meeting of equity shareholders of Applicant No. 1
including for any adjournment or adjournments thereof.

2. This statement is being furnished as required under Sections 230(3), 232(1), 232(2) and 102 of the
Act read with Rule 6 of the CAA Rules.

3.  Inaccordance with the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 of the Act, the Scheme shall be acted upon

only if a majority of persons representing three-fourth in value of the equity shareholders of the

Applicant No. 1, voting through remote e-voting system and voting during the Meeting agree to the
Scheme

4.  Particulars of the Companies

4.1.

J M Baxi Ports & Logistics Private Limited (“J M Baxi” or “Demerged Company” or
“Applicant No. 1”)

. Applicant No. 1 is a private limited company which was originally incorporated on 6

November 1947, under the name ‘United Liner Agencies of India Private Limited’ under the
provisions of the Indian Companies Act, 1913, having CIN: U63090MH1947PTC251291,
PAN: AAACUS5182C and having its registered office at Calcutta. Subsequently, the
registered office of Applicant No. 1 was shifted from the State of West Bengal to State of
Maharashtra vide an order of the Regional Director, ER, Kolkata, Eastern Region, Kolkata
dated 18™ November 2013. The name of Applicant No. 1 was thereafter changed from
‘United Liner Agencies of India Private Limited’ to ‘International Cargo Terminals and
Infrastructure Private Limited’ with effect from 19 May 2015. The name of Applicant No. 1
thereafter once again underwent a change from ‘International Cargo Terminals and
Infrastructure Private Limited’ to ‘J M Baxi Ports & Logistics Private Limited’ with effect
from 15 September 2021. Applicant No. 1 was subsequently converted into a public limited
company vide approval of the Central Government dated 1% November 2021. Further,
Applicant No. 1 was subsequently re-converted into a private limited company vide approval
of the Central Government dated 26™ July 2023. Applicant No. 1’s registered office is
situated at Godrej Coliseum, Office No.801, C-Wing, Behind Everard Nagar, Off Somaiya
Hospital Road, Sion East, Mumbai — 400022, Maharashtra. Applicant No. 1 is engaged in
the ports and logistics business directly and indirectly through investments in special purpose
vehicles. The business activities of Applicant No. 1 comprise projects awarded pursuant to
the concession / license agreements under the public-private-partnership model entered
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between the concessioning authorities / competent authorities and the special purpose
companies with Applicant No. 1 as the applicant / selected bidder (either by itself or as a
member of a consortium). Some of these bid documents and concession agreements for these
projects specifically require Applicant No. 1 to incorporate the concessionaire as a special
purpose company under the Act in India, to implement, operate and maintain the project /
project facilities and services in accordance with the respective concession agreements /
licenses and underlying bid documents. Applicant No. 1 has, accordingly, incorporated
special purpose companies in India, as required, basis the terms of the respective concession
agreements / licenses and underlying bid documents.

. The main objects of Applicant No. 1 are set out in its Memorandum of Association. They

are briefly as under:

“1. To set up, establish, own, develop, acquire, construct, take on lease or license, equip and
carrying on business of container freight stations, container depots, cargo terminals,
warehouses, storage containers, empty container yards, liquid storages, logistic parks,
private freight terminals (PFT), free trade warehousing zones (FTWZ) and other
infrastructures either solely or in partnership or joint venture with others, and to run,
operate, maintain and manage such terminals, depots and storages including supply,
installation and operation of container / cargo liquid handling equipment’s, at various
ports, hinterlands, yards, railway sidings, work stations and places in India and abroad.

2. To establish, develop, own, operate, manage, equip, run and maintain wharves, berths,
Jetties, warehouses, dockyards, open storage areas, cold storages, cold chains, cargo
handling equipments, storage containers, porta cabins, fences, lightings, railway sidings,
oil pipelines and other port based infrastructures.

3. To establish, purchase, acquire, manage and carry on businesses of ship owners, ship
brokers, managers of shipping property, freight contractors, cargo controllers, port
managers, operators of river craft, barge owners, stevedores, forwarding agents,
warehousemen, multi modal transport operators, rail terminal operators, railway
containers, general carriers, and to provide management services, warehousing facilities
and other logistics services, shipping and port related services.”

4.1.3. The authorised, issued, subscribed and paid-up capital of the Applicant No. 1 as on 31%

March 2024 is as follows:

Particulars Amount (INR)
Authorised Share Capital:

INR 311,00,01,000 (Indian Rupees Three Hundred Eleven
Crores and One Thousand only) classified into:

111,00,01,000 (One Hundred and Eleven Crores and One 111,00,01,000/-
Thousand) Equity shares of INR 1/- each
10,00,00,000 (Ten Crores) Series A Compulsorily 100,00,00,000/-

Convertible Non-Cumulative Participatory Preference
Shares of INR 10/- (Rupees Ten) each
10,00,00,000 (Ten Crores) Series B Compulsorily 100,00,00,000/-
Convertible Non-Cumulative Participatory Preference
Shares of INR 10/- (Rupees Ten) each

TOTAL 311,00,01,000/-
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Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital
10,72,39,818 equity shares of INR 1/- (Rupee One) each 10,72,39,818/-
Total 10,72,39,818/-

There has been no change in the authorised, issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital
of the Applicant No. 1 after 31% March 2024. The equity shares of the Applicant No. 1 are
not listed on any of the stock exchanges.

4.1.4. The details of the Promoters and Directors of the Applicant No. 1 as on 31 March 2024
along with their addresses are as follows:

S. No. Name Designation Address
Promoter & Promoter Grou

1 Mr. Krishna B. Kotak Promoter ‘Kalpana’ 96/B, Netaji
Subhash Road, Mumbai —
400 002

2 Mr. Dhruv K. Kotak Promoter ‘Kalpana’ 96/B, Netaji
Subhash Road, Mumbai —
400 002

3 Mr. Vir K. Kotak Promoter 15, Scotts Road, Thong

Teck Building #04-08,
Singapore - 228218

4 Ms. Aditi Kotak Promoter ‘Kalpana’ 96/B, Netaji
Subhash Road, Mumbai —
400 002
5 Arya Offshore Promoter Group | Godrej Coliseum, Office
Services Private No.801, C-Wing, Behind
Limited Everard Nagar, Off
Somaiya Hospital Road,

Sion East, Mumbai -
400022, Maharashtra

6 K Steamship Agencies Promoter Group | Godrej Coliseum, Office
Private Limited No.801, C-Wing, Behind
Everard Nagar, Off
Somaiya Hospital Road,
Sion East, Mumbai -
400022, Maharashtra

Directors

1 Mr. Krishna B. Kotak . ‘Kalpana’ 96/B, Netaji
Wg;)rl:;g;le Subhash Road, Mumbai —

400 002
2 Mr. Dhruv K. Kotak Managing ‘Kalpana’ 96/B, Netaji
Director Subhash Road, Mumbai —

400 002
3 Mr. Dheeraj Bhatia Meadow 8, Villa-10, Street
4-A, 394/Emirates Hills
. Third, Premise Number:

Director

394042131, Premise Type:
Residential — Villa, P.O
Box: 55586, Dubai — UAE
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4.2.

4.2.1.

4.2.2.

4.2.3.

4 Mr. Rolf Eric Habben . Woldsenweg 13, 20249
Director
Jansen Hamburg, Germany

Subsequent to 31* March 2024, there have been no changes in the details of the Promoters
and Directors of the Applicant No. 1.

J M Baxi Container Holdings Private Limited (‘J M Baxi Container’ or ‘Resulting
Company 1’ or ‘Applicant No. 2°)

Applicant No. 2 is a private limited company incorporated on 21* June 2023, under the
provisions of the Act, with CIN: U52242MH2023PTC405195 and PAN: AAGCJ0496C.
Applicant No. 2’s registered office is situated at Godrej Coliseum, Office No.801, C-Wing,
Behind Everard Nagar, Off Somaiya Hospital Road, Sion East, Mumbai — 400022,
Maharashtra. Applicant No. 2 is incorporated for the purpose of carrying on the container
business of Applicant No. 1. Applicant No. 2 is a wholly owned subsidiary of Applicant No.
1.

The main objects of Applicant No. 2 are set out in the Memorandum of Association. They
are briefly as under:

“1. To set up, establish, own, develop, acquire, construct, take on lease or license, equip and
carrying on business of container freight stations, container depots, cargo terminals,
warehouses, storage containers, empty container yards, liquid storages, logistic parks,
private freight terminals (PFT), free trade warehousing zones (FTWZ) and other
infrastructures and related business either solely or in partnership or joint venture with
others, and to run, operate, maintain and manage such terminals, depots and storages
including supply, installation and operation of container / cargo liquid handling
equipment’s, at various ports, hinterlands, yards, railway sidings, work stations and
places and related business in India and abroad.

2. To establish, develop, own, operate, manage, equip, run and maintain wharves, berths,
Jetties, warehouses, dockyards, open storage areas, cold storages, cold chains, cargo
handling equipments, storage containers, porta cabins, fences, lightings, railway sidings,
oil pipelines and other port based infrastructures.

3. To establish, purchase, acquire, manage and carry on businesses of ship owners, ship
brokers, managers of shipping property, freight contractors, cargo controllers, port
managers, operators of river craft, barge owners, stevedores, forwarding agents,
warehousemen, multi modal transport operators, rail terminal operators, railway
containers, general carriers, and to provide management services, warehousing facilities
and other logistics services, shipping and port related services.”

The authorised, issued, subscribed and paid-up capital of the Applicant No. 2 as on 31*
March 2024 is as follows:

Particulars Amount (INR)
Authorised Share Capital:

1,00,000 equity shares of INR 1/- (Rupee One) each 1,00,000/-
Total 1,00,000/-
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Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital
1,00,000 equity shares of INR 1/- (Rupee One) each 1,00,000/-
Total 1,00,000/-

There has been no change in the authorised, issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital of
the Applicant No. 2 after 31° March 2024. The equity shares of the Applicant No. 2 are not
listed on any of the stock exchanges.

4.2.4. The details of the Promoters and Directors of the Applicant No. 2 as on 31 March 2024
along with their addresses are as follows:

S. No. Name Designation Address
Promoter & Promoter Group
1 J M Baxi Ports & Godrej  Coliseum,  Office
Logistics Private No.801, C-Wing, Behind
Limited Promoter | Everard Nagar, Off Somaiya

Hospital Road, Sion East,
Mumbai - 400022, Maharashtra

Directors
1 Nandan Vithal Yalgi House No 879, Scheme 40,
Director Kuvempu Nagar, Near
Hanamannavar Marg, Belgaum,
Hindalga, Karnataka - 591108
2 Varsha Vijay Nair 2101, Tiffany, Vasant Oasis,
Director Makwana road, Marol, Andheri

(East), Mumbai - 400059

Subsequent to 31* March 2024, there have been no changes in the details of the Promoters
and Directors of the Applicant No. 2.

4.3. J M Baxi Ports Services Private Limited (‘J M Baxi Dev Co’ or ‘Resulting Company 2’
or ‘Applicant No. 3°)

4.3.1. Applicant No. 3 is a private limited company incorporated on 3™ July 2023, under the
provisions of the Act, as ‘J M Baxi Cargo Holdings Private Limited’, with CIN:
U52242MH2023PTC405765 and PAN: AAGCJ0656A. Vide certificate dated 31 May 2024
issued by the Registrar of Companies, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the name of Applicant
No. 3 was changed from ‘J M Baxi Cargo Holdings Private Limited’ to ‘J M Baxi Ports
Services Private Limited’. Copies of the certificate of incorporation of Applicant No. 3 along
with the subsequent certificates issued in respect of Applicant No. 3, including the change
of name certificate of Applicant No. 3 are hereto annexed and marked as Annexure J.
Applicant No. 3’s registered office is situated at Godrej Coliseum, Office No.801, C-Wing,
Behind Everard Nagar, Off Somaiya Hospital Road, Sion East, Mumbai — 400022,
Maharashtra. Applicant No. 3 is proposed to carry on the corporate services business of
Applicant No. 1. Applicant No. 3 is a wholly owned subsidiary of Applicant No. 1.

21



4.3.2. The main objects of Applicant No. 3 are set out in the Memorandum of Association. They
are briefly as under:

“1.To establish, develop, own, operate, manage and carry on the business of providing
services in relation to the formulation and execution of business development strategies,
market analysis and the preparation of bids for projects in accordance with
concessioning and government agreements and to engage with appropriate authorities
as well as undertake planning, executing, controlling and monitoring of projects and
provide assistance in negotiating commercial arrangements / agreements and managing
interactions with third parties, in the ports and infrastructure sector.

2. To establish, develop, own, operate, manage and carry on the business of offering
assistance in human resource management, project performance management, guidance
on industrial relations, and operational protocols for terminal, crane and yard
management, providing budgeting for business plans, corporate finance, accounting,
project finance, and treasury management strategies as well as identifying and
shortlisting business opportunities, supporting credit rating assessments, legal
management services, litigation management services, and investor presentations to raise
capital and providing information technology services and managing shared
administrative functions and aiding in the performance management of projects and
contract management, including procurement of regulatory advisory and consultancy
services, in the ports and infrastructure sector.

3. To promote, coordinate, advice and assist technically and otherwise by way of rendering
support services of all kinds, including but not limited to the development, running and
maintenance of the business in the ports and infrastructure sector and to render all forms
of consultancy services for supervision and implementation of any projects undertaken in
relation to the ports and infrastructure sector.

4. To assist in undertaking preliminary planning, project development studies, feasibility
reports, design engineering, training, including technical and specialized advice on
projects relating to the ports and infrastructure sector.

5. To carry on the business of management consultants and advisors and to provide
management services in all forms and aspects of trade and industry, including, without
limitation, problem solving, team building, strategic and operational planning, corporate
communications, information technology and knowledge management, corporate
management, productivity, profitability, human resource development, change processes,
recruitment of managerial personnel, manpower planning, cost control, marketing,
advertisement, and any other related activity, to companies, bodies corporate,
governments central or state, municipal or local authority, society, undertaking,
institution or any association of persons or any individual, whether in India or abroad.

6. To carry on business to give effect to the above objects such as establishing training
and/or research institutes for technical/vocational training of candidates. To carry out
research and development activities in relation to the objects above, including
investigation, preparation and drafting of all manner of studies including economic and
commercial studies. To collect information and data and submit reports on feasibility of
new projects and/or improvements to and/or expansion of existing projects, to diagnose
operational difficulties and weaknesses and suggest remedial measures to improve and

>

modernize existing projects, undertakings and businesses.’
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4.3.3. The authorised, issued, subscribed and paid-up capital of the Applicant No. 3 as on 31*

March 2024 is as follows:
Particulars Amount (INR)
Authorised Share Capital:
1,00,000 equity shares of INR 1/- (Rupee One) each 1,00,000/-
Total 1,00,000/-

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital
1,00,000 equity shares of INR 1/- (Rupee One) each 1,00,000/-
Total 1,00,000/-

There has been no change in the authorised, issued, subscribed and paid up share capital of
the Applicant No. 3 after 31° March 2024. The equity shares of the Applicant No. 3 are not
listed on any of the stock exchanges.

4.3.4. The details of the Promoters and Directors of the Applicant No. 3 as on 31* March 2024
along with their addresses are as follows:

S. No. Name Designation Address
Promoter & Promoter Group
1 J M Baxi Ports & Godrej  Coliseum,  Office
Logistics Private No.801, C-Wing, Behind
Limited Promoter | Everard Nagar, Off Somaiya

Hospital Road, Sion East,
Mumbai - 400022, Maharashtra

Directors
1 Nandan Vithal Yalgi House No 879, Scheme 40,
Director Kuvempu Nagar, Near
Hanamannavar Marg, Belgaum,
Hindalga, Karnataka - 591108
2 Varsha Vijay Nair 2101, Tiffany, Vasant Oasis,
Director Makwana road, Marol, Andheri

(East), Mumbai - 400059

Subsequent to 31* March 2024, there have been no changes in the details of the Promoters
and Directors of the Applicant No. 3.

5.  Relationship subsisting between the Companies who are parties to the Composite Scheme of
Arrangement

The Applicant No. 1, along with its nominee shareholder, holds 100% of equity share capital of

Applicant No. 2 and Applicant No. 3. Hence, Applicant No. 2 and Applicant No. 3 are wholly
owned subsidiaries of the Applicant No. 1.

6. Details of the Board Meeting approving the Composite Scheme of Arrangement

The Board of Directors of Applicant No. 1, Applicant No. 2 and Applicant No. 3, respectively, have
approved the Scheme vide their respective Board Resolutions dated 29" February 2024 and 17" June
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2024, after taking on record the Share Entitlement Ratio Report dated 29" February 2024, issued by
the Registered Valuer, Transaction Square Advisory LLP.

Names of the directors who voted in favour of the resolution, who voted against the resolution and
who did not vote or participate in such resolutions are as follows:

A. J M Baxi Ports & Logistics Private Limited (Applicant No. 1):

Voted in Favour/
S. No. Name of the Director Against/ Abstained
from voting
1. Mr. Krishna B. Kotak In Favour
2. Mr. Dhruv K. Kotak In Favour
3. Mr. Dheeraj Bhatia In Favour
4, Mr. Rolf Eric Habben Jansen In Favour

B. J M Baxi Container Holdings Private Limited (Applicant No. 2):

Voted in Favour/
Sr. No. Name of the Director Against/ Abstained
from voting
1. Nandan Vithal Yalgi In Favour
2. Varsha Vijay Nair In Favour

C. J M Baxi Ports Services Private Limited (Applicant No. 3):

Voted in Favour/
S. No. Name of the Director Against/ Abstained
from voting
1. Nandan Vithal Yalgi In Favour
2. Varsha Vijay Nair In Favour

Rationale and Benefits of the Composite Scheme of Arrangement

“C. RATIONALE

The Demerged Company is inter alia engaged in Container Business, Non-Container Business and
Corporate Services Business. The management believes that the risk and reward associated with
each of the aforesaid businesses are different with different stakeholders. As part of restructuring
of its businesses and with a view to achieve strategic independence of its business verticals
(unlocking the potential of each of the businesses) and to leverage the expertise of its strategic
investor, the management of the Demerged Company proposes to (i) demerge the Demerged
Undertaking 1, on a going concern basis, into J M Baxi Container; and (ii) demerge the Demerged
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8.

Un

dertaking 2, on a going concern basis, into J M Baxi Dev Co. Further, the Demerged Company

shall continue to be engaged in the Non-Container Business. The management believes that the

proposed segregation of business shall benefit all stakeholders of the Companies and also result in

the
1.

following benefits:

The Demerged Undertakings have achieved scale and experience to sustain business based on
their own strengths. Additionally, these businesses deal with different sets of industry dynamics
in the form of nature of risks, competition, challenges, opportunities and business methods.
Hence, segregation of the Identified Container Business and Corporate Services Business would
enable focused management and enable exploring the potential business opportunities more
effectively and efficiently.

The Demerger will enable both Demerged Company and the Resulting Companies to enhance
business operations by streamlining operations, cutting costs, more efficient management
control and outlining independent growth strategies.

The Demerger will allow the management to devise, implement and pursue independent
business strategies for the Identified Container Business, Non-Container Business and
Corporate Services Business which will enable wider scope for independent collaboration,
investment opportunities and expansion.

The Resulting Company 1, with clear identity of being an ldentified Container Business will
enable right customer attention resulting in deeper market penetration.

The Resulting Company 2, with clear identity of being in the Corporate Services Business, will
enable to drive overall strategy, manage bidding for new and performance of existing
businesses.

Ability to leverage financial and operational resources in each business will lead to possibilities
of joint ventures and associations with other industry participants, both in India and globally,
and will facilitate attracting greater talent pool.

Each business will be able to address independent business opportunities with efficient capital
allocation and attract different set of investors, strategic partners, lenders and other
stakeholders, thus leading to enhanced value creation, which is in the best interest of the
Demerged Company and Resulting Companies and their respective stakeholders.

In view of the aforesaid, the Board of Directors of the Companies have considered and
proposed this Scheme and matters incidental thereto pursuant to the provisions of Sections
230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Act.”

The salient features of the Scheme are as follows:

1.2.

1.11.

PART I — DEFINITIONS, INTERPRETATION AND SHARE CAPITAL
Definitions

“Appointed Date’’ means the Effective Date, or such other date as may be approved by the
National Company Law Tribunal or such other competent authority / Appropriate
Authority.”

“Demerged Undertaking 1~ means the Identified Container Business of the Demerged
Company and all businesses, activities, properties and relatable liabilities, employees,
contracts, legal or other proceedings, and all other rights, claims or titles attributable to the
interests of the Demerged Company in the Identified Container Business and without
limitation, shall include the following:
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1.11.1 all its properties and assets of the above referred business (tangible and intangible),
including all intellectual property, movable or immovable, freehold, leasehold or
licensed, tenancy rights, hire purchase and lease arrangements, real or personal,
corporeal or incorporeal or otherwise, present, future, contingent, tangible or
intangible, furniture, fixtures, office equipment, appliances, accessories, vehicles,
sheds, godowns, warehouses, container freight stations, container terminals, inland
container depots / terminals, equipments, capital work-in-progress, investments,
sundry debtors, deposits, provisions, advances, recoverables, receivables, title,
interest, cash and bank balances, bills of exchange, covenants, all earnest monies,
security deposits, or other entitlements, funds, powers, authorities, licenses,
registrations, quotas, allotments, consents, privileges, liberties, advantages, easements
and all the rights, title, interests, goodwill, benefits, fiscal incentives, entitlement and
advantages, contingent rights or benefits belonging to or in the ownership, power,
possession or the control of or vested in or granted in favour of or held for the benefit
of or enjoyed by the Demerged Company with respect to the Identified Container
Business;

1.11.2all current assets including inventories, sundry debtors, receivables, cash and bank
accounts (including bank balances), fixed deposits, loans and advances, actionable
claims, bills of exchanges and debit notes for the purpose of carrying on the Identified
Container Business;

1.11.3all rights or benefits, benefits of any deposit, receivables, claims against any vendor or
advances or deposits paid by or deemed to have been paid, financial assets, benefit of
any bank guarantees, performance guarantees and letters of credit, hire purchase
contracts, lending contracts, rights and benefits under any agreement, benefits of any
security arrangements or under any guarantee, reversions, powers, tenancies in
relation to the office and/or residential properties for the employees or other persons,
vehicles, guest houses, godowns, share of any joint assets and other facilities pertaining
to the Identified Container Business,

1.11.4all rights to use and avail of telephones, telexes, facsimile, email, internet, leased line
connections and installations, utilities, electricity and other services, reserves,
provisions, funds, benefits of assets or properties or other interests held in trusts,
registrations, contracts, engagements, arrangement of all kinds, privileges and all
other rights, easements, liberties and advantages of whatsoever nature and
wheresoever situated belonging to or in the ownership, power or possession and in the
control of or vested in or granted in favour of or enjoyed by the Demerged Company
or in connection with or relating to the said company and all other interests of
whatsoever nature belonging to or in the ownership, power, possession or the control
of or vested in or granted in favour of or held for the benefit of the Identified Container
Business;

1.11.5all permissions, approvals, consents, subsidies privileges, income tax benefits and
exemptions, indirect tax benefits and exemptions, all other rights, benefits and
liabilities related thereto including licenses, powers and facilities of every kind, nature
and description whatsoever, provisions and benefits of all agreements, contracts and
arrangements and all other interests in connection with or relating to the Identified
Container Business;

1.11.6all licenses (including but not limited to licenses granted by any government, statutory
or regulatory bodies for the purpose of carrying on the business or in connection
therewith), approvals, authorizations, permissions including municipal permissions,
consents, registrations, certifications, no objection certificates, quotas, rights, permits,
exemptions, subsidies, tax deferrals, credits (including Cenvat credits, sales tax credits,
goods and services tax credits and income tax credits), privileges, advantages and all
other rights and facilities of every kind, nature and description whatsoever for the
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purpose of carrying on the ldentified Container Business;

1.11.7 all application monies, advance monies, earnest monies and/ or security deposits paid
or deemed to have been paid and payments against other entitlements with respect to
the Identified Container Business;

1.11.8all agreements, contracts, arrangements, understandings, customer relationships,
engagements, deeds and instruments including lease/ license agreements, tenancy
rights, bonds, schemes, deeds, arrangements, service arrangements, sales orders,
purchase orders, equipment purchase agreements, and other agreements with the
customers and all rights, title, interests, claims and benefits there under; for the
purpose of carrying on the ldentified Container Business;

1.11.9 all tax credits, refunds, reimbursements, claims, concessions, exemptions, benefits
under Tax Laws including sales tax deferrals, advance taxes, tax deducted at source,
right to carry forward and set-off accumulated losses and unabsorbed depreciation, if
any, deferred tax assets, goods and services tax credit, indirect tax benefits and
exemptions, deductions and benefits under the IT Act or any other taxation statute
enjoyed by the Demerged Company with respect to the Identified Container Business;

1.11.10 all debts, borrowings, obligations, duties and liabilities both present and future,
whether provided for or not in the books of accounts or disclosed in the balance sheet
of the Demerged Company, whether secured or unsecured, all guarantees, assurances,
commitments and obligations of any kind, nature or description, whether fixed,
contingent or absolute, asserted or unasserted, matured or un-matured, liquidated or
unliquidated, accrued or not accrued, known or unknown, due or to become due,
whenever or however arising (including, without limitation, whether arising out of any
contract or tort based on negligence or strict liability) pertaining to the ldentified
Container Business; all permits, licences, approvals, registrations, quotas, incentives,
powers, authorities, allotments, consents, rights, benefits, advantages, municipal
permissions, trademarks, designs, copyrights, patents and other intellectual property
rights of the Demerged Company pertaining to Identified Container Business, whether
registered or unregistered and powers of every kind, nature and description
whatsoever, whether from the government bodies or otherwise, pertaining to or
relating to the Identified Container Business;

1.11.11 all books, records, files, papers, process information, computer programs, software
licenses (whether proprietary or otherwise), drawings, manuals, data, catalogues,
quotations, sales, and advertising materials, lists of present and former customers and
suppliers, customer credit information, customer pricing information, list of present
and former agents and brokers and other records whether in physical or electronic
form in connection with or relating to the Identified Container Business;

1.11.12 all legal proceedings, suits, claims, disputes, causes of action, litigation, petitions,
appeals, writs, legal, taxation or other proceedings of whatever nature, (including
before any statutory or quasi-judicial authority or tribunal), under Applicable Law, in
connection with the Identified Container Business;

1.11.13 right to use the work experience, qualifications, capabilities, legacies and track
record with government / non-government agencies / bodies, contracts with clients and
with vendors, (including technical parameters, past performance, track record,
financial credentials such as profitability, turnover, net-worth, financials, etc.) of the
Demerged Company pertaining to the Identified Container Business, to the extent
applicable, acquired by reason of the completion of various projects or works issued
to the Demerged Company and the right to use all these past credentials for qualifying
for any tender or project in the future;

1.11.14 all insurance policies with respect to the ldentified Container Business; and
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1.12

1.11.15 all employees, who are on its payrolls, including those employed at its offices,
employees/ personnel engaged on contract basis and interns/ trainees, as are primarily
engaged in or relation to the business, activities and operations carried by the above
referred business, including liabilities of the above referred business, with regard to
their staff and employees, with respect to the payment of gratuity, superannuation,
pension benefits and provident fund or other compensation or benefits, if any, whether
in the event of resignation, death, retirement, or otherwise, in terms of its license, at its
offices or otherwise, and any other employees/ personnel and interns/ trainees engaged
in the Identified Container Business as on the Effective Date.

“Demerged Undertaking 2” means the Corporate Services Business of the Demerged
Company and all businesses, activities, properties and relatable liabilities, employees,
contracts, legal or other proceedings, and all other rights, claims or titles attributable to the
interests of the Demerged Company in the Corporate Services Business and without
limitation, include the following:

1.12.1All properties and assets of the Corporate Services Business (tangible or intangible),
including all intellectual property, movable or immovable, freehold, leasehold or
licensed, tenancy rights, hire purchase and lease arrangements, real or personal,
corporeal or incorporeal or otherwise, present, future, contingent, tangible or
intangible, furniture, fixtures, office equipment, appliances, accessories, vehicles,
sheds, godowns, warehouses, equipments, capital work-in-progress, investments,
sundry debtors, deposits, provisions, advances, recoverables, receivables, title,
interest, cash and bank balances, bills of exchange, covenants, all earnest monies,
security deposits, or other entitlements, funds, powers, authorities, licenses,
registrations, quotas, allotments, consents, privileges, liberties, advantages, easements
and all the rights, title, interests, goodwill, benefits, fiscal incentives, entitlement and
advantages, contingent rights or benefits belonging to or in the ownership, power,
possession or the control of or vested in or granted in favour of or held for the benefit
of or enjoyed by the Demerged Company with respect to the Corporate Services
Business;

1.12.2all current assets including inventories, sundry debtors, receivables, cash and bank
accounts (including bank balances), fixed deposits, loans and advances, actionable
claims, bills of exchanges and debit notes for the purpose of carrying on the Corporate
Services Business;

1.12.3all rights or benefits, benefits of any deposit, receivables, claims against any vendor or
advances or deposits paid by or deemed to have been paid, financial assets, benefit of
any bank guarantees, performance guarantees and letters of credit, hire purchase
contracts, lending contracts, rights and benefits under any agreement, benefits of any
security arrangements or under any guarantee, reversions, powers, tenancies in
relation to the office and/or residential properties for the employees or other persons,
vehicles, guest houses, godowns, share of any joint assets and other facilities pertaining
to the Corporate Services Business;

1.12.4all rights to use and avail of telephones, telexes, facsimile, email, internet, leased line
connections and installations, utilities, electricity and other services, reserves,
provisions, funds, benefits of assets or properties or other interests held in trusts,
registrations, contracts, engagements, arrangement of all kinds, privileges and all
other rights, easements, liberties and advantages of whatsoever nature and
wheresoever’s situated belonging to or in the ownership, power or possession and in
the control of or vested in or granted in favour of or enjoyed by the Demerged Company
or in connection with or relating to the said company and all other interests of
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whatsoever nature belonging to or in the ownership, power, possession or the control
of or vested in or granted in favour of or held for the benefit of the Corporate Services
Business;

1.12.5all permissions, approvals, consents, subsidies, privileges, indirect tax benefits and
exemptions, all other rights, benefits and liabilities related thereto including licenses,
powers and facilities of every kind, nature and description whatsoever, provisions and
benefits of all agreements, contracts and arrangements and all other interests in
connection with or relating to the Corporate Services Business;

1.12.6all licenses (including but not limited to licenses granted by any government, statutory
or regulatory bodies for the purpose of carrying on the business or in connection
therewith), approvals, authorizations, permissions including municipal permissions,
consents, registrations, certifications, no objection certificates, quotas, rights, permits,
exemptions, subsidies, tax deferrals, credits (including Cenvat credits, sales tax credits,
goods and services tax credits and income tax credits), privileges, advantages and all
other rights and facilities of every kind, nature and description whatsoever for the
purpose of carrying on the Corporate Services Business;

1.12.7all application monies, advance monies, earnest monies and/ or security deposits paid
or deemed to have been paid and payments against other entitlements with respect to
the Corporate Services Business;

1.12.8all agreements, contracts, arrangements, understandings, engagements, deeds and
instruments including lease/ license agreements, tenancy rights, bonds, schemes,
deeds, arrangements, service arrangements, sales orders, purchase orders, loan
license agreements and other agreements with the customers and all rights, title,
interests, claims and benefits there under for the purpose of carrying on the Corporate
Services Business;

1.12.9all tax credits, refunds, reimbursements, claims, concessions, exemptions, benefits
under Tax Laws including sales tax deferrals, advance taxes, tax deducted at source,
right to carry forward and set-off accumulated losses and unabsorbed depreciation, if
any, deferred tax assets, goods and services tax credit, indirect tax benefits and
exemptions, deductions and benefits under the IT Act or any other taxation statute
enjoyed by the Demerged Company with respect to the Corporate Services Business,

1.12.10 all debts, borrowings, obligations, duties and liabilities both present and future,
whether provided for or not in the books of accounts or disclosed in the balance sheet
of the Demerged Company, whether secured or unsecured, all guarantees, assurances,
commitments and obligations of any kind, nature or description, whether fixed,
contingent or absolute, asserted or unasserted, matured or un-matured, liquidated or
unliquidated, accrued or not accrued, known or unknown, due or to become due,
whenever or however arising (including, without limitation, whether arising out of any
contract or tort based on negligence or strict liability) pertaining to the Corporate
Services Business;

1.12.11 all permits, licences, approvals, registrations, quotas, incentives, powers, authorities,
allotments, consents, rights, benefits, advantages, municipal permissions, trademarks,
designs, copyrights, patents and other intellectual property rights of the Demerged
Company pertaining to Corporate Services Business, whether registered or
unregistered and powers of every kind, nature and description whatsoever, whether
from the government bodies or otherwise, pertaining to or relating to the Corporate
Services Business;

1.12.12 all books, records, files, papers, process information, computer programs, software
licenses (whether proprietary or otherwise), drawings, manuals, data, catalogues,
quotations, sales, and advertising materials, lists of present and former customers and
suppliers, customer credit information, customer pricing information, and other
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records whether in physical or electronic form in connection with or relating to the
Corporate Services Business;

1.12.13 all legal proceedings, suits, claims, disputes, causes of action, litigation, petitions,
appeals, writs, legal, taxation or other proceedings of whatever nature, (including
before any statutory or quasi-judicial authority or tribunal), under Applicable Law, in
connection with the Corporate Services Business,

1.12.14 all insurance policies with respect to the Corporate Service Business; and

1.12.15 all employees, who are on its payrolls, including those employed at its offices,
employees/ personnel engaged on contract basis and interns/ trainees, as are primarily
engaged in or relation to the business, activities and operations carried by the
Corporate Services Business, including liabilities of the Corporate Services Business,
with regard to their staff and employees, with respect to the payment of gratuity,
superannuation, pension benefits and provident fund or other compensation or
benefits, if any, whether in the event of resignation, death, retirement, or otherwise, in
terms of its license, at its offices or otherwise, and any other employees/ personnel and
interns/ trainees engaged in the Corporate Services Business as of the Effective Date.

1.14. “Effective Date” in relation to the Scheme, means the date or last of the dates on which (i)

certified copies of the order of the NCLT sanctioning the Scheme are filed by the Demerged
Company and the Resulting Companies with the Registrar of Companies, Mumbai or (ii) the
last of the approvals specified under Clause 31.1 is obtained. References in this Scheme to
the date of “coming into effect of this Scheme” or “upon the Scheme becoming effective” or
“effectiveness of this Scheme” or “Scheme becomes effective” shall mean the Effective Date.

Part Il - DEMERGER AND VESTING OF DEMERGED UNDERTAKING 1 OF THE

6.1

6.2

6.3

DEMERGED COMPANY INTO THE RESULTING COMPANY 1

DEMERGER AND VESTING OF THE DEMERGED UNDERTAKING 1

Upon the Scheme becoming effective and with effect from the Appointed Date and subject to
the provisions of this Scheme and pursuant to Section 230 to 232 of the Act and Section
2(19AA) of the IT Act, the Demerged Undertaking 1 shall, without any further act, instrument
or deed, be transferred to, and be vested in or be deemed to have been transferred to and
vested in Resulting Company 1, as a going concern, so as to become as and from the
Appointed Date, the assets, liabilities, contracts, arrangements, customer relationships,
employees, permits, records, etc. of Resulting Company 1 by virtue of operation of law and
in the manner provided in this Scheme, subject to subsisting charges, Encumbrances and
pledges, if any.

In respect of such of the assets and properties forming part of the Demerged Undertaking 1,
including those which are acquired till the Effective Date, assets and properties which are
movable in nature, including cash in hand, or are otherwise capable of transfer by delivery
or possession or by endorsement, the same shall stand transferred by the Demerged
Company to Resulting Company 1 upon coming into effect of this Scheme and shall, ipso
facto and without any other order to this effect, become the assets and properties of Resulting
Company I without requiring any deed or instrument of conveyance for transfer of the same,
subject to subsisting charges, Encumbrances and pledges, if any.

Subject to Clause 6.5 below, with respect to the assets of the Demerged Undertaking 1 other
than those referred to in Clause 6.2 above, including all rights, title and interests in the
agreements (including agreements for lease or license of the properties), investments in
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6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

shares, mutual funds, bonds and any other securities, sundry debtors, claims from customers
or otherwise, outstanding loans and advances, if any, recoverable in cash or in kind or for
value to be received, if any, with any Appropriate Authority, customers and other persons,
whether or not the same is held in the name of the Demerged Company, the same shall,
without any further act, instrument or deed, be transferred to and vested in and / or be
deemed to be transferred to and vested in the Resulting Company 1, with effect from the
Appointed Date by operation of law as transmission in favour of Resulting Company 1. With
regard to the licenses of the properties, Resulting Company 1 will enter into novation
agreements, if it is so required.

The bank balances and deposits, if any, pertaining to the Demerged Undertaking 1 as on the
Appointed Date, shall be maintained in a separate bank account and the said balance would
be adjusted for any transactions undertaken in relation to the Demerged Undertaking 1 by
the Demerged Company upto the Effective Date. Further, the balances in the aforesaid
account as on the Effective Date shall, without any further act, instrument or deed, be
transferred to and vested in and / or be deemed to be transferred to and vested in the
Resulting Company 1.

In respect of such of the assets and properties forming part of the Demerged Undertaking 1
which are immovable in nature, whether freehold or leasehold, and any documents of title,
rights, agreements to sell / agreements of sale and easements in relation thereto, same shall
stand transferred to and be vested in Resulting Company 1 with effect from the Appointed
Date, without any act or deed done by the Demerged Company or Resulting Company 1, and
without any approval or acknowledgement of any third party. With effect from the Appointed
Date, the Resulting Company 1 shall be entitled to exercise all rights and privileges and be
liable to pay all taxes and charges and fulfil all obligations, in relation to or applicable to
such immovable properties. The mutation / substitution of the title to such immovable
properties shall be made and duly recorded in the name of the Resulting Company 1 by the
Appropriate Authority pursuant to the sanction of the Scheme by the NCLT and in
accordance with the terms hereof. The Demerged Company shall take all steps as may be
necessary to ensure that lawful, peaceful, and unencumbered possession, right, title, interest
of its immovable property is given to the Resulting Company 1. Resulting Company 1 may,
if required give notice in such form as it may deem fit and proper to each person, debtor or
depositee that pursuant to the Scheme, the said person, debtor or depositee should pay the
loan, debt or advance or make good the same or hold the same to its account and that the
right of the Resulting Company 1 to recover or realize the same is in substitution of the right
of the Demerged Company.

Notwithstanding anything contained in this Scheme, with respect to the immovable
properties comprised in the Demerged Undertaking 1 in the nature of land and buildings
situated in India, whether owned or leased, for the purpose of, inter alia, payment of stamp
duty and vesting in Resulting Company 1, if Resulting Company 1 so decides, the Parties,
whether before or after the Effective Date, may execute and register or cause to be executed
and registered, separate deeds of conveyance or deeds of assignment of lease, as the case
may be, in favour of Resulting Company 1 in respect of such immovable properties. Each of
the immovable properties, only for the purposes of the payment of stamp duty (if required
under Applicable Law), shall be deemed to be conveyed at a value determined by the
Appropriate Authority in accordance with the applicable circle rates. The transfer of such
immovable properties shall form an integral part of this Scheme.

Upon the Scheme becoming effective and with effect from the Appointed Date, all rights
entitlements, licenses, applications and registrations relating to copyrights, trademarks,
service marks, brand names, logos, patents and other intellectual property rights of every
kind and description, whether registered or unregistered or pending registration, and the
gooadwill arising therefrom, relatable to the Demerged Undertaking 1, if any, to which either
the Demerged Company is a party or to the benefit of which the Demerged Company may be
/ was eligible or entitled, shall become the rights, entitlement or property of Resulting
Company 1 and shall be enforceable by or against Resulting Company 1, as fully and
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6.8

effectually as if, instead of Demerged Company, Resulting Company 1 had been a party or
beneficiary or obligee thereto or the holder or owner thereof.
Upon the Scheme becoming effective and with effect from the Appointed Date:

6.8.1

6.8.2

6.8.3

6.8.4

6.8.5

6.8.6

The Demerged Company may, at its sole discretion but without being obliged to, give
notice in such form as it may deem fit and proper, to such persons, as the case may
be, that any debt, receivable, bill, credit, loan, advance, debenture or deposit relating
to the Demerged Undertaking 1 stands transferred to and vested in Resulting
Company 1 and that appropriate modification should be made in their respective
books / records to reflect the aforesaid changes.

Subject to Clause 6.8.3, all liabilities relating to and comprised in the Demerged
Undertaking 1 including all secured and unsecured debts (whether in Indian rupees
or foreign currency), sundry creditors, liabilities (including contingent liabilities),
duties and obligations and undertakings of the Demerged Company of every kind,
nature and description whatsoever and howsoever arising, raised or incurred or
utilised for its business activities and operations of Demerged Undertaking 1, shall,
stand transferred to and vested in or deemed to be transferred to and vested in the
Resulting Company 1. To give effect to the foregoing, Demerged Company and
Resulting Company 1 shall execute all such deeds, documents, and instruments as may
be required.

All the sanctioned limits with regards to bank guarantees and cash credit limits
pertaining to the Demerged Undertaking 1, as may be determined by the Board of the
Demerged Company and the Resulting Company 1 in consultation with the lenders of
the Demerged Company, shall, stand transferred to and vested in or deemed to be
transferred to and vested in the Resulting Company 1. The balance of the sanctioned
limits with regards to bank guarantees and cash credit of the Demerged Company, if
any, shall be the sanctioned limits for the Remaining Business of the Demerged
Company. To give effect to the foregoing, Demerged Company and Resulting
Company 1 shall execute all such deeds, documents and instruments as may be
required by respective lenders.

If the Demerged Company is entitled to any unutilised credits (including accumulated
losses and unabsorbed depreciation), benefits under the state or central fiscal /
investment incentive schemes and policies or concessions relating to the Demerged
Undertaking 1 under any Tax Laws or Applicable Law, Resulting Company 1 shall be
entitled, as an integral part of the Scheme, to claim such benefit or incentives or
unutilised credits as the case may be without any specific approval or permission.
Without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing, in respect of unutilised input
credits of goods and services tax of the Demerged Company, the portion which will
be attributed to the Demerged Undertaking 1 and be transferred to Resulting
Company 1 shall be determined by the Board of the Demerged Company in
accordance with the Applicable Law.

Subject to Clause 24 and any other provisions of this Scheme, in respect of any refund,
benefit, incentive, grant or subsidy in relation to or in connection with the Demerged
Undertaking 1, the Demerged Company shall, if so required by Resulting Company 1,
issue notices in such form as Resulting Company 1 may deem fit and proper, stating
that pursuant to the NCLT having sanctioned this Scheme, the relevant refund, benefit,
incentive, grant or subsidy be paid or made good to or held on account of Resulting
Company 1, as the person entitled thereto, to the end and intent that the right of the
Demerged Company to recover or realise the same stands transferred to Resulting
Company 1 and that appropriate entries should be passed in their respective books to
record the aforesaid changes.

On and from the Effective Date, all cheques and other negotiable instruments and
payment orders received or presented for encashment which are in the name of the
Demerged Company and are in relation to or in connection with the Demerged
Undertaking 1, shall be accepted by the bankers of Resulting Company 1 and credited
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7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

to the account of Resulting Company 1, if and when presented by Resulting Company
1.

6.8.7 The Resulting Company 1 shall at any time upon the Scheme becoming effective and
in accordance with the provisions hereof, if so, required under any Applicable Law or
otherwise execute deeds of confirmation or other writings or arrangements with any
party to any contract or arrangement in relation to the Demerged Undertaking 1 to
which the Demerged Company has been a party, in order to give formal effect to the
above provisions.

6.8.8 Upon the Scheme becoming effective and with effect from the Appointed Date, in
relation to the assets forming part of the Demerged Undertaking 1, if any, separate
document is required for vesting of such assets in the Resulting Company 1, or which
the Demerged Company and/ or the Resulting Company 1 otherwise desire to be
vested separately, the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company 1 will execute
such deeds, documents or such other instruments, if any, as may be mutually agreed.

6.8.9 Upon the Scheme being effective, for the purpose of satisfying any eligibility criteria
including technical and/ or financial parameters for participating and qualifying in
invitations for expression of interest(s) and/ or bid(s) and/ or tender(s) of any nature
meant for any project(s) or contract(s) or work(s) or services or combination thereof,
related to the Demerged Undertaking 1, the Resulting Company 1 shall be entitled to
the benefit of all pre-qualification, track- record, experience, goodwill, and all other
rights, claims and powers of whatsoever nature belonging to the Demerged Company
in connection with or pertaining or relatable to the Demerged Undertaking 1 for all
intents and purposes and specifically including but not limited to financial credentials
including the turnover, profitability, net-worth, technical expertise, market share,
project management experience, track record of having undertaken, performed and/or
executed the business and/or orders by the Demerged Company.

6.8.101t is hereby clarified that if any assets of the Demerged Undertaking 1, cannot be
transferred to the Resulting Company 1 for any reason whatsoever, the Demerged
Company shall hold such asset in trust for the benefit of the Resulting Company 1 and
forthwith seek to transfer such assets to the Resulting Company 1, upon receipt of
relevant consents and approvals required to effect such transfer.

ENCUMBRANCES

The transfer and vesting of the assets comprised in the business of the Demerged
Undertaking 1 of the Demerged Company, to and in the Resulting Company I under Clause
6 of this Scheme shall be subject to the mortgages, Encumbrances and charges, if any,
affecting the same, as and to the extent hereinafter provided.

In so far as any Encumbrance in respect of liabilities relating to the Demerged Undertaking
1 is concerned, such Encumbrance shall, be extended to, and shall continue to operate over
the assets comprised in the Demerged Undertaking 1 which have been Encumbered in
respect of the liabilities as transferred to Resulting Company 1 pursuant to the Scheme.

All the existing securities, mortgages, charges, Encumbrances or liens, if any, created by the
Demerged Company till the Effective Date, over the assets comprised in the business of the
Demerged Undertaking 1 of the Demerged Company, or any part thereof transferred to the
Resulting Company 1 by virtue of this Scheme and in so far as such Encumbrances secure
or relate to liabilities of the Demerged Company, the same shall, after the Effective Date,
continue to relate and attach to such assets or any part thereof to which they are related or
attached prior to the Effective Date and as are transferred to the Resulting Company 1, and
such Encumbrances shall not relate or attach to any of the other assets of the Resulting
Company 1.

In so far as the assets comprised in the Demerged Undertaking 1 are concerned, the
Encumbrance over such assets relating to any liabilities which are not transferred to the
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7.5

7.6

7.7

7.8

7.9

7.10

Resulting Company 1 pursuant to this Scheme and which continue with the Demerged
Company shall without any further act, instrument or deed be released from such
Encumbrance and shall no longer be available as security in relation to such liabilities with
respect to the Demerged Company. Similarly, the Encumbrance created over the assets
relating to the Remaining Business of the Demerged Company to secure any liabilities which
are being transferred to the Resulting Company I pursuant to this Scheme, shall without any
further act, instrument or deed be released from such Encumbrance and shall no longer be
available as security in relation to such liabilities with respect to the Demerged Company.
All the sponsor support undertakings and / or corporate guarantees provided / to be provided
by the Demerged Company under:

a) financial assistance sanctioned, as on the date of approval of this Scheme by the Board
of the Demerged Company, and

b) any enhancement of the above existing sanctioned financial assistance, after the date of
approval of this Scheme by the Board of the Demerged Company,

in favour of the banks and/or financial institutions for existing or enhanced financial
assistance provided / to be provided to the existing subsidiaries and / or joint venture entities
of the Demerged Company in relation to the Non-Container Business and Container
Retained Business will continue to be in effect, upon effectiveness of the Scheme
(“Undertakings / Guarantees of Remaining Business”).

Further, upon the Scheme becoming effective, the Resulting Company 1 will also provide
sponsor support undertakings, and / or the corporate guarantees similar to the Undertakings
/ Guarantees of Remaining Business (“Additional Undertakings / Guarantees of
Remaining Business ) in favour of banks and/or financial institutions in relation to the
financial assistance referred in clause 7.5.

The Additional Undertakings / Guarantees of Remaining Business shall be in effect for a
term of 3 (three) years from the Effective Date, on the same terms and conditions, to the
extent applicable, as set out in the Undertakings / Guarantees of Remaining Business.
Accordingly, the Additional Undertakings / Guarantees of Remaining Business shall
automatically cease to be in effect on the expiry of 3 (three) years from the Effective Date.
In the event the Demerged Company does not fulfil its obligations under the Undertakings /
Guarantees of Remaining Business within a period of 15 (fifteen) business days of any
request / demand received from the banks and / or financial institutions, as the case may be,
then, the banks and / or financial institutions shall be entitled to exercise their rights against
Resulting Company 1 in accordance with the terms of such Additional Undertakings /
Guarantees of Remaining Business.

All the existing undertakings, indemnities, guarantees and other contractual comforts
(including sponsor support undertakings and / or corporate guarantees) provided by the
Demerged Company or the promoters of the Demerged Company, in relation to Demerged
Undertaking 1, to secure financial assistance availed by the Demerged Company or any of
the Identified Container SPVs, shall stand discharged on and from the Effective Date. The
Resulting Company 1 and / or the shareholders of the Resulting Company 1 shall provide
such undertakings, indemnities, guarantees and other contractual comforts (including new
sponsor  support  undertakings and / or corporate  guarantees  (“New
Undertakings/Guarantees of ldentified Container Business ) as were provided earlier by
the Demerged Company (that stand discharged from the Effective Date) in relation to
Demerged Undertaking 1.

Further, upon the Scheme becoming effective, the Demerged Company will also provide
sponsor support undertakings, and / or the corporate guarantees similar to the New
Undertakings/Guarantees of Identified Container Business (“Additional Undertakings /

34



7.11

7.12

7.13

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

Guarantees of Identified Container Business”) in favour of banks and/or financial
institutions in relation to the financial assistance referred in clause 7.9.

The Additional Undertakings / Guarantees of Identified Container Business shall be in effect
for a term of 3 (three) years from the Effective Date, on the same terms and conditions, to
the extent applicable, as set out in the New Undertakings / Guarantees of Identified
Container Business. Accordingly, the Additional Undertakings / Guarantees of Identified
Container Business shall automatically cease to be in effect on the expiry of 3 (three) years
from the Effective Date.

In the event the Resulting Company 1 does not fulfil its obligations under the New
Undertakings / Guarantees of Identified Container Business within a period of 15 (fifteen)
business days of any request / demand received from the banks and / or financial institutions,
as the case may be, then, the banks and/or financial institutions shall be entitled to exercise
their rights against Demerged Company in accordance with the terms of such Additional
Undertakings / Guarantees of Identified Container Business.

It is expressly provided that, no other term or condition of the liabilities transferred to the
Resulting Company 1 is modified by virtue of this Scheme except to the extent that such
amendment is required statutorily or to the extent guarantees / undertakings are replaced or
otherwise by necessary implication.

CONTRACTS, DEEDS AND OTHER INSTRUMENTS

Upon the Scheme becoming effective and subject to the provisions of this Scheme, all
contracts, including contracts for tenancies and licenses, deeds, bonds, agreements,
incentives, benefits, exemptions, entitlements, arrangements, escrow arrangements and
other instruments of whatsoever nature in relation to Demerged Undertaking 1 to which the
Demerged Company is a party or to the benefit of which the Demerged Company may be
eligible and which are subsisting or having effect immediately before the Effective Date,
shall be in full force and effect on or against or in favour, as the case may be, of the Resulting
Company 1 and may be enforced as fully and effectually as if, instead of the Demerged
Company, the Resulting Company 1 had been a party or beneficiary or obligee thereto.

The Resulting Company 1 may, at any time after coming into effect of this Scheme in
accordance with the provisions hereof, if so required, under any law or otherwise, execute
deeds, confirmations or other writings, confirmations or novations or tripartite
arrangements with any party to any contract or arrangements to which the Demerged
Company is a party or any writings as may be necessary to be executed in order to give
formal effect to the above provisions.

It is hereby clarified that if any contracts, deeds, bonds, agreements, schemes, arrangements,
or other instruments of whatsoever nature in relation to the Demerged Undertaking 1 to
which the Demerged Company is a party, cannot be transferred to the Resulting Company 1
for any reason whatsoever, the Demerged Company shall hold such contract, deeds, bonds,
agreements, schemes, arrangements, or other instruments of whatsoever nature in trust for
the benefit of the Resulting Company 1.

Upon the Scheme becoming effective and with effect from Appointed Date, all consents,
agreements, permissions, all statutory or regulatory licenses, certificates, insurance covers,
clearances, authorities and power of attorney given by, issued to or executed in favour of the
Demerged Company in relation to the Demerged Undertaking 1, shall stand transferred to
the Resulting Company 1 in accordance with Applicable Laws, as if the same were originally
given by, issued to or executed in favour of the Resulting Company 1, and the Resulting
Company 1 shall be bound by the terms thereof, the obligations and duties thereunder, and
the rights and benefits under the same shall be available to the Resulting Company 1. In so
far as the various incentives, subsidies, schemes, special status and other benefits or
privileges enjoyed, granted by any governmental body, local authority, or by any other
person, or availed by the Demerged Company in relation to the Demerged Undertaking 1
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9.1

9.2

9.3

10.

10.1

are concerned, the same shall vest with and be available to the Resulting Company 1 on the
same terms and conditions as applicable to the Demerged Company, as if the same had been
allotted and/ or granted and/ or sanctioned and/ or allowed to the Resulting Company 1.

It is hereby clarified that if any consents, agreements, permissions, all statutory or regulatory
licenses, certificates, insurance covers, clearances, authorities and power of attorney given
by, issued to or executed in favour of the Demerged Company in relation to the Demerged
Undertaking 1 to which the Demerged Company is a party, cannot be transferred to the
Resulting Company 1 for any reason whatsoever, the Demerged Company shall hold such
consents, agreements, permissions, all statutory or regulatory licenses, certificates,
insurance covers, clearances, authorities and power of attorney, or other instruments of
whatsoever nature in trust for the benefit of the Resulting Company 1.

STAFF, WORKMEN AND EMPLOYEES

Upon the Scheme becoming effective and with effect from the Effective Date, Resulting
Company 1 undertakes to engage, without any interruption in service, all staff, workmen and
employees engaged in or in relation to the Demerged Undertaking 1, on terms and conditions
no less favourable than those on which they are engaged by the Demerged Company.
Resulting Company 1 undertakes to continue to abide by any agreement / settlement or
arrangement entered into or deemed to have been entered into by the Demerged Company
with any of the aforesaid staff, workmen and employees or union representing them.
Resulting Company 1 agrees that the services of all such staff, workmen and employees of
the Demerged Company prior to the demerger shall be taken into account for the purposes
of all existing benefits to which the said staff, workmen and employees may be eligible,
including for the purpose of payment of any retrenchment compensation, gratuity and other
retiral / terminal benefits. The decision on whether or not a staff, workmen or employee is
part of the Demerged Undertaking 1 shall be decided by the Board of Directors of Demerged
Company, and such decision shall be final and binding on all concerned Parties.

The accumulated balances, if any, standing to the credit of the aforesaid staff, workmen and
employees in the existing provident fund, gratuity fund and superannuation fund of which
they are members, as the case may be, will be transferred respectively to such provident
fund, gratuity fund and superannuation funds nominated by Resulting Company 1 and/or
such new provident fund, gratuity fund and superannuation fund to be established in
accordance with Applicable Law and caused to be recognised by the Appropriate
Authorities, by Resulting Company 1. Pending the transfer as aforesaid, the provident fund,
gratuity fund and superannuation fund dues of the said staff, workmen and employees would
be continued to be deposited in the existing provident fund, gratuity fund and superannuation
fund respectively of the Demerged Company.

With effect from the date of filing of the Scheme with the NCLT and up to and including the
Effective Date, the Demerged Company shall not vary the terms and conditions of
employment of any of the staff, workmen and employees pertaining to the Demerged
Undertaking 1 except in the ordinary course of business or without the prior consent of the
Board of Directors of Resulting Company 1 or pursuant to any pre-existing obligation
undertaken by the Demerged Company.

LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

Upon the Scheme becoming effective, all legal or other proceedings (including before any
statutory or quasi-judicial authority or tribunal) (“Proceedings”) by or against the
Demerged Company under any statute, pending on the Appointed Date, relating to the
Demerged Undertaking 1, shall be continued, and enforced by or against the Resulting
Company 1 after the Effective Date, to the extent legally permissible. To the extent such
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Proceedings cannot be taken over by the Resulting Company 1, the Proceedings shall be
pursued / defended by the Demerged Company as per the instructions of and entirely at the
costs and expenses of the Resulting Company 1. In the event that such liability is incurred or
such claim, or demand is made upon the Demerged Company pertaining to the Demerged
Undertaking 1, then the Resulting Company 1 shall reimburse and indemnify the Demerged
Company for any payments made in relation to the same. The Demerged Company and the
Resulting Company 1 shall take appropriate steps in the respective court or forum of the
Proceedings before which they are pending to appropriately substitute the name of the
plaintiff, defendant, petitioner, respondent or other in the cause title respectively from that
of the Demerged Company to the name of the Resulting Company 1, on due approval or
sanction of such court or forum as appropriate.

Any proceedings by or against the Demerged Company under any statute, pending on the
Appointed Date, whether or not in respect of any matter arising before the Effective Date
relating to the Remaining Business (including those relating to any property, right, power,
liability, obligation, or duties of the Demerged Company in respect of the Remaining
Business) shall be continued and enforced by or against the Demerged Company. The
Resulting Company 1 shall in no event be responsible or liable for or in relation to any such
Proceeding by or against the Demerged Company.

CONSIDERATION

Upon the Scheme becoming effective and in consideration of the transfer and vesting of the
Demerged Undertaking 1 of Demerged Company with the Resulting Company 1 pursuant
to this Scheme and subject to the provisions of this Scheme, the Resulting Company 1 shall,
without any further application, act, deed, consent or instrument, issue and allot, on a
proportionate basis, to each shareholder of the Demerged Company, whose name is
recorded in the register of members as member of the Demerged Company as on the Record
Date 1, as follows:

“I (one) Equity Share of J M Baxi Container of Re. 1 (Rupee One) each, credited as fully
paid up, for every I (one) fully paid-up equity share of Re. 1 (Rupee One) each of J M Baxi
held by such shareholders.”

The Equity Shares of Resulting Company 1 to be issued and allotted pursuant to the
demerger of the Demerged Undertaking 1 into the Resulting Company I under this Scheme
shall be subject to the provisions of the memorandum of association and articles of
association of Resulting Company 1 and shall rank pari passu in all respects with any
existing Equity Shares of the Resulting Company 1, if any, after the Effective Date including
as regards entitlement to dividends and other distributions and repayment of capital
declared or paid on or after the Effective Date, and voting and other rights attached to the
Equity Shares of Resulting Company 1.

Subject to Applicable Law, the Equity Shares of Resulting Company 1 that are to be issued
in terms of this Scheme shall be issued in dematerialized form. The register of equity
shareholders and/ or, other relevant records, whether in physical or electronic form,
maintained by the Resulting Company 1, the relevant depository in terms of Applicable Law
shall (as deemed necessary by the Board of the Resulting Company 1) be updated to reflect
the issue of the Equity Shares of Resulting Company 1 in terms of this Scheme.

In the event of there being any pending share transfers, whether lodged or outstanding, of
any shareholder of the Demerged Company, the Board of the Resulting Company 1 shall be
empowered in appropriate cases, prior to or even subsequent to the Record Date 1, to
effectuate such a transfer as if such changes in the registered holder were operative as on
the Record Date 1, in order to remove any difficulties arising to the transferor or transferee
of Equity Shares in the Demerged Company, after the effectiveness of this Scheme.

The Equity Shares of Resulting Company 1 to be issued pursuant to this Scheme in respect
of any Equity Shares of Demerged Company which are held in abeyance under the provisions
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of Section 126 of the Act or otherwise, shall, pending allotment or settlement of dispute by
order of court or otherwise, be held in abeyance.

Notwithstanding anything contained in the Scheme and subject to Applicable Law, until the
Scheme becomes effective, the Resulting Company 1 is hereby permitted to issue shares, and,
or, convertible instruments or any combination thereof including optionally convertible
instruments on such terms and conditions as maybe approved by the Board of Directors of
the Resulting Company 1, to the Demerged Company, for the efficient functioning of the
business of the Resulting Company 1, to the end and intent that such issuance shall not affect
the consideration as set out in clause 11.1 above, and do all such acts, deed and things as
may be necessary to effect the foregoing including but not limited to increase, reclassify
and/or restructure its authorised share capital in such manner and by such amount as may
be necessary.

If necessary, the Resulting Company 1 shall before issue and allotment of the Equity
Shares of Resulting Company 1 in term of the Scheme, increase, reclassify, and/or
restructure its authorised share capital in such manner and by such amount as may be
necessary to satisfy its obligation under the provisions of the Scheme in compliance with the
applicable provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder.

The issue and allotment of the Equity Shares of Resulting Company 1 is an integral part
hereof and shall be deemed to have been carried out under the orders passed by the Tribunal
without requiring any further act on the part of the Resulting Company 1 or the Demerged
Company or their shareholders and as if the procedure laid down under the Act, including
Sections 42 and 62 of the Act and other relevant and applicable provisions of the Act for the
issue and allotment of Equity Shares of Resulting Company 1 to the shareholders of
Demerged Company, and such other Applicable Law as may be applicable, were duly
complied with. It is clarified that the approval of the members of the Resulting Company 1
to this Scheme, shall be deemed to be their consent/approval for the issue and allotment of
Equity Shares of Resulting Company 1 under the applicable provisions of the Act.

ACCOUNTING TREATMENT IN THE BOOKS OF DEMERGED COMPANY

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, the demerger of the Demerged
Undertaking 1 from the Demerged Company to the Resulting Company 1 shall be accounted
for, in the books of the Demerged Company, in accordance with Appendix A of Ind AS 10
‘Distribution of Non-Cash Assets to Owners’ and other applicable Ind AS as notified in the
Ind AS Rules as follows:

12.1.1The Demerged Company shall recognise a liability to distribute non cash assets to its
owners measured at the fair value of the business of Demerged Undertaking 1 with a
corresponding debit to the other equity as follows: (a) debiting the securities premium
account to the extent of carrying value of net assets (carrying value of assets minus
carrying value of liabilities of Demerged Undertaking 1) and (b) the balance amount
(fair value of the business of Demerged Undertaking 1 minus carrying value of net
assets of Demerged Undertaking 1) shall be debited against the retained earnings of
the Demerged Company.

12.1.20n settlement of distribution liability, the Demerged Company shall derecognise from
its books of accounts, the carrying amount of assets and liabilities pertaining to the
Demerged Undertaking 1, transferred to the Resulting Company 1, in accordance with
the provisions of this Scheme.

12.1.3The difference between carrying amount of distribution liability settled (clause 12.1.1)
and carrying amount of the assets and liabilities of Demerged Undertaking 1
derecognised (clause 12.1.2), if any, shall be recognised in the statement of profit and
loss of the Demerged Company.
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ACCOUNTING TREATMENT IN THE BOOKS OF RESULTING COMPANY 1

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, the Resulting Company 1 will
account for the acquisition of Demerged Undertaking 1 by applying the guidance prescribed
in Indian Accounting Standard 103 - Business Combinations and other applicable Ind AS.

Part Il - DEMERGER AND VESTING OF DEMERGED UNDERTAKING 2 OF THE

14.

14.1

14.2

14.3

14.4

14.5

DEMERGED COMPANY INTO THE RESULTING COMPANY 2

DEMERGER AND VESTING OF THE DEMERGED UNDERTAKING 2

Upon the Scheme becoming effective and with effect from the Appointed Date and subject to
the provisions of this Scheme and pursuant to Section 230 to 232 of the Act and Section
2(19AA) of the IT Act, the Demerged Undertaking 2 shall, without any further act, instrument
or deed, be transferred to, and be vested in or be deemed to have been transferred to and
vested in Resulting Company 2, as a going concern, so as to become as and from the
Appointed Date, the assets, liabilities, contracts, arrangements, customer relationships,
employees, permits, records, etc. of Resulting Company 2 by virtue of operation of law and
in the manner provided in this Scheme, subject to subsisting charges, Encumbrances and
pledges, if any.

In respect of such of the assets and properties forming part of the Demerged Undertaking 2,
including those which are acquired till the Effective Date, assets and properties which are
movable in nature, including cash in hand or are otherwise capable of transfer by delivery
or possession or by endorsement, the same shall stand transferred by the Demerged
Company to Resulting Company 2 upon coming into effect of this Scheme and shall, ipso
facto and without any other order to this effect, become the assets and properties of Resulting
Company 2 without requiring any deed or instrument of conveyance for transfer of the same,
subject to subsisting charges, Encumbrances and pledges, if any.

Subject to Clause 14.5 below, with respect to the assets of the Demerged Undertaking 2 other
than those referred to in Clause 14.2 above, including all rights, title and interests in the
agreements (including agreements for lease or license of the properties), investments in
shares, mutual funds, bonds and any other securities, sundry debtors, claims from customers
or otherwise, outstanding loans and advances, if any, recoverable in cash or in kind or for
value to be received, if any, with any Appropriate Authority, customers and other persons,
whether or not the same is held in the name of the Demerged Company, the same shall,
without any further act, instrument or deed, be transferred to and vested in and / or be
deemed to be transferred to and vested in the Resulting Company 2, with effect from the
Appointed Date by operation of law as transmission in favour of Resulting Company. With
regard to the licenses of the properties, Resulting Company 2 will enter into novation
agreements if it is so required.

The bank balances and deposits, if any, pertaining to the Demerged Undertaking 2 as on the
Appointed Date, shall be maintained in a separate bank account and the said balance would
be adjusted for any transactions undertaken in relation to the Demerged Undertaking 2 by
the Demerged Company upto the Effective Date. Further, the balances in the aforesaid
account as on the Effective Date shall, without any further act, instrument or deed, be
transferred to and vested in and / or be deemed to be transferred to and vested in the
Resulting Company 2.

In respect of such of the assets and properties forming part of the Demerged Undertaking 2
which are immovable in nature, whether freehold or leasehold, and any documents of title,
rights, agreements to sell / agreements of sale and easements in relation thereto, same shall
stand transferred to and be vested in Resulting Company 2 with effect from the Appointed

39



14.6

14.7

14.8

Date, without any act or deed done by the Demerged Company or Resulting Company 2, and
without any approval or acknowledgement of any third party. With effect from the Appointed
Date, the Resulting Company 2 shall be entitled to exercise all rights and privileges and be
liable to pay all taxes and charges and fulfil all obligations, in relation to or applicable to
such immovable properties. The mutation/ substitution of the title to such immovable
properties shall be made and duly recorded in the name of the Resulting Company 2 by the
Appropriate Authority pursuant to the sanction of the Scheme by the NCLT and in
accordance with the terms hereof. The Demerged Company shall take all steps as may be
necessary to ensure that lawful, peaceful, and unencumbered possession, right, title, interest
of its immovable property is given to the Resulting Company 2. Resulting Company 2 may,
if required give notice in such form, as it may deem fit and proper to each person, debtor or
depositee that pursuant to the Scheme, the said person, debtor or depositee should pay the
loan, debt or advance or hold the same to its account and that the right of the Resulting
Company 2 to recover or realise the same is in substitution of the right of the Demerged
Company.
Notwithstanding anything contained in this Scheme, with respect to the immovable
properties comprised in the Demerged Undertaking 2 in the nature of land and buildings
situated in India, whether owned or leased, for the purpose of, inter alia, payment of stamp
duty and vesting in Resulting Company 2, if Resulting Company 2 so decides, the Parties,
whether before or after the Effective Date, may execute and register or cause to be executed
and registered, separate deeds of conveyance or deeds of assignment of lease, as the case
may be, in favour of Resulting Company 2 in respect of such immovable properties. Each of
the immovable properties, only for the purposes of the payment of stamp duty (if required
under Applicable Law), shall be deemed to be conveyed at a value determined by the
Appropriate Authority in accordance with the applicable circle rates. The transfer of such
immovable properties shall form an integral part of this Scheme.
Upon the Scheme becoming effective and with effect from the Appointed Date, all rights
entitlements, licenses, applications and registrations relating to copyrights, trademarks,
service marks, brand names, logos, patents and other intellectual property rights of every
kind and description, whether registered or unregistered or pending registration, and the
goodwill arising therefrom, relatable to the Demerged Undertaking 2, if any, to which either
the Demerged Company is a party or to the benefit of which the Demerged Company may be
/ was eligible or entitled, shall become the rights, entitlement or property of Resulting
Company 2 and shall be enforceable by or against Resulting Company 2, as fully and
effectually as if, instead of the Demerged Company, Resulting Company 2 had been a party
or beneficiary or obligee thereto or the holder or owner thereof.
Upon the Scheme becoming effective and with effect from the Appointed Date:
14.8.1The Demerged Company may, at its sole discretion but without being obliged to, give
notice in such form as it may deem fit and proper, to such persons, as the case may
be, that any debt, receivable, bill, credit, loan, advance, debenture or deposit relating
to the Demerged Undertaking 2 stands transferred to and vested in Resulting
Company 2 and that appropriate modification should be made in their respective
books / records to reflect the aforesaid changes.
14.8.2All liabilities relating to and comprised in the Demerged Undertaking 2 including all
secured and unsecured debts (whether in Indian rupees or foreign currency), sundry
creditors, liabilities (including contingent liabilities), duties and obligations and
undertakings of the Demerged Company of every kind, nature and description
whatsoever and howsoever arising, raised or incurred or utilised for its business
activities and operations of Demerged Undertaking 2, shall, stand transferred to and
vested in or deemed to be transferred to and vested in the Resulting Company 2,
without any further act, instrument, deed, matter or thing. All such loans and debts
shall be secured only by an Encumbrance over the assets of the Resulting Company 2
in the manner as set out in Clause 15 of this Scheme. Any and all charges created over
the assets of the Demerged Company in relation to such debts or loans shall stand
discharged.
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14.8.3If the Demerged Company is entitled to any unutilised credits (including accumulated
losses and unabsorbed depreciation), benefits under the state or central fiscal /
investment incentive schemes and policies or concessions relating to the Demerged
Undertaking 2 under any tax law or Applicable Law, Resulting Company 2 shall be
entitled, as an integral part of the Scheme, to claim such unutilised credits without
any specific approval or permission. Without prejudice to the generality of the
foregoing, in respect of unutilised input credits of goods and service tax of the
Demerged Company, the portion which will be attributed to the Demerged
Undertaking 2 and be transferred to Resulting Company 2 shall be determined by the
Board of the Demerged Company in accordance with the Applicable Law.

14.8.4Subject to Clause 24 and any other provisions of this Scheme, in respect of any refund,
benefit, incentive, grant or subsidy in relation to or in connection with the Demerged
Undertaking 2, the Demerged Company shall, if so required by Resulting Company 2,
issue notices in such form as Resulting Company 2 may deem fit and proper, stating
that pursuant to the NCLT having sanctioned this Scheme, the relevant refund, benefit,
incentive, grant or subsidy be paid or made good to or held on account of Resulting
Company 2, as the person entitled thereto, to the end and intent that the right of the
Demerged Company to recover or realise the same stands transferred to Resulting
Company 2 and that appropriate entries should be passed in their respective books to
record the aforesaid changes.

14.8.50n and from the Effective Date, all cheques and other negotiable instruments and
payment orders received or presented for encashment which are in the name of the
Demerged Company and are in relation to or in connection with the Demerged
Undertaking 2, shall be accepted by the bankers of Resulting Company 2 and credited
to the account of Resulting Company 2, if and when presented by Resulting Company
2.

14.8.6 The Resulting Company 2 shall at any time upon the Scheme becoming effective and
in accordance with the provisions hereof, if so, required under any Applicable Law or
otherwise execute deeds of confirmation or other writings or arrangements with any
party to any contract or arrangement in relation to the Demerged Undertaking 2 to
which the Demerged Company has been a party, in order to give formal effect to the
above provisions.

14.8.7 Upon the Scheme becoming effective and with effect from Appointed Date, in relation
to the assets forming part of the Demerged Undertaking 2, if any, separate document
is required for vesting of such assets in the Resulting Company 2, or which the
Demerged Company and/ or the Resulting Company 2 otherwise desire to be vested
separately, the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company 2 will execute such
deeds, documents or such other instruments, if any, as may be mutually agreed.

14.8.81t is hereby clarified that if any assets of the Demerged Undertaking 2, cannot be
transferred to the Resulting Company 2 for any reason whatsoever, the Demerged
Company shall hold such asset in trust for the benefit of the Resulting Company 2 and
forthwith seek to transfer such assets to the Resulting Company 2, upon receipt of
relevant consents and approvals required to effect such transfer.

ENCUMBRANCES

The transfer and vesting of the assets comprised in the business of the Demerged
Undertaking 2 of the Demerged Company, to and in the Resulting Company 2 under Clause
14 of this Scheme shall be subject to the mortgages, Encumbrances and charges, if any,
affecting the same, as and to the extent hereinafter provided.

In so far as any Encumbrance in respect of liabilities relating to the Demerged Undertaking
2 is concerned, such Encumbrance shall, be extended to, and shall continue to operate only
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over the assets comprised in the Demerged Undertaking 2 which have been Encumbered in
respect of the liabilities as transferred to Resulting Company 2 pursuant to the Scheme.

All the existing securities, mortgages, charges, Encumbrances or liens, if any, created by
the Demerged Company till the Effective Date, over the assets comprised in the business of
the Demerged Undertaking 2 of the Demerged Company, or any part thereof transferred to
the Resulting Company 2 by virtue of this Scheme and in so far as such Encumbrances secure
or relate to liabilities of the Demerged Company, the same shall, after the Effective Date,
continue to relate and attach to such assets or any part thereof to which they are related or
attached prior to the Effective Date and as are transferred to the Resulting Company 2, and
such Encumbrances shall not relate or attach to any of the other assets of the Resulting
Company 2.

In so far as the assets comprised in the Demerged Undertaking 2 are concerned, the
Encumbrance over such assets relating to any liabilities which are not transferred to the
Resulting Company 2 pursuant to this Scheme and which continue with the Demerged
Company shall without any further act, instrument or deed be released from such
Encumbrance and shall no longer be available as security in relation to such liabilities with
respect to the Demerged Company. Similarly, the Encumbrance created over the assets
relating to the Remaining Business of the Demerged Company to secure any liabilities which
are being transferred to the Resulting Company 2 pursuant to this Scheme, shall without any
further act, instrument or deed be released from such Encumbrance and shall no longer be
available as security in relation to such liabilities with respect to the Demerged Company.
It is expressly provided that, no other term or condition of the liabilities transferred to the
Resulting Company 2 is modified by virtue of this Scheme except to the extent that such
amendment is required statutorily or to the extent guarantees are replaced or otherwise by
necessary implication.

CONTRACTS, DEEDS AND OTHER INSTRUMENTS

Upon the Scheme becoming effective and subject to the provisions of this Scheme, all
contracts, including contracts for tenancies and licenses, deeds, bonds, agreements,
incentives, benefits, exemptions, entitlements, arrangements, escrow arrangements and
other instruments of whatsoever nature in relation to Demerged Undertaking 2 to which the
Demerged Company is a party or to the benefit of which the Demerged Company may be
eligible and which are subsisting or having effect immediately before the Effective Date,
shall be in full force and effect on or against or in favour, as the case may be, of the Resulting
Company 2 and may be enforced as fully and effectually as if, instead of the Demerged
Company, the Resulting Company 2 had been a party or beneficiary or obligee thereto.

The Resulting Company 2 may, at any time after coming into effect of this Scheme in
accordance with the provisions hereof, if so required, under any law or otherwise, execute
deeds, confirmations or other writings, confirmations or novations or tripartite
arrangements with any party to any contract or arrangements to which the Demerged
Company is a party or any writings as may be necessary to be executed in order to give
formal effect to the above provisions.

It is hereby clarified that if any contract, deeds, bonds, agreements, schemes, arrangements,
or other instruments of whatsoever nature in relation to the Demerged Undertaking 2 to
which the Demerged Company is a party, cannot be transferred to the Resulting Company 2
for any reason whatsoever, the Demerged Company shall hold such contract, deeds, bonds,
agreements, schemes, arrangements, or other instruments of whatsoever nature in trust for
the benefit of the Resulting Company 2.

Upon the Scheme becoming effective and with effect from Appointed Date, all consents,
agreements, permissions, all statutory or regulatory licenses, certificates, insurance covers,
clearances, authorities and power of attorney given by, issued to or executed in favour of the
Demerged Company in relation to the Demerged Undertaking 2, shall stand transferred to
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the Resulting Company 2 in accordance with Applicable Laws, as if the same were originally
given by, issued to or executed in favour of the Resulting Company 2, and the Resulting
Company 2 shall be bound by the terms thereof, the obligations and duties thereunder, and
the rights and benefits under the same shall be available to the Resulting Company 2. In so
far as the various incentives, subsidies, schemes, special status and other benefits or
privileges enjoyed, granted by any governmental body, local authority, or by any other
person, or availed by the Demerged Company in relation to the Demerged Undertaking 2
are concerned, the same shall vest with and be available to the Resulting Company 2 on the
same terms and conditions as applicable to the Demerged Company, as if the same had been
allotted and/ or granted and/ or sanctioned and/ or allowed to the Resulting Company 2.

It is hereby clarified that if any consents, agreements, permissions, all statutory or regulatory
licenses, certificates, insurance covers, clearances, authorities and power of attorney given
by, issued to or executed in favour of the Demerged Company in relation to the Demerged
Undertaking 2 to which the Demerged Company is a party, cannot be transferred to the
Resulting Company 2 for any reason whatsoever, the Demerged Company shall hold such
consents, agreements, permissions, all statutory or regulatory licenses, certificates,
insurance covers, clearances, authorities and power of attorney, or other instruments of
whatsoever nature in trust for the benefit of the Resulting Company 2.

STAFF, WORKMEN AND EMPLOYEES

Upon the Scheme becoming effective and with effect from the Effective Date, Resulting
Company 2 undertakes to engage, without any interruption in service, all staff, workmen and
employees engaged in or in relation to the Demerged Undertaking 2, on terms and conditions
no less favourable than those on which they are engaged by the Demerged Company.
Resulting Company 2 undertakes to continue to abide by any agreement / settlement or
arrangement entered into or deemed to have been entered into by the Demerged Company
with any of the aforesaid staff, workmen and employees or union representing them.
Resulting Company 2 agrees that the services of all such staff, workmen and employees of
the Demerged Company prior to the demerger shall be taken into account for the purposes
of all existing benefits to which the said staff, workmen and employees may be eligible,
including for the purpose of payment of any retrenchment compensation, gratuity and other
retiral / terminal benefits. The decision on whether or not a staff, workmen or employee is
part of the Demerged Undertaking 2 shall be decided by the Board of Directors of Demerged
Company, and such decision shall be final and binding on all concerned Parties.

The accumulated balances, if any, standing to the credit of the aforesaid staff, workmen and
employees in the existing provident fund, gratuity fund and superannuation fund of which
they are members, as the case may be, will be transferred respectively to such provident
fund, gratuity fund and superannuation funds nominated by Resulting Company 2 and/or
such new provident fund, gratuity fund and superannuation fund to be established in
accordance with Applicable Law and caused to be recognised by the Appropriate
Authorities, by Resulting Company 2. Pending the transfer as aforesaid, the provident fund,
gratuity fund and superannuation fund dues of the said staff, workmen and employees would
be continued to be deposited in the existing provident fund, gratuity fund and superannuation
fund respectively of the Demerged Company.

With effect from the date of filing of the Scheme with the NCLT and up to and including the
Effective Date, the Demerged Company shall not vary the terms and conditions of
employment of any of the staff, workmen and employees pertaining to the Demerged
Undertaking 2 except in the ordinary course of business or without the prior consent of the
Board of Directors of Resulting Company 2 or pursuant to any pre-existing obligation
undertaken by the Demerged Company.
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LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

Upon the Scheme becoming effective, all legal or other proceedings (including before any
statutory or quasi-judicial authority or tribunal) (“Proceedings”) by or against the
Demerged Company under any statute, pending on the Appointed Date, relating to the
Demerged Undertaking 2, shall be continued, and enforced by or against the Resulting
Company 2 after the Effective Date, to the extent legally permissible. To the extent such
Proceedings cannot be taken over by the Resulting Company 2, the Proceedings shall be
pursued/ defended by the Demerged Company as per the instructions of and entirely at the
costs and expenses of the Resulting Company 2. In the event that such liability is incurred or
such claim, or demand is made upon the Demerged Company pertaining to the Demerged
Undertaking 2, then the Resulting Company 2 shall reimburse and indemnify the Demerged
Company for any payments made in relation to the same. The Demerged Company and the
Resulting Company 2 shall take appropriate steps in the respective court or forum of the
Proceedings before which they are pending to appropriately substitute the name of the
plaintiff, defendant, petitioner, respondent or other in the cause title respectively from that
of the Demerged Company to the name of the Resulting Company 2, on due approval or
sanction of such court or forum as appropriate.

Any proceedings by or against the Demerged Company under any statute, pending on the
Appointed Date, whether or not in respect of any matter arising before the Effective Date
relating to the Remaining Business (including those relating to any property, right, power,
liability, obligation, or duties of the Demerged Company in respect of the Remaining
Business) shall be continued and enforced by or against the Demerged Company. The
Resulting Company 2 shall in no event be responsible or liable for or in relation to any such
Proceeding by or against the Demerged Company.

CONSIDERATION

Upon the Scheme becoming effective and in consideration of the transfer and vesting of the
Demerged Undertaking 2 of Demerged Company with the Resulting Company 2 pursuant to
this Scheme and subject to the provisions of this Scheme, the Resulting Company 2 shall,
without any further application, act, deed, consent or instrument, issue and allot, on a
proportionate basis, to each shareholder of the Demerged Company, whose name is
recorded in the register of members as member of the Demerged Company as on the Record
Date 2, as follows:

“I (one) Equity Share of J M Baxi Dev Co of Re. 1 (Rupee One) each, credited as fully paid
up, for every 1 (one) fully paid-up equity share of Re. 1 (Rupee One) each of J M Baxi held
by such shareholders.”

The Equity Shares of Resulting Company 2 to be issued and allotted pursuant to the
demerger of the Demerged Undertaking 2 into the Resulting Company 2 under this Scheme
shall be subject to the provisions of the memorandum of association and articles of
association of Resulting Company 2 and shall rank pari passu in all respects with any
existing Equity Shares of Resulting Company 2, if any, after the Effective Date including as
regards entitlement to dividends and other distributions and repayment of capital declared
or paid on or after the Effective Date, and voting and other rights attached to the Equity
Shares of Resulting Company 2.

Subject to Applicable Law, the Equity Shares of Resulting Company 2 that are to be issued
in terms of this Scheme shall be issued in dematerialized form. The register of equity
shareholders and/ or, other relevant records, whether in physical or electronic form,
maintained by the Resulting Company 2, the relevant depository in terms of Applicable Law
shall (as deemed necessary by the Board of the Resulting Company 2) be updated to reflect
the issue of the Equity Shares of Resulting Company 2 in terms of this Scheme.
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In the event of there being any pending share transfers, whether lodged or outstanding, of
any shareholder of the Demerged Company, the Board of the Resulting Company 2 shall be
empowered in appropriate cases, prior to or even subsequent to the Record Date 2, to
effectuate such a transfer as if such changes in the registered holder were operative as on
the Record Date 2, in order to remove any difficulties arising to the transferor or transferee
of Equity Shares in the Demerged Company, after the effectiveness of this Scheme.

The Equity Shares of Resulting Company 2 to be issued pursuant to this Scheme in respect
of any Equity Shares of Demerged Company which are held in abeyance under the provisions
of Section 126 of the Act or otherwise, shall, pending allotment or settlement of dispute by
order of court or otherwise, be held in abeyance.

Notwithstanding anything contained in the Scheme and subject to Applicable Law, until the
Scheme becomes effective (i.e. on or before the Effective Date), the Resulting Company 2 is
hereby permitted to issue shares, and, or, convertible instruments or any combination thereof
including optionally convertible instruments on such terms and conditions as maybe
approved by the Board of Directors of the Resulting Company 2, to the Demerged Company,
for the efficient functioning of the business of the Resulting Company 2, to the end and intent
that such issuance shall not affect the consideration as set out in clause 19.1 above, and do
all such acts, deed and things as may be necessary to effect the foregoing including but not
limited to increase, reclassify and/or restructure its authorised share capital in such manner
and by such amount as may be necessary.

If necessary, the Resulting Company 2 shall before issue and allotment of the Equity Shares
of Resulting Company 2 in term of the Scheme, increase, reclassify, and/or restructure its
authorised share capital in such manner and by such amount as may be necessary to satisfy
its obligation under the provisions of the Scheme in compliance with the applicable
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder.

The issue and allotment of the Equity Shares of Resulting Company 2 is an integral part
hereof and shall be deemed to have been carried out under the orders passed by the Tribunal
without requiring any further act on the part of the Resulting Company 2 or the Demerged
Company or their shareholders and as if the procedure laid down under the Act, including
Sections 42 and 62 of the Act and other relevant and applicable provisions of the Act for the
issue and allotment of Equity Shares of Resulting Company 2 to the shareholders of
Demerged Company, and such other Applicable Law as may be applicable, were duly
complied with. It is clarified that the approval of the members of the Resulting Company 2
to this Scheme, shall be deemed to be their consent/approval for the issue and allotment of
Equity Shares of Resulting Company 2 under the applicable provisions of the Act.

ACCOUNTING TREATMENT IN THE BOOKS OF DEMERGED COMPANY

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, the demerger of the Demerged

Undertaking 2 from the Demerged Company to the Resulting Company 2 shall be accounted

for, in the books of the Demerged Company, in accordance with Appendix A of Ind AS 10

'Distribution of Non-Cash Assets to Owners’ and other applicable Ind AS as notified in the

Ind AS Rules as follows:

20.1.1The Demerged Company shall recognise a liability to distribute non cash assets to its
owners measured at the fair value of the business of Demerged Undertaking 2 with a
corresponding debit to the other equity as follows: (a) debiting the securities premium
account to the extent of carrying value of net assets (carrying value of assets minus
carrying value of liabilities of Demerged Undertaking 2) and (b) the balance amount
(fair value of the business of Demerged Undertaking 2 minus carrying value of net
assets of Demerged Undertaking 2) shall be debited against the retained earnings of
the Demerged Company.

20.1.20n the settlement of distribution liability, the Demerged Company shall derecognise
from its books of accounts, the carrying amount of assets and liabilities pertaining to
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the Demerged Undertaking 2, transferred to the Resulting Company 2, in accordance
with the provisions of this Scheme.

20.1.3The difference between the carrying amount of distribution liability settled (clause
20.1.1) and carrying amount of the assets and liabilities of Demerged Undertaking 2
derecognised (clause 20.1.2), if any, shall be recognised in the statement of profit and
loss of the Demerged Company.

ACCOUNTING TREATMENT IN THE BOOKS OF RESULTING COMPANY 2

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, the Resulting Company 2 shall

account for the acquisition of Demerged Undertaking 2 of Demerged Company into the

Resulting Company 2 in accordance with the principles of Ind AS as follows:

21.1.1The Resulting Company 2 shall recognise the assets and liabilities of the Demerged
Undertaking 2 of the Demerged Company vested in it pursuant to this Scheme, at the
carrying values as appearing in the books of Demerged Company.

21.1.2The Resulting Company 2 shall credit the aggregate face value of the Equity Shares
of Resulting Company 2 issued and allotted by it as per Clause 19 above to the
members of the Demerged Company to its share capital in its books of account.

21.1.3The difference, if any, between the net assets (i.e., the difference between the book
value of assets and liabilities pertaining to the Demerged Undertaking 2) vested in the
Resulting Company 2, and the face value of equity shares credited as per clause
21.1.2, shall be adjusted in other equity.

21.1.41n case of any difference in accounting policy between the Demerged Undertaking 2
of the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company 2, the accounting policies
followed by the Resulting Company 2 will prevail to ensure that the financial
statements reflect the financial position based on consistent accounting policies.

PART 1V - GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

ADJUSTMENT TO THE SECURITIES PREMIUM ACCOUNT OF THE DEMERGED
COMPANY

The adjustment to the securities premium account of the Demerged Company (as per Clause
12.1.1. and Clause 20.1.1 above) shall be effected as an integral part of the Scheme, pursuant
to the order of the NCLT sanctioning this Scheme, under Section 230 of the Act. The order
of the NCLT sanctioning this Scheme shall also include approval and confirmation of such
reduction in the securities premium account of the Demerged Company to the extent so
required. Accordingly, as provided in the second explanation in Section 230 of the Act, the
provisions of Section 66 of the Act shall not apply to such reduction of securities premium
account of the Demerged Company, effected in pursuance of the said order of the NCLT.

Notwithstanding the reduction in the securities premium account of the Demerged Company,
the Demerged Company shall not be required to add “And reduced” as a suffix to its name.

TREATMENT OF WRONG POCKETS ASSETS

In the event that, pursuant to the Scheme, the Demerged Company or Resulting Company 1
or Resulting Company 2 (as the case may be) is inadvertently or otherwise holding any asset
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(a) which relates to the Demerged Undertaking 1 that ought to have been, but has not been,
transferred to the Resulting Company 1 as of the Effective Date, or (b) which relates to the
Demerged Undertaking 2 that ought to have been, but has not been, transferred to the
Resulting Company 2 as of the Effective Date, or (c) which relates to the Demerged Company
that ought to have been, but has not been, retained with the Demerged Company, pursuant
to the Scheme as of the Effective Date, then the Parties shall engage in good faith and do all
such further acts and things and shall execute such documents as may be necessary to effect
the transfer and vesting of such asset to the Demerged Company, Resulting Company 1 or
Resulting Company 2 (as the case may be). Such transfer of assets shall be considered as an
integral part of the Scheme and shall be deemed to have been carried out under the orders
passed by the Tribunal without requiring any further act on the part of the Demerged
Company or the Resulting Companies.

COMPLIANCE WITH TAX LAWS

The Scheme has been drawn up in compliance with the conditions relating to ‘Demerger’ as
specified under Section 2(19AA) of the IT Act. If any of the terms or provisions of the Scheme
is / are found or interpreted to be inconsistent with the provisions of Section 2(19AA) of the
IT Act at a later date, including resulting from an amendment of Applicable Law or for any
other reason whatsoever, the provisions of Section 2(19AA) of the IT Act shall prevail and
the Scheme shall stand modified to the extent determined necessary to comply with the
provisions of Section 2(19AA) of the IT Act. Such modifications will however not affect the
other parts of the Scheme.

On or after the Effective Date, the Resulting Companies are expressly permitted to revise
their financial statements and returns along with prescribed forms, filings and annexures
under the IT Act (including for the purpose of claiming other tax benefits), service tax law,
value added tax law, goods and services tax law and other tax laws, and to claim refunds
and / or credits for taxes paid (including foreign tax credit) and to claim tax benefits etc. and
for matters incidental thereto, if required to give effect to the provisions of the Scheme
notwithstanding that the period of filing / revising such returns / forms may have lapsed and
period to claim refund / credit also elapsed upon this Scheme becoming effective.

All tax assessment proceedings / appeals (including application and proceedings in relation
to advance ruling) of whatsoever nature by or against the Demerged Company relating to
the Demerged Undertaking 1 and Demerged Undertaking 2 pending and / or arising at the
Appointed Date and relating to the Demerged Undertaking 1 and Demerged Undertaking 2
of the Demerged Company, shall be continued and / or enforced until the Effective Date as
desired by the Resulting Company I and Resulting Company 2 respectively. As and from the
Effective Date, the tax proceedings shall be continued and enforced by or against the
Resulting Company 1 and Resulting Company 2, as the case may be, in the same manner
and to the same extent as it would or might have been continued and enforced by or against
the Demerged Undertaking 1 and Demerged Undertaking 2 of the Demerged Company
respectively.

Further, the aforementioned proceedings shall not abate or be discontinued nor be in any
way prejudicially affected by reason of anything contained in the Scheme.

Any tax liabilities including but not limited to liabilities under the IT Act, Customs Act 1962,
service tax laws, value added tax laws, goods and services tax laws or other Applicable Laws
/ regulations dealing with taxes / duties / levies allocable or related to the business of the
Demerged Undertaking 1 and Demerged Undertaking 2 of the Demerged Company, to the
extent not provided for or covered by tax provision in the accounts made as on the date
immediately preceding the Appointed Date shall be transferred to the Resulting Company 1
and Resulting Company 2, respectively.

Any refund including but not limited to refund under the IT Act, foreign tax laws, Customs
Act 1962, service tax laws, value added tax laws, goods and services tax laws or other Tax

47



24.7

24.8

24.9

Laws / regulations dealing with taxes / duties / levies allocable or related to the business of
the Demerged Undertaking 1 and Demerged Undertaking 2 of the Demerged Company,
consequent to the assessment made on the Demerged Company and for which no credit is
taken in the accounts as on the date immediately preceding the Appointed Date shall also
belong to and be received by the Resulting Company 1 and Resulting Company 2
respectively, as the case maybe.

All taxes, including income-tax, foreign taxes, custom duty, service tax, goods and services
tax, etc., paid or payable by the Demerged Company relating to the Demerged Undertaking
1 and Demerged Undertaking 2 in respect of their operations and / or the profits of the
business of the Demerged Undertaking 1 and Demerged Undertaking 2 before the Appointed
Date, shall be on account of the Demerged Company, and, in so far as it relates to the tax
payment (including, without limitation, income-tax, custom duty, service tax, goods and
service tax, etc.) whether by way of deduction at source, advance tax or otherwise
howsoever, by the Demerged Company relating to the Demerged Undertaking 1 and
Demerged Undertaking 2, in respect of their profits or activities or operation of the
Demerged Undertaking 1 and Demerged Undertaking 2 after the Appointed Date, the same
shall be deemed to be the corresponding item paid by the Resulting Company I and Resulting
Company 2 respectively and shall, in all proceedings, be dealt with accordingly.

Further, any tax deducted at source by the Demerged Company relating to the Demerged
Undertaking 1 and Demerged Undertaking 2 on payables to the Resulting Company 1 and
Resulting Company 2 respectively, or vice versa on account of inter-se transactions which
has been deemed not to be accrued, shall be deemed to be advance taxes paid by the
Resulting Company 1 and Resulting Company 2 respectively, and shall, in all proceedings,
be dealt with accordingly.

Obligation for deduction of tax at source on any payment made by or to be made by the
Demerged Company relating to the Demerged Undertaking 1 and Demerged Undertaking
2, including but not limited to obligation under the IT Act, service tax laws, customs law,
goods and services tax law or other Tax Laws / regulations dealing with taxes / duties / levies
shall be made or deemed to have been made and duly complied with by the Resulting
Company 1 and Resulting Company 2, respectively.

24.10 Without prejudice to the generality of the above, all benefits, incentives, losses, credit for tax

including on book profits, accumulated losses, credits (including, without limitation income
tax, excise duty, service tax, applicable state value added tax, cenvat credit, goods and
service tax credit, etc.) to which the Demerged Undertaking 1 and Demerged Undertaking
2 of the Demerged Company is entitled, shall be available to and vest in the Resulting
Company 1 and Resulting Company 2 respectively, if eligible as per the provisions of the IT
Act on and after the Appointed Date, even if such credits have not been availed off in the
books as on the date of transfer. Also, the Resulting Company 1 and Resulting Company 2,
will be entitled to avail cenvat credit / goods and services tax credit after the Appointed Date
in respect of all duties / taxes where the documents are in the name of the Demerged
Company relating to the Demerged Undertaking 1 and Demerged Undertaking 2. Further,
licenses issued to the Demerged Company relating to the Demerged Undertaking I and
Demerged Undertaking 2 by regulatory authorities, if any, and all benefits and tax credits,
if any, associated with it shall stand transferred to the Resulting Company 1 and Resulting
Company 2 respectively, upon the Scheme becoming effective.

24.11 If any of the Resulting Companies is in receipt of any demand, claim, notice and/ or is

impleaded as party in any proceedings before any Appropriate Authority, in each case in
relation to the Remaining Business of the Demerged Company, the Resulting Company 1 or
Resulting Company 2, as the case may be, shall take all such steps in the proceedings before
the Appropriate Authority to substitute the Resulting Company 1 or Resulting Company 2,
as the case may be, with the Demerged Company. However, if any of the Resulting
Companies is unable to replace the Demerged Company in such proceedings, the Resulting
Company I or Resulting Company 2, as the case may be, shall defend the same or deal with
such demand at the cost of the Demerged Company and the latter shall reimburse the
Resulting Company 1 or Resulting Company 2, as the case may be,, against all liabilities
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25.

25.1

25.2

25.3

26.

26.1

and obligations incurred by or against the Resulting Company 1 or Resulting Company 2,
as the case may be, in respect thereof.

REMAINING BUSINESS OF DEMERGED COMPANY

The Remaining Business of the Demerged Company and all the assets, properties, rights,
liabilities, and obligations pertaining thereto, shall continue to belong to and be vested in
and be owned and managed by Demerged Company and Resulting Companies shall have no
right, claim, liabilities or obligation in relation to the Remaining Business of the Demerged

Company by virtue of the Demerger.

All the legal, taxation and other proceedings whether civil or criminal (including before any

statutory authority or quasi-judicial authority or tribunal) by or against Demerged Company

under any statute, whether relating to the period prior to or after the Appointed Date and
whether pending on the Appointed Date or which may be instituted in the future, whether or
not in respect of any matter arising before the Effective Date and relating to the Remaining

Business of Demerged Company (including those relating to any property, right, power or

liability, obligation or duty of Demerged Company in respect of the Remaining Business of

Demerged Company and any income tax liability) shall be continued and enforced by or

against Demerged Company even after the Effective Date.

Upto and including the Effective Date:

25.3.1Demerged Company shall carry on and shall be deemed to have been carrying on all
business and activities relating to the Remaining Business of the Demerged Company
for and on its own behalf.

25.3.2All profits accruing to the Remaining Business or losses arising or incurred to the
Remaining Business (including the effect of taxes, if any, thereon) shall for all
purposes, be treated as the profits or losses, as the case may be, of the Demerged
Company; and

25.3.3All assets and properties acquired in relation to Remaining Business of the Demerged
Company on and after the Appointed Date shall belong to and continue to remain
vested in the Demerged Company.

25.3.4 Notwithstanding anything contained in the Scheme and subject to Applicable Law,
until the Scheme becomes effective (i.e. on or before Effective Date), the Demerged
Company is hereby permitted to issue shares, and, or, convertible instruments or any
combination thereof including optionally convertible instruments on such terms and
conditions as maybe approved by the Board of Directors of the Demerged Company
for the efficient functioning of the business of the Demerged Company or for any other
purpose including for purposes of refinancing, repayment, conversion or prepayment
of any loans of the Demerged Company, and do all such acts, deed and things as may
be necessary to effect the foregoing including but not limited to increase, reclassify
and/or restructure its authorised share capital in such manner and by such amount as
may be necessary.

CONDUCT OF BUSINESS UNTIL AND AFTER THE EFFECTIVE DATE

Subject to Clause 6 and Clause 14 of the Scheme, with effect from the date of approval of
this Scheme by the respective Boards and up to and including the Effective Date:

26.1.1the Demerged Company undertakes to carry on and shall be deemed to have been
carrying on all business activities relating to the Demerged Undertaking 1 and
Demerged Undertaking 2 and preserve all the assets, rights, title, interest of the
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26.2

26.3

26.4

Demerged Undertaking 1 and Demerged Undertaking 2 for, the Resulting Company
1 and Resulting Company 2, respectively.

26.1.2all income, receipts, profits accruing to the Demerged Company and attributable to
the Demerged Undertaking 1 and Demerged Undertaking 2 and all taxes thereon or
losses arising or incurred by it, till the Appointed Date, with respect to the Demerged
Undertaking 1 and Demerged Undertaking 2 shall, for all purposes, be treated as and
deemed to be the income, expenses, payments, profits, taxes or losses, as the case may
be, of the Demerged Company.

26.1.3the Demerged Company shall carry on the business of the Demerged Undertakings
with reasonable diligence and business prudence and in the same manner as it had
been doing hitherto.

26.1.4the Demerged Company shall not, without the written concurrence of Board of
Directors of the Resulting Company 1 or Resulting Company 2 (as the case may be),
sell, transfer or otherwise alienate, charge, mortgage or encumber or otherwise deal
with or dispose of any of its properties of the Demerged Undertaking 1 or Demerged
Undertaking 2 (as the case may be), except in the ordinary course of business or
pursuant to any pre-existing obligation undertaken prior to the date of acceptance of
the Scheme by the respective Boards of Directors of the Demerged Company and the
Resulting Companies.

26.1.5the Demerged Company shall not vary or alter, except in the ordinary course of its
business and as may be required for reorganization, the terms and conditions of
employment of any of its employees in relation to the Demerged Undertaking 1 and
Demerged Undertaking 2.

26.1.6the Demerged Company (with respect to the Demerged Undertakings) shall be
entitled, pending the sanction of the Scheme, to apply to the Appropriate Authorities
concerned as necessary under the Applicable Law for such consents, approvals and
sanctions which the Resulting Companies may require to carry on the business of the
Demerged Undertakings and to give effect to the Scheme.

26.1.7except with the consent of the Board of Directors of the Demerged Company, the
Resulting Companies shall not make any change in its respective capital structure
either by any increase (by issue of equity shares, bonus shares, convertible debentures
or otherwise), decrease, reduction, reclassification, sub-division or consolidation, re-
organisation, or in any other manner effect the re-organisation of share capital of the
Resulting Companies.

the Resulting Company 1 and Resulting Company 2 shall continue and carry on and shall
be authorised to carry on the businesses carried on by the Demerged Undertaking 1 and
Demerged Undertaking 2, respectively of the Demerged Company.

The Resulting Companies shall enter into and/or issue and/ or execute deeds writings or
confirmation or enter into any tripartite arrangements, confirmations or novations, to which
the Demerged Company will, if necessary, also be party in order to give formal effect to the
provisions of this Scheme, if so required. Further, the Resulting Companies shall be deemed
to be authorised to execute any such deeds, writings, confirmations on behalf of the
Demerged Company and to implement or carry out all formalities required on the part of
the Demerged Company to give effect to the provisions of this Scheme.

Upon coming into effect of the Scheme, the Resulting Companies and/or the Demerged
Company shall, within reasonable dispatch / time lines apply for transition of all licenses
and statutory registrations of the Demerged Company pertaining to Demerged Undertaking
1 and Demerged Undertaking 2 including but not limited to concession rights / licenses,
insurance policies, permissions, certificates, market authorizations, filings, dossiers
(including experience and pre-qualification submissions), industrial licenses, municipal
permissions, approvals, consents, permits, quotas, incentives, subsidies and recognitions.
The period between Effective Date and the last date on which the transfer of all such
aforementioned licenses and statutory registrations have occurred is hereinafter referred to
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26.5

27.

28.

29.

29.1

as "Transition Period". During the Transition Period, the Resulting Companies may procure
or use all such licenses, statutory registrations, concession rights / licenses, insurance
policies, permissions, certificates, market authorizations, filings, dossiers (including
experience and pre-qualification submissions), industrial licenses, municipal permissions,
approvals, consents, permits, quotas, incentives, subsidies and recognitions in the name and
form/format of the Demerged Company under any license and/or statutory registration, if
any, while conducting the business of the Demerged Undertakings, with a view to avoid any
disruption of business, to ensure continuity of business operations and uninterrupted
services to its customers.

Notwithstanding anything contained in Clause 26.2 above, with effect from the Effective
Date, any activity carried on by the Resulting Companies shall not be in violation of the
charter documents of the Demerged Company and the Resulting Companies, as the case may
be.

VALIDITY OF RESOLUTIONS

Upon the Scheme becoming effective, the resolutions passed by the Board of Directors
and/or shareholders of the Demerged Company relating to the Demerged Undertaking I and
Demerged Undertaking 2, as are considered necessary by the Board of Directors of the
Resulting Company 1 and Resulting Company 2, as the case may be, and which are valid
and subsisting shall continue to be valid and subsisting and be considered as the resolutions
of the Resulting Company 1 and Resulting Company 2 respectively, and if any such
resolutions have monetary limits approved under the provisions of the Act, or any other
applicable statutory provisions, then the said limits as are considered necessary by the Board
of Directors of the Resulting Company 1 and Resulting Company 2 respectively, shall be
added to the limits if any, under like resolutions passed by the Board of Directors and/or the
shareholders of the Resulting Company 1 and Resulting Company 2 respectively, and shall
constitute the aggregate of the said limits in the Resulting Company 1 and Resulting
Company 2 respectively, as the case maybe.

APPLICATION TO THE TRIBUNAL

The Companies, with all reasonable dispatch, shall make necessary applications / petitions
Jjointly and / or severally before the Tribunal for the sanction of this Scheme under Sections
230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Act.

MODIFICATIONS / AMENDMENTS TO THE SCHEME

The Companies, through their respective Board of Directors, may make and / or consent to
such modifications / amendments to this Scheme or to any conditions or limitations that the
Tribunal may deem fit to direct or impose or which may otherwise be considered necessary,
by them or the Board, including the withdrawal of this Scheme or part thereof. The Board of
Directors of the Companies shall take all such steps as may be necessary to resolve any
doubts, difficulties, or questions, including interpretation of the Scheme, whether by reason
of any directive or orders of any other authorities or otherwise howsoever arising out of or
under or by virtue of the Scheme and/or any matter concerned or connected therewith. The
power of the Boards of Directors to modify/amend the Scheme shall be subject to the
approval of the Tribunal. Further, the power of the Board of Directors to modify/amend the
Scheme shall also be subject to the approval of lenders, in cases where such proposed
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29.2

30.

31.

31.1

32.

32.1

32.2

modifications/amendments to the Scheme are detrimental to the financial obligations
towards the lenders.

If any part of this Scheme hereof is invalid, ruled illegal by the Tribunal, or unenforceable
under present or future laws, then it is the intention of the Companies that such part shall be
severable from the remainder of the Scheme. Further, if the deletion of such part of this
Scheme may cause this Scheme to become materially adverse to the Companies, then in such
case the Companies, shall attempt to bring about a modification in the Scheme, as will best
preserve, for the Companies, the benefits, and obligations of the Scheme, including but not
limited to such part.

SAVING OF CONCLUDED TRANSACTIONS

Anything contained in the Scheme, shall not affect any transaction or proceedings already
concluded or liabilities incurred, or any liabilities discharged by the Demerged Company
relating to the Demerged Undertaking 1 and Demerged Undertaking 2, till the Effective
Date, to the end and intent that the Resulting Company 1 and Resulting Company 2
respectively, shall accept and adopt all acts, deeds and things made, done and executed by
the Demerged Company relating to the Demerged Undertaking 1 and Demerged
Undertaking 2, as acts, deeds and things made, done and executed by or on behalf of the
Resulting Company 1 and Resulting Company 2 respectively, as the case maybe.

SCHEME CONDITIONAL ON APPROVALS / SANCTIONS

The Scheme is conditional upon and subject to:

31.1.1the approval of the Scheme by the requisite majority of the respective members and
creditors and such class of persons of the Companies, as required in terms of the
applicable provisions of the relevant Act;

31.1.2the sanction of the Tribunal, being obtained under Sections 230 to 232 of the Act and
other applicable provisions of the Act, if so, required on behalf of the Companies;

31.1.3the certified copies of the order under Sections 230 to 232 of the Act, and other
applicable provisions of the Act are duly filed with the Registrar of Companies; and

31.1.4all other sanctions and approvals as may be required by law (including approvals
from Appropriate Authorities or contracting party) in respect of this Scheme shall
have been obtained, where such approval or consent is necessary.

EFFECT OF NON-RECEIPT OF APPROVALS

In the event of any of the said sanctions and approvals referred to in Clause 31 above not
being obtained (or to the extent permissible under Applicable Law, not waived) and / or the
Scheme not being sanctioned by the Tribunal or such other competent authority /
Appropriate Authorities and/ or the sanction order(s) not being passed by the NCLT as
aforesaid, the Demerged Company may opt to terminate this Scheme and the Scheme shall
stand revoked, cancelled and be of no effect, save and except in respect of any act or deed
done prior thereto as is contemplated hereunder or as to any rights and / or liabilities which
might have arisen or accrued pursuant thereto and which shall be governed and be preserved
or worked out as is specifically provided in the Scheme or as may otherwise arise in law.
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Scheme, the Board of Directors
of the Demerged Company shall be entitled to withdraw this Scheme prior to the Effective
Date.
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32.3

32.4

33.

34.

35.
35.1

35.2

36.

Upon the termination of this Scheme as set out in Clause 32.1 and 32.2 above, no rights and
liabilities shall accrue to or be incurred by the Companies or their shareholders or creditors
or employees or any other person. In such case, each Company shall bear its own costs and
expenses or as may be otherwise mutually agreed.

The Board of Directors of the Companies, shall be entitled to revoke, cancel, and declare
the Scheme of no effect if they are of the view that the coming into effect of the Scheme with
effect from the Appointed Date could have adverse implications on the Companies post the
demerger.

COSTS

All costs, charges, levies, and expenses of the Companies, in relation to or in connection
with or incidental to this Scheme or the implementation thereof shall be borne and paid for
by the Resulting Company 1 and Resulting Company 2, unless otherwise determined by the
Boards of Directors of the Companies.

PROPERTY IN TRUST

Notwithstanding anything contained in this Scheme, on or after Effective Date, until any
property, asset, license, approval, permission, contract, agreement and rights and benefits
arising therefrom pertaining to the business of the Demerged Undertaking I and Demerged
Undertaking 2 of the Demerged Company, are transferred, vested, recorded, effected and/
or perfected, in the records of any Appropriate Authority, regulatory bodies or otherwise, in
Sfavour of the Resulting Company I and Resulting Company 2 respectively, such company is
deemed to be authorised to enjoy the property, asset or the rights and benefits arising from
the license, approval, permission, contract or agreement as if it were the owner of the
property or asset or as if it were the original party to the license, approval, permission,
contract or agreement. It is clarified that till approval is obtained from the Appropriate
Authorities, entry is made in the records of the Appropriate Authorities and till such time as
may be mutually agreed by the relevant Parties, the Demerged Company will continue to
hold the property and/or the asset, license, permission, approval, contract or agreement and
rights and benefits arising therefrom, as the case may be, in trust for and on behalf of the
Resulting Company 1 and Resulting Company 2 respectively.

SEVERABILITY

If any part of this Scheme is found to be unworkable for any reason whatsoever, the same shall
not, subject to the decision of the Companies, affect the validity or implementation of the other
parts and/or provisions of this Scheme.

In the event of any inconsistency between any of the terms and conditions of any earlier
arrangement amongst the Companies and their respective shareholders and/or creditors, and
the terms and conditions of this Scheme, the latter shall prevail.

REMOVAL OF DIFFICULTIES

The Companies, through mutual consent and acting through their respective Boards, jointly
and as mutually agreed in writing may give such directions (acting jointly) and agree to take
steps, as may be necessary, desirable or proper, to resolve all doubts, difficulties or questions
arising under this Scheme, whether by reason of any orders of NCLT or of any directive or
orders of any Appropriate Authority, under or by virtue of this Scheme in relation to the
arrangement contemplated in this Scheme and/ or matters concerning or connected
therewith or in regard to and of the meaning or interpretation of this Scheme or
implementation thereof or in any manner whatsoever connected therewith, or to review the
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10.

position relating to the satisfaction of various conditions of this Scheme and if necessary, to
waive any of those to the extent permissible under Applicable Law; and do all such acts,
deeds and things as may be necessary, desirable or expedient for carrying the Scheme into

effect.

37. BINDING EFFECT

Upon the Scheme becoming effective, the same shall be binding on all the Companies,
Appropriate Authority and all concerned parties without any further act, deed, matter, or
thing.

The Salient features, as set out above, being only the salient features of the Scheme as are statutorily
required to be included in this explanatory statement, the members are requested to read the entire
text of the Scheme (annexed herewith as Annexure A) to get fully acquainted with the provisions
thereof and the rationale and objectives of the proposed Scheme.

BRIEF DETAILS OF THE SCHEME

S. No. Particulars Particulars
i. Parties involved in the | J M Baxi Ports & Logistics Private Limited (“J M Baxi”
Scheme or “Demerged Company”)
And

J M Baxi Container Holdings Private Limited (“J M Baxi
Container” or “Resulting Company 1”)

And

J M Baxi Ports Services Private Limited (formerly, J M
Baxi Cargo Holdings Private Limited) (“J M Baxi Dev
Co” or “Resulting Company 2”)

And

Their Respective Shareholders.

ii. Composite Scheme of | The Composite Scheme of Arrangement presented under
Arrangement Section 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the
Act, provides for the:

(i) Demerger of Demerged Undertaking 1 (defined in
Clause 1.11 of the Scheme) of ] M Baxi Ports &
Logistics Private Limited (“J M Baxi” or
“Demerged Company”) into ] M Baxi Container
Holdings Private Limited (“J M Baxi Container” or
“Resulting Company 1”);
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S. No.

Particulars

Particulars

(ii) Demerger of the Demerged Undertaking 2 (defined
in Clause 1.12 of the Scheme) of ] M Baxi Ports &
Logistics Private Limited (“J M Baxi” or
“Demerged Company”) into J] M Baxi Ports
Services Private Limited (formerly, ] M Baxi Cargo
Holdings Private Limited) (“J M Baxi Dev Co” or
“Resulting Company 2”).

The Scheme also provides for various other matters
consequential or otherwise integrally connected
therewith.

iii.

Appointed Date

“Appointed Date” means the Effective Date, or such
other date as may be approved by the National Company
Law Tribunal or such other competent authority /
Appropriate Authority.

1v.

Effective Date

“Effective Date” in relation to the Scheme, means the
date or last of the dates on which (i) certified copies of the
order of the NCLT sanctioning the Scheme are filed by the
Demerged Company and the Resulting Companies with
the Registrar of Companies, Mumbai or (ii) the last of the
approvals specified in Clause 31.1 is obtained. References
in this Scheme to the date of “coming into effect of this
Scheme” or “upon the Scheme becoming effective” or
“effectiveness of this Scheme” or “Scheme becomes
effective” shall mean the Effective Date.

Summary of Share

Entitlement
Report

Ratio

The following is the ratio for the issue of equity shares by
the Resulting Company 1 and Resulting Company 2,
respectively, against the equity shares held by the equity
shareholders in the Demerged Companies, based on the
recommendations made in the share entitlement ratio
report dated 29" February 2024 by the Registered Valuer,
Transaction Square Advisory LLP.

Under Part II of the Scheme: Demerger of Demerged
Undertaking 1 of the Demerged Company into the
Resulting Company 1

To the equity shareholders of Demerged Company,
whose _name _is recorded in_the register of members as
member of the Demerged Company as on the Record
Date 1

“l (one) Equity Share of J M Baxi Container of Re. 1
(Rupee One) each, credited as fully paid up, for every 1
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S. No.

Particulars

Particulars

(one) fully paid-up equity share of Re. 1 (Rupee One) each
of J M Baxi held by such shareholders.”

Under Part III of the Scheme: Demerger of Demerged
Undertaking 2 of the Demerged Company into the
Resulting Company 2

To the equity shareholders of Demerged Company,
whose_name _is recorded in_the register of members_as
member of the Demerged Company as on the Record
Date 2

“I (one) Equity Share of J M Baxi Dev Co of Re. 1 (Rupee
One) each, credited as fully paid up, for every I (one) fully
paid-up equity share of Re. 1 (Rupee One) each of J M
Baxi held by such shareholders.”

The Share Entitlement Ratio Report is annexed herewith
as Annexure C and is available for inspection at the
registered office of the Company.

V.

Rationale of the
Scheme or the
benefits of the
Scheme as perceived
by the Board of
Directors of the
Company to the
Company,
Shareholders,
Creditors and Others

The Demerged Company is inter alia engaged in
Container Business, Non-Container Business and
Corporate Services Business. The management believes
that the risk and reward associated with each of the
aforesaid businesses are different with different
stakeholders. As part of restructuring of its businesses and
with a view to achieve strategic independence of its
business verticals (unlocking the potential of each of the
businesses) and to leverage the expertise of its strategic
investor, the management of the Demerged Company
proposes to (i) demerge the Demerged Undertaking 1, on
a going concern basis, into ] M Baxi Container; and (ii)
demerge the Demerged Undertaking 2, on a going concern
basis, into J M Baxi Dev Co. Further, the Demerged
Company shall continue to be engaged in the Non-
Container Business. The management believes that the
proposed segregation of business shall benefit all
stakeholders of the Companies and also result in the
following benefits:

1. The Demerged Undertakings have achieved scale and
experience to sustain business based on their own
strengths. Additionally, these businesses deal with
different sets of industry dynamics in the form of
nature of risks, competition, challenges, opportunities
and business methods. Hence, the segregation of the
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S. No.

Particulars

Particulars

Identified Container Business and Corporate Services
Business would enable focused management and
enable exploring the potential business opportunities
more effectively and efficiently.

2. The Demerger will enable both Demerged Company
and the Resulting Companies to enhance business
operations by streamlining operations, cutting costs,
more efficient management control and outlining
independent growth strategies.

3. The Demerger will allow the management to devise,
implement and pursue independent business
strategies for the Identified Container Business, Non-
Container Business and Corporate Services Business
which will enable wider scope for independent
collaboration,  investment  opportunities  and
expansion.

4. The Resulting Company 1, with clear identity of
being in the Identified Container Business will enable
right customer attention resulting in deeper market
penetration.

5. The Resulting Company 2, with clear identity of
being in the Corporate Services Business, will enable
to drive overall strategy, manage bidding for new and
performance of existing businesses.

6. Ability to leverage financial and operational
resources in each business will lead to possibilities of
joint ventures and associations with other industry
participants, both in India and globally, and will
facilitate attracting greater talent pool.

7. Each business will be able to address independent
business opportunities with efficient capital
allocation and attract different set of investors,
strategic partners, lenders and other stakeholders, thus
leading to enhanced value creation, which is in the
best interest of the Demerged Company and Resulting
Companies and their respective stakeholders.
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S. No.

Particulars Particulars

Vii.

Details of Capital or | Not Applicable
debt restructuring, if
any

viii.

Amount due to | Applicant No. 1: INR 4,17,92,87,642/-
Secured Creditors of
Applicant No. 1 as on | Applicant No. 2: Nil
30" April 2024
Applicant No. 3: Nil

iX.

Amount due to | INR 1,31,75,55,288/-
Unsecured Creditors
of Applicant No. 1 as
on 10™ July 2024

Amount due to | Applicant No. 2: Nil
Unsecured Creditors
of Applicant No. 2 | Applicant No. 3: Nil
and Applicant No. 3
as on 31* July 2024

11. EXTENT OF SHAREHOLDING OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL
PERSONNEL

The directors of the Applicant No. 1, Applicant No. 2 and Applicant No. 3 may be deemed
to be concerned and/or interested in the Scheme to the extent of their shares that may be held
by them, if any, or by the Companies of which they are directors in the Applicant No. 1,
Applicant No. 2 and Applicant No. 3. None of the directors, Key Managerial Personnel
(‘KMPs’) or relatives of the directors and KMPs of the Applicant No. 1, Applicant No. 2 and
Applicant No. 3, have any material, financial or other interest, in the Scheme, except as
shareholders to the extent appearing in the Register of Directors’ shareholding and Register
of Members maintained by the Applicant No. 1, Applicant No. 2 and Applicant No. 3
respectively, as applicable. The directors holding the shares in Applicant No. 1, Applicant
No. 2 and Applicant No. 3 do not have any other interest in the Scheme otherwise than that
as shareholder in general. Further, none of the managers, KMP and relatives of the directors
of Applicant No. 1, Applicant No. 2 and Applicant No. 3 is concerned or interested, financial
or otherwise, in the proposed Scheme. Save as aforesaid, none of the Directors of the
Applicant No. 1, Applicant No. 2 and Applicant No. 3 have any material interest in the
proposed Scheme.

The details of the present Directors, KMP of the Applicant No. 1 and their shareholding
either individually or jointly as a first holder or as a nominee in the Applicant No. 1,
Applicant No. 2 and Applicant No. 3, as on 30" September 2024, is as under:
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Name of the Position Equity Share held in
Director & KMP J M Baxi J M Baxi J M Baxi Ports
Ports & Container Services
Logistics Holdings Private Limited
Private Private Limited
Limited
Mr. Krishna B. | Whole-time 3,58,25,189 - -
Kotak Director
Mr. Dhruv K. Kotak | Managing 76,75,950 1* 1*
Director
Mr. Dheeraj Bhatia | Director - - -
Mr. Rolf  Eric | Director - - -
Habben Jansen
Mr. Jitander Kumar | Chief  Financial - - -
Gupta Officer (KMP)
Mr. Mariyappan | Company - - -
Madu Balraj Secretary (KMP)
*As a Nominee Shareholder of Applicant No. 1, beneficial interest in the said shares remains
with Applicant No. 1
The details of the present Directors, KMP of the Applicant No. 2 and their shareholding
either individually or jointly as a first holder or as a nominee in the Applicant No. 1,
Applicant No. 2 and Applicant No. 3, as on 31° March 2024, is as under:
Name of the Position Equity Share held in
Director & KMP J M Baxi Ports J M Baxi J M Baxi
& Logistics Container Ports Services
Private Limited Holdings Private
Private Limited Limited
Nandan Vithal | Director - - -
Yalgi
Varsha Vijay Nair | Director - - -
The details of the present Directors, KMP of the Applicant No. 3 and their shareholding
either individually or jointly as a first holder or as a nominee in the Applicant No. 1,
Applicant No. 2 and Applicant No. 3, as on 31% March 2024, is as under:
Name of the Position Equity Share held in
Director & KMP J M Baxi Ports J M Baxi J M Baxi
& Logistics Container Ports Services
Private Limited | Holdings Private Private
Limited Limited
Nandan Vithal | Director - - -
Yalgi
Varsha Vijay Nair | Director - - -
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12.

DISCLOSURE ABOUT THE EFFECT OF THE SCHEME ON:

S. No.

Particulars

Particulars

Key
Personnel

Managerial

Directors

Promoters / Non-
Promoter members

The effect of the Scheme on the KMPs, Director, Promoter and Non-
Promoter shareholders of the Applicant Companies is given in the reports
adopted by the Board of Directors of the respective Applicant
Companies, which are enclosed as Annexure B1, Annexure B2 and
Annexure B3 respectively, to this Notice.

ii.

Creditors

Under Part II of the Scheme: Demerger of Demerged Undertaking
1 of the Demerged Company into the Resulting Company 1

All the liabilities relating to and comprised in the Demerged Undertaking
1 including all secured and unsecured debts, sundry creditors of the
Demerged Company pertaining to the business activities and operations
of Demerged Undertaking 1, shall, stand transferred to and vested in or
deemed to be transferred to and vested in the Resulting Company 1.

Under Part III of the Scheme: Demerger of Demerged Undertaking
2 of the Demerged Company into the Resulting Company 2

All the liabilities relating to and comprised in the Demerged Undertaking
2 including all secured and unsecured debts, sundry creditors of the
Demerged Company pertaining to the business activities and operations
of Demerged Undertaking 2, shall, stand transferred to and vested in or
deemed to be transferred to and vested in the Resulting Company 2.

iii.

Depositors

As on date, the Applicant No. 1, Applicant No. 2 and Applicant No. 3
have no outstanding public deposits and therefore, the effect of the
Scheme on any such public deposit holders or deposit trustee(s) does not
arise.

iv.

Debenture Holders

As on date, the Applicant No. 1, Applicant No. 2 and Applicant No. 3
have no outstanding debentures and therefore, the effect of the Scheme
on any such debenture holders or debenture trustee does not arise.

Employees of the
Company

Under Part II of the Scheme: Demerger of Demerged Undertaking
1 of the Demerged Company into the Resulting Company 1

All the staff, workmen and other employees pertaining to the Demerged
Undertaking 1 of the Demerged Company immediately before the
transfer under the Scheme, shall become the staff, workmen and
employees of the Resulting Company 1 as per the details mentioned in
the Scheme.

Under Part I1I of the Scheme: Demerger of Demerged Undertaking
2 of the Demerged Company into the Resulting Company 2

All the staff, workmen and other employees pertaining to the Demerged
Undertaking 2 of the Demerged Company immediately before the
transfer under the Scheme, shall become the staff, workmen and
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13.

14.

15.

the Scheme.

STATEMENT TO THE EFFECT THAT PERSONS TO WHOM THE NOTICE IS SENT
MAY VOTE IN THE MEETING BY VOTING THROUGH ELECTRONIC MEANS

As per the directions of the Tribunal and discretion exercised by the Chairperson in consultation
with the counsel of the Applicant No. 1, the Meeting is proposed to be held through VC/OAVM
and equity shareholders of the Applicant No. 1 to whom the Notice is sent shall vote through the
remote e-Voting facility or e-Voting facility during the Meeting.

INVESTIGATION OR PROCEEDINGS, IF ANY, PENDING AGAINST THE COMPANY
UNDER THE ACT

No investigation or proceedings have been instituted or are pending under Chapter XIV of the
Companies Act, 2013 or erstwhile provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 against any of the
Applicant Companies.

INSPECTION

The following documents will be open for obtaining extracts from or for making or obtaining copies
or inspection by the equity shareholders of the Applicant No. 1 at the registered office at Godrej
Coliseum, Office No.801, C-Wing, Behind Everard Nagar, Off Somaiya Hospital Road, Sion East,
Mumbai - 400022, Maharashtra during business hours on all working days, except Saturdays,
Sundays and Public Holidays up to the date of the Meeting:

a) Copy of the Order dated 24™ October 2024 of the NCLT passed in Company Application
(CAA) No. 154/(MB)/2024 directing the convening of Meeting of the equity shareholders of
the Applicant No. 1;

b)  Copy of the Company Application (CAA) No. 154/(MB)/2024;

c) Copy of Composite Scheme of Arrangement;

d)  Memorandum and Articles of Association of all Applicant Companies;

e) Copy of audited financial statements of Applicant No. 1 for the year ended 31 March 2024;

f) Copy of carved-out Balance Sheet of Applicant No. 1 as on 31 March 2024 providing
divisional information on the three business verticals of Applicant No. 1, i.e., (a) Corporate
Services Business, (b) Container Business, and (c) Remaining Business;

g) Copy of report adopted by the Board of Directors of Applicant No. 1 under Section 232(2)(c)
of the Companies Act, 2013;

h)  Copy of provisional unaudited financial statements of Applicant No. 1 for the period ended
30" September 2024,

1) Copy of audited financial statements of the Applicant No. 2 for the year ended 31* March
2023;

1)) Copy of report adopted by the Board of Directors of the Applicant No. 2 under Section
232(2)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013;

k)  Copy of provisional unaudited financial statements of Applicant No. 2 for the period ended
30 September 2024;

D Copy of audited financial statements of the Applicant No. 3 for the year ended 31% March
2024;
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m) Copy of report adopted by the Board of Directors of the Applicant No. 3 under Section
232(2)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013;

n)  Copy of provisional unaudited financial statements of Applicant No. 3 for the period ended
30 September 2024;

o)  Copies of the Share Entitlement Ratio Report dated 29" February 2024, issued by the
Registered Valuer, Transaction Square Advisory LLP;

P) Certificates issued by Statutory Auditors of all the Applicant Companies in relation to the
accounting treatment prescribed in the Scheme is in conformity with the Accounting
Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with relevant rules
issued thereunder;

q)  Any other information, contracts or agreements material to the arrangement.

General:

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

Copies of the audited financial statements of the Applicant No. 1, Applicant No. 2 and Applicant
No. 3 as on 31* March 2024 are enclosed herewith as Annexure D1 and D2 and D3 respectively.

A copy of carved-out Balance Sheet of Applicant No. 1 as on 31% March 2024 providing divisional
information on the three business verticals of Applicant No. 1, i.e., (a) Corporate Services Business,
(b) Container Business, and (c) Remaining Business is enclosed herewith as Annexure E.

Copies of the provisional unaudited financial statements of Applicant No. 1, Applicant No. 2 and
Applicant No. 3 for the period ended 30" September 2024 are enclosed herewith as Annexures F1
and F2 and F3 respectively.

The Applicant Companies will file a petition under Section 230-232 and other applicable provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and
Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 to the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench, for
sanction of the Scheme.

Under Section 230 of the Companies Act, 2013, the proposed Scheme will have to be approved by
a majority in number representing three-fourth in value of the equity shareholders present and
voting.

The rights and interests of the members and the creditors of the Applicant No. 1 will not be
prejudicially affected by this Scheme.

No ongoing adjudication & recovery proceedings, prosecution and all other enforcement action is
pending against the Applicant No. 1, its promoters and directors.

In compliance with the provisions of Section 232(2) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of
Directors of the Applicant Companies, vide a resolution dated 29" February 2024, have adopted a
Report, inter-alia, explaining the effect of the Scheme on each class of shareholders (promoter and
non-promoter shareholders) and key managerial personnel. A copy of the said Report adopted by
the Board of Directors of the Applicant No. 1, Applicant No. 2 and Applicant No. 3 is enclosed to
this Explanatory Statement as Annexures B1, B2 and B3 respectively.
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24. The National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai bench, by its Order dated 24™ October 2024 has
directed the Chairperson in consultation with the counsel of the Applicant Companies to convene
the Meeting of the equity shareholders of the Applicant No. 1 through VC/OAVM and to publish
the notice of the said Meeting in the newspaper.

25. No winding up petition has been admitted against any of the Applicant Companies.

Dated at Mumbai on this the 30" day of October 2024

Sd/-
Mr. Yogesh Chaudhary
Chairperson Appointed by the National Company
Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench for the Meeting

J M Baxi Ports & Logistics Private Limited

CIN: U63090MH1947PTC251291

Registered Office: Godrej Coliseum, Office No.801, C-Wing, Behind
Everard Nagar, Off Somaiya Hospital Road, Sion

East, Mumbai - 400022, Maharashtra

Website: https://www.jmbaxi.com/

E-mail: cosec@jmbaxi.com
Tel.: +91 22 6153 7900
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Annexure A

COMPOSITE SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT
AMONGST

JM BAXI PORTS & LOGISTICS PRIVATE LIMITED
(*J M BAXI” OR “DEMERGED COMPANY”)

AND

AND

J M BAXI PORTS SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
(“J M BAXI DEV CO” OR “RESULTING COMPANY 27)

AND

THEIR RESPECTIVE SHAREHOLDERS
(UNDER SECTION 230 TO 232 AND OTHER APPLICABLE
PROVISIONS OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013)
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A, PREAMBLE

L, This Composite Scheme of Arrangement (“the Scheme” as more particularly defined
hereunder) is presented under Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of
the Act (as defined below) provides for:

1.1 Demerger of Demerged Undertaking | (defined in Clause 1.11) of ] M Baxi Ports &
Logistics Private Limited (“J M Baxi” or “Demerged Company”) into J] M Baxi

Container Holdings Private Limited (“J M Baxi Container” or “Resulting Company
1”)’

1.2 Demerger of the Demerged Undertaking 2 (defined in Clause 1.12) of I M Baxi into J
M Baxi Ports Services Private Limited (“J M Baxi Dev Co” or “Resulting Company
2,

2. J M Baxi, ] M Baxi Container and J M Baxi Dev Co are collectively referred to as
“Companies” and individuaily as “Company”.

3s Further ) M Baxi Container and J] M Baxi Dev Co are collectively referred to as
“Resulting Companies”.

e ————

4. This Scheme also provides for various other matters consequential or olj}c,f:m”-s% ““F‘%
integrally connected therewith. ,’:i. Y e L_._.-i-"\\

B. BACKGROUND

1. Demerged Company

1.1  J M Baxi is a private limited company which was originally incorporated on Nm?embe-r
6, 1947, under the name United Liner Agencies of India Private Limited under the
provisions of the Indian Companies Act, 1913, having CIN:
U63090MH1947PTC251291 and having its registered office at Calcutta. Subsequently,
the registered office of the Demerged Company was shifted from the State of West
Bengal to Maharashtra vide an order of the Regional Director, ER, Kolkata, Eastern
Region, Kolkata dated November 18, 2013. The name of the Demerged Company was
changed from United Liner Agencies of India Private Limited to International Cargo
Terminals and Infrastructure Private Limited with effect from May 19, 2015. The name
of the Demerged Company was further changed from International Cargo Terminals
and Infrastructure Private Limited to J M Baxi Ports & Logistics Private Limited with




1.2

1.3

effect from September 15, 2021. The Demerged Company was subsequently converted
into a public limited company vide approval of the Central Government dated
November 1, 2021. Further, the Demerged Company was subsequently re-converted
into a private limited company vide approval of the Central Government dated July 26,
2023. At present, the Demerged Company is having its registered office at Godrej
Coliseum, Office No.801, C-Wing, Behind Everard Nagar, Off Somaiya Hospital Road,
Sion East, Mumbai — 400022,

J M Baxi is engaged in the ports and logistics business directly and indirectly through
investments in special purpose vehicles. The business activities of J M Baxi comprise
of projects awarded pursuant to the concession / license agreements under the public-
private-partnership model entered between the concessioning authorities / competent
authorities and the special purpose companies with J M Baxi as the applicant / selected
bidder (either by itself or as a member of a consortium). Some of these bid documents
and concession agreements for these projects specifically require J M Baxi to
incorporate the concessionaire as a special purpose company under the Act in India, to
implement, operate and maintain the project / project facilities and services in
accordance with the respective concession agreements / licenses and underlying bid
documents. The Demerged Company has, accordingly, incorporated special pu:pose
companies in India, as required, basis the terms of the respective concession agr eenwms

/ licenses and underlying bid documents. [ { g

L
.3 L
i 4 i

The Demerged Company is engaged in broadly 3 categories of businesses: Wy S i D

\
Y
NN s

1.2.1 Container Business (either through itself or through the special purpo.ge.‘:, g ¢

vehicles),

1.2.2 Non-Container Business (either through itself or through the special purpose
vehicles), and '

1.2.3 Corporate Services Business.

Container Business:

Container Business means the container handling and terminal services (including
Container Permitted Multi-Purpose Terminals but excluding NC Permitted Multi-
Purpose Terminals), inland container depot services, containerized freight station
operations, containerized rail freight services and related value added services (i.e.,
stuffing, de-stuffing, pre inspection, hatch cover, restow, priority discharge, custom
examination, stacking, destacking, etc.)
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The Container Business of the Demerged Company comprises of:

1.3.1 Container Freight Station Business: The Demerged Company operates the customs-
notified container freight station on land leased from CIDCO in Dronagiri, Navi
Mumbai and the premise is used for import export container operations, warehouse
operations (cargo storage, stuffing and de-stuffing of containers), bonding operations,
hazardous container handling, buffer / on wheel and reefer container opetations.
Further, the Demerged Company also operates cold store warehouse, bonded
warehouse, reefer operations, bonded cold storage, etc. on owned land at Nhava Sheva.

1.3.2 Container Train Operations Business: The Demerged Company is one of the first
private rail operators in India and has a Category 3 license from Indian Railways
allowing it to offer EXIM services from locations of Pipavav, Mundra, Chennai/Ennore,
Visakhapatnam and Kochi ports, their hinterland and domestic services across India. It
operates 20 owned rakes and 4 leased rakes, linking hinterland with gateway ports,
commercial & trade centers and provides logistics support for containerized cargo.

1.3.3 Business of container handling and terminal services (including Container Permitted
Multi-Purpose Terminals but excluding NC Permitted Multi-Purpose Terminals),
inland container depot services, container freight station operations and containerized
rail freight services through projects awarded under concession/license agreements
entered between the concessioning authorities / competent authorities and special
purpose companies incorporated by the Demerged Company. The list of the special
N\ purpose companies who have executed these concession / license agreements with
\ o concessioning authorities / competent authorities are as follows:

'/ a. Kandla International Container Terminal Private Limited (“KICT”):
KICT has entered into a concession agreement dated February 29, 2016, with the
Board of Trustees for Deendayal Port Authority (Erstwhile Kandla Port Trust) to
provide for development, operation and maintenance of container terminal at Berths
No. 11 and 12 at Kandla port on public private partnership (“PPP*’) mode.

b. Haldia International Container Terminal Private Limited (“HICT”):

HICT has entered into an agreement dated October 14, 2015, with the Board of
Trustees of Kolkata Haldia Dock Complex for integrated container handling

q§§
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operations at Haldia port. It also provides container handling services for shipping
lines and vessel operators on behalf of the Haldia Dock Complex.

¢. Delhi International Cargo Terminal Private Limited (“DICT”):

DICT operates as an inland container depot and multi-user logistics park that is
located at Sonepat, off the NH-1 on the cargo route to India. The operations include
handling of containerised cargo arriving and departing by railway or by road,
stuffing, de-stuffing of containers, warehouse, cold chain warehouse, customs
examination and clearance facility, etc.

d. Visakha Container Terminal Private Limited (“VCT”):

VCT has entered into a concession agreement dated December 17, 2014, with the
Board of Trustees for Visakhapatnam Port for extension of existing container
terminal at Visakhapatnam Port Trust on Design, Build, Finance, Operate and
Transfer (“DBFOT?”) basis; along with the License Agreement dated September 11,
2002, for establishment of Container Terminal at Visakhapatnam Port Trust on
Build, Operate and Transfer basis, and lease agreement dated October 30, 2015. It
provides container handling facilities for container ships, berthing facilities for non-
container ships visiting the terminal and renders all related support services. It also
operates a container freight station located at EXIM park, Malkapuram,
Visakhapatnam. It provides services relating to cargo handling, stuffing, de-
\, stuffing, storage, etc.

Nhava Sheva Freeport Terminal Private Limited (“NSFT”):

NSFT is a 50:50 joint venture with CMA CGM Terminals. NSFT has entered into
a concession agreement dated July 29, 2022, with the Jawaharlal Nehru Port
Authority for upgradation, operation, maintenance and transfer of Jawaharlal Nehru
Port Container Terminal on PPP Basis.

f. Tuticorin International Container Terminal Private Limited (“TICT”):
TICT has entered into a concession agreement dated September 3, 2022, with the
Board of Authority of V. Q. Chidambaram Port for conversion of Berth — IX as

container terminal on DBFOT basis at Tuticorin Port.

14 Non-Container Business:




Non-Container Business means non-container terminal services (including NC
Permitted Multi-Purpose Terminals but excluding Container Permitted Multi-Purpose
Terminals), marine services (e.g., towage, piloting, underwater technical services),
over-dimensional cargo services (including project cargo where the containerised
element is not material), multi-modal logistic parks services, non-container marine
operations (e.g., coastal feeders), bulk terminal business and non-containerised cold
chain business, logistic-related value added services (i.e., freight forwarding, customs
clearance, warehousing and distribution services, transport management, port handling,
etc.), cruise terminal management and services, but excluding business within the scope
of the Container Business.

The Non-Container Business of the Demerged Company comprises of:

1.4.1 Rozi Business: The Demerged Company has entered into an agreement with the Gujarat
Maritime Board for the construction of jetty / wharf at Jamnagar for the purpose of
handling & transportation of material from / into ships nominated by the licensee.

1.4.2 Bulk Logistics Business: The Demerged Company is one of India’s largest dry bulk and

breakbulk logistics and supply chain providers, delivering to its customers with on time

“#5 T == and value-added services in port, maritime and inland logistics. The bulk business has

‘b\oneered arange of inland and port related activities by providing comprehensive port

hﬁd ing, transport and logistics services for the complete range of commodities like
‘,f rl}‘hzers sugar, food grains, steel, aluminium, minerals and others.

)
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. RLE SR e 7 ‘:.I? d Chain Logistics Business: The Demerged Company operates the cold chain
\’Q-\._‘?ﬁ';j—_;"f;i}' %ﬁsmess through a cold storage facility at Sonepat and through owned space at Nhava
N 2 /Sheva It provides cold chain storage (General & Custom Bonded) and transportation

services for agricultural produce (seeds, fruits and vegetables, fresh horticulture and
floriculture products), dairy products, meat and poultry, marine produects, organized
retail goods, pharmaceuticals, chemicals, processed and frozen foods and any other
products that may require temperature-controlled warehousing and/or transportation
services.

1.4.4 Business of non-container terminal services, over-dimensional cargo services
(including project cargo where the containerised element is not material), bulk terminal
business and non-containerised cold chain business, logistics value-added services
(e.g., freight forwarding, customs clearance, warehousing and distribution services,
transport management, port handling, value added services), cruise terminal
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management and services through projects awarded pursuant to the concession/license
agreements entered between the concessioning authorities / competent authorities and
special purpose companies incorporated by the Demerged Company. The list of the
special purpose companies who have executed these concession / license agreements
with concessioning authorities / competent authorities are as follows:

a. Paradip International Cargo Terminal Private Limited (“PICT”):

PICT has executed a concession agreement dated March 7, 2015, with the Board
of Trustees of Paradip Port Trust, for development of multipurpose berth to handle
clean cargo including containers at Paradip Port on a build operate transfer model.

b. JM Baxi Heavy Private Limited (“JMBH”):

JMBH provides multimodal transportation of heavy and over dimensional cargo. It
specializes in managing end-to-end project logistics, from planning to the
movement of project cargo, over-dimensional cargo, overweight consignments on
a turnkey and door-to-door basis, route surveys, barging and in-house engineering
design and calculations. It is also involved in project freight forwarding and freight
management whereby it provides delivery-at-place services, relocation-..
service, delivery of cargo across the world, customs clearance and cargq.}ﬁ{_&é and %
trace. ’ '

¢. JM Baxi Cool Private Limited (“JMB Cool”):

il R wow= f gugivy
U A

JMB Cool has been incorporated for the purpose of carrying on the busmcggqfw ld A0 Y
chain operations. T

d. Nhava Sheva Distribution Terminal Private Limited (“NSDT”):
NSDT entered into a concession agreement, dated November 15, 2022, with the
board of trustees of the Jawaharlal Nehru Port Authority for upgradation,
equipping, operation, maintenance and transfer of shallow water berth facility and

newly constructed coastal berth through PPP mode.

e. Vizag Multipurpose Terminal Private Limited (“VMT”):




1.5

VMT is a 50:50 joint venture with Indian Potash Limited. VMT has entered into a
concession agreement dated March 10, 2023, with Vishakhapatnam Port Authority
for mechanization of EQ-7 Berth through PPP mode on DBFOT basis.

f.  Ballard Pier Private Limited (“BP”).

BP entered into a concession agreement dated January 22, 2022, with the Board of
Trustees for the Port of Mumbai to develop, operate and maintain the Mumbai
International Cruise Terminal at Indira Dock on DBFOT and PPP basis.

Corporate Services Business:

The Demerged Company is also engaged in the business of providing management
support services and third-party services to its business divisions, associated companies
and subsidiaries. These activities include assisting in the formulation and execution of
business development strategies, market analysis, and the preparation of bids for
projects in accordance with concessioning and governmental agreements; engaging
with appropriate authorities; planning, executing, controlling, monitoring projects;
providing assistance to negotiate commercial arrangements / agreements and managing
interactions with third parties; offering guidance on human resource management,
project performance management, human resource management, industrial relations,
and operational protocols for terminal, crane and yard management; providing
budgeting for business plans, corporate finance, project finance, and treasury
management strategies; identifying and shortlisting business opportunities, supporting
credit rating assessments, litigation management services, and investor presentations to
raise capital; providing information technology services; providing training services;
managing shared administrative functions and aiding in the performance management—

of projects and contract management, including procurement of regulatory advisﬁi@'»'_ '_'a__r}_f.‘i A

consultancy services for the subsidiary companies.

J M Baxi Container or Resulting Company 1

J M Baxi Container is a private limited company incorporated on June 21, 2023; .Lintl'gr' -
the Act, with Corporate Identification Number U52242MH2023PTC405 195 “and
having its registered office at Godrej Coliseum, Office No.801, C-Wing, Behind
Everard Nagar, Off Somaiya Hospital Road, Sion East, Mumbai — 400022. ] M Baxi
Container is a wholly owned subsidiary of J M Baxi and is incorporated inter alia for
the purpose of carrying on the Container Business.




J M Baxi Dev Co or Resulting Company 2

J M Baxi Dev Co is a private limited company incorporated on July 3, 2023, under the
Act, with Corporate Identification Number: U52242MH2023PTC405765 and having
its registered office at Godrej Coliseum, Office No.801, C-Wing, Behind Everard
Nagar, Off Somaiya Hospital Road, Sion East, Mumbai — 400022. The name of the
Resulting Company 2 was changed from J M Baxi Cargo Holdings Private Limited to
J M Baxi Ports Services Private Limited with effect from May 31, 2024, ] M Baxi Dev
Co is a wholly owned subsidiary of ] M Baxi and is proposed to carry on the Corporate
Services Business.

RATIONALE

The Demerged Company is inter alia engaged in Container Business, Non-Container
Business and Corporate Services Business. The management believes that the risk and
reward associated with each of the aforesaid businesses are different with different
stakeholders. As part of restructuring of its businesses and with a view to achieve
strategic independence of its business verticals (unlocking the potential of each of the
businesses) and to leverage the expertise of its strategic investor, the management of
the Demerged Company proposes to (i) demerge the Demerged Undertaking 1, on a
going concern basis, into J M Baxi Container; and (ii) demerge the Demerged
Undertaking 2, on a going concern basis, into J M Baxi Dev Co. Further, the Demerged
Company shall continue to be engaged in the Non-Container Business. The
management believes that the proposed segregation of business shall benefit all
stakeholders of the Companies and also result in the following benefits:

The Demerged Undertakings have achieved scale and experience to sustain business
based on their own strengths. Additionally, these businesses deal with different sets of
industry dynamics in the form of nature of risks, competition, challenges, opportunities
and business methods. Hence, the segregation of the Identified Container Business and
Corporate Services Business would enable focused management and enable exploring
the potential business opportunities more effectively and efficiently.

The Demerger will enable both Demerged Company and the Resulting Companies to
enhance business operations by streamlining operations, cutting costs, more efficient
management control and outlining independent growth strategies.

The Demerger will allow the management to devise, implement and pursue independent
business strategies for the [dentified Container Business, Non-Container Business and




Corporate Services Business which will enable wider scope for independent
collaboration, investment opportunities and expansion.

The Resulting Company 1, with clear identity of being in the Identified Container
Business will enable right customer attention resulting in deeper market penetration.

The Resulting Company 2, with clear identity of being in the Corporate Services
Business, will enable to drive overall strategy, manage bidding for new and
performance of existing businesses.

Ability to leverage financial and operational resources in each business will lead to
possibilities of joint ventures and associations with other industry participants, both in
India and globally, and will facilitate attracting greater talent pool.

Each business will be able to address independent business opportunities with efficient
capital allocation and attract different set of investors, strategic partners, lenders and
other stakeholders, thus leading to enhanced value creation, which is in the best interest
of the Demerged Company and Resulting Companies and their respective stakeholders.

In view of the aforesaid, the Board of Directors of the Companies have considered and
proposed this Scheme and matters incidental thereto pursuant to the provisions of
Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Act.

PARTS OF THE SCHEME

The Scheme is divided into the following parts:
Part I deals with Definitions, Interpretations and Share Capital.

Part 11 deals with the demerger of the Demerged Undertaking 1 from Demerged
Company into the Resulting Company 1.

Part III deals with the demerger of the Demerged Undertaking 2 from Demerged
Company into the Resulting Company 2.

Part IV deals with the (i) adjustment to the securities premium account of the Demerged
Company; and (ii) general terms and conditions applicable to the Scheme and other
matters consequential and integrally connected thereto.




1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

e vanagy

Though this Scheme is divided into various parts, for the purpose of conventence, it is
to be implemented as a single inseparable comprehensive Scheme.

NO ARRANGEMENT WITH CREDITORS

Under the proposed Scheme, there is no arrangement proposed to be entered into with
the creditors, either secured and / or unsecured creditors of the Companies. The liability
towards the creditors of Demerged Company (relating to the Demerged Undertakings)
is neither being reduced nor being extinguished but shall be assumed and discharged by
the Resulting Companies, respectively in their ordinary course of business.

PART I — DEFINITIONS, INTERPRETATION AND SHARE CAPITAL

Definitions

In this Scheme, unless inconsistent with the subject or context, the following
expressions shall have the meanings respectively assigned against them:

“Act” means the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules and regulations made thereunder
and shall include any statutory modification, amendments, or re-enactment thereof for
the time being in force. )

“Appointed Date” means the Effective Date, or such other date as may be approved
by the National Company Law Tribunal or such other competent authority / Appropriate
Authority.

“Applicable Law” means any applicable statute, law, regulation, ordinance, rule,
judgement, order, decree, clearance, approval, directive, guideline, requirement, or any
similar form of determination by or decision of any Appropriate Authority, that is
binding or applicable to a person, whether in effect as of the date on which this Scheme
has been approved by the Board of the Companies or at any time thereafter.

“Appropriate Authority” means any national, state, provincial, local, municipal,
district or other sub-division, or similar governmental, quasi-governmental, statutory,
regulatory, administrative authority, agency, commission, departmental or public body
or authority, board, branch, tribunal or court or other entity authorised to make laws,
rules, regulations, standards, requirements, procedures or to pass directions or orders,
in each case having the force of law, or arbitral body having jurisdiction or any non-
governmental regulatory or administrative authority, body or other organisation to the




1.5

1.6

1.7

1.8

1.9

1,10

extent that the rules, regulations and standards, requirements, procedures or orders of
such authority, body or other organizaiion have the force of law, including any port
authority, railway authority, customs authority, the Registrar of Companies, Regional
Director, Company Law Board, Competition Commission of India, Reserve Bank of
India, National Company Law Tribunal, concessioning authorities and such other
sectoral regulators or authorities as may be applicable.

“Board of Directors” or “Board” in relation to a Company, means the board of
directors of such Company, and shall include a committee of directors, or any other
person duly authorised by such board of directors or such committee of directors for the
purpose of this Scheme.

“Container Business” shall have the meaning as defined in Clause B.1.3 of this
Scheme.

“Container Retained Business” means the business of upgradation, operation,
maintenance and transfer of Jawaharlal Nehru Port Container Terminal on PPP Basis,
carried on by the J M Baxi through its strategic investment in Nhava Sheva Freeport
Terminal Private Limited and any other Container Business operations initiated or
undertaken by the Demerged Company through strategic investment in special purpose
vehicles or otherwise in respect of which bids have been submitted post the approval of
this Scheme by the Board of the Demerged Company, for which lock-in and/or transfer
restrictions under the relevant concession/license agreements are in effect, and the
necessary approvals for demerger from Appropriate Authorities to the Resulting
Company 1 could not be obtained from the date of the Scheme being approved by the
Board of the Demerged Company till the Effective Date.

“Container Permitted Multi-Purpose Terminals” means a multi-purpose terminal
business where the revenues from providing container terminal services exceed or are
expected to exceed 40% of the aggregate revenues from the terminal in question.

“Corporate Services Business” shall have the meaning as defined in Clause B.1.5 of
this Scheme.

“Demerged Company” or “J M Baxi” means ] M Baxi Ports & Logistics Private
Limited (Corporate Identification Number: U63090MH1947PTC251291), a private
limited company incorporated under provisions of the Indian Companies Act, 1913, and
having its registered office at Godrej Coliseum, Office No.801, C-Wing, Behind Everard
Nagar, Off Somaiya Hospital Road, Sion East, Mumbai — 400022,

: o
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“Demerged Undertaking 1” means the Identified Container Business of the Demerged
Company and all businesses, activities, properties and relatable liabilities, employees,
contracts, legal or other proceedings, and all other rights, claims or titles attributable to
the interests of the Demerged Company in the Identified Container Business and without
limitation, shall include the following:

1.11.1

1.11.2

1.11.3

[.114

all its properties and assets of the above referred business (tangible and
intangible), including all inteliectual property, movable or immovable,
freehold, leasehold or licensed, tenancy rights, hire purchase and lease
arrangements, real or personal, corporeal or incorporeal or otherwise, present,
future, contingent, tangible or intangible, furniture, fixtures, office equipment,
appliances, accessories, vehicles, sheds, godowns, warehouses, container
freight stations, container terminals, inland container depots / terminals,
equipments, capital work-in-progress, investments, sundry debtors, deposits,
provisions, advances, recoverables, receivables, title, interest, cash and bank
balances, bills of exchange, covenants, all earnest monies, security deposits,
or other entitlements, funds, powers, authorities, licenses, registrations, quotas,
allotments, consents, privileges, liberties, advantages, easements and all the
rights, title, interests, goodwill, benefits, fiscal incentives, entitlement and
advantages, contingent rights or benefits belonging to or in the ownership,
power, possession or the control of or vested in or granted in favour of or held
for the benefit of or enjoyed by the Demerged Company with respect to the
Identified Container Business;

all current assets including inventories, sundry debtors, receivables, cash and
bank accounts (including bank balances), fixed deposits, loans and advances,
actionable claims, bills of exchanges and debit notes for the purpose of carrying
on the Identified Container Business;

all rights or benefits, benefits of any deposit, receivables, claims against any
vendor or advances or deposits paid by or deemed to have been paid, financial
assets, benefit of any bank guarantees, performance guarantees and letters of
credit, hire purchase contracts, lending contracts, rights and benefits under any
agreement, benefits of any security arrangements or under any guarantee,
reversions, powers, tenancies in relation to the office and/or residential
properties for the employees or other persons, vehicles, guest houses,
godowns, share of any joint assets and other facilities pertaining to the
Identified Container Business;

all rights to use and avail of telephones, telexes, facsimile, email, internet, leased
line connections and installations, utilities, electricity and other services,




1.11.5

1.11.6

1.11.7

1.11.8

1.11.9

reserves, provisions, funds, benefits of assets or properties or other interests held
in trusts, registrations, contracts, engagements, arrangement of all kinds,
privileges and all other rights, easements, liberties and advantages of whatsoever
nature and wheresoever situated belonging to or in the ownership, power or
possession and in the control of or vested in or granted in favour of or enjoyed
by the Demerged Company or in connection with or relating to the said company
and all other interests of whatsoever nature belonging to or in the ownership,
power, possession or the control of or vested in or granted in favour of or held
for the benefit of the Identified Container Business;

all permissions, approvals, consents, subsidies privileges, income tax benefits
and exemptions, indirect tax benefits and exemptions, all other rights, benefits
and liabilities related thereto including licenses, powers and facilities of every
kind, nature and description whatsoever, provisions and benefits of all
agreements, contracts and arrangements and all other interests in connection
with or relating to the Identified Container Business;

all licenses (including but not limited to licenses granted by any government,
statutory or regulatory bodies for the purpose of carrying on the business or in
connection therewith), approvals, authorizations, permissions including
municipal permissions, consents, registrations, certifications, no objection
certificates, quotas, rights, permits, exemptions, subsidies, tax deferrals, credits
(including Cenvat credits, sales tax credits, goods and services tax credits and
income tax credits), privileges, advantages and all other rights and facilities of
every kind, nature and description whatsoever for the purpose of carrying on the
Identified Container Business;

all application monies, advance monies, earnest monies and/ or security deposits
paid or deemed to have been paid and payments against other entitlements with
respect to the Identified Container Business;

all agreements, contracts, arrangements, understandings, customer relationships,
engagements, deeds and instruments including lease/ license agreements,
tenancy rights, bonds, schemes, deeds, arrangements, service arrangements,
sales orders, purchase orders, equipment purchase agreements, and other
agreements with the customers and all rights, title, interests, claims and benefits
there under; for the purpose of carrying on the Identified Container Business;
all tax credits, refunds, reimbursements, claims, concessions, exemptions,
benefits under Tax Laws including sales tax deferrals, advance taxes, tax
deducted at source, right to carry forward and set-off accumulated losses and
unabsorbed depreciation, if any, deferred tax assets, goods and services tax
credit, indirect tax benefits and exemptions, deductions and benefits under the




1.11.10

1.11.11

1.11.12

1.11.13

1.11.14
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IT Act or any other taxation statute enjoyed by the Demerged Company with
respect to the Identified Container Business;

all debts, borrowings, obligations, duties and liabilities both present and future,
whether provided for or not in the books of accounts or disclosed in the balance
sheet of the Demerged Company, whether secured or unsecured, all guarantees,
assurances, commitments and obligations of any kind, nature or description,
whether fixed, contingent or absolute, asserted or unasserted, matured or un-
matured, liquidated or unliquidated, accrued or not accrued, known or unknown,
due or to become due, whenever or however arising (including, without
limitation, whether arising out of any contract or tort based on negligence or
strict liability) pertaining to the Identified Container Business; all permits,
licences, approvals, registrations, quotas, incentives, powers, authorities,
allotments, consents, rights, benefits, advantages, municipal permissions,
trademarks, designs, copyrights, patents and other intellectual property rights of
the Demerged Company pertaining to Identified Container Business, whether
registered or unregistered and powers of every kind, nature and description
whatsoever, whether from the government bodies or otherwise, pertaining to ot
relating to the Identified Container Business;

all books, records, files, papers, process information, computer programs,
software licenses (whether proprietary or otherwise), drawings, manuals, data,
catalogues, quotations, sales, and advertising materials, lists of present and
former customers and suppliers, customer credit information, customer pricing
information, list of present and former agents and brokers and other records
whether in physical or electronic form in connection with or relating to the
Identified Container Business;

all legal proceedings, suits, claims, disputes, causes of action, litigation,
petitions, appeals, writs, legal, taxation or other proceedings of whatever nature,
(including before any statutory or quasi-judicial authority or tribunal), under
Applicable Law, in connection with the Identifted Container Business;

right to use the work experience, qualifications, capabilities, legacies and track
record with government / non-government agencies / bodies, contracts with
clients and with vendors, (including technical parameters, past performance,
track record, financial credentials such as profitability, turnover, net-worth,
financials, ete,) of the Demerged Company pertaining to the Identified Container
Business, to the extent applicable, acquired by reason of the completion of
various projects or works issued to the Demerged Company and the right to use
all these past credentials for qualitying for any tender or project in the future;
all insurance policies with respect to the Identified Container Business; and
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1.11.15 all employees, who are on its payrolls, including those employed at its offices,

employees/ personnel engaged on contract basis and interns/ trainees, as are
primarily engaged in or relation to the business, activities and operations carried
by the above referred business, including liabilities of the above referred
business, with regard to their staff and employees, with respect to the payment
of gratuity, superannuation, pension benefits and provident fund or other
compensation or benefits, if any, whether in the event of resignation, death,
retirement, or otherwise, in terms of its license, at its offices or otherwise, and
any other employees/ personnel and interns/ trainees engaged in the Identified
Container Business as on the Effective Date.

“Demerged Undertaking 2” means the Corporate Services Business of the Demerged
Company and all businesses, activities, properties and relatable liabilities, employees,
contraets, legal or other proceedings, and all other rights, claims or titles attributable to
the interests of the Demerged Company in the Corporate Services Business and without
limitation, include the following:

1.12.1

1.12.2

1.12.3

All properties and assets of the Corporate Services Business (tangible or
intangible), including ali intellectual property, movable or immovable,
freehold, leasehold or licensed, tenancy rights, hire purchase and lease
arrangements, real or personal, corporeal or incorporeal or otherwise, present,
future, contingent, tangible or intangible, furniture, fixtures, office equipment,
appliances, accessories, vehicles, sheds, godowns, warehouses, equipments,
capital work-in-progress, investments, sundry debtors, deposits, provisions,
advances, recoverables, receivables, title, interest, cash and bank balances,
bills of exchange, covenants, all earnest monies, security deposits, or other
entitlements, funds, powers, authorities, licenses, registrations, quotas,
allotments, consents, privileges, liberties, advantages, easements and all the
rights, title, interests, goodwill, benefits, fiscal incentives, entitlement and
advantages, contingent rights or benefits belonging to or in the ownership,
power, possession or the control of or vested in or granted in favour of or held
for the benefit of or enjoyed by the Demerged Company with respect to the
Corporate Services Business;

all current assets including inventories, sundry debtors, receivables, cash and
bank accounts (including bank balances), fixed deposits, loans and advances,
actionable claims, bills of exchanges and debit notes for the purpose of carrying
on the Corporate Services Business;

all rights or benefits, benefits of any deposit, receivables, claims against any
vendor or advances or deposits paid by or deemed to have been paid, financial




-

.

s \\
e, T

O e\ \\

*
f“r-i-"-.'-
h"\ ot 1H.‘\J }

; | N }
'_S‘f'.'-‘,.‘;{r‘.‘_, nATE -‘Tﬂ

)

NN e /-::j//
o "\» —’, \‘ ,f}
L"f""" S
N ! . r;. ‘_'“.-

‘\‘\‘:\_- " ¥ :.

assets, benefit of any bank guarantees, performance guarantees and letters of
credit, hire purchase contracts, lending contracts, rights and benefits under any
agreement, benefits of any security arrangements or under any guarantee,
reversions, powers, tenancies in relation to the office and/or residential
properties for the employees or other persons, vehicles, guest houses, godowns,
share of any joint assets and other facilities pertaining to the Corporate Services
Business;

1.12.4  all rights to use and avail of telephones, telexes, facsimile, email, internet, leased
line connections and installations, utilities, electricity and other services,
reserves, provisions, funds, benefits of assets or properties or other interests held
in trusts, registrations, contracts, engagements, arrangement of all kinds,
privileges and all other rights, easements, liberties and advantages of whatsoever
nature and wheresoever’s situated belonging to or in the ownership, power or
possession and in the control of or vested in or granted in favour of or enjoyed
by the Demerged Company or in connection with or relating to the said company
and all other interests of whatsoever nature belonging to or in the ownership,
power, possession or the control of or vested in or granted in favour of or held
for the benefit of the Corporate Services Business;

1.12.5 all permissions, approvals, consents, subsidies, privileges, indirect tax benefits
and exemptions, all other rights, benefits and liabilities related thereto
including licenses, powers and facilities of every kind, nature and description
whatsoever, provisions and benefits of all agreements, contracts and
arrangements and all other interests in connection with or relating to the
Corporate Services Business;

1.12.6  all licenses (including but not limited to licenses granted by any government,
statutory or regulatory bodies for the purpose of carrying on the business or in
connection therewith), approvals, authorizations, permissions including
municipal permissions, consents, registrations, certifications, no objection
certificates, quotas, rights, permits, exemptions, subsidies, tax deferrals, credits
(including Cenvat credits, sales tax credits, goods and services tax credits and
income tax credits), privileges, advantages and all other rights and facilities of
every kind, nature and description whatsoever for the purpose of carrying on the
Corporate Services Business;

1.12.7 all application monies, advance monies, earnest monies and/ or security deposits
paid or deemed to have been paid and payments against other entitlements with
respect to the Corporate Services Business;

1.12.8 all agreements, contracts, arrangements, understandings, engagements, deeds
and instruments including lease/ license agreements, tenancy rights, bonds,
schemes, deeds, arrangements, service arrangements, sales orders, purchase




1.12.9

1.12.10

1.12.11

1.12.12

1.12.13

1.12.14
1.12.15

orders, loan license agreements and other agreements with the customers and all
rights, title, interests, claims and benefits there under for the purpose of carrying
on the Corporate Services Business;

all tax credits, refunds, reimbursements, claims, concessions, exemptions,
benefits under Tax Laws including sales tax deferrals, advance taxes, tax
deducted at source, right to carry forward and set-off accumulated losses and
unabsorbed depreciation, if any, deferred tax assets, goods and services tax
credit, indirect tax benefits and exemptions, deductions and benefits under the
IT Act or any other taxation statute enjoyed by the Demerged Company with
respect to the Corporate Services Business;

all debts, borrowings, obligations, duties and liabilities both present and future,
whether provided for or not in the books of accounts or disclosed in the balance
sheet of the Demerged Company, whether secured or unsecured, all guarantees,
assurances, commitments and obligations of any kind, nature or description,
whether fixed, contingent or absolute, asserted or unasserted, matured or un-
matured, liquidated or unliquidated, accrued or not accrued, known or unknown,
due or to become due, whenever or however arising (including, without
limitation, whether arising out of any contract or tort based on negligence or
strict liability) pertaining to the Corporate Services Business;

all permits, licences, approvals, registrations, quotas, incentives, powers,
authorities, allotments, consents, rights, benefits, advantages, municipal
permissions, trademarks, designs, copyrights, patents and other intellectual
property rights of the Demerged Company pertaining to Corporate Services
Business, whether registered or unregistered and powers of every kind, nature
and description whatsoever, whether from the government bodies or otherwise,
pertaining to or relating to the Corporate Services Business;

all books, records, files, papers, process information, computer programs,
software licenses (whether proprietary or otherwise), drawings, manuals, data,
catalogues, quotations, sales, and advertising materials, lists of present and
former customers and suppliers, customer credit information, customer pricing
information, and other records whether in physical or electronic form in
connection with or relating to the Corporate Services Business;

all legal proceedings, suits, claims, disputes, causes of action, litigation,
petitions, appeals, writs, legal, taxation or other proceedings of whatever nature,
(including before any statutory or quasi-judicial authority or tribunal), under
Applicable Law, in connection with the Corporate Services Business;

all insurance policies with respect to the Corporate Service Business; and

all employees, who are on its payrolls, including those employed at its offices,
employees/ personnel engaged on contract basis and interns/ trainees, as are

7

. 4
i i J
: o \ DJ] =
\ A J f
v ;W

AP oy

.\(t.t.) ‘___F-,J’ . f{

-t 4\.\[\?,’,/




1.13

1.14

1.15

1.16

1.17

et

primarily engaged in or relation to the business, activities and operations carried
by the Corporate Services Business, including liabilities of the Corporate
Services Business, with regard to their staff and employees, with respect to the
payment of gratuity, superannuation, pension benefits and provident fund or
other compensation or benefits, if any, whether in the event of resignation, death,
retirement, or otherwise, in terms of its license, at its offices or otherwise, and
any other employees/ personnel and interns/ trainees engaged in the Corporate
Services Business as of the Effective Date.

“Demerged Undertakings” means the Demerged Undertaking 1 and the Demerged
Undertaking 2, collectively.

“Effective Date” in relation to the Scheme, means the date or last of the dates on which
(i) certified copies of the order of the NCLT sanctioning the Scheme are filed by the
Demerged Company and the Resulting Companies with the Registrar of Companies,
Mumbai or (ii) the last of the approvals specified under Clause 31.1 is obtained.
References in this Scheme to the date of “coming into effect of this Scheme” or “upon
the Scheme becoming effective” or “effectiveness of this Scheme” or “Scheme becomes
effective” shall mean the Effective Date.

“Encumbrance” or to “Encumber” means without limitation any options, claim, pre-
emption right, easement, limitation, attachment, restraint, mortgage, debenture, charge
(whether fixed or floating), pledge, lien, hypothecation, assignment, deed of trust, title
retention, security interest, non-disposal agreement, shortfall undertaking, bank
guarantees, corporate guarantees or other encumbrance or interest of any kind securing,
or conferring any priority of payment in respect of any obligation of any person,
including any right granted by a transaction which, in legal terms, is not the granting of
security but which has an economic or financial effect similar to the granting of security
under Applicable Law.

“Equity Share(s) of Demerged Company” means equity share of face value of Rs.
1/- each issued and allotted by the Demerged Company.

“Equity Share(s) of Resulting Company 1” means equity share of face value of Rs.
1/- each issued and allotted by the Resulting Company 1 to the equity shareholders of
Demerged Company pursuant to Part II of this Scheme free and clear of all
Encumbrances and together with all rights and benefits attaching thereto.




1.18

1.19

1.20

1.21

1.22

“Equity Share(s) of Resulting Company 2” means equity shate of face value of Rs.
1/- each issued and allotted by the Resulting Company 2 to the equity shareholders of
Demerged Company pursuant to Part III of this Scheme, free and clear of all
Encumbrances and together with all rights and benefits attaching thereto.

“Identified Container Business” means (a) Container Freight Station Business (as
defined in Clause B.1.3.1 of this Scheme), (b} Container Train Operations Business (as
defined in Clause B.1.3.2 of this Scheme), (¢) business of container handling and
terminal services (including Container Permitted Multi-Purpose Terminals but
excluding NC Permitted Multi-Purpose Terminals), inland container depot services,
container freight station operations, containerized rail freight services and related value
added services (i.e. stuffing destuffing, pre inspection, hatch cover, restow, priority
discharge, custom examination, stacking, destacking etc.) and (d) the strategic
investments in the Identified Container SPVs through which the Demerged Company is
engaged in the business of container handling and terminal services (including
Container Permitted Multi-Purpose Terminals but excluding NC Permitted Multi-
Purpose Terminals), inland container depot services, container freight station
operations and containerized rail freight services in accordance with the terms of the
license/concession agreements with Appropriate Authorities and underlying bid
documents and would include any other operations in relation to Container Business.

“Ydentified Container SPVs” means the strategic investments made by the Demerged
Company, to carry on the business of container handling and terminal services, inland
container depot services, container freight station operations and containerized rail
freight services, in Kandla International Container Terminal Private Limited, Haldia
International Container Terminal Private Limited, Delhi International Cargo Terminal
Private Limited, Visakha Container Terminal Private Limited, Tuticorin International
Container Terminal Private Limited and any other special purpose vehicle engaged in the
Container Business as identified by the Demerged Company in accordance with the terms
of the license/concession agreements with Appropriate Authorities and underlying bid
documents.

“Ind AS” shall mean the Indian Accounting Standards as notified under Section 133 of
the Act.

“Ind AS Rules” shall mean the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015,
as amended from time to time.




1.23

1.24

1.25

1.26

1.27

1.28

1.29

1.30

1.31
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“IT Act” or “Income-tax Act” means the Income-tax Act, 1961, of India, including
any statutory modifications, re-enactments, or amendments thereof for the time being
in force.

“National Company Law Tribunal” or “NCLT” or “Tribunal” means the Mumbai
Bench of the National Company Law Tribunal constituted under Section 408 of the Act
and/ or the National Company Law Appellate Tribunal (“NCLAT”) as constituted and
authorised as per the provisions of the Act for approving any scheme of arrangement,
compromise or reconstruction of companies under sections 230 to 232 of the Act and
shall include, if applicable, such other forum or authority as may be vested with the
powers of a Tribunal for the purposes of Sections 230 to 232 of the Act as may be
applicable.

“NC Permitted Multi-Purpose Terminals” means a multi-purpose terminal business
where the revenues from providing container terminal services do not exceed nor are
expected to exceed 40% of relevant to the aggregate revenues from the terminal in
question.

“Non-Container Business” shall have the meaning as defined in Clause B.1.4 of this
Scheme.

“Parties” or “Companies” means collectively the Demerged Company, Resulting
Company 1 and Resulting Company 2 and “Party” or “Company” shall mean each of
them, individually.

“Record Date 1” means a mutually agreed date to be fixed by the Board of Directors
of the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company 1 for the purposes of issuance
of and allotment in accordance with Clause 11.1 of this Scheme.

“Record Date 2” means a mutually agreed date to be fixed by the Board of Directors
of the Demerged Company and Resulting Company 2 for the purposes of issuance of
and allotment in accordance with Clause 19.1 of this Scheme.

“Registrar of Companies” means the Registrar of Companies, Mumbai having
jurisdiction over the Companies.

“Resulting Company 1” or “J M Baxi Container” means J M Baxi Container
Holdings Private Limited (Corporate Identification Number:
U52242MH2023PTC405195), a private limited company incorporated under



1.32

1.33

1.34

1.35

1.36

2.1

2.2

2.3

24

2.5

provisions of the Act and having its registered office at Godrej Coliseum, Office
No.801, C-Wing, Behind Everard Nagar, Off Somaiya Hospital Road, Sion East,
Mumbai — 400022,

“Resulting Company 2” or “J M Baxi Dev Co” means ] M Baxi Ports Services Private
Limited (Corporate Identification Number: U52242MH2023PTC405765), a private
limited company incorporated under provisions of the Act and having its registered
office at Godrej Coliseum, Office No0.801, C-Wing, Behind Everard Nagar, Off
Somaiya Hospital Road, Sion East, Mumbai — 400022.

“Resulting Companies” means the Resulting Company 1 and the Resulting Company
2 collectively.

“Remaining Business” or “Remaining Business of the Demerged Company”
means the Container Retained Business and Non-Container Business.

“Scheme” or “the Scheme” or “this Scheme” or “the Composite Scheme of
Arrangement” means this Composite Scheme of Arrangement in its present form
submitted to the NCLT or with any modification(s) made under Clause 29 of this
Scheme or with such other modifications/amendments as the NCLT may direct.

“Tax Laws” mean [T Act, Customs Act, 1962, Central Excise Act, 1944, Value Added
Tax Act, applicable to any state in which the Demerged Company and / or the Resulting
Companies operate, Central Sales Tax Act, 1956, any other State Sales Tax / Value
Added Tax laws, or Service Tax, Goods and Services Tax or other applicable laws/
regulations dealing with taxes/ duties/ levies/ cess.

In this Scheme, unless the context otherwise requires:
words denoting the singular shall include the plural and vice versa;

headings and bold typefaces are only for convenience and shall be ignored for the
purpose of interpretation;

references to the word “include” or “including” shall be construed without limitation;

a reference to a clause, section or part is, unless indicated to the contrary, a reference to
a clause, section, or part of this Scheme;

unless otherwise defined, the reference to the word “days” shall mean calendar days;




2.6

2.7

2.8

2.9

5.1

reference to a document includes an amendment or supplement to, or replacement or
novation of that document;

word(s) and expression(s) elsewhere defined in the Scheme shall have the meaning(s)
respectively ascribed to them;

references to any law or legislation or regulation shall include amendment(s), circulars,
notifications, clarifications or supplement(s) to, or replacement, re-enactment,
restatement or amendment of, that law or legislation or regulation and shall include the
rules and regulations thereunder; and

all terms and words used but not defined in this Scheme shall, unless repugnant or
contrary to the context or meaning thereof, have the same meaning ascribed to them
under the Act and other Applicable Laws, rules, regulations, byelaws, as the case may
be, or any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force.

DATE OF TAKING EFFECT AND OPERATIVE DATE

The Scheme set out herein in its present form or with any modification(s} approved or
imposed or directed by the NCLT or any other statutory authorities or in terms of this
Scheme shall take effect from the Appointed Date but shall be operative from the
Effective Date.

SEQUENCE OF EFFECTIVENESS OF THE SCHEME

Upon the Scheme becoming effective, with effect from the Appointed Date, Part 11
which provides for Demerger of the Demerged Undertaking I from Demerged
Company into Resulting Company 1, and Part 11T which provides for the Demerger of
the Demerged Undertaking 2 from Demerged Company into Resulting Company 2,
shall be operative simultaneously.

SHARE CAPITAL

The share capital of the Demerged Company as on December 31, 2023 is as under:

Particulars = [ Amount (Rs.)

Authorised Share Capltal - Rs 3 11 00 Ol ,000 (lndlan Rupees Three Hundred
Eleven Crores and One Thousand only) classified into:

111,00,01,000 Equity shares of Rs. 1 each [ 111,00,01,000




5.2

5.3

Particulars ' ' | Amount (Rs.)
10,00,00, 000 Ser[es A Compulsorlly Convertible Non 100,00,00,000
Cumulative Participatory Preference Shares of Rs. 10

each

10,00,00,000 Series B Compulsorily Convertible Non 100,00,00,000
Cumulative Participatory Preference Shares of Rs. 10

each

Total 311,00,01,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital

10,72,39,818 Equity shares of Rs. 1 each 10,72,39,818
Total 10,72,39,818

Subsequent to the above date and till the date of the Scheme being approved by the
Board of Directors of the Demerged Company, there has been no change in the
authorised, issued, subscribed and paid-up equity share capital of the Demerged
Company.

The share capital of the Resulting Company 1 as on December 31, 2023 is as under:

Particulars | Amount (Rs.)
Authorised Share Capltal
1,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 1/- each 1,00,000
Total 1,00,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital
1,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 1/- each 1,00,000
Total 1,00,000

Resulting Company 1 is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Demerged Company.
Subsequent to the above date and till the date of the Scheme being approved by the
Board of Directors of the Resulting Company 1, there has been no change in the
authorised, issued, subscribed and paid-up equity share capital of the Resulting
Company 1.

The share capltal of the Resultmg Company 2ason December 31,2023 is as under

 Particulars _ - | Amount (Rs.)
Authorised Share Capltal
1,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 1/- each 1,00,000
Total 1,00,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital




Particulars e | _ | Amount (Rs.)
1,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 1/- each 1,00,000
Total 1,00,000

Resulting Company 2 is a wholly owned subsidiary of Demerged Company.
Subsequent to the above date and till the date of the Scheme being approved by the
Board of Directors of the Resulting Company 2, there has been no change in the
authorised, issued, subscribed and paid-up equity share capital of the Resulting
Company 2.

Part Il - DEMERGER AND VESTING OF DEMERGED UNDERTAKING 1 OF
THE DEMERGED COMPANY INTO THE RESULTING COMPANY 1

6. DEMERGER AND VESTING OF THE DEMERGED UNDERTAKING 1

6.1  Upon the Scheme becoming effective and with effect from the Appointed Date and
subject to the provisions of this Scheme and pursuant to Section 230 to 232 of the Act
and Section 2(19AA) of the IT Act, the Demerged Undertaking 1 shall, without any
further act, instrument or deed, be transferred to, and be vested in or be deemed to have
been transferred to and vested in Resulting Company 1, as a going concern, so as to
become as and from the Appointed Date, the assets, liabilities, contracts, arrangements,
customer relationships, employees, permits, records, etc. of Resulting Company | by
virtue of operation of law and in the manner provided in this Scheme, subject to
subsisting charges, Encumbrances and pledges, if any.

6.2  In respect of such of the assets and properties forming part of the Demerged
Undertaking 1, including those which are acquired till the Effective Date, assets and
properties which are movable in nature, including cash in hand, or are otherwise capable
of transfer by delivery or possession or by endorsement, the same shall stand transferred
by the Demerged Company to Resulting Company 1 upon coming into effect of this
Scheme and shall, ipso facto and without any other order to this effect, become the
assets and properties of Resulting Company 1 without requiring any deed or instrument
of conveyance for transfer of the same, subject to subsisting charges, Encumbrances
and pledges, if any.

6.3  Subject to Clause 6.5 below, with respect to the assets of the Demerged Undertaking |

other than those referred to in Clause 6.2 above, including all rights, title and interests
in the agreements (including agreements for lease or license of the properties),
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6.4

6.5

investments in shares, mutual funds, bonds and any other securities, sundry debtors,
claims from customers or otherwise, outstanding loans and advances, if any,
recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received, if any, with any Appropriate
Authority, customers and other persons, whether or not the same is held in the name of
the Demerged Company, the same shall, without any further act, instrument or deed, be
transferred to and vested in and / or be deemed to be transferred to and vested in the
Resulting Company 1, with effect from the Appointed Date by operation of law as
transmission in favour of Resulting Company 1. With regard to the licenses of the
properties, Resulting Company | will enter into novation agreements, if it is so required.

The bank batances and deposits, if any, pertaining to the Demerged Undertaking 1 as
on the Appointed Date, shall be maintained in a separate bank account and the said
balance would be adjusted for any transactions undertaken in relation to the Demerged
Undertaking 1 by the Demerged Company upto the Effective Date. Further, the
balances in the aforesaid account as on the Effective Date shall, without any further act,
instrument or deed, be transferred to and vested in and / or be deemed to be transferred
to and vested in the Resulting Company 1.

In respect of such of the assets and properties forming part of the Demerged
Undertaking 1 which are immovable in nature, whether freehold or leasehold, and any
documents of title, rights, agreements to sell / agreements of sale and easements in
relation thereto, same shall stand transferred to and be vested in Resulting Company 1
with effect from the Appointed Date, without any act or deed done by the Demerged
Company or Resulting Company 1, and without any approval or acknowledgement of
any third party. With effect from the Appointed Date, the Resulting Company 1 shall
be entitled to exercise all rights and privileges and be liable to pay all taxes and charges
and fulfil all obligations, in relation to or applicable to such immovable properties. The
mutation / substitution of the title to such immovable properties shall be made and duly
recorded in the name of the Resulting Company 1 by the Appropriate Authority
pursuant to the sanction of the Scheme by the NCLT and in accordance with the terms
hereof. The Demerged Company shall take all steps as may be necessary to ensure that
lawful, peaceful, and unencumbered possession, right, title, interest of its immovable
property is given to the Resulting Company 1. Resuiting Company 1 may, if required
give notice in such form as it may deem fit and proper to each person, debtor or
depositee that pursuant to the Scheme, the said person, debtor or depositee should pay
the loan, debt or advance or make good the same or hold the same to its account and
that the right of the Resulting Company 1 to recover or realize the same is in substitution
of the right of the Demerged Company.




6.6  Notwithstanding anything contained in this Scheme, with respect to the immovable
properties comprised in the Demerged Undertaking 1 in the nature of land and buildings
situated in India, whether owned or leased, for the purpose of, inter alia, payment of
stamp duty and vesting in Resulting Company 1, if Resulting Company 1 so decides,
the Parties, whether before or after the Effective Date, may execute and register or cause
to be executed and registered, separate deeds of conveyance or deeds of assignment of
lease, as the case may be, in favour of Resulting Company 1 in respect of such
immovable properties. Each of the immovable properties, only for the purposes of the
payment of stamp duty (if required under Applicable Law), shall be deemed to be
conveyed at a value determined by the Appropriate Authority in accordance with the
applicable circle rates. The transfer of such immovable properties shall form an integral
part of this Scheme.

6.7  Upon the Scheme becoming effective and with effect from the Appointed Date, all
rights entitlements, licenses, applications and registrations relating to copyrights,
irademarks, service marks, brand names, logos, patents and other intellectual property
rights of every kind and description, whether registered or unregistered or pending
registration, and the goodwill arising therefrom, relatable to the Demerged Undertaking
1, if any, to which either the Demerged Company is a party or to the benefit of which
the Demerged Company may be / was eligible or entitled, shall become the rights,
entitlement or property of Resulting Company 1 and shall be enforceable by or against
Resulting Company 1, as fully and effectually as if, instead of Demerged Company,
Resulting Company 1 had been a party or beneficiary or obligee thereto or the holder
or owner thereof.

6.8  Upon the Scheme becoming effective and with effect from the Appointed Date:

6.8.1 The Demerged Company may, at its sole discretion but without being obliged fo, give
notice in such form as it may deem fit and proper, to such persons, as the case may be,
that any debt, receivable, bill, credit, loan, advance, debenture or deposit relating to the
Demerged Undertaking 1 stands transferred to and vested in Resulting Company 1 and
that appropriate modification should be made in their respective books / records to
reflect the aforesaid changes.

6.8.2 Subject to Clause 6.8.3, all liabilities relating to and comprised in the Demerged
Undertaking 1 including all secured and unsecured debts (whether in Indian rupees or
foreign currency), sundry creditors, liabilities (including contingent liabilities), duties
and obligations and undertakings of the Demerged Company of every kind, nature and
description whatsoever and howsoever arising, raised or incurred or utilised for its
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6.8.3

6.8.4

6.8.5
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business activities and operations of Demerged Undertaking 1, shall, stand transferred
to and vested in or deemed to be transferred to and vested in the Resulting Company 1.
To give effect to the foregoing, Demerged Company and Resulting Company 1 shall
execute all such deeds, documents, and instruments as may be required.

All the sanctioned limits with regards to bank guarantees and cash credit limits
pertaining to the Demerged Undertaking 1, as may be determined by the Board of the
Demerged Company and the Resulting Company 1 in consultation with the lenders of
the Demerged Company, shall, stand transferred to and vested in or deemed to be
transferred to and vested in the Resulting Company 1. The balance of the sanctioned
limits with regards to bank guarantees and cash credit of the Demerged Company, if
any, shall be the sanctioned limits for the Remaining Business of the Demerged
Company, To give effect to the foregoing, Demerged Company and Resulting
Company 1 shall execute all such deeds, documents and instruments as may be required
by respective lenders.

If the Demerged Company is entitled to any unutilised credits (including accumulated
losses and unabsorbed depreciation), benefits under the state or central fiscal /
investment incentive schemes and policies or concessions relating to the Demerged
Undertaking 1 under any Tax Laws or Applicable Law, Resulting Company 1 shall be
entitled, as an integral part of the Scheme, to claim such benefit or incentives or
unutilised credits as the case may be without any specific approval or permission.
Without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing, in respect of unutilised input
credits of goods and services tax of the Demerged Company, the portion which will be
attributed to the Demerged Undertaking | and be transferred to Resulting Company 1
shall be determined by the Board of the Demerged Company in accordance with the
Applicable Law.

Subject to Clause 24 and any other provisions of this Scheme, in respect of any refund,
benefit, incentive, grant or subsidy in relation to or in connection with the Demerged
Undertaking 1, the Demerged Company shall, if so required by Resulting Company 1,
issue notices in such form as Resulting Company 1 may deem fit and proper, stating
that pursuant to the NCLT having sanctioned this Scheme, the relevant refund, benefit,
incentive, grant or subsidy be paid or made good to or held on account of Resulting
Company 1, as the person entitled thereto, to the end and intent that the right of the
Demerged Company to recover or realise the same stands transfetred to Resulting
Company | and that appropriate entries should be passed in their respective books to
record the aforesaid changes.
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6.8.6

6.8.7

6.8.8

6.8.9

On and from the Effective Date, all cheques and other negotiable instruments and
payment orders received or presented for encashment which are in the name of the
Demerged Company and are in relation to or in connection with the Demerged
Undertaking 1, shall be accepted by the bankers of Resulting Company 1 and credited
to the account of Resulting Company 1, if and when presented by Resulting Company
1.

The Resulting Company 1 shall at any time upon the Scheme becoming effective and
in accordance with the provisions hereof, if so, required under any Applicable Law or
otherwise execute deeds of confirmation or other writings or arrangements with any
party to any contract or arrangement in relation to the Demerged Undertaking 1 to
which the Demerged Company has been a party, in order to give formal effect to the
above provisions.

Upon the Scheme becoming effective and with effect from the Appointed Date, in
relation to the assets forming part of the Demerged Undertaking 1, if any, separate
document is required for vesting of such assets in the Resulting Company 1, or which
the Demerged Company and/ or the Resulting Company 1 otherwise desire to be vested
separately, the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company 1 will execute such
deeds, documents or such other instruments, if any, as may be mutually agreed.

Upon the Scheme being effective, for the purpose of satisfying any eligibility criteria
including technical and/ or financial parameters for participating and qualifying in
invitations for expression of interest(s) and/ or bid(s) and/ or tender(s) of any nature
meant for any project(s) or contract(s) or work(s) or services or combination thereof,
related to the Demerged Undertaking 1, the Resulting Company 1 shall be entitled to
the benefit of all pre-qualification, track- record, experience, goodwill, and all other
rights, ¢laims and powers of whatsoever nature belonging to the Demerged Company
in connection with or pertaining or relatable to the Demerged Undertaking 1 for all
intents and purposes and specifically including but not limited to financial credentials
including the turnover, profitability, net-worth, technical expertise, market share,
project management experience, track record of having undertaken, performed and/or
executed the business and/or orders by the Demerged Company.

6.8.10 It is hereby clarified that if any assets of the Demerged Undertaking 1, cannot be

transferred to the Resulting Company 1 for any reason whatsoever, the Demerged
Company shall hold such asset in trust for the benefit of the Resulting Company 1 and
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7.1

72

7.3

7.4

forthwith seek to transfer such assets to the Resulting Company 1, upon receipt of
relevant consents and approvals required to effect such transfer.

ENCUMBRANCES

The transfer and vesting of the assets comprised in the business of the Demerged
Undertaking 1 of the Demerged Company, to and in the Resulting Company 1 under
Clause 6 of this Scheme shall be subject to the mortgages, Encumbrances and charges,
if any, affecting the same, as and to the extent hereinafter provided.

In so far as any Encumbrance in respect of liabilities relating to the Demerged
Undertaking 1 is concerned, such Encumbrance shall, be extended to, and shall continue
to operate over the assets comprised in the Demerged Undertaking 1 which have been
Encumbered in respect of the liabilities as transferred to Resulting Company | pursuant
to the Scheme.

All the existing securities, mortgages, charges, Encumbrances or liens, if any, created
by the Demerged Company till the Effective Date, over the assets comprised in the
business of the Demerged Undertaking 1 ofthe Demerged Company, or any part thereof
transferred to the Resulting Company 1 by virtue of this Scheme and in so far as such
Encumbrances secure or relate to liabilities of the Demerged Company, the same shall,
after the Effective Date, continue to relate and attach to such assets ot any part thereof
to which they are related or attached prior to the Effective Date and as are transferred
to the Resulting Company 1, and such Encumbrances shall not relate or attach to any
of the other assets of the Resulting Company 1.

In so far as the assets comprised in the Demerged Undertaking 1 are concerned, the
Encumbrance over such assets relating to any liabilities which are not transferred to the
Resulting Company | pursuant to this Scheme and which continue with the Demerged
Company shall without any further act, instrument or deed be released from such
Encumbrance and shall no longer be available as security in relation to such liabilities
with respect to the Demerged Company. Similarly, the Encumbrance created over the
assets relating to the Remaining Business of the Demerged Company to secure any
liabilities which are being transferred to the Resulting Company 1 pursuant to this
Scheme, shall without any further act, instrument or deed be released from such
Encumbrance and shall no longer be available as security in relation to such liabilities
with respect to the Demerged Company.

FaWATE (s
QU 7 AN
b Nen
t | |
I X iII
L 1



7.5

7.6

7.7

7.8

7.9
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provided by the Demerged Company under:

a) financial assistance sanctioned, as on the date of approval of this Scheme by the
Board of the Demerged Company, and

b) any enhancement of the above existing sanctioned financial assistance, after the
date of approval of this Scheme by the Board of the Demerged Company,

in favour of the banks and/or financial institutions for existing or enhanced financial
assistance provided / to be provided to the existing subsidiaries and / or joint venture
entities of the Demerged Company in relation to the Non-Container Business and
Container Retained Business will continue to be in effect, upon effectiveness of the
Scheme (*Undertakings / Guarantees of Remaining Business”).

Further, upon the Scheme becoming effective, the Resulting Company 1 will also
provide sponsor support undertakings, and / or the corporate guarantees similar to the
Undertakings / Guarantees of Remaining Business (“Additional Undertakings /
Guarantees of Remaining Business”) in favour of banks and/or financial institutions
in relation to the financial assistance referred in clause 7.5.

The Additional Undertakings / Guarantees of Remaining Business shall be in effect for
a term of 3 (three) years from the Effective Date, on the same terms and conditions, to
the extent applicable, as set out in the Undertakings / Guarantees of Remaining
Business. Accordingly, the Additional Undertakings / Guarantees of Remaining
Business shall automatically cease to be in effect on the expiry of 3 (three) years from
the Effective Date.

In the event the Demerged Company does not fulfil its obligations under the
Undertakings / Guarantees of Remaining Business within a period of 15 (fifteen)
business days of any request / demand received from the banks and / or financial
institutions, as the case may be, then, the banks and / or financial institutions shall be
entitled to exercise their rights against Resulting Company 1 in accordance with the
terms of such Additional Undertakings / Guarantees of Remaining Business.

All the existing undertakings, indemnities, guarantees and other contractual comforts
(including sponsor support undertakings and / or corporate guarantees) provided by the
Demerged Company ot the promoters of the Demerged Company, in relation to
Demerged Undertaking 1, to secure financial assistance availed by the Demerged




7.10

7.11

7.12

7.13

Company or any of the Identified Container SPVs, shall stand discharged on and from
the Effective Date. The Resulting Company 1 and / or the shareholders of the Resulting
Company 1 shall provide such undertakings, indemnities, guarantees and other
contractual comforts (including new sponsor support undertakings and / or corporate
guarantees (“New Undertakings/Guarantees of Identified Container Business™) as
were provided earlier by the Demerged Company (that stand discharged from the
Effective Date) in relation to Demerged Undertaking 1.

Further, upon the Scheme becoming effective, the Demerged Company will also
provide sponsor support undertakings, and / or the corporate guarantees similar to the
New Undertakings/Guarantees of Identified Container Business (“Additional
Undertakings / Guarantees of Identified Container Business”) in favour of banks
and/or financial institutions in relation to the financial assistance referred in clause 7.9.

The Additional Undertakings / Guarantees of Identified Container Business shall be in
effect for a term of 3 (three) years from the Effective Date, on the same terms and
conditions, to the extent applicable, as set out in the New Undertakings / Guarantees of
Identified Container Business. Accordingly, the Additional Undertakings / Guarantees
of Identified Container Business shall automatically cease to be in effect on the expiry
of 3 (three) years from the Effective Date.

In the event the Resulting Company 1 does not fulfil its obligations under the New
Undertakings / Guarantees of Identified Container Business within a period of 15
(fifteen) business days of any request / demand received from the banks and / or
financial institutions, as the case may be, then, the banks and/or financial institutions
shall be entitled to exercise their rights against Demerged Company in accordance with
the terms of such Additional Undertakings / Guarantees of Identified Container
Business.

It is expressly provided that, no other term or condition of the liabilities transferred to
the Resulting Company 1 is modified by virtue of this Scheme except to the extent that
such amendment is required statutorily or to the extent guarantees / undertakings are
replaced or otherwise by necessary implication.

CONTRACTS, DEEDS AND OTHER INSTRUMENTS

Upon the Scheme becoming effective and subject to the provisions of this Scheme, all
contracts, including contracts for tenancies and licenses, deeds, bonds, agreements,
incentives, benefits, exemptions, entitlements, arrangements, escrow arrangements and
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8.2

8.3

8.4

the Demerged Company is a party or to the benefit of which the Demerged Company
may be eligible and which are subsisting or having effect immediately before the
Effective Date, shall be in fuil force and effect on or against or in favour, as the case
may be, of the Resulting Company 1 and may be enforced as fully and effectually as if,
instead of the Demerged Company, the Resulting Company 1 had been a party or
beneficiary or obligee thereto.

The Resulting Company 1 may, at any time after coming into effect of this Scheme in
accordance with the provisions hereof, if so required, under any law or otherwise,
execute deeds, confirmations or other writings, confirmations or novations or tripartite
arrangements with any party to any contract or arrangements to which the Demerged
Company is a party or any writings as may be necessary to be executed in order to give
formal effect to the above provisions.

It is hereby clarified that if any contracts, deeds, bonds, agreements, schemes,
arrangements, or other instruments of whatsoever nature in relation to the Demerged
Undertaking 1 to which the Demerged Company is a party, cannot be transferred to the
Resulting Company 1 for any reason whatsoever, the Demerged Company shall hold
such contract, deeds, bonds, agreements, schemes, arrangements, or other instruments
of whatsoever nature in trust for the benefit of the Resulting Company 1.

Upon the Scheme becoming effective and with effect from Appointed Date, all
consents, agreements, permissions, ail statutory or regulatory licenses, certificates,
insurance covers, clearances, authorities and power of attorney given by, issued to or
executed in favour of the Demerged Company in relation to the Demerged Undertaking
1, shall stand transferred to the Resulting Company 1 in accordance with Applicable
Laws, as if the same were originally given by, issued to or executed in favour of the
Resulting Company 1, and the Resulting Company 1 shall be bound by the terms
thereof, the obligations and duties thereunder, and the rights and benefits under the same
shall be available to the Resulting Company 1. In so far as the various incentives,
subsidies, schemes, special status and other benefits or privileges enjoyed, granted by
any governmental body, local authority, or by any other person, or availed by the
Demerged Company in relation to the Demerged Undertaking 1 are concerned, the same
shall vest with and be available to the Resulting Company 1 on the same terms and
conditions as applicable to the Demerged Company, as if the same had been allotted
and/ or granted and/ or sanctioned and/ or allowed to the Resulting Company 1.
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8.5 It is hereby clarified that if any consents, agreements, permissions, all statutory or
regulatory licenses, certificates, insurance covers, clearances, authorities and power of
attorney given by, issued to or executed in favour of the Demerged Company in relation
to the Demerged Undertaking 1 to which the Demerged Company is a party, cannot be
transferred to the Resulting Company 1 for any reason whatsoever, the Demerged
Company shall hold such consents, agreements, permissions, all statutory or regulatory
licenses, certificates, insurance covers, clearances, authorities and power of attorney, or
other instruments of whatsoever nature in trust for the benefit of the Resulting Company
1.

O STAFF, WORKMEN AND EMPLOYEES

9.1  Uponthe Scheme becoming effective and with effect from the Effective Date, Resulting
Company 1 undertakes to engage, without any interruption in service, all staff,
workmen and employees engaged in or in relation to the Demerged Undertaking 1, on
terms and conditions no less favourable than those on which they are engaged by the
Demerged Company. Resulting Company 1 undertakes to continue to abide by any
agreement / settlement or arrangement entered into or deemed to have been entered into
by the Demerged Company with any of the aforesaid staff, workmen and employees or
union representing them. Resulting Company 1 agrees that the services of all such staff,
workmen and employees of the Demerged Company prior to the demerger shall be
taken into account for the purposes of all existing benefits to which the said staff,
workmen and employees may be eligible, including for the purpose of payment of any
retrenchment compensation, gratuity and other retiral / terminal benefits. The decision
on whether or not a staff, workmen or employee is part of the Demerged Undertaking
1 shall be decided by the Board of Directors of Demerged Company, and such decision
shall be final and binding on all concerned Parties.

9.2  The accumulated balances, if any, standing to the credit of the aforesaid staff, workmen
and employees in the existing provident fund, gratuity fund and superannuation fund of
which they are members, as the case may be, will be transferred respectively to such
provident fund, gratuity fund and superannuation funds nominated by Resulting
Company 1 and/or such new provident fund, gratuity fund and superannuation fund to
be established in accordance with Applicable Law and caused to be recognised by the
Appropriate Authorities, by Resulting Company 1. Pending the transfer as aforesaid,
the provident fund, gratuity fund and superannuation fund dues of the said staff,
workmen and employees would be continued to be deposited in the existing provident
fund, gratuity fund and superannuation fund respectively of the Demerged Company.
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9.3  Witheffect from the date of filing of the Scheme with the NCLT and up to and including
the Effective Date, the Demerged Company shall not vary the terms and conditions of
employment of any of the staff, workmen and employees pertaining to the Demerged
Undertaking 1 except in the ordinary course of business or without the prior consent of
the Board of Directors of Resulting Company 1 or pursuant to any pre-existing
obligation undertaken by the Demerged Company.

10. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

10.1  Upon the Scheme becoming effective, all legal or other proceedings (including before
any statutory or quasi-judicial authority or tribunal) (“Proceedings™) by or against the
Demerged Company under any statute, pending on the Appointed Date, relating to the
Demerged Undertaking 1, shall be continued, and enforced by or against the Resulting
Company | after the Effective Date, to the extent legally permissible. To the extent such
Proceedings cannot be taken over by the Resulting Company 1, the Proceedings shall
be pursued / defended by the Demerged Company as per the instructions of and entirely
at the costs and expenses of the Resulting Company 1. In the event that such liability is
incurred or such claim, or demand is made upon the Demerged Company pertaining to
the Demerged Undertaking 1, then the Resulting Company 1 shall reimburse and
indemnify the Demerged Company for any payments made in relation to the same. The
Demerged Company and the Resulting Company 1 shall take appropriate steps in the
respective court or forum of the Proceedings before which they are pending to
appropriately substitute the name of the plaintiff, defendant, petitioner, respondent or
other in the cause title respectively from that of the Demerged Company to the name of
the Resulting Company 1, on due approval or sanction of such court or forum as
appropriate.

10.2  Any proceedings by or against the Demerged Company under any statute, pending on
the Appointed Date, whether or not in respect of any matter arising before the Effective
Date relating to the Remaining Business (including those relating to any property, right,
power, liability, obligation, or duties of the Demerged Company in respect of the
Remaining Business) shall be continued and enforced by or against the Demerged
Company. The Resulting Company 1 shall in no event be responsible or liable for or in
relation to any such Proceeding by or against the Demerged Company.

11.  CONSIDERATION

11.1  Upon the Scheme becoming effective and in consideration of the transfer and vesting
of the Demerged Undertaking I of Demerged Company with the Resulting Company 1
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11.2

11.3

11.4

11.5

pursuant to this Scheme and subject to the provisions of this Scheme, the Resulting
Company 1 shall, without any further application, act, deed, consent or instrument, issue
and allot, on a proportionate basis, to each shareholder of the Demerged Company,
whose name is recorded in the register of members as member of the Demerged
Company as on the Record Date 1, as follows:

“] (one) Equity Share of J M Baxi Container of Re. 1 (Rupee One) each, credited as
fully paid up, for every I (one) fully paid-up equity share of Re. 1 (Rupee One) each of
J M Baxi held by such shareholders.”

The Equity Shares of Resulting Company 1 to be issued and allotted pursuant to the
demerger of the Demerged Undertaking 1 into the Resulting Company 1 under this
Scheme shall be subject to the provisions of the memorandum of association and articles
of association of Resulting Company 1 and shall rank pari passu in all respects with any
existing Equity Shares of the Resulting Company 1, if any, after the Effective Date
including as regards entitlement to dividends and other distributions and repayment of
capital declared or paid on or after the Effective Date, and voting and other rights
attached to the Equity Shares of Resulting Company 1.

Subject to Applicable Law, the Equity Shares of Resulting Company 1 that are to be
issued in terms of this Scheme shall be issued in dematerialized form. The register of
equity shareholders and/ or, other relevant records, whether in physical or electronic
form, maintained by the Resulting Company 1, the relevant depository in terms of
Applicable Law shall (as deemed necessary by the Board of the Resulting Company 1}
be updated to reflect the issue of the Equity Shares of Resulting Company 1 in terms of
this Scheme.

In the event of there being any pending share transfers, whether lodged or outstanding,
of any shareholder of the Demerged Company, the Board of the Resulting Company 1
shall be empowered in appropriate cases, prior to or even subsequent to the Record Date
1, to effectuate such a transfer as if such changes in the registered holder were operative
as on the Record Date 1, in order to remove any difficulties arising to the transferor or
transferee of Equity Shares in the Demerged Company, after the effectiveness of this
Scheme.

The Equity Shares of Resulting Company 1 to be issued pursuant to this Scheme in
respect of any Equity Shares of Demerged Company which are held in abeyance under
the provisions of Section 126 of the Act or otherwise, shall, pending allotment or
settlement of dispute by order of court or otherwise, be held in abeyance.




11.6

11.7

11.8

12.

12.1

Notwithstanding anything contained in the Scheme and subject to Applicable Law, until
the Scheme becomes effective, the Resulting Company 1 is hereby permitted to issue
shares, and, or, convertible instruments or any combination thereof including optionally
convertible instruments on such terms and conditions as maybe approved by the Board
of Directors of the Resulting Company 1, to the Demerged Company, for the efficient
functioning of the business of the Resulting Company 1, to the end and intent that such
issuance shall not affect the consideration as set out in clause 11.1 above, and do all
such acts, deed and things as may be necessary to effect the foregoing including but not
limited to increase, reclassify and/or restructure its authorised share capital in such
manner and by such amount as may be necessary.

If necessary, the Resulting Company 1 shall before issue and allotment of the Equity
Shares of Resulting Company 1 in term of the Scheme, increase, reclassify, and/or
restructure its authorised share capital in such manner and by such amount as may be
necessary to satisfy its obligation under the provisions of the Scheme in compliance
with the applicable provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder.

The issue and allotment of the Equity Shares of Resulting Company 1 is an integral part
hereof and shall be deemed to have been carried out under the orders passed by the
Tribunal without requiring any further act on the part of the Resulting Company 1 or
the Demerged Company or their shareholders and as if the procedure laid down under
the Act, including Sections 42 and 62 of the Act and other relevant and applicable
provisions of the Act for the issue and allotment of Equity Shares of Resulting Company
1 to the shareholders of Demerged Company, and such other Applicable Law as may
be applicable, were duly complied with. 1t is clarified that the approval of the members
of the Resulting Company 1 to this Scheme, shall be deemed to be their
consent/approval for the issue and allotment of Equity Shares of Resulting Company |
under the applicable provisions of the Act.

ACCOUNTING TREATMENT IN THE BOOKS OF DEMERGED COMPANY

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, the demerger of the
Demerged Undertaking 1 from the Demerged Company to the Resulting Company 1
shall be accounted for, in the books of the Demerged Company, in accordance with
Appendix A of Ind AS 10 ‘Distribution of Non-Cash Assets to Owners’ and other
applicable Ind AS as notified in the Ind AS Rules as follows:
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12.1.1 The Demerged Company shall recognise a liability to distribute non cash assets
to its owners measured at the fair value of the business of Demerged
Undertaking 1 with a corresponding debit to the other equity as follows: (a)
debiting the securities premium account to the extent of carrying value of net
assets (carrying value of assets minus carrying value of liabilities of Demerged
Undertaking 1) and (b) the balance amount (fair value of the business of
Demerged Undertaking 1 minus carrying value of net assets of Demerged
Undertaking 1) shall be debited against the retained earnings of the Demerged
Company.

12.1.2 On settlement of distribution liability, the Demerged Company shall
derecognise from its books of accounts, the carrying amount of assets and
liabilities pertaining to the Demerged Undertaking 1, transferred to the
Resulting Company 1, in accordance with the provisions of this Scheme.

12.1.3 The difference between carrying amount of distribution liability settled (clause
12,1.1) and carrying amount of the assets and liabilities of Demerged
Undertaking 1 derecognised (clause 12.1.2), if any, shall be recognised in the
statement of profit and loss of the Demerged Company.

13. ACCOUNTING TREATMENT IN THE BOOKS OF RESULTING COMPANY
1

13.1 Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, the Resulting Company 1
will account for the acquisition of Demerged Undertaking 1 by applying the guidance
prescribed in Indian Accounting Standard 103 - Business Combinations and other
applicable Ind AS.

Part II1 - DEMERGER AND VESTING OF DEMERGED UNDERTAKING 2 OF
THE DEMERGED COMPANY INTO THE RESULTING COMPANY 2

14.  DEMERGER AND VESTING OF THE DEMERGED UNDERTAKING 2

14.1 Upon the Scheme becoming effective and with effect from the Appointed Date and
subject to the provisions of this Scheme and pursuant to Section 230 to 232 of the Act
and Section 2(19AA) of the IT Act, the Demerged Undertaking 2 shall, without any
further act, instrument or deed, be transferred to, and be vested in or be deemed to have
been transferred to and vested in Resulting Company 2, as a going concern, so as to
become as and from the Appointed Date, the assets, liabilities, contracts, arrangements,
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14.3

14.4

14.5
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customer relationships, employees, permits, records, etc. of Resulting Company 2 by
virtue of operation of law and in the manner provided in this Scheme, subject to
subsisting charges, Encumbrances and pledges, if any.

In respect of such of the assets and properties forming part of the Demerged
Undertaking 2, including those which are acquired till the Effective Date, assets and
properties which are movable in nature, including cash in hand or are otherwise capable
of transfer by delivery or possession or by endorsement, the same shall stand transferred
by the Demerged Company to Resulting Company 2 upon coming into effect of this
Scheme and shall, ipso facto and without any other order fo this effect, become the
assets and properties of Resulting Company 2 without requiring any deed or instrument
of conveyance for transfer of the same, subject to subsisting charges, Encumbrances
and pledges, if any.

Subject to Clause 14.5 below, with respect to the assets of the Demerged Undertaking
2 other than those referred to in Clause 14.2 above, including all rights, title and
interests in the agreements (including agreements for lease or license of the properties),
investments in shares, mutual funds, bonds and any other securities, sundry debtors,
claims from customers or otherwise, outstanding loans and advances, if any,
recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received, if any, with any Appropriate
Authority, customers and other persons, whether or not the same is held in the name of
the Demerged Company, the same shall, without any further act, instrument or deed, be
transferred to and vested in and / or be deemed to be transferred to and vesied in the
Resulting Company 2, with effect from the Appointed Date by operation of law as
transmission in favour of Resulting Company. With regard to the licenses of the
properties, Resulting Company 2 will enter into novation agreements if it is so required.

The bank balances and deposits, if any, pertaining to the Demerged Undertaking 2 as
on the Appointed Date, shall be maintained in a separate bank account and the said
balance would be adjusted for any transactions undertaken in relation to the Demerged
Undertaking 2 by the Demerged Company upto the Effective Date. Further, the
balances in the aforesaid account as on the Effective Date shall, without any further act,
instrument or deed, be transferred to and vested in and / or be deemed to be transferred
to and vested in the Resulting Company 2.

In respect of such of the assets and properties forming part of the Demerged
Undertaking 2 which are immovable in nature, whether freehold or leasehold, and any
documents of title, rights, agreements to sell / agreements of sale and easements in
relation thereto, same shall stand transferred to and be vested in Resulting Company 2
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14.7

with effect from the Appointed Date, without any act or deed done by the Demerged
Company or Resulting Company 2, and without any approval or acknowledgement of
any third party. With effect from the Appointed Date, the Resulting Company 2 shall
be entitled to exercise all rights and privileges and be liable to pay all taxes and charges
and fulfil all obligations, in relation to or applicable to such immovable properties. The
mutation/ substitution of the title to such immovable properties shall be made and duly
recorded in the name of the Resulting Company 2 by the Appropriate Authority
pursuant to the sanction of the Scheme by the NCLT and in accordance with the terms
hereof. The Demerged Company shall take all steps as may be necessary to ensure that
lawful, peaceful, and unencumbered possession, right, title, interest of its immovable
property is given to the Resulting Company 2. Resulting Company 2 may, if required
give notice in such form, as it may deem fit and proper to each person, debtor or
depositee that pursuant to the Scheme, the said person, debtor or depositee should pay
the loan, debt or advance or hold the same to its account and that the right of the
Resulting Company 2 to recover or realise the same is in substitution of the right of the
Demerged Company.

Notwithstanding anything contained in this Scheme, with respect to the immovable
properties comprised in the Demerged Undertaking 2 in the nature of land and buildings
situated in India, whether owned or leased, for the purpose of, inter alia, payment of
stamp duty and vesting in Resulting Company 2, if Resulting Company 2 so decides,
the Parties, whether before or after the Effective Date, may execute and register or cause
to be executed and registered, separate deeds of conveyance or deeds of assignment of
lease, as the case may be, in favour of Resulting Company 2 in respect of such
immovable properties. Each of the immovable properties, only for the purposes of the
payment of stamp duty (if required under Applicable Law), shall be deemed to be
conveyed at a value determined by the Appropriate Authority in accordance with the
applicable circle rates. The transfer of such immovable properties shall form an integral
part of this Scheme.

Upon the Scheme becoming effective and with effect from the Appointed Date, all
rights entitlements, licenses, applications and registrations relating to copyrights,
trademarks, service marks, brand names, logos, patents and other intellectual property
rights of every kind and description, whether registered or unregistered or pending
registration, and the goodwill arising therefrom, relatable to the Demerged Undertaking
2, if any, to which either the Demerged Company is a party or to the benefit of which
the Demerged Company may be / was eligible or entitled, shall become the rights,
entitlement or property of Resulting Company 2 and shall be enforceable by or against
Resulting Company 2, as fully and effectually as if, instead of the Demerged Company,
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14.8.1

14.8.2

14.8.3

14.8.4
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Resulting Company 2 had been a party or beneficiary or obligee thereto or the holder
or owner thereof.

Upon the Scheme becoming effective and with effect from the Appointed Date:

The Demerged Company may, at its sole discretion but without being obliged to, give
notice in such form as it may deem fit and proper, to such persons, as the case may be,
that any debt, receivable, bill, credit, loan, advance, debenture or deposit relating to the
Demerged Undertaking 2 stands transferred to and vested in Resulting Company 2 and
that appropriate modification should be made in their respective books / records to
reflect the aforesaid changes.

All liabilities relating to and comprised in the Demerged Undertaking 2 including all
secured and unsecured debts (whether in Indian rupees or foreign currency), sundry
creditors, liabilities (including contingent liabilities), duties and obligations and
undertakings of the Demerged Company of every kind, nature and description
whatsoever and howsoever arising, raised or incurred or utilised for its business
activities and operations of Demerged Undertaking 2, shall, stand transferred to and
vested in or deemed to be transferred to and vested in the Resulting Company 2, without
any further act, instrument, deed, matter or thing. All such loans and debts shall be
secured only by an Encumbrance over the assets of the Resulting Company 2 in the
manner as set out in Clause 15 of this Scheme. Any and all charges created over the
assets of the Demerged Company in relation to such debts or loans shall stand
discharged.

If the Demerged Company is entitled to any unutilised credits (including accumulated
losses and unabsorbed depreciation), benefits under the state or central fiscal /
investment incentive schemes and policies or concessions relating to the Demerged
Undertaking 2 under any tax law or Applicable Law, Resulting Company 2 shall be
entitled, as an integral part of the Scheme, to claim such unutilised credits without any
specific approval or permission. Without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing,
in respect of unutilised input credits of goods and service tax of the Demerged
Company, the portion which will be attributed to the Demerged Undertaking 2 and be
transferred to Resulting Company 2 shall be determined by the Board of the Demerged
Company in accordance with the Applicable Law.

Subject to Clause 24 and any other provisions of this Scheme, in respect of any refund,
benefit, incentive, grant or subsidy in relation to or in connection with the Demerged
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14.8.5

14.8.6

14.8.7

14.8.8

Undertaking 2, the Demerged Company shall, if so required by Resulting Company 2,
issue notices in such form as Resulting Company 2 may deem fit and proper, stating
that pursuant to the NCLT having sanctioned this Scheme, the relevant refund, benefit,
incentive, grant or subsidy be paid or made good to or held on account of Resulting
Company 2, as the person entitled thereto, to the end and intent that the right of the
Demerged Company to recover or realise the same stands transferred to Resulting
Company 2 and that appropriate entries should be passed in their respective books to
record the aforesaid changes.

On and from the Effective Date, all cheques and other negotiable instruments and
payment orders received or presented for encashment which are in the name of the
Demerged Company and are in relation to or in connection with the Demerged
Undertaking 2, shall be accepted by the bankers of Resulting Company 2 and credited

to the account of Resulting Company 2, if and when presented by Resulting Company
2.

The Resulting Company 2 shall at any time upon the Scheme becoming effective and
in accordance with the provisions hereof, if so, required under any Applicable Law or
otherwise execute deeds of confirmation or other writings or arrangements with any
party to any contract or arrangement in relation to the Demerged Undertaking 2 to
which the Demerged Company has been a party, in order to give formal effect to the
above provisions.

Upon the Scheme becoming effective and with effect from Appointed Date, in relation
to the assets forming part of the Demerged Undertaking 2, if any, separate document is
required for vesting of such assets in the Resulting Company 2, or which the Demerged
Company and/ or the Resulting Company 2 otherwise desire to be vested separately,
the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company 2 will execute such deeds,
documents or such other instruments, if any, as may be mutually agreed.

It is hereby clarified that if any assets of the Demerged Undertaking 2, cannot be
transferred to the Resulting Company 2 for any reason whatsoever, the Demerged
Company shall hold such asset in trust for the benefit of the Resulting Company 2 and
forthwith seek to transfer such assets to the Resulting Company 2, upon receipt of
relevant consents and approvals required to effect such transfer.

ENCUMBRANCES
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The transfer and vesting of the assets comprised in the business of the Demerged
Undertaking 2 of the Demerged Company, to and in the Resulting Company 2 under
Clause 14 of this Scheme shall be subject to the mortgages, Encumbrances and charges,
if any, affecting the same, as and to the extent hereinafter provided.

In so far as any Encumbrance in respect of liabilities relating to the Demerged
Undertaking 2 is concerned, such Encumbrance shall, be extended to, and shall continue
to operate only over the assets comprised in the Demerged Undertaking 2 which have
been Encumbered in respect of the liabilities as transferred to Resulting Company 2
pursuant to the Scheme.

All the existing securities, mortgages, charges, Encumbrances or liens, if any, created
by the Demerged Company till the Effective Date, over the assets comprised in the
business of the Demerged Undertaking 2 of the Demerged Company, or any part thereof
transferred to the Resulting Company 2 by virtue of this Scheme and in so far as such
Encumbrances secure or relate to liabilities of the Demerged Company, the same shall,
after the Effective Date, continue to relate and attach to such assets or any part thereof
to which they are related or attached prior to the Effective Date and as are transferred
to the Resulting Company 2, and such Encumbrances shall not relate or attach to any
of the other assets of the Resulting Company 2.

In so far as the assets comprised in the Demerged Undertaking 2 are concerned, the
Encumbrance over such assets relating to any liabilities which are not transferred to the
Resulting Company 2 pursuant to this Scheme and which continue with the Demerged
Company shall without any further act, instrument or deed be released from such
Encumbrance and shall no longer be available as security in relation to such liabilities
with respect to the Demerged Company. Similarly, the Encumbrance created over the
assets relating to the Remaining Business of the Demerged Company to secure any
liabilities which are being transferred to the Resulting Company 2 pursuant to this
Scheme, shall without any further act, instrument or deed be released from such
Encumbrance and shall no longer be available as security in relation to such liabilities
with respect to the Demerged Company.

It is expressly provided that, no other term or condition of the liabilities transferred to
the Resulting Company 2 is modified by virtue of this Scheme except to the extent that
such amendment is required statutorily or to the extent guarantees are replaced or
otherwise by necessary implication.

CONTRACTS, DEEDS AND OTHER INSTRUMENTS
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16.1

16.2

16.3

16.4

Upon the Scheme becoming effective and subject to the provisions of this Scheme, all
contracts, including contracts for tenancies and licenses, deeds, bonds, agreements,
incentives, benefits, exemptions, entitlements, arrangements, escrow arrangements and
other instruments of whatsoever nature in relation to Demerged Undertaking 2 to which
the Demerged Company is a party or to the benefit of which the Demerged Company
may be eligible and which are subsisting or having effect immediately before the
Effective Date, shall be in full force and effect on or against or in favour, as the case
may be, of the Resulting Company 2 and may be enforced as fully and effectually as if,
instead of the Demerged Company, the Resulting Company 2 had been a party or
beneficiary or obligee thereto.

The Resulting Company 2 may, at any time after coming inio effect of this Scheme in
accordance with the provisions hereof, if so required, under any law or otherwise,
execute deeds, confirmations or other writings, confirmations or novations or tripartite
arrangements with any party to any contract or arrangements to which the Demerged
Company is a party or any writings as may be necessary to be executed in order to give
formal effect to the above provisions.

It is hereby clarified that if any contract, deeds, bonds, agreements, schemes,
arrangements, ot other instruments of whatsoever nature in relation to the Demerged
Undertaking 2 to which the Demerged Company is a party, cannot be transferred to the
Resulting Company 2 for any reason whatsoever, the Demerged Company shall hold
such contract, deeds, bonds, agreements, schemes, arrangements, or other instruments
of whatsoever nature in trust for the benefit of the Resulting Company 2.

Upon the Scheme becoming effective and with effect from Appointed Date, all
consents, agreements, permissions, all statutory or regulatory licenses, certificates,
insurance covers, clearances, authorities and power of attorney given by, issued to or
executed in favour of the Demerged Company in relation to the Demerged Undertaking
2, shall stand transferred to the Resulting Company 2 in accordance with Applicable
Laws, as if the same were originally given by, issued to or executed in favour of the
Resulting Company 2, and the Resulting Company 2 shall be bound by the terms
thereof, the obligations and duties thereunder, and the rights and benefits under the same
shall be available to the Resulting Company 2. In so far as the various incentives,
subsidies, schemes, special status and other benefits or privileges enjoyed, granted by
any governmental body, local authority, or by any other person, or availed by the
Demerged Company in relation to the Demerged Undertaking 2 are concerned, the same
shall vest with and be available to the Resulting Company 2 on the same terms and
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17.

17.1

17.2

conditions as applicable to the Demerged Company, as if the same had been allotted
and/ or granted and/ or sanctioned and/ or allowed to the Resulting Company 2.

It is hereby clarified that if any consents, agreements, permissions, all statutory or
regulatory licenses, certificates, insurance covers, clearances, authorities and power of
attorney given by, issued to or executed in favour of the Demerged Company in relation
to the Demerged Undertaking 2 to which the Demerged Company is a party, cannot be
transferred to the Resulting Company 2 for any reason whatsoever, the Demerged
Company shall hold such consents, agreements, permissions, all statutory or regulatory
licenses, certificates, insurance covers, clearances, authorities and power of attorney, or
other instruments of whatsoever nature in trust for the benefit of the Resulting Company
2,

STAFF, WORKMEN AND EMPLOYEES

Upon the Scheme becoming effective and with effect from the Effective Date, Resulting
Company 2 undertakes to engage, without any interruption in service, all staff,
workmen and employees engaged in or in relation to the Demerged Undertaking 2, on
terms and conditions no less favourable than those on which they are engaged by the
Demerged Company. Resulting Company 2 undertakes to continue to abide by any
agreement / settlement or arrangement entered into or deemed to have been entered into
by the Demerged Company with any of the aforesaid staff, workmen and employees or
union representing them. Resulting Company 2 agrees that the services of all such staff,
workmen and employees of the Demerged Company prior to the demerger shall be
taken into account for the purposes of all existing benefits to which the said staff,
workmen and employees may be eligible, including for the purpose of payment of any
retrenchment compensation, gratuity and other retiral / terminal benefits. The decision
on whether or not a staff, workmen or employee is part of the Demerged Undertaking
2 shall be decided by the Board of Directors of Demerged Company, and such decision
shall be final and binding on all concerned Parties.

The accumulated balances, if any, standing to the credit of the aforesaid staff, workmen
and employees in the existing provident fund, gratuity fund and superannuation fund of
which they are members, as the case may be, will be transferred respectively to such
provident fund, gratuity fund and superannuation funds nominated by Resulting
Company 2 and/or such new provident fund, gratuity fund and superannuation fund to
be established in accordance with Applicable Law and caused to be recognised by the
Appropriate Authorities, by Resulting Company 2. Pending the transfer as aforesaid,
the provident fund, gratuity fund and superannuation fund dues of the said staff,
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workmen and employees would be continued to be deposited in the existing provident
fund, gratuity fund and superannuation fund respectively of the Demerged Company.

With effect from the date of filing of the Scheme with the NCLT and up to and including
the Effective Date, the Demerged Company shall not vary the terms and conditions of
employment of any of the staff, workmen and employees pertaining to the Demerged
Undertaking 2 except in the ordinary course of business or without the prior consent of
the Board of Directors of Resulting Company 2 or pursuant to any pre-existing
obligation undertaken by the Demerged Company.

LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

Upon the Scheme becoming effective, all legal or other proceedings (including before
any statutory or quasi-judicial authority or tribunal) (“Proceedings™) by or against the
Demerged Company under any statute, pending on the Appointed Date, relating to the
Demerged Undertaking 2, shall be continued, and enforced by or against the Resulting
Company 2 after the Effective Date, to the extent legally permissible. To the extent such
Proceedings cannot be taken over by the Resulting Company 2, the Proceedings shall
be pursued/ defended by the Demerged Company as per the instructions of and entirely
at the costs and expenses of the Resulting Company 2. In the event that such liability is
incurred or such claim, or demand is made upon the Demerged Company pertaining to
the Demerged Undertaking 2, then the Resulting Company 2 shall reimburse and
indemnify the Demerged Company for any payments made in relation to the same. The
Demerged Company and the Resulting Company 2 shall take appropriate steps in the
respective court or forum of the Proceedings before which they are pending to
appropriately substitute the name of the plaintiff, defendant, petitioner, respondent or
other in the cause title respectively from that of the Demerged Company to the name of
the Resulting Company 2, on due approval or sanction of such court or forum as
appropriate.

Any proceedings by or against the Demerged Company under any statute, pending on
the Appointed Date, whether or not in respect of any matter arising before the Effective
Date relating to the Remaining Business (including those relating to any property, right,
power, liability, obligation, or duties of the Demerged Company in respect of the
Remaining Business) shall be continued and enforced by or against the Demerged
Company. The Resulting Company 2 shall in no event be responsible or liable for or in
relation to any such Proceeding by or against the Demerged Company.

CONSIDERATION




19.1  Upon the Scheme becoming effective and in consideration of the transfer and vesting
of the Demerged Undertaking 2 of Demerged Company with the Resulting Company 2
pursuant to this Scheme and subject to the provisions of this Scheme, the Resulting
Company 2 shall, without any further application, act, deed, consent or instrument, issue
and allot, on a proportionate basis, to each sharcholder of the Demerged Company,
whose name is recorded in the register of members as member of the Demerged
Company as on the Record Date 2, as follows:

“1 (one) Equity Shave of J M Baxi Dev Co of Re. 1 (Rupee One) each, credited as fully
paid up, for every 1 (one) fully paid-up equity share of Re. 1 (Rupee One) each of J M
Baxi held by such shareholders.”

19.2 The Equity Shares of Resulting Company 2 to be issued and allotted pursuant to the
demerger of the Demerged Undertaking 2 into the Resulting Company 2 under this
Scheme shall be subject to the provisions of the memorandum of association and articles
of association of Resulting Company 2 and shall rank pari passu in all respects with any
existing Equity Shares of Resulting Company 2, if any, after the Effective Date
including as regards entittement to dividends and other distributions and repayment of
capital declared or paid on or after the Effective Date, and voting and other rights
attached to the Equity Shares of Resulting Company 2.

19.3  Subject to Applicable Law, the Equity Shares of Resulting Company 2 that are to be
issued in terms of this Scheme shall be issued in dematerialized form. The register of
equity shareholders and/ or, other relevant records, whether in physical or electronic
form, maintained by the Resulting Company 2, the relevant depository in terms of
Applicable Law shall (as deemed necessary by the Board of the Resulting Company 2)
be updated to reflect the issue of the Equity Shares of Resulting Company 2 in terms of
this Scheme.

19.4  In the event of there being any pending share transfers, whether lodged or outstanding,
of any shareholder of the Demerged Company, the Board of the Resulting Company 2
shall be empowered in appropriate cases, prior to or even subsequent to the Record Date
2, to effectuate such a transfer as if such changes in the registered holder were operative
as on the Record Date 2, in order to remove any difficulties arising to the transferor or
transferee of Equity Shares in the Demerged Company, after the effectiveness of this
Scheme.




19.5

19.6

19.7

19.8

20.
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The Equity Shares of Resulting Company 2 to be issued pursuant to this Scheme in
respect of any Equity Shares of Demerged Company which are held in abeyance under
the provisions of Section 126 of the Act or otherwise, shall, pending allotment or
settlement of dispute by order of court or otherwise, be held in abeyance.

Notwithstanding anything contained in the Scheme and subject to Applicable Law, until
the Scheme becomes effective (i.e. on or before the Effective Date), the Resulting
Company 2 is hereby permitted to issue shares, and, or, convertible instruments or any
combination thereof including optionally convertible instruments on such terms and
conditions as maybe approved by the Board of Directors of the Resulting Company 2,
to the Demerged Company, for the efficient functioning of the business of the Resulting
Company 2, to the end and intent that such issuance shall not affect the consideration
as set out in clause 19.1 above, and do all such acts, deed and things as may be necessary
to effect the foregoing including but not limited to increase, reclassify and/or restructure
its authorised share capital in such manner and by such amount as may be necessary.

If necessary, the Resulting Company 2 shall before issue and allotment of the Equity
Shares of Resulting Company 2 in term of the Scheme, increase, reclassify, and/or
restructure its authorised share capital in such manner and by such amount as may be
necessary to satisfy its obligation under the provisions of the Scheme in compliance
with the applicable provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder.

The issue and allotment of the Equity Shares of Resulting Company 2 is an integral part
hereof and shall be deemed to have been carried out under the orders passed by the
Tribunal without requiring any further act on the part of the Resulting Company 2 or
the Demerged Company or their shareholders and as if the procedure laid down under
the Act, including Sections 42 and 62 of the Act and other relevant and applicable
provisions of the Act for the issue and allotment of Equity Shares of Resulting Company
2 to the shareholders of Demerged Company, and such other Applicable Law as may
be applicable, were duly complied with. It is clarified that the approval of the members
of the Resulting Company 2 to this Scheme, shall be deemed to be their
consent/approval for the issue and allotment of Equity Shares of Resulting Company 2
under the applicable provisions of the Act.

ACCOUNTING TREATMENT IN THE BOOKS OF DEMERGED COMPANY
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, the demerger of the

Demerged Undertaking 2 from the Demerged Company to the Resulting Company 2
shall be accounted for, in the books of the Demerged Company, in accordance with
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21.1

Appendix A of Ind AS 10 'Distribution of Non-Cash Assets to Owners’ and other
applicable Ind AS as notified in the Ind AS Rules as follows:

20.1.1

20.1.2

20.1.3

The Demerged Company shall recognise a liability to distribute non cash assets
to its owners measured at the fair value of the business of Demerged
Undertaking 2 with a corresponding debit to the other equity as follows: (a)
debiting the securities premium account to the extent of carrying value of net
assets (carrying value of assets minus carrying value of liabilities of Demerged
Undertaking 2) and (b) the balance amount (fair value of the business of
Demerged Undertaking 2 minus carrying value of net assets of Demerged
Undertaking 2) shall be debited against the retained earnings of the Demerged
Company.

On the settlement of distribution liability, the Demerged Company shall
derecognise from its books of accounts, the carrying amount of assets and
liabilities pertaining to the Demerged Undertaking 2, transferred to the
Resulting Company 2, in accordance with the provisions of this Scheme,

The difference between the carrying amount of distribution liability settled
(clause 20.1.1) and carrying amount of the assets and liabilities of Demerged
Undertaking 2 derecognised (clause 20.1.2), if any, shall be recognised in the
statement of profit and loss of the Demerged Company.

ACCOUNTING TREATMENT IN THE BOOKS OF RESULTING COMPANY

2

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, the Resulting Company 2
shall account for the acquisition of Demerged Undertaking 2 of Demerged Company
into the Resulting Company 2 in accordance with the principles of Ind AS as follows:

21.1.1

21.1.2

The Resulting Company 2 shall recognise the assets and liabilities of the
Demerged Undertaking 2 of the Demerged Company vested in it pursuant to
this Scheme, at the carrying values as appearing in the books of Demerged
Company.

The Resulting Company 2 shall credit the aggregate face value of the Equity
Shares of Resulting Company 2 issued and allotted by it as per Clause 19 above
to the members of the Demerged Company to its share capital in its books of
account.
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22.

22.1

23.

23.1

21.1.3 The difference, if any, between the net assets (i.e., the difference between the
book value of assets and liabilities pertaining to the Demerged Undertaking 2}
vested in the Resulting Company 2, and the face value of equity shares credited
as per clause 21.1.2, shall be adjusted in other equity.

21.1.4 In case of any difference in accounting policy between the Demerged
Undertaking 2 of the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company 2, the
accounting policies followed by the Resulting Company 2 will prevail to ensure
that the financial statements reflect the financial position based on consistent
accounting policies.

PART IV - GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

ADJUSTMENT TO THE SECURITIES PREMIUM ACCOUNT OF THE
DEMERGED COMPANY

The adjustment to the securities premium account of the Demerged Company (as per
Clause 12.1.1. and Clause 20.1.1 above) shall be effected as an integral part of the
Scheme, pursuant to the order of the NCLT sanctioning this Scheme, under Section 230
of the Act. The order of the NCLT sanctioning this Scheme shall also include approval
and confirmation of such reduction in the securities premium account of the Demerged
Company to the extent so required. Accordingly, as provided in the second explanation
in Section 230 of the Act, the provisions of Section 66 of the Act shall not apply to such
reduction of securities premium account of the Demerged Company, effected in
pursuance of the said order of the NCLT.

Notwithstanding the reduction in the securities premium account of the Demerged
Company, the Demerged Company shall not be required to add “And reduced” as a
suffix to its name.

TREATMENT OF WRONG POCKETS ASSETS

In the event that, pursuant to the Scheme, the Demerged Company or Resulting
Company 1 or Resulting Company 2 (as the case may be) is inadvertently or otherwise
holding any asset (a) which relates to the Demerged Undertaking 1 that ought to have
been, but has not been, transferred to the Resulting Company 1 as of the Effective Date,
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or (b) which relates to the Demerged Undertaking 2 that ought to have been, but has not
been, transferred to the Resulting Company 2 as of the Effective Date, or (¢) which
relates to the Demerged Company that ought to have been, but has not been, retained
with the Demerged Company, pursuant to the Scheme as of the Effective Date, then the
Parties shall engage in good faith and do all such further acts and things and shall
execute such documents as may be necessary to effect the transfer and vesting of such
asset to the Demerged Company, Resulting Company 1 or Resulting Company 2 (as the
case may be). Such transfer of assets shall be considered as an integral part of the
Scheme and shall be deemed to have been carried out under the orders passed by the
Tribunal without requiring any further act on the part of the Demerged Company or the
Resulting Companies.

24. COMPLIANCE WITH TAX LAWS

24.1 The Scheme has been drawn up in compliance with the conditions relating to
‘Demerger’ as specified under Section 2(13AA) of the IT Act. If any of the terms or
provisions of the Scheme is / are found or interpreted to be inconsistent with the
provisions of Section 2(19AA) of the IT Act at a later date, including resulting from an
amendment of Applicable Law or for any other reason whatsoever, the provisions of
Section 2(19AA) of the IT Act shall prevail and the Scheme shall stand modified to the
extent determined necessary to comply with the provisions of Section 2(19AA) of the
IT Act. Such modifications will however not affect the other parts of the Scheme.

242 On or after the Effective Date, the Resulting Companies are expressly permitted to
revise their financial statements and returns along with prescribed forms, filings and
annexures under the IT Act (including for the purpose of claiming other tax benefits),
service tax law, value added tax law, goods and services tax law and other tax laws, and
to claim refunds and / or credits for taxes paid (including foreign tax credit) and to claim
tax benefits etc. and for matters incidental thereto, if required to give effect to the
provisions of the Scheme notwithstanding that the period of filing / revising such returns
/ forms may have lapsed and period to claim refund / credit also elapsed upon this
Scheme becoming effective.

243  All tax assessment proceedings / appeals (including application and proceedings in
relation to advance ruling) of whatsoever nature by or against the Demerged Company
relating to the Demerged Undertaking 1 and Demerged Undertaking 2 pending and / or
arising at the Appointed Date and relating to the Demerged Undertaking | and
Demerged Undertaking 2 of the Demerged Company, shall be continued and / or
enforced until the Effective Date as desired by the Resulting Company | and Resulting
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24.4

24.5

24.6

247

Company 2 respectively. As and from the Effective Date, the tax proceedings shall be
continued and enforced by or against the Resulting Company ! and Resulting Company
2, as the case may be, in the same manner and to the same extent as it would or might
have been continued and enforced by or against the Demerged Undertaking 1 and
Demerged Undertaking 2 of the Demerged Company respectively.

Further, the aforementioned proceedings shall not abate or be discontinued nor be in
any way prejudicially affected by reason of anything contained in the Scheme.

Any tax liabilities including but not limited to liabilities under the IT Act, Customs Act
1962, service tax laws, value added tax laws, goods and services tax laws or other
Applicable Laws / regulations dealing with taxes / duties / levies allocable or related to
the business of the Demerged Undertaking 1 and Demerged Undertaking 2 of the
Demerged Company, to the extent not provided for or covered by tax provision in the
accounts made as on the date immediately preceding the Appointed Date shall be
transferred to the Resulting Company 1 and Resulting Company 2, respectively.

Any refund including but not limited to refund under the IT Act, foreign tax laws,
Customs Act 1962, service tax laws, value added tax laws, goods and services tax laws
or other Tax Laws / regulations dealing with taxes / duties / levies allocable or related
to the business of the Demerged Undertaking 1 and Demerged Undertaking 2 of the
Demerged Company, consequent to the assessment made on the Demerged Company
and for which no credit is taken in the accounts as on the date immediately preceding
the Appointed Date shall also belong to and be received by the Resulting Company ]
and Resulting Company 2 respectively, as the case maybe.

All taxes, including income-tax, foreign taxes, custom duty, service tax, goods and
services tax, etc., paid or payable by the Demerged Company relating to the Demerged
Undertaking 1 and Demerged Undertaking 2 in respect of their operations and / or the
profits of the business of the Demerged Undertaking 1 and Demerged Undertaking 2
before the Appointed Date, shall be on account of the Demerged Company, and, in so
far as it relates to the tax payment (including, without limitation, income-tax, custom
duty, service tax, goods and service tax, etc.) whether by way of deduction at source,
advance tax or otherwise howsoever, by the Demerged Company relating to the
Demerged Undertaking 1 and Demerged Undertaking 2, in respect of their profits or
activities or operation of the Demerged Undertaking 1 and Demerged Undertaking 2
after the Appointed Date, the same shall be deemed to be the corresponding item paid
by the Resulting Company 1 and Resulting Company 2 respectively and shall, in all
proceedings, be dealt with accordingly.

115



24.8

24.9

24.10

24.11

e

Further, any tax deducted at source by the Demerged Company relating to the
Demerged Undertaking 1 and Demerged Undertaking 2 on payables to the Resulting
Company 1 and Resulting Company 2 respectively, or vice versa on account of inter-se
transactions which has been deemed not to be accrued, shall be deemed to be advance
taxes paid by the Resulting Company 1 and Resulting Company 2 respectively, and
shall, in all proceedings, be dealt with accordingly.

Obligation for deduction of tax at source on any payment made by or to be made by the
Demerged Company relating to the Demerged Undertaking 1 and Demerged
Undertaking 2, including but not limited to obligation under the IT Act, service tax
laws, customs law, goods and services tax law or other Tax Laws / regulations dealing
with taxes / duties / levies shall be made or deemed to have been made and duly
complied with by the Resulting Company ! and Resulting Company 2, respectively.

Without prejudice to the generality of the above, all benefits, incentives, losses, credit
for tax including on book profits, accumulated losses, credits (including, without
limitation income tax, excise duty, service tax, applicable state value added tax, cenvat
credit, goods and service tax credit, etc.) to which the Demerged Undertaking 1 and
Demerged Undertaking 2 of the Demerged Company is entitled, shall be available to
and vest in the Resulting Company 1 and Resulting Company 2 respectively, if eligible
as per the provisions of the IT Act on and after the Appointed Date, even if such credits
have not been availed off in the books as on the date of transfer. Also, the Resulting
Company 1 and Resulting Company 2, will be entitled to avail cenvat credit / goods
and services tax credit after the Appointed Date in respect of all duties / taxes where the
documents are in the name of the Demerged Company relating to the Demerged
Undertaking 1 and Demerged Undertaking 2. Further, licenses issued to the Demerged
Company relating to the Demerged Undertaking 1 and Demerged Undertaking 2 by
regulatory authorities, if any, and all benefits and tax credits, if any, associated with it
shall stand transferred to the Resulting Company 1 and Resulting Company 2
respectively, upon the Scheme becoming effective.,

If any of the Resulting Companies is in receipt of any demand, claim, notice and/ or is
impleaded as party in any proceedings before any Appropriate Authority, in each case
in relation to the Remaining Business of the Demerged Company, the Resulting
Company 1 or Resulting Company 2, as the case may be, shall take all such steps in the
proceedings before the Appropriate Authority to substitute the Resulting Company 1 or
Resulting Company 2, as the case may be, with the Demerged Company. However, if
any of the Resulting Companies is unable to replace the Demerged Company in such
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proceedings, the Resulting Company 1 or Resulting Company 2, as the case may be,
shall defend the same or deal with such demand at the cost of the Demerged Company
and the latter shall reimburse the Resulting Company 1 or Resulting Company 2, as the
case may be,, against all liabilities and obligations incurred by or against the the
Resulting Company 1 or Resulting Company 2, as the case may be, in respect thereof.

REMAINING BUSINESS OF DEMERGED COMPANY

The Remaining Business of the Demerged Company and all the assets, properties,
rights, liabilities, and obligations pertaining thereto, shall continue to belong to and be
vested in and be owned and managed by Demerged Company and Resulting Companies
shall have no right, claim, liabilities or obligation in relation to the Remaining Business
of the Demerged Company by virtue of the Demerger.

All the legal, taxation and other proceedings whether civil or criminal (including before
any statutory authority or quasi-judicial authority or tribunal) by or against Demerged
Company under any statute, whether relating to the period prior to or after the
Appointed Date and whether pending on the Appointed Date or which may be instituted
in the future, whether or not in respect of any matter arising before the Effective Date
and relating to the Remaining Business of Demerged Company (including those
relating to any property, right, power or liability, obligation or duty of Demerged
Company in respect of the Remaining Business of Demerged Company and any income
tax liability) shall be continued and enforced by or against Demerged Company even
after the Effective Date.

Upto and including the Effective Date:

Demerged Company shall carry on and shall be deemed to have been carrying on all
business and activities relating to the Remaining Business of the Demerged Company
for and on its own behalf.

All profits accruing to the Remaining Business or losses arising or incurred to the
Remaining Business (including the effect of taxes, if any, thereon) shall for all
purposes, be treated as the profits or losses, as the case may be, of the Demerged
Company; and

All assets and properties acquired in relation to Remaining Business of the Demerged
Company on and after the Appointed Date shall belong to and continue to remain vested
in the Demerged Company.
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26.

26.1

26.1.1

26.1.2

26.1.3

26.1.4

Notwithstanding anything contained in the Scheme and subject to Applicable Law, until
the Scheme becomes effective (i.e. on or before Effective Date), the Demerged
Company is hereby permitted to issue shares, and, or, convertible instruments or any
combination thereof including optionally convertible instruments on such terms and
conditions as maybe approved by the Board of Directors of the Demerged Company for
the efficient functioning of the business of the Demerged Company or for any other
purpose including for purposes of refinancing, repayment, conversion or prepayment of
any loans of the Demerged Company, and do all such acts, deed and things as may be
necessary to effect the foregoing including but not limited to increase, reclassify and/or
restructure its authorised share capital in such manner and by such amount as may be
necessary.

CONDUCT OF BUSINESS UNTIL AND AFTER THE EFFECTIVE DATE

Subject to Clause 6 and Clause 14 of the Scheme, with effect from the date of approval
of this Scheme by the respective Boards and up to and including the Effective Date:

the Demerged Company undertakes to carry on and shall be deemed to have been
carrying on all business activities relating to the Demerged Undertaking 1 and
Demerged Undertaking 2 and preserve all the assets, rights, title, interest of the
Demerged Undertaking 1 and Demerged Undertaking 2 for, the Resulting Company 1
and Resulting Company 2, respectively.

all income, receipts, profits accruing to the Demerged Company and attributable to the
Demerged Undertaking 1 and Demerged Undertaking 2 and all taxes thereon or losses
arising or incurred by it, till the Appointed Date, with respect to the Demerged
Undertaking 1 and Demerged Undertaking 2 shall, for all purposes, be treated as and
deemed to be the income, expenses, payments, profits, taxes or losses, as the case may
be, of the Demerged Company.

the Demerged Company shall carry on the business of the Demerged Undertakings with
reasonable diligence and business prudence and in the same manner as it had been doing
hitherto.

the Demerged Company shall not, without the written concurrence of Board of
Directors of the Resulting Company 1 or Resulting Company 2 (as the case may be),
sell, transfer or otherwise alienate, charge, mortgage or encumber or otherwise deal
with or dispose of any of its properties of the Demerged Undertaking 1 or Demerged




26.1.5

26.1.6

26.1.7

26.2

26.3

264

Undertaking 2 (as the case may be), except in the ordinary course of business or
pursuant to any pre-existing obligation undertaken prior to the date of acceptance of the
Scheme by the respective Boards of Directors of the Demerged Company and the
Resulting Companies.

the Demerged Company shall not vary or alter, except in the ordinary course of its
business and as may be required for reorganization, the terms and conditions of
employment of any of its employees in relation to the Demerged Undertaking 1 and
Demerged Undertaking 2.

the Demerged Company (with respect to the Demerged Undertakings) shall be entitled,
pending the sanction of the Scheme, to apply to the Appropriate Authorities concerned
as necessary under the Applicable Law for such consents, approvals and sanctions
which the Resulting Companies may require to carry on the business of the Demerged
Undertakings and to give effect to the Scheme.

except with the consent of the Board of Directors of the Demerged Company, the
Resuiting Companies shall not make any change in its respective capital structure either
by any increase (by issue of equity shares, bonus shares, convertible debentures or
otherwise), decrease, reduction, reclassification, sub-division or consolidation, re-
organisation, or in any other manner effect the re-organisation of share capital of the
Resulting Companies.

the Resulting Company 1 and Resulting Company 2 shall continue and carry on and
shall be authorised to carry on the businesses carried on by the Demerged Undertaking
1 and Demerged Undertaking 2, respectively of the Demerged Company.

The Resulting Companies shall enter into and/or issue and/ or execute deeds writings
or confirmation or enter into any tripartite arrangements, confirmations or novations, to
which the Demerged Company will, if necessary, also be party in order to give formal
effect to the provisions of this Scheme, if so required. Further, the Resulting Companies
shall be deemed to be authorised to execute any such deeds, writings, confirmations on
behalf of the Demerged Company and to implement or carry out all formalities required
on the part of the Demerged Company to give effect to the provisions of this Scheme.

Upon coming into effect of the Scheme, the Resulting Companies and/or the Demerged
Company shall, within reasonable dispatch / time lines apply for transition of all
licenses and statutory registrations of the Demerged Company pertaining to Demerged
Undertaking 1 and Demerged Undertaking 2 including but not limited to concession
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27.

rights / licenses, insurance policies, permissions, certificates, market authorizations,
filings, dossiers (including experience and pre-qualification submissions), industrial
licenses, municipal permissions, approvals, consents, permits, quotas, incentives,
subsidies and recognitions. The period between Effective Date and the last date on
which the transfer of all such aforementioned licenses and statutory registrations have
occurred is hereinafter referred to as "Transition Period”. During the Transition Period,
the Resulting Companies may procure or use all such licenses, statutory registrations,
concession rights / licenses, insurance policies, permissions, certificates, market
authorizations, filings, dossiers (including experience and pre-qualification
submissions), industrial licenses, municipal permissions, approvals, consents, permits,
quotas, incentives, subsidies and recognitions in the name and form/format of the
Demerged Company under any license and/or statutory registration, if any, while
conducting the business of the Demerged Undertakings, with a view to avoid any
disruption of business, to ensure continuity of business operations and uninterrupted
services to its customers.

Notwithstanding anything contained in Clause 26.2 above, with effect from the
Effective Date, any activity carried on by the Resulting Companies shall not be in
violation of the charter documents of the Demerged Company and the Resulting
Companies, as the case may be.

VALIDITY OF RESOLUTIONS

Upon the Scheme becoming effective, the resolutions passed by the Board of Directors
and/or shareholders of the Demerged Company relating to the Demerged Undertaking
1 and Demerged Undertaking 2, as are considered necessary by the Board of Directors
of the Resulting Company 1 and Resulting Company 2, as the case may be, and which
are valid and subsisting shall continue to be valid and subsisting and be considered as
the resolutions of the Resulting Company 1 and Resulting Company 2 respectively, and
if any such resolutions have monetary limits approved under the provisions of the Act,
or any other applicable statutory provisions, then the said limits as are considered
necessary by the Board of Directors of the Resulting Company 1 and Resulting
Company 2 respectively, shall be added to the limits if any, under like resolutions
passed by the Board of Directors and/or the shareholders of the Resulting Company 1
and Resulting Company 2 respectively, and shall constitute the aggregate of the said
limits in the Resulting Company 1 and Resulting Company 2 respectively, as the case
maybe.

APPLICATION TO THE TRIBUNAL
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29.1

29.2

30.

The Companies, with all reasonable dispatch, shall make necessary applications /
petitions jointly and / or severally before the Tribunal for the sanction of this Scheme
under Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Act.

MODIFICATIONS / AMENDMENTS TO THE SCHEME

The Companies, through their respective Board of Directors, may make and / or consent
to such modifications / amendments to this Scheme or to any conditions or limitations
that the Tribunal may deem fit to direct or impose or which may otherwise be
considered necessary, by them or the Board, including the withdrawal of this Scheme
or part thereof. The Board of Directors of the Companies shall take all such steps as
may be necessary to resolve any doubts, difficulties, or questions, including
interpretation of the Scheme, whether by reason of any directive or orders of any other
authorities or otherwise howsoever arising out of or under or by virtue of the Scheme
and/or any matter concerned or connected therewith. The power of the Boards of
Directors to modify/amend the Scheme shall be subject to the approval of the Tribunal.
Further, the power of the Board of Directors to modify/amend the Scheme shall also be
subject to the approval of lenders, in cases where such proposed
modifications/amendments to the Scheme are detrimental to the financial obligations
towards the lenders.

If any part of this Scheme hereof is invalid, ruled illegal by the Tribunal, or
unenforceable under present or future laws, then it is the intention of the Companies
that such part shall be severable from the remainder of the Scheme. Further, if the
deletion of such part of this Scheme may cause this Scheme to become materially
adverse to the Companies, then in such case the Companies, shall attempt to bring about
a modification in the Scheme, as will best preserve, for the Companies, the benefits,
and obligations of the Scheme, including but not limited to such part.

SAVING OF CONCLUDED TRANSACTIONS

Anything contained in the Scheme, shall not affect any transaction or proceedings
already concluded or liabilities incurred, or any liabilities discharged by the Demerged
Company relating to the Demerged Undertaking 1 and Demerged Undertaking 2, till
the Effective Date, to the end and intent that the Resulting Company 1 and Resulting
Company 2 respectively, shall accept and adopt all acts, deeds and things made, done
and executed by the Demerged Company relating to the Demerged Undertaking 1 and
Demerged Undertaking 2, as acts, deeds and things made, done and executed by or on
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behalf of the Resulting Company 1 and Resulting Company 2 respectively, as the case
maybe.

31. SCHEME CONDITIONAL ON APPROVALS / SANCTIONS
31.1 The Scheme is conditional upon and subject to:

31.1.1 the approval of the Scheme by the requisite majority of the respective members
and creditors and such class of persons of the Companies, as required in terms
of the applicable provisions of the relevant Act;

31.1.2 the sanction of the Tribunal, being obtained under Sections 230 to 232 of the
Act and other applicable provisions of the Act, if so, required on behalf of the
Companies;

31.1.3 the certified copies of the order under Sections 230 to 232 of the Act, and other
applicable provisions of the Act are duly filed with the Registrar of Companies;
and

31.1.4 all other sanctions and approvals as may be required by law (including approvals
from Appropriate Authorities or contracting party) in respect of this Scheme
shall have been obtained, where such approval or consent is necessary.

32. EFFECT OF NON-RECEIPT OF APPROVALS

32.1 In the event of any of the said sanctions and approvals referred to in Clause 31 above
not being obtained (or to the extent permissible under Applicable Law, not waived) and
/ or the Scheme not being sanctioned by the Tribunal or such other competent authority
/ Appropriate Authorities and/ or the sanction order(s) not being passed by the NCLT
as aforesaid, the Demerged Company may opt to terminate this Scheme and the Scheme
shall stand revoked, cancelled and be of no effect, save and except in respect of any act
or deed done prior thereto as is contemplated hereunder or as to any rights and / or
liabilities which might have arisen or accrued pursuant thereto and which shall be
governed and be preserved or worked out as is specifically provided in the Scheme or
as may otherwise arise in law.

32.2 Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Scheme, the Board of
Directors of the Demerged Company shall be entitled to withdraw this Scheme prior to
the Eftective Date.

32.3  Upon the termination of this Scheme as set out in Clause 32.1 and 32.2 above, no rights
and liabilities shall accrue to or be incurred by the Companies or their shareholders or
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33.

34.

35.

35.1
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creditors or employees or any other person. In such case, each Company shall bear its
own costs and expenses or as may be otherwise mutually agreed.

The Board of Directors of the Companies, shall be entitled to revoke, cancel, and
declare the Scheme of no effect if they are of the view that the coming into effect of the
Scheme with effect from the Appointed Date could have adverse implications on the
Companies post the demerger.

COSTS

All costs, charges, levies, and expenses of the Companies, in relation to or in connection
with or incidental to this Scheme or the implementation thereof shall be borne and paid
for by the Resulting Company 1 and Resulting Company 2, unless otherwise determined
by the Boards of Directors of the Companies.

PROPERTY IN TRUST

Notwithstanding anything contained in this Scheme, on or after Effective Date, until
any property, asset, license, approval, permission, contract, agreement and rights and
benefits arising therefrom pertaining to the business of the Demerged Undertaking 1
and Demerged Undertaking 2 of the Demerged Company, are transferred, vested,
recorded, effected and/ or perfected, in the records of any Appropriate Authority,
regulatory bodies or otherwise, in favour of the Resulting Company 1 and Resulting
Company 2 respectively, such company is deemed to be authorised to enjoy the
property, asset or the rights and benefits arising from the license, approval, permission,
contract or agreement as if it were the owner of the property or asset or as if it were the
original party to the license, approval, permission, contract or agreement. It is clarified
that till approval is obtained from the Appropriate Authorities, entry is made in the
records of the Appropriate Authorities and till such time as may be mutually agreed by
the relevant Parties, the Demerged Company will continue to hold the property and/or
the asset, license, permission, approval, contract or agreement and rights and benefits
arising therefrom, as the case may be, in trust for and on behalf of the Resulting
Company 1 and Resulting Company 2 respectively.

SEVERABILITY
If any part of this Scheme is found to be unworkable for any reason whatsoever, the same

shall not, subject to the decision of the Companies, affect the validity or implementation
of the other parts and/or provisions of this Scheme.
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352 Inthe event of any inconsistency between any of the terms and conditions of any earlier
arrangement amongst the Companies and their respective shareholders and/or creditors,
and the terms and conditions of this Scheme, the latter shall prevail.

36. REMOVAL OF DIFFICULTIES

The Companies, through mutual consent and acting through their respective Boards,
jointly and as mutually agreed in writing may give such directions (acting jointly) and
agree to take steps, as may be necessary, desirable or proper, to resolve all doubts,
difficulties or questions arising under this Scheme, whether by reason of any orders of
NCLT or of any directive or orders of any Appropriate Authority, under or by virtue of
this Scheme in relation to the arrangement contemplated in this Scheme and/ or matters
concerning or connecied therewith or in regard to and of the meaning or interpretation
of this Scheme or implementation thereof or in any manner whatsoever connected
therewith, or to review the position relating to the satisfaction of various conditions of
this Scheme and if necessary, to waive any of those to the extent permissible under
Applicable Law; and do all such acts, deeds and things as may be necessary, desirable
or expedient for carrying the Scheme into effect.

37. BINDING EFFECT

Upon the Scheme becoming effective, the same shall be binding on all the Companies,
Appropriate Authority and all concerned parties without any further act, deed, matter, or
thing.
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. Annexure B1

JMBAXi

THE PORT SPECIALIST
PORTS & LOGISTICS

REPORT ADOPTED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF ] M BAXI PORTS & LOGISTICS PRIVATE
LIMITED PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION 232(2)(c) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
AT ITS MEETING HELD AT GODRE] COLISEUM, OFFICE NO. 801, C-WING, EVERARD NAGAR, OFF
SOMAIYA HOSPITAL ROAD, SION EAST, MUMBAI - 400022 ON THURSDAY THE 29TH DAY OF
FEBRUARY, 2024 EXPLAINING EFFECT OF THE SCHEME ON EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS, KEY
MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL, PROMOTERS, NON PROMOTER SHAREHOLDERS

1. Background:

A meeting of the Board of Directors (“Board”) of | M Baxi Ports & Logistics Private Limited
(erstwhile ] M Baxi Ports and Logistics Limited) (“Demerged Company”) was held on 29 February,
2024 to consider and recommend the proposed Composite Scheme of Arrangement amongst
] M Baxi Ports & Logistics Private Limited (erstwhile ] M Baxi Ports and Logistics Limited)
(“F M Baxi” or “Demerged Company”) and ] M Baxi Container Holdings Private Limited
(“] M Baxi Container” or “Resulting Company 1”) and ] M Baxi Cargo Holdings Private Limited
(“} M Baxi Dev Co” or “Resulting Company 2"} (Resulting Company 1 and Resulting Company 2
are hereinafter collectively referred to as “Resulting Companies”) and their respective
shareholders (“the Scheme”) under section 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and rules framed thereunder to be implemented as per the terms specified in
the Scheme.

2. The Appointed Date for the Demerger of the Demerged Undertaking 1 from Demerged Company to
Resulting Company 1 and of the Demerged Undertaking 2 from Demerged Company to Resulting
Company 2 shall be the Effective Date {as defined in the Scheme) or such other date as may be
determined by the Board of Directors of Demerged Company and Resulting Companies, or such
other date as may be fixed or approved by the National Company Law Tribunal or such other
competent authority.

3. The provisions of Section 232(2)(c) of Companies Act, 2013 require the Board to adopt a report
explaining the effect of the Scheme on each class of shareholders, key managerial personnel,
promoters and non-promoter shareholders laying out in particular the share entitlement ratio,
specifying any valuation difficulties, and the same is required to be appended with the notice of the
meeting of shareholders and creditors. This report of the Board is made in order to comply with the
requirements of Section 232(2)(c) of Companies Act, 2013.

4. This report is made by the Board after discussing and taking on record the following necessary
documents (“Documents”):

a) Draft Scheme duly initialed by the Director for the purpose of identification; and

b} Valuation Report dated 29t February 2024 issued by Transaction Square Advisory LLP (IBBI
Registration No:- IBBI/RV-E/06/2023/194), a registered valuer, describing the methodology
adopted by them in arriving at the valuation (“Valuation Report”).

J M BAXI PORTS & LOGISTICS PVT LTD
{Earlier known as J M Baxi Ports & Logistics Ltd)

T +9122 6153 7900 Registered Office: Godrej Coliseum,
F +91 22 6153 7995 Godrej Coliseumn, Office No. 801, 10th Floor, 1001 ‘A’ Wing,
'C' Wing, Behind Everard Nagar, Everard Nagar, Sion East,
corp@jmbaxi.com Off Somaiya Hospital Road, 5ion East, Mumbai 400 022
www.jmbaxi.com Mumbai 400 022 Maharashtra, India Maharashtra, India CIN: U63090MH1947PTC251291
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5. Effect of the Scheme on each Class of Shareholders (Including Promoter and Non-Promoter):

The Demerged Company has only one class of shareholders i.e. equity shareholders. The equity
shares issued and allotted by the Resulting Companies in terms of this Scheme shall rank pari passu
in all respects with the existing equity shares of the Resulting Companies. There will be dilution of
the shareholding of the equity shareholders of the Resulting Companies on issuance of shares
pursuant to this Scheme to the shareholders of Demerged Company.

6. Effect of the Scheme on Key Managerial Personnel and Directors:

The Directors and Key Managerial Personnel holding shares of the Demerged Company do not have
any other interest in the Scheme otherwise than that as shareholders in general in the Demerged
Company. Save as aforesaid, none of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Demerged
Company have any material interest in the proposed Scheme.

7. Valuation:

7.1 For the purpose of the Scheme, the valuation report was obtained from Transaction Square
Advisory LLP (IBBI Registration No. IBBI/RV-E/06/2023/194), a registered valuer, who has
recommended the following share exchange ratio by its report dated 29t February 2024

Consideration for the purpose of Demerger:-

DEMERGER OF DEMER NDERTAKING 1 TO RESULTING COMPANY 1 AND OF DEMERGED
UNDERTAKING 2 TO RESULTING COMPANY 2:

To the Shareholders of Demerged Company by the Resulting Company 1:

"1 (One} Equity Share of ] M Baxi Container of face value of INR 1 each fully paid up shall be issued
for every 1 (One) equity share held in ] M Baxi having face value of INR 1 each fully paid up”

To the Shareholders of Demerged Company by the Resulting Company 2:

“1 {One) Equity Share of ] M Baxi Dev Co of face value of INR 1 each fully paid up shall be issued
for every 1 (One) equity share held in ] M Baxi having face value of INR 1 each fully paid up.”

7.2 No specific valuation difficulties were reported by Valuer.

For ] M Baxi Ports & Logistics Pvt Ltd
(Earlier ] M Baxi Ports & Logistics Ltd)

-~ \’,,,A
Kumavat
Company Secretary

Membership No. A46993

Date: 29| o2 |202y |,
Place: Mumbai

J M BAXI PORTS & LOGISTICS PYT LTD
{Earlier known as J M Baxi Ports & Logistics Ltd)

T +9122 6153 7900 Registered Office: Gaodrej Coliseum,
F +91 22 6153 7995 Godrej Coliseum, Office No. 801, 10th Floor, 1001 'A’ Wing,
'C' Wing, Behind Everard Nagar, Everard Nagar, Sion East,
corp@jmbaxi.com Off Somaiya Hospital Road, Sion East, = Mumbai 400 022
www jmbaxi.com Mumbai 400 022 Maharashtra, India Maharashtra, India CIN: U63090MH1947PTC251291
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Annexure B2

J M BAXI CONTAINER HOLDINGS PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U52242MH2023PTC405195
Regd. Godrej Coliseum, Office No. 801, C Wing, Off Somaiya Hospital Road, Everard Nagar, Sion East
Mumbai — 400 022; Phone No.: +91-22-61537900

REPORT ADOPTED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF ) M BAXI CONTAINER HOLDINGS
PRIVATE LIMITED PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION 232(2)(c}) OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2013 AT ITS MEETING HELD AT GODRE) COLISEUM, OFFICE NO.801, C-
WING, BEHIND EVERARD NAGAR, OFF SOMAIYA HOSPITAL ROAD, SION EAST, MUMBAI -
400022 ON THURSDAY THE 29TH DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2024 EXPLAINING EFFECT OF THE
SCHEME ON EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS, KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL, PROMOTERS, NON-
PROMOTER SHAREHOLDERS

1. Ba :

A meeting of the Board of Directors (“Board”) of ] M Baxi Container Holdings Private
Limited (“Resulting Company 1”) was held on 29t February, 2024 to consider and
recommend the proposed Composite Scheme of Arrangement amongst | M Baxi Ports &
Logistics Private Limited {erstwhile | M Baxi Ports and Logistics Limited)
(“] M Baxi” or “Demerged Company”) and ] M Baxi Container Holdings Private Limited
(“] M Baxi Container” or “Resulting Company 1”) and | M Baxi Cargo Holdings Private
Limited (“] M Baxi Dev Co” or “Resulting Company 2"} (Resulting Company 1 and
Resulting Company 2 are hereinafter collectively referred to as “Resulting Companies”)
and their respective shareholders (“the Scheme”) under section 230 to 232 and other
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules framed thereunder to be
implemented as per the terms specified in the Scheme.

2. The Appointed Date for the Demerger of the Demerged Undertaking 1 from Demerged
Company to Resulting Company 1 shall be the Effective Date (as defined in the Scheme) or
such other date as may be determined by the Board of Directors of Demerged Company and
Resulting Companies, or such other date as may be fixed or approved by the National
Company Law Tribunal or such other competent authority.

3.  The provisions of Section 232(2)(c) of Companies Act, 2013 require the Board to adopt a
report explaining the effect of the Scheme on each class of shareholders, key managerial
personnel, promoters and non-promoter shareholders laying out in particular the share
entitlement ratio, specifying any valuation difficulties, and the same is required to be
appended with the notice of the meeting of shareholders and creditors. This report of the
Board is made in order to comply with the requirements of Section 232(2}(c) of Companies
Act, 2013.

4.  This report is made by the Board after discussing and taking on record the following
necessary documents ("Documents”):

a)  Draft Scheme duly initialed by the Director for the purpose of identification; and

b)  Valuation Report dated 29t February 2024 issued by Transaction Square Advisory LLP
{IBBI Registration No:- IBBI/RV-E/06/2023/194), a registered valuer, describing the
methodology adopted by them in arriving at the valuation (“Valuation Report”).
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J M BAX]I CONTAINER HOLDINGS PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U52242MH2023PTC405195

Regd. Godrej Coliseurn, Office No. 801, C Wing, Off Somaiya Hospital Road, Everard Nagar, Sion East

Mumbai ~ 400 022; Phone No.: +91-22-61537900

7.2

Effect of the Scheme on each Class of Shareholders (Including Promoter and Non-
Promoter):

The Resulting Company 1 has only one class of shareholders i.e, equity shareholders. The
equity shares issued and allotted by the Resulting Company 1 in terms of this Scheme shall
rank pari passu in all respects with the existing equity shares of the Resulting Company 1.
There will be dilution of the shareholding of the equity shareholders of the Resulting
Company 1 onissuance of shares pursuant to this Scheme to the shareholders of Demerged
Company.

Effect of the Scheme on Key Managerial Personnel and Directors:

The Directors and Key Managerial Personnel holding shares of the Resulting Company 1 do
not have any other interest in the Scheme otherwise than that as shareholders in general
in the Resulting Company 1. Save as aforesaid, none of the Directors or Key Managerial
Personnel of the Resulting Company 1 have any material interest in the proposed Scheme.

Valuation:

For the purpose of the Scheme, the valuation report was obtained from Transaction Square
Advisory LLP (IBBI Registration No. IBBI/RV-E/06/2023/194), aregistered valuer, who has
recommended the following share exchange ratio by its report dated 29 February 2024

Consideration for the purpose of Demerger:-
DEMERGER OF DEMERGED UNDERTAKING 1 TO RESULTING COMPANY 1:

To the Shareholders of Demerged Company by the Resulting Company 1:

“I (One) Equity Share of ] M Baxi Container of face value of INR 1 each fully paid up shall be
issued for every 1 (One) equity share held in § M Baxi having face value of INR 1 each fully paid

up

No specific valuation difficulties were reported by Valuer.

For | M BAXI CONTAINER HOLDINGS PRIVATE LIMITED

Nandanithal Yalgi
Director

DIN: 00225833
Date: 29 lozlwlq
Place: Mumbai
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Annexure B3

J M BAXI CARGO HOLDINGS PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U52242MH2023PTC405765
Regd. Godrej Coliseum, Office No. 801, C Wing, Off Somaiya Hospital Road, Everard Nagar, Sion East
Mumbai - 400 022; Phone No.: +91-22-61537900

REPORT ADOPTED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF JM BAXI CARGO HOLDINGS PRIVATE
LIMITED PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION 232(2)(c) OF THE COMPANIES ACT,
2013 AT ITS MEETING HELD AT GODRE] COLISEUM, OFFICE NO.801, C-WING, BEHIND
EVERARD NAGAR, OFF SOMAIYA HOSPITAL ROAD, SION EAST, MUMBAI - 400022 ON
THURSDAY THE 29™ DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2024 EXPLAINING EFFECT OF THE SCHEME ON
EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS, KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL, PROMOTERS, NON-PROMOTER
SHAREHOLDERS

1. Background:

A meeting of the Board of Directors (Board) of | M Baxi Cargo Holdings Private Limited
("Resulting Company 2") was held on 29t February, 2024 to consider and recommend
the proposed Composite Scheme of Arrangement amongst ] M Baxi Ports & Logistics Private
Limited (erstwhile ] M Baxi Ports and Logistics Limited) (“] M Baxi” or “Demerged
Company”) and ] M Baxi Container Holdings Private Limited (“J M Baxi Container” or
“Resulting Company 1”) and ] M Baxi Cargo Holdings Private Limited (“] M Baxi Dev Co”
or “Resulting Company 2"} (Resulting Company 1 and Resulting Company 2 are
hereinafter collectively referred to as “Resulting Companies”) and their respective
shareholders (“the Scheme”) under section 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 and rules framed thereunder to be implemented as per the terms
specified in the Scheme.

2. The Appointed Date for the Demerger of the Demerged Undertaking 2 from Demerged
Company to Resulting Company 2 shall be the Effective Date (as defined in the Scheme]) or
such other date as may be determined by the Board of Directors of Demerged Company and
Resulting Companies, or such other date as may be fixed or approved by the National
Company Law Tribunal or such other competent authority.

3. The provisions of Section 232(2)(c) of Companies Act, 2013 require the Board to adopt a
report explaining the effect of the Scheme on each class of shareholders, key managerial
personnel, promoters and non-promoter shareholders laying out in particular the share
entitlement ratio, specifying any valuation difficulties, and the same is required to be
appended with the notice of the meeting of shareholders and creditors. This report of the
Board is made in order to comply with the requirements of Section 232(2)(c) of Companies
Act, 2013,

4.  This report is made by the Board after discussing and taking on record the following
necessary documents (“Documents”):

a)  Draft Scheme duly initialed by the Director for the purpose of identification; and

b)  Valuation Report dated 29 February 2024 issued by Transaction Square Advisory LLP
(IBBI Registration No:- IBBI/RV-E/06/2023/194), a registered valuer, describing the
methodology adopted by them in arriving at the valuation (“Valuation Report”}.
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J M BAXI CARGO HOLDINGS PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U52242MH2023PTC405765

Regd. Godrej Coliseum, Office No. 801, C Wing, Off Somaiya Hospital Road, Everard Nagar, Sion East

Mumbai — 400 022; Phone No.: +91-22-61537900

7.2

Effect of the Scheme on each Class of Shareholders (Including Promoter and Non-
Promoter):

The Resulting Company 2 has only one class of shareholders i.e. equity shareholders. The
equity shares issued and allotted by the Resulting Company 2 in terms of this Scheme shall
rank pari passu in all respects with the existing equity shares of the Resulting Company 2.
There will be dilution of the shareholding of the equity shareholders of the Resulting
Company 2 on issuance of shares pursuant to this Scheme to the shareholders of Demerged
Company. :

Effect of the Scheme on Key Managerial Personnel and Directors:

The Directors and Key Managerial Personnel holding shares of the Resulting Company 2 do
not have any other interest in the Scheme otherwise than that as shareholders in general
in the Resulting Company 2. Save as aforesaid, none of the Directors or Key Managerial
Personnel of the Resulting Company 2 have any material interest in the proposed Scheme.

Valuation:

For the purpose of the Scheme, the valuation report was obtained from Transaction Square
Advisory LLP (IBBI Registration No. IBBI/RV-E/06/2023/194), aregistered valuer, who has
recommended the following share exchange ratio by its report dated 29% February 2024

Consideration for the purpose of Demerger:-
DEMERGER OF DEMERGED UNDERTAKING 2 TO RESULTING COMPANY 2:

To the Shareholders of Demerged Company by the Resulting Company 2:

“1 (One) Equity Share of ] M Baxi Dev Co of face value of INR 1 each fully paid up shall be issued
for every 1 {One) equity share held in | M Baxi having face value of INR 1 each fully paid up.”

No specific valuation difficulties were reported by Valuer.

For ] M BAXI CARGO HOLDINGS PRIVATE LIMITED

Nandan Vithal Yalgi
Director

DIN: 00225833

Date: 2.9 \02.\202,1.;
Place: Mumbai
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Annexure C
Transaction Square Advisory LLP

Registered Valuer - Securities or Financial Assets

Date: 29 February 2024

To, To,

The Board of Directors, The Board of Directors,

J M Baxi Ports & Logistics Private Limited J M Baxi Container Holdings Private Limited
Godrej Coliseum, Office No.801, Godrej Coliseum, Office No.801,

C-Wing, Behind Everard Nagar, C-Wing, Behind Everard Nagar,

Off Somaiya Hospital Road, Sion East, Off Somaiya Hospital Road, Sion East,
Mumbai — 400022 Mumbai — 400 022

To,

The Board of Directors,

J M Baxi Cargo Holdings Private Limited
Godrej Coliseum, Office No.801,

C-Wing, Behind Everard Nagar,

Off Somaiya Hospital Road, Sion East,
Mumbai — 400022

Subject: Recommendation of fair share entitlement ratio for the proposed demerger of
‘Identified Container Business’ from J M Baxi Ports & Logistics Private Limited into J M Baxi
Container Holdings Private Limited; and

Recommendation of fair share entitlement ratio for the proposed demerger of ‘Corporate
Services Business’ from J M Baxi Ports & Logistics Private Limited into J M Baxi Cargo Holdings
Private Limited.

Dear Sir/Madam,

We refer to the engagement letter dated 20 February 2024 whereby J M Baxi Ports & Logistics
Private Limited (hereinafter referred to as ‘J M Baxi’ or ‘Demerged Company’), J M Baxi Container
Holdings Private Limited (hereinafter referred to as ‘J M Baxi Container’ or ‘Resulting Company
1") and J M Baxi Cargo Holdings Private Limited (hereinafter referred to as ‘J M Baxi Dev Co’ or
‘Resulting Company 2’), have appointed Transaction Square Advisory LLP, Registered Valuer -
Securities or Financial Assets (‘Transaction Square’ or ‘TS’ or ‘we’ or ‘us’) to recommend a fair
share entitlement ratio for the following:

1. Proposed demerger of the ‘Identified Container Business’ (as defined hereunder) from J
M Baxi into J M Baxi Container pursuant to a Composite Scheme of Arrangement
(‘Scheme’); and

2. Proposed demerger of ‘Corporate Services Business’ (as defined hereunder) from J M
Baxi into J M Baxi Dev Co pursuant to a Scheme
(hereinafter together referred to as ‘Proposed Transaction’ or ‘Proposed Demerger’)

J M Baxi, J M Baxi Container and J M Baxi Dev Co are together referred to as the ‘Companies’. J
M Baxi Container and J M Baxi Dev Co shall hereinafter together referred to as ‘Resulting
Companies'.

Please find enclosed the 'Report’ (comprising 13 pages) detailing our recommendation of fair
share entitlement ratio for the Proposed Demerger and the assumptions used in our analysis.

This Report sets out our scope of work, background, procedures performed by us, sourcesso
information and our recommendation on the fair share entitlement ratio.

6t Floor, Tower-A, Manikchand lkon, Dhole Patil Road, Pune — 411 001, Maharashtra, India.
info@transactionsquare.in | Websilt?f::1 https://www.transactionsquare.in
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Transaction Square Advisory LLP

Registered Valuer - Securities or Financial Assets

BACKGROUND, SCOPE AND PURPOSE OF THIS REPORT

J M Baxi, incorporated on 6" November 1947, is primarily engaged in the ports and logistics
business directly and indirectly through investments in special purpose vehicles. The business
activities of J M Baxi comprise of projects awarded pursuant to the concession/license
agreements under the public-private-partnership mode entered between the concessioning
authorities/ competent authorities and the special purpose companies with J M Baxi as the
applicant/ selected bidder.

J M Baxi Container is a recently incorporated wholly owned subsidiary of J M Baxi with the
purpose of carrying on the Identified Container Business. We understand that currently it
does not undertake any business operations.

J M Baxi Dev Co is a recently incorporated wholly owned subsidiary of J M Baxi and
management proposes to carry on Corporate Services Business. We understand that
currently it does not undertake any business operations.

The Management of the Companies (hereinafter referred to as ‘Management’) are contemplating
a Scheme, wherein they propose to demerge ‘Identified Container Business’ (‘Demerged
Undertaking 1') and ‘Corporate Services Business’ (‘Demerged Undertaking 2') of J M Baxi into J
M Baxi Container and J M Baxi Dev Co respectively pursuant to the Scheme under section 230 to
232 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) read with the
Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 (‘the Rules’), as
amended from time to time.

We understand that as a consideration for the Proposed Demerger, the Resulting Companies
shall issue and allot equity shares to all the equity shareholders of the Demerged Company in the
share entitlement ratio as determined by the Board of Directors on the basis of share entitlement
ratio Report prepared by a Registered Valuer as required under the applicable provisions of the
Act and accordingly all the equity shareholders of the Demerged Company i.e. J M Baxi shall
become the shareholders of the Resulting Companies i.e. J M Baxi Container & J M Baxi Dev Co.

It is in this regards that the Management has appointed us to determine the share entitlement
ratio and issue a Report for the following:

e Fair share entitlement ratio for the proposed demerger of Identified Container Business
into J M Baxi Container; and

e Fair share entitlement ratio for the proposed demerger of Corporate Services Business
into J M Baxi Dev Co.

We understand that the Appointed Date for the proposed demerger shall be the Effective Date or
such other date as may be fixed or approved by the National Company Law Tribunal or such other
competent authority. We have carried out our analysis and discussion with the Management to
determine the fair share entitlement ratio as at the report date (‘Valuation Date’).

We would like to emphasize that certain terms of the Proposed Demerger are stated in our Report,
however the detailed terms of the Proposed Demerger shall be more fully described and.

considering the facts of the case and Report on the same in accordance with generally ‘Vf
professional standards including ICAl Valuation Standards, 2018 issued by the Institb{e
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl).

The Management has informed us that:

Recommendation of fair share entitlement ratio
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a) There would not be any capital variation in the Demerged Company and the Resulting
Companies till the Proposed Demerger becomes effective without the approval of the
shareholders and other relevant authorities. In the event that either of the Companies
restructure their equity share capital by way of issue of shares/share
split/consolidation/issue of bonus shares before the Proposed Scheme becomes
effective, the issue of shares pursuant to the Share Entitlement Ratio recommended in
this Report shall be adjusted to take into account the effect of any such corporate actions.

b) Till the Proposed Demerger becomes effective, neither of the Companies would declare
any dividend which are materially different from those declared in the past few years.

c) There would be no significant variation between the draft Scheme and the final Scheme
approved and submitted with the relevant authorities.

d) There are no unusual/ abnormal events in the Demerged Company materially impacting
their operating performance/financials after 31 July 2023 till the date of this Report.

e) There are no unusual/ abnormal events in the Resulting Companies materially impacting
their operating performance/financials after 31 December 2023 till the date of this Report

This Report is our deliverable for the said engagement and is subject to the scope, assumptions,
exclusions, limitations and disclaimers detailed hereinafter. As such, the Report is to be read in
totality and in conjunction with the relevant documents referred to therein.

FINANCIAL BACKGROUND

J M Baxi or Demerged Company:

J M Baxi is engaged in providing port and logistics services offering services like cold chain
logistics, rail logistics, bulk logistics, etc. It also operates ports and terminals like Tuticorin
container terminal, Nhava Sheva freeport container terminal, Mumbai container freight station
etc.

The Demerged Company is engaged in broadly 3 categories of businesses:

(i) Container Business (either through itself or through the special purpose vehicles),

(i) Non-Container Business (either through itself or through the special purpose vehicles),
(iii) Corporate Services’ Business

Container Business:

e The Container Business includes container handling and terminal services, inland container
depot services, containerized freight station operations, containerized rail freight services and
related value-added services (i.e., stuffing, destuffing, pre inspection, hatch cover, restow,
priority discharge, custom examination, stacking, destacking, etc).

The Container Business further comprises of:
o Container Freight Station Business (‘CFS Business’) which operates the customs-notified

container freight station on land leased from CIDCO in Dronagiri, Navi Mumbai and the
premise is used for import/export container operations, warehouse operations (cgsg

operators in India and has a Category 3 license from Indian Railways allowing it to offer
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EXIM services from locations of Pipavav, Mundra, Chennai/Ennore, Visakhapatnam and
Kochi ports, their hinterland, and domestic services across India. It operates 4 owned rakes
and 20 leased rakes, linking hinterland with gateway ports, commercial & trade centers and
provides logistics support for containerized cargo.

Business of container handling and terminal services, inland container depot services,
container freight station operations and containerized rail freight services through projects
awarded under concession/license agreements entered between the concessioning
authorities/ competent authorities and special purpose companies incorporated by J M
Baxi. The list of the special purpose companies who have executed these
concession/license agreements with concessioning authorities/ competent authorities are
as follows:

o Kandla International Container Terminal Private Limited (“KICT"):
KICT has entered into a concession agreement dated February 29, 2016, with the Board

of Trustees for Deendayal Port Authority (Erstwhile Kandla Port Trust) to provide for
development, operation and maintenance of container terminal at Berths No. 11 and 12
at Kandla port on public private partnership (“PPP”) mode.

o Haldia International Container Terminal Private Limited (“HICT"):
HICT has entered into an agreement dated October 14, 2015, with the Board of Trustees

of Kolkata Haldia Dock Complex for integrated container handling operations at Haldia
port. It also provides container handling services for shipping lines and vessel operators
on behalf of the Haldia Dock Complex.

o Delhi International Cargo Terminal Private Limited (“DICT"):
DICT operates as an inland container depot and multi-user logistics park that is located

at Sonepat, off the NH-1 on the cargo route to India. The operations include handling of
containerised cargo arriving and departing by railway or by road, stuffing, de-stuffing of
containers, warehouse, cold chain warehouse, customs examination and clearance
facility, etc.

o Visakha Container Terminal Private Limited (“VCT"):
VCT has entered into a concession agreement dated December 17, 2014, with the Board

of Trustees for Visakhapatnam Port for extension of existing container terminal at
Visakhapatnam Port Trust on Design, Build, Finance, Operate and Transfer (“DBFOT")
basis; along with the License Agreement dated September 11, 2002, for establishment
of Container Terminal at Visakhapatnam Port Trust on Build, Operate and Transfer basis,
and lease agreement dated October 30, 2015. It provides container handling facilities
for container ships, berthing facilities for non-container ships visiting the terminal and
renders all related support services. It also operates a container freight station located
at EXIM park, Malkapuram, Visakhapatnam. It provides services relating to cargo
handling, stuffing, de-stuffing, storage, etc.

o Nhava Sheva Freeport Terminal Private Limited (“NSFT"):

concession agreement dated July 29, 2022, with the Jawaharlal Nehru Port Aug
upgradation, operation, maintenance and transfer of Jawaharlal Nehru Port
Terminal on PPP Basis.

o Tuticorin International Container Terminal Private Limited (“TICT"):

Recommendation of fair share entitlement ratio
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TICT has entered into a concession agreement dated September 3, 2022, with the Board
of Authority of V. O. Chidambaram Port for conversion of Berth — IX as container terminal
on DBFOT basis at Tuticorin Port.

Investment of Demerged Company in KICT, HICT, DICT, VCT and TICT shall hereinafter
together referred to as ‘Identified Container SPVs’ and the business of upgradation, operation,
maintenance and transfer of Jawaharlal Nehru Port Container Terminal on PPP Basis, carried
on by J M Baxi through its strategic investment in NSFT shall represent the ‘Retained Container
Business'.

Further, CFS Business, CTO Business along with investment in Identified Container SPVs shall
hereinafter together referred to as ‘Identified Container Business’ or ‘Demerged Undertaking
1.

Non-Container Business:

Non-Container business includes non-container terminal services, marine services, over-
dimensional cargo services, multi-modal logistic parks’ services, non-container marine
operations, bulk terminal business and non-containerised cold chain business, logistic-related
value-added services and cruise terminal management services.

The Non-Container Business further comprises of:

o Rozi Business which comprises of an agreement with the Gujarat Maritime Board for the
construction of jetty/wharf at Jamnagar for the purpose of handling & transportation of
material from/into ships nominated by the licensee.

o Bulk Logistics Business has pioneered a range of inland and port related activities by
providing comprehensive port handling, transport, and logistics services for the complete
range of commodities like fertilizers, sugar, food grains, steel, aluminium, minerals and
others.

o Cold Chain Logistics Business operates a cold storage facility at Sonepat and through
owned space at Nhava Sheva. It provides cold chain storage (general & custom bonded)
and transportation services for agricultural produce, dairy products, meat and poultry,
marine products, organized retail goods, pharmaceuticals, chemicals, processed and
frozen foods and any other products that may require temperature-controlled warehousing
and/or transportation services.

o Strategic investments in following companies:

o Paradip International Cargo Terminal Private Limited (‘PICT’) has executed a concession
agreement dated March 7, 2015, with the Board of Trustees of Paradip Port Trust, for
development of multipurpose berth to handle clean cargo including containers at
Paradip Port on a build operate transfer model.

o J M Baxi Heavy Private Limited (‘'JMBH’) which provides multimodal transportation of
heavy and over dimensional cargo. It specializes in managing end-to-end project

logistics, from planning to the movement of project cargo, over-dimensional carga
3 J .

and in-house engineering design and calculations. It is also involved in proj
forwarding and freight management whereby it provides delivery-at-place|®g
relocation service, delivery of cargo across the world, customs clearance ag
track and trace.
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o J M Baxi Cool Private Limited ('JMB Cool’) has been incorporated for the purpose of
carrying on the business of cold chain operations.

o Nhava Sheva Distribution Terminal Private Limited (‘NSDT’) has entered into a
concession agreement, dated November 15, 2022, with the board of trustees of the
Jawaharlal Nehru Port Authority for upgradation, equipping, operation, maintenance and
transfer of shallow water berth facility and newly constructed coastal berth through PPP
mode.

o Vizag Multipurpose Terminal Private Limited ('VMT’) a 50:50 joint venture with Indian
Potash Limited. VMT has entered into a concession agreement dated March 10, 2023,
with Vishakhapatnam Port Authority for mechanization of EQ-7 Berth through PPP mode
on DBFOT basis.

o Ballard Pier Private Limited (‘BP’) has entered into a concession agreement dated
January 22,2022, with the Board of Trustees for the Port of Mumbai to develop, operate
and for maintain the Mumbai International Cruise Terminal at Indira Dock on DBFOT and
PPP basis.

Corporate Services Business:

The Corporate Services Business includes business of providing management support services
and third-party services to its business divisions, associated companies, and subsidiaries. These
activities include assisting in the formulation and execution of business development strategies,
market analysis, and the preparation of bids for projects in accordance with concessioning and
governmental agreements; engaging with appropriate authorities; planning, executing,
controlling, monitoring projects; project performance management, human resource
management; providing budgeting for business plans, corporate finance and treasury
management strategies; identifying and shortlisting business opportunities, carrying out investor
presentations; providing IT services; managing shared administrative functions and procurement
of regulatory advisory and consultancy services for the subsidiary companies.

Corporate Services Business shall also be referred to as ‘Demerged Undertaking 2.

The equity shareholding pattern of J M Baxi as at the report date is set out below:

No. of equity | .
Name of shareholders shares held % holding

Mr. Krishna B. Kotak 4,44,02,260 41.4%
Mr. Dhruv K. Kotak 76,75,950 7.2%
Mrs. Aditi Kotak 1,00,000 0.1%
Mr. Vir K. Kotak 77,75,950 7.3%
Arya Offshore Services Private Limited 42,20,710 3.9%
K Steamship Agencies Private Limited 1,68,840 0.2%
HL Terminal Holding B.V. 4,28,96,108 40.0%
Total (face value of INR 1 each) 10,72,39,818 100.0%

Source: Information provided by the Management
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.............

The snapshot of the Management certified divisional financial statement of J M Baxi comprising
of Profit & Loss statement and Balance Sheet as at 315 July 2023 is set out below:

Divisional Balance Sheet as at 31 July 2023 INR million
Corporate | Identified Non- Retained
Particulars as at Services | Container | Container | Container Total

Business | Business | Business | Business

Equity and Liabilities

Share capital 107.2
Reserves and surplus 23,966.4
Net Worth 141.6 12,998.2 8,606.1 2,327.7 24,073.6
Current & non-current liabilities

Borrowings - 4,257.2 - - 4,257.2
Lease liabilities 75.8 98.0 183.2 - 356.9
Deferred tax liabilities - - 340.0 - 340.0
Trade payables 151.4 485.6 766.4 - 1,403.4
Other financial liabilities 12.4 246.1 117.8 - 376.2
Provisions 12.2 27.2 9.8 - 492
Other current & non-current liabilities 54.5 112.4 12.0 - 178.9
Total equity and liabilities 447.8 18,224.7 10,035.3 2,327.7 31,035.5
Current & non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 98.8 3,792.3 658.6 - 4,549.8
Intangible assets 0.2 25.6 4.1 - 30.0
Investments - 9,448.7 3,182.4 1,156.3 13,787.4
Tax assets - - 388.9 - 388.9
Loans & advances - 466.8 1,095.3 - 1,562.0
Trade receivables 187.0 789.4 576.9 - 1,553.2
Cash and cash equivalents 141.0 3,242.4 3,680.4 1,157.2 8,221.1
Other financial assets 8.6 169.1 349.5 14.2 541.4
Other current & non-current assets 12.1 2904 99.2 - 401.8
Total assets 447.8 18,224.7 10,035.3 2,327.7 31,035.5

Source: Information provided by the Management

Statement of Profit & Loss for the period ended 31 July 2023 INR million
Corporate | Identified Non- Retained

Services | Container | Container | Container Total
Business | Business | Business | Business

Revenue from Operations 248.5 2,381.9 798.8 23.9 3,453.1
Expenses

Employee benefits expense (150.0) (51.9) (28.8) - (230.7)
Other expenses (72.5) (1,829.5) (543.5) - (2,445.5)
Total expenses (222.5) (1,881.4) (572.3) - (2,676.2)
Operating EBITDA 26.0 500.5 226.5 23.9 776.9
Operating EBITDA (%) 10.5% 21.0% 28.4% 100.0% 22.5%
Depreciation & amortisation (10.1) (93.9) (21.2) - (125.2)
Operating EBIT 15.9 406.6 205.3 23.9 651.8

Source: information provided by the Management
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Transaction Square Advisory LLP

Registered Valuer - Securities or Financial Assets

Resulting Company 1 has been recently incorporated as a wholly owned subsidiary of J M Baxi
for carrying on Container Business activities. We understand that currently it does not

undertake any business operations.

The snapshot of the Management certified balance sheet of J M Baxi Container as at 31%

December 2023 is set out below:

Balance Sheet as at 31 December 2023

INR million

Equity & Liabilities

Share Capital 0.1

Other equity (0.04)
Other current liabilities 0.03
Total liabilities 0.1

Assets

Other current assets 0.1

Total assets 0.1

Source: information provided by the Management

J M Baxi Cargo Holdings Private Limited

Resulting Company 2 has been recently incorporated as a wholly owned subsidiary of J M Baxi
and the Management proposes to carry on Corporate Services Business. We understand that
currently it does not undertake any business operations.

The snapshot of the Management certified balance sheet of J M Baxi Dev Co as at 31stDecember

2023 is set out below:

Balance Sheet as at 31 December 2023

INR million

Equity & Liabilities

Share Capital 0.1

Other equity (0.04)
Other current liabilities 0.03
Total liabilities 0.1

Assets

Other current assets 0.1

Total assets 0.1

Source: information provided by the Management

Recommendation of fair share entitlement ratio
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SOURCES OF INFORMATION

In connection with the recommendation of share entitlement ratio, we have used and relied on
the following information obtained from the Management and/or gathered from public domain:
» Audited financial statements of J M Baxi for the financial year ended 31t March 2023;

* Management certified divisional financial statement of J M Baxi comprising of Profit & Loss
statement and Balance Sheet as at 31 July 2023;

* Management certified balance sheet of J M Baxi Container and J M Baxi Dev Co comprising
as at 31 December 2023;

»  Shareholding pattern of J M Baxi, J M Baxi Container, J M Baxi Dev Co as at the report date;

» Discussion with the Management to understand the rationale and basis for arriving at the
recommended share entitlement ratio;

*  Copy of the Draft Scheme; and
*  Such other information and documents as provided by the Management for the purpose of
this engagement.

Besides the above listing, there may be other information provided by the Management which
may not have been perused by us in detail, if not considered relevant for our defined scope.

We have also considered/obtained such other analysis, review, explanations and information
considered reasonably necessary for our exercise, from the Management.

The Management of the Transacting Companies have been provided with the opportunity to
review the draft Report (excluding the recommended share entitlement ratio) as part of our
standard practice to make sure that factual inaccuracy/ omissions are avoided in our Report.

PROCEDURES ADOPTED

Procedures used in our analysis included such substantive steps as we considered necessary
under the circumstances, including, but not necessarily limited to the following:
* Considered the draft Scheme;

* Considered Management certified divisional financial statement of J M Baxi as at 315t July
2023;

» Considered Management certified balance sheet of J M Baxi Container and J M Baxi Dev Co
as at 31 December 2023;

» Considered capital structure of J M Baxi Container and J M Baxi Dev Co i.e. equity shares
held by J M Baxi in the Resulting Companies as on the report date;

» Discussions with the Management to obtain requisite explanation and clarification of data
provided;

* Analysis of other facts and data as considered necessary; and

» Determined the fair share entitlement ratio in discussions with the Management, for j&$
equity shares of J M Baxi Container and J M Baxi Dev Co to the shareholders of J |4
consideration for the Proposed Demerger. ;

Recommendation of fair share entitlement ratio
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SCOPE LIMITATIONS, ASSUMPTIONS, QUALIFICATIONS, EXCLUSIONS AND DISCLAIMERS

Provision of valuation opinions and consideration of the issues described herein are areas of our
regular practice. The services do not represent accounting, assurance, accounting/ tax due
diligence, consulting or tax related services that may otherwise be provided by us.

This Report, its contents and the results herein are specific and subject to:

e the purpose of valuation agreed as per the terms of this engagement;

e the date of this Report; and

e based on the Sources of Information outlined above including information provided by the
Management of the Companies which we believe to be reliable.

The Management of J M Baxi have represented that the business activities of J M Baxi have been
carried out in the normal and ordinary course between 31 July 2023 and report date. Further, no
material adverse change has occurred in the respective financial position between 31 July 2023
and report date. Further, the Management of the Resulting Companies have represented that the
business activities of the Resulting Companies have been carried out in the normal and ordinary
course between 31 December 2023 and report date. Further, no material adverse change has
occurred in the respective financial position between 31 December 2023 and report date.

A value analysis of this nature is based on information made available to us as of the date of this
Report, events occurring after that date hereof may affect this Report and the assumptions used
in preparing it, and we do not assume any obligation to update, revise or reaffirm this Report.

The recommendation(s) rendered in this Report only represent our recommendation(s) based
upon information furnished by the Management till the date of this Report and other sources, and
the said recommendation(s) shall be considered to be in the nature of non-binding advice (our
recommendation should not be used for advising anybody to take buy or sell decision, for which
specific opinion needs to be taken from expert advisors).

In the course of our analysis, we were provided with both written and verbal information, by the
Management as detailed in the section- Sources of Information.

In accordance with the terms of our engagement, we have assumed and relied upon, without
independent verification of,

e the accuracy of information made available to us by the Management, which formed a
substantial basis for this Report; and
e the accuracy of information that was publicly available.

We have not carried out a due diligence or audit or review of the Companies for the purpose of
this engagement, nor have we independently investigated or otherwise verified the data provided.

We are not legal or regulatory advisors with respect to legal and regulatory matters for the
proposed demerger. We do not express any form of assurance that the financial information or
other information as prepared and provided by the Management is accurate. Also, with respect
to explanations and information sought from the Management, we have been given to understand
by the Management that they have not omitted any relevant and material factors and that they
have checked the relevance or materiality of any specific information to the present exercise with
us in case of any doubt. Accordingly, we do not express any opinion or offer any form of
assurance regarding its accuracy and completeness.

Recommendation of fair share entitlement ratio
for proposed demerger Page 10 of 13
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The determination of a share entitlement ratio is not a precise science and the conclusions
arrived at in many cases will, of necessity, be subjective and dependent on the exercise of
individual judgement. This concept is also recognized in judicial decisions. There is, therefore, no
indisputable single share entitlement ratio. While we have provided our recommendation of the
proposed share entitlement ratio(s) based on the information available to us and within the scope
and constraints of our engagement, others may have a different opinion. The final responsibility
for the determination of the share entitlement ratio for the Proposed Demerger shall be with the
Companies.

Our conclusions are based on these assumptions and information given by/ on behalf of the
Management. The Management of the Companies have indicated to us that they have
understood that any omissions, inaccuracies or misstatements may materially affect our
recommendation. Accordingly, we assume no responsibility for any errors in the information
furnished by the Management and their impact on the Report. Also, we assume no responsibility
for technical information (if any) furnished by the Management. However, nothing has come to
our attention to indicate that the information provided was materially misstated/ incorrect or
would not afford reasonable grounds upon which to base the Report. We do not imply and it
should not be construed that we have verified any of the information provided to us, or that our
inquiries could have verified any matter, which a more extensive examination might disclose.

We must emphasize that pursuant to the Scheme, upon completion of the Proposed Demerger,
the Resulting Company 1 and Resulting Company 2 each shall issue equity shares to all the equity
shareholders of the Demerged Company. Given that share entitlement ratio would not have any
bearing on the ultimate economic interest post implementation of the Proposed Demerger, since
the ultimate beneficiary would in addition to its equity shareholding in the Demerged Company
receive equity shares from the Resulting Companies and would hold 100% economic interest
either directly or indirectly in both the Demerged Company as well as the Resulting Companies.
We have therefore not independently carried out the fair valuation of equity shares of the
Companies for the purpose of our analysis.

The Report assumes that the Companies comply fully with relevant laws and regulations
applicable in all its areas of operations and that the Companies will be managed in a competent
and responsible manner. Further, except as specifically stated to the contrary, this Report has
given no consideration on to matters of a legal nature, including issues of legal title and
compliance with local laws and litigation and other contingent liabilities that are not recorded in
the financial statements of the Companies.

This Report does not look into the business/ commercial reasons behind the Proposed Demerger
nor the likely benefits arising out of the same. Similarly, the Report does not address the relative
merits of the Proposed Demerger as compared with any other alternative business transaction,
or other alternatives, or whether or not such alternatives could be achieved or are available. This
Report is restricted to recommendation of share entitlement ratio for the Proposed Demerger
only.

Certain terms of the Proposed Demerger are stated in our Report, however the detailed terms of
the Proposed Demerger shall be more fully described and explained in the Scheme document to
be submitted with relevant authorities in relation to the Proposed Demerger. Accordingly, the
description of the terms and certain other information contained herein is qualified in its entirety
by reference to the Scheme document.

The fee for the Engagement is not contingent upon the results reported.

Recommendation of fair share entitlement ratio
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We owe responsibility only to the Board of Directors of J M Baxi, J M Baxi Container and J M Baxi
Dev Co, who have appointed us, and nobody else. We do not accept any liability to any third party
in relation to the issue of this Report. It is understood that this analysis does not represent a
fairness opinion. In no circumstance shall the liability of TS exceed the amount as agreed in our
Engagement Letter.

This share entitlement ratio Report is subject to the laws of India.

Neither the Report nor its contents may be referred to or quoted in any registration statement,
prospectus, offering memorandum, annual report, loan agreement or other agreement or
document given to third parties, without our prior written consent other than in connection with
the Proposed Transaction. In addition, we express no opinion or recommendation as to how the
shareholders of the Companies should vote at any shareholders' meeting(s) to be held in
connection with the Proposed Transaction. Our Report and the opinion contained herein is not
and nor should it be construed as advice relating to investing in, purchasing, selling, or otherwise
dealing in securities or as providing management services or carrying out management
functions.

Neither the Report nor its contents may be referred to or quoted in any registration statement,
prospectus, offering memorandum, annual report, loan agreement or other agreement or
document given to third parties, other than in connection with the purpose of recommending the
share entitlement ratio for the proposed demerger and relevant filings with the statutory
authorities with respect to the proposed demerger, without our prior written consent.

RATIONALE FOR SHARE ENTITLEMENT RATIO

As mentioned earlier, as a part of the Scheme, the Identified Container Business and Corporate
Services Business from J M Baxi is proposed to be demerged into J M Baxi Container and J M
Baxi Dev Co respectively. J M Baxi has identified all the assets and liabilities of the Identified
Container Business and Corporate Services Business, which are to be taken over by and
transferred to J M Baxi Container and J M Baxi Dev Co respectively.

In view of the above and considering that the Demerged Company intends to hold the existing
capital currently held in the Resulting Companies we note that Proposed Demerger will not have
any impact on the beneficial economic interest of the shareholders of J M Baxi as the equity
shareholders of J M Baxi would continue to have the same beneficial economic interest in the
Resulting Companies and Demerged Companies by way of direct equity ownership and indirect
equity ownership. As the Proposed Demerger will not affect the beneficial economic interest of
the equity shareholders of J M Baxi, valuation of J M Baxi, Identified Container Division, Corporate
Services Business, J M Baxi Container and J M Baxi Dev Co has no bearing on the recommended
share entitlement ratio and accordingly, we have not carried out any valuation in the instant case.

Recommendation of fair share entitlement ratio
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RECOMMENDATION OF SHARE ENTITLEMENT RATIO

Taking into account the above facts and circumstance, any share entitlement ratio can be
considered appropriate and fair for the Proposed Demerger. Accordingly, basis our review,
information made available to us, minimising fractional entitlement in hands of equity
shareholders and discussion with the Management, we recommend the following share
entitlement ratio:

Demerger of Identified Container Business from J M Baxi into J M Baxi Container:

“1 (One) Equity Share of J M Baxi Container of face value of INR 1 each fully paid up shall be issued
for every 1 (One) equity share held in J M Baxi having face value of INR 1 each fully paid up”,

Demerger of Corporate Services Business from J M Baxi into J M Baxi Dev Co:

“1 (One) Equity Share of J M Baxi Dev Co of face value of INR 1 each fully paid up shall be issued
for every 1 (One) equity share held in J M Baxi having face value of INR 1 each fully paid up”,

We believe that the above ratio is fair considering that all the shareholders of J M Baxi as on the
record date of the Scheme are and will, upon Demerger, be the ultimate beneficial owners of J M
Baxi Container and J M Baxi Dev Co in the same ratio directly and indirectly as they hold shares
in J M Baxi.

Respectfully submitted,

Transaction Square Advisory LLP
Registered Valuer - Securities or Financial Assets
IBBI Registration Number — IBBI/RV-E/06/2023/194

Nira nja N Digitally signed
. by Niranjan
S”d ha ra Sridharan Kumar
Date: 2024.02.29

n Kumar 12:41:00 +0530

Niranjan Kumar

Partner
IBBI Registration Number — IBBI/RV/06/2018/10137
Date: 29 February 2024 UDIN: 24121635BJZZAD6941
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Annexure D1

Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of J M Baxi Ports & Logistics Private Limited (Earlier known as JM
Baxi Ports & Logistics Limited)

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of J M Baxi Ports & Logistics
Private Limited (Earlier known as J M Baxi Ports & Logistics Limited) (“the Company”), which
comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including
Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash
Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material accounting
policy information and other explanatery information.

2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2024, and total comprehensive income (comprising of profit and other comprehensive
income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

3. We conducted our aundit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
“Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements” section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code
of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Information

4. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Board’s report, but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard. V4 T

Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP, Nesco IT Building I11, 7th & 8th Floor, Nesco IT Park, Nesco Complex
Gate No. 3, Western Express Highway, Goregaon East, Mumbai — 400 063
T: +91 (22) 61198000, F: +91 (22} 61198799

Registerad office and Head office: 11-A, Vishnu Digamber Marg, Sucheta Bhawan, Gale Mo 2, New Delhi - 110002

Price Waterhouse (a Partnership Firm) converted into Price Watertiouse Charlered Accountants LLF (a Limited Liability Partnership with LLP identity ro: LLPIN AAC-5001)
with affect from July 25, 2014, Post its conversion to Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP, its IGAI registration numbar is 012754M/M5000716 {ICAI reglstration
number before conversion was 012754N)
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Responsibilities of management and those charged with governanece for the financial
statements

5. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and
fair view of the financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in aceordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

6. In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. Those Board of
Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

7. Our objectives are to obtain reasconable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasconable assurance is a high level of assurance but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

8. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit, We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

9. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Other Matter

10.The standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2023, were
audited by another firm of chartered accountants under the Act who, vide their report dated
August 22, 2023, expressed an unmodified opinion on those financial statements.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

11. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the
Annexure B a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent
applicable.

12. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.
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(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

()

(g)

(h)

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the
aforesaid standalone financial statements have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors, except
for the matters stated in paragraph 12(h)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended). (“the Rules”). Further, in the
absence of sufficient appropriate audit evidence, we are unable to verify whether the backup
of certain books of account and other books and papers maintained in electronic mode has
been maintained on a daily basis on servers physically located in India during the period 1st
April 2023 to 30th September 2023.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive
income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on April 1, 2024,
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March
31, 2024, from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

with respect to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith,
reference is made to our remarks in paragraph 12(b) above on reporting under Section
143(3)(b) and paragraph 12(h)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Rules.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexure A”.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in

its financial statements — Refer Note 31.1 to the financial statements.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

{ii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2024.
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iv. (a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in Note 54(a)(vii) to the standalone financial statements, no funds have
been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium
or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in the Note 54(a)(vii) to the standalone financial statements, no funds have
been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

{¢) Based on such audit procedures that we considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that
the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.

v. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.

vi. Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used multiple
accounting software for maintaining its books of account which have a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and that has operated throughout the year for all
relevant transactions recorded in the software, except that (a)in the case of three
accounting software, the audit trail feature was not enabled throughout the financial
year, (b) in respect of one other accounting software, the audit trail was not maintained
throughout the financial year for direct database changes; and (c) in respect of two other
accounting software, the audit trail is not maintained throughout the financial year in
case of modification by certain users with specific access.

Further, the database of one accounting software has been hosted by a third-party service
provider, and in the absence of any comment in the service organisation’s auditor’s
report on audit trail (edit log) for direct changes made at the database level, we are
unable to comment on whether the audit trail feature at the database level for the
aforesaid software was enabled.

During the course of performing our procedures in respect of the aforesaid accounting
software, except for the aforesaid instances of audit trail not maintained where the
question of our commenting on whether the audit trail has been tampered with does not
arise, we did not notice any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with in cases
where the audit trail feature was enabled.
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13. The Company has paid/ provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite
approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act. The
Company ceased to be a public company from July 26, 2023 onwards, hence a private company
and accordingly reporting under Section 197(16) of the Act is not applicable to the Company
subsequent to July 26, 2023.

For Price Waterhouse€hartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registraf6n Xumber: 012754N/N500016

A Priyan u Gundana

epibership Number: 109553
IN: 24100553BKGQXI5034

Mumbai
June 21, 2024
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Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements under
clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

1. We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of J M Baxi
Ports & Logistics Private Limited (Earlier known as J M Baxi Ports & Logistics Limited) (“the
Company”) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2. The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (“the Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These respensibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors,
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the
Act to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls and both issued by the ICAI Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Qur audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to financial
statements. ‘
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

6. A company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes
those policies and procedures that (1} pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial
statements

7. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8. In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by ICAIL

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Numbew 012754N/N500016
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In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and furnished by the Company, and the books
of account and records examined by us during the course of our audit, and to the best of our knowledge
and belief, we report that:

i. (a) (A) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation, of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of Intangible Assets.

(b} The Property, Plant and Equipment are physically verified by the Management according to a
phased programme designed to cover all the items over a period of three years which, in our
opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.
Pursuant to the programme, a portion of the Property, Plant and Equipment has been physically
verified by the Management during the year and no material discrepancies have been noticed on
such verification.

(¢) The title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is the
lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee), as disclosed in Note
a(a) to the financial statements, are held in the name of the Company. Also, the Company owns
self - constructed immovable properties (Building) built on leasehold land and accordingly there
are no title deeds in respect of aforesaid immovable properties.

{(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets)
or intangible assets or both during the vear. Consequently, the question of our commenting on
whether the revaluation is based on the valuation by a Registered Valuer, or specifying the
amount of change, if the change is 10% or more in the aggregate of the net carrying value of each
class of Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets does
not arise.

(e) Based on the information and explanations furnished to us, no proceedings have been initiated on
against the Company for holding benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property
Transactions Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) (formerly the Benami Transactions {Prohibition)
Act, 1988 (45 of 1988)) and Rules made thereunder, and therefore the question of our
commenting on whether the Company has appropriately disclosed the details in the financial
statements does not arise.

ii. (a) The Company is in the business of rendering services and, consequently, does not hold any
inventory. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(b) During the year, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores,
in aggregate, from banks on the basis of security of current assets. The Company has filed
quarterly returns or statements with such banks, which are not in agreement with the unaudited
books of aceount as set out below. Also, refer Note 51 to the financial statements.
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(Antount in lakhs)

Name of the
Bank/
Financial
Institution

Aggregate
working
capital
limits
sanctioned

Nature of
Current Asset
offered as
Security

Amount
disclosed
as per
quarterly
return/
statement

Quarter
ended

Amount
as per
books of
account

Difference

Reasons
for
difference

Yes Bank /
Axis Bank

5,600

Loans and
Advances,
Trade
Receivables,
Revenues,
Cash Flows,
Bank
Accounts,
Cash and
Bank
Balances,
Insurance
Contracts.

June 2023 1,220

1,979

759

Refer

Note 1

Yes Bank /
Axis Bank

5,600

Yes Bank /
Axis Bank

5,600

Loans and
Advances,
Trade
Receivables,
Revenues,
Cash Flows,
Bank
Accounts,
Cash and
Bank
Balances,
Insurance
Contracts.

Loans and
Advances,
Trade
Receivables,
Revenues,
Cash Flows,
Bank
Accounts,
Cash and
Bank
Balances,
Insurance
Contracts.

September 3,169

2023

December 5,808

2023

3,582

7,515

73

1,617

Refer

Note1

Refer

Note 1
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(Amount in lakhs)

Name of
the Bank/
Financial
Institution

Ageregate
working
capital
limits
sanctioned

Nature of
Current Asset
offered as
Security

Quarter
ended

Amount
disclosed
as per
quarterly
return/
statement

Amount
as per
books of
account

Difference

Reasons
for
difference

i
| Yes Bank /
| Axis Bank

\
i

5,600

Loans and
Advances,
Trade
Receivables,
Revenues,
Cash Flows,
Bank
Accounts,
Cash and Bank
Balances,
Insurance
Contracts.

March
2024

4,450

4,198

(252)

i
Refer Note
1

Note 1: The returns filed by the company was based on the pre-book closure.
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iii. (a) The Company has made investments in seven companies, granted unsecured loans to six

companies, or stood guarantee to one company. The aggregate amount during the year, and
balance outstanding at the balance sheet date with respect to such loans or advances and
guarantees or security to subsidiaries and joint venture are as per the table given below:

Guarantees

Security

Loans

Advances
in nature
of loans

Aggregate amount
granted/ provided during
the year

- Subsidiaries
- Joint Venture

Subsidiaries —

(a)} Ballard Pier
Private Limited
- Rs. 19,500
lakhs

(b) Nhava Sheva
Distribution
Terminal Private
Limited — Rs.

Nil

Subsidiaries —

(a)

(b)

Ballard Pier
Private
Limited — Rs.
2,065 lakhs
Haldia
International
Container
Terminal

Nil

Private
Limited — Rs.
546 lakhs
(¢} Tuticorin
International
Container
Terminal
Private
Limited — Rs.
6,240 lakhs
{(d) J M Baxi
Heavy Private
Limited — Rs.
605 lakhs
Nhava Sheva
Distribution
Terminal
Private
Limited — Rs.
1,828.5 lakhs
Joint Venture

{a) Visakha
Multipurpose
Terminal
Private
Limited — Rs.
300 lakhs

1,029.09 lakhs

(e)
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Guarantees

Security

Loans

Advances
in nature
of loans

Balance outstanding as at
balance sheet date in
respect of the above case

- Subsidiaries
- Joint Venture

Subsidiaries —

(a) Ballard Pier
Private Limited
— Rs. 19,500
lakhs

{b) Nhava Sheva
Distribution
Terminal Private
Limited — Nil

Nil

Subsidiaries —

(a) Ballard Pier
Private
Limited — Rs.
4,109.55 lakhs

(b} Haldia
International
Container
Terminal
Private
Limited — Rs.
4,417.76 lakhs

{¢) Tuticorin
International
Container
Terminal
Private
Limited — Rs.
8,824.92
lakhs

(d} JM Baxi
Heavy Private
Limited - Rs.
5:488.39
lakhs

{e) Nhava Sheva
Distribution
Terminal
Private
Limited — Rs,
2,347.27 lakhs

Joint Ventures —

(a) Visakha
Multipurpose
Terminal
Private
Limited — Rs.
6.57 lakhs

Nil
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(b) In respect of the aforesaid investments/guarantees/loans, the terms and conditions under which
such loans were granted/investments were made/guarantees provided are not prejudicial to the
Company’s interest.

(¢) Inrespect of the loans/advances in nature of loan, the schedule of repayment of principal and
payment of interest has been stipulated by the Company. Except for the following instances, the
parties are repaying the principal amounts, as stipulated, and are also regular in payment of
interest as applicable.

Name of the Amount | Due Date Date of Extent of Remarks ‘

entity (in payment | delay (if any)
lakhs) | |

Paradip 896.94 12 - - NA |

International September

Cargo Terminal 2022 '

Private Limited |

Vizag 6.57 14 - - NA
Multipurpose [ September ‘
Terminal Private | 2023

Limited

(d) Inrespect of the loans, there is no amount which is overdue for more than ninety days.

{e) There were no loans which have fallen due during the year and were renewed/extended. Further,
no fresh loans were granted to same parties to settle the existing overdue loans.
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(f) Following loans were granted during the year, including to promoters/related parties under
Section 2(76), which are repayable on demand or where no schedule for repayment of principal
and payment of interest has been stipulated by the Company.

All Parties Promoters Related Parties
Aggregate of loans Repayable on Nil Repayable on
d d{A d d(A
- Repayable on demand emand (A) emand ()
(A) Paradip Paradip
d International Cargo International Cargo
- Agreement does not Terminal Private Terminal Private
specify any terms or Limited — Rs. Limited - Rs.
period of repayment (B) | go6.94 lakhs 896.94 lakhs
Vizag Multipurpose Vizag Multipurpose
Terminal Private Terminal Private
Limited — Rs. 6.57 Limited - Rs. 6.57
lakhs lakhs
J M Baxi Heavy J M Baxi Heavy
Private Limited - Private Limited -
Rs. 220 lakhs Rs. 220 lakhs
Total (A+B} 1,123.51 Nil 1,123.51
Percentage of loans to the | 4.62% Nil 4.62%
total loans

(Also, refer Note 12 to the financial statements)

iv.  The Company is engaged in providing infrastructural facilities as specified in Schedule VI to the
Act and accordingly, the provisions of Section 186, except sub section (1), of the Act are not
applicable to the Company. In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations
given to us, the Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186(1) of the Act
in respect of the loans and investments made and guarantees and security provided by it.

v, The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits
referred in Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under.
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vi, The Central Government of India has not specified the maintenance of cost records under sub-
section (1) of Section 148 of the Act for any of the services of the Company. Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

vii. (a) In our opinion, the Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues in
respect of income tax, provident fund though there has been a slight delay in a few cases, and is
regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including provident fund, employees’ state
insurance, sales tax, income tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess,
goods and services tax and other material statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate
authorities.

(b) The particulars of statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) as at March 31, 2024 which have not
been deposited on account of a dispute, are as follows:
Name of | Nature ‘ Gross Amount | Period to | Forum where | Remarks,
the of dues | Amount paid which the | the disputeis | ifany
statute (Rs. in under amount pending
lakhs) protest | relates
(Rs.in |
lakhs)
Income Income 101.14 - AY 2018-19 | Commissioner of | NA
Tax Act, Tax Income tax
1961 (Appeals)
Income Income 188.46 - AY 2017-18 | Commissioner of | NA
Tax Act, Tax Income tax
1961 (Appeals)
Income Income 11.41 - AY 2013-14 | Commissioner of | NA
Tax Act, Tax Income tax
1961 (Appeals)
Income Income 72.56 - AY 2021-22 | Commissioner of | NA
Tax Act, Tax Income tax
1961 (Appeals)
The Service | 427.82 25.00 FY 2013-14 | Customs, Excise | NA
Finance Tax and Service Tax
Act, 1994 Appellate
Tribunal
viii. There are no transactions previously unrecorded in the books of account that have been

surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax

Act, 1961,
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ix. (a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

4

x. (a}

xi.

(b)

(a)

(b)

(c)

xii.

interest to any lender during the year.

On the basis of our audit procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared Wilful
Defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.

In our opinion, the term loans have been applied for the purposes for which they were obtained.
(Also, refer Note 54(b)(ii} to the financial statements)

According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us,
and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report that no
funds raised on short-term basis have been utilised for long-term purposes by the Company.

On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report that the
Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the
obligations of its subsidiaries or joint ventures.

According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we
report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in
its subsidiaries or joint ventures.

The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has made a private placement of shares during the year, in compliance with the
requirements of Section 42 and Section 62 of the Act. The funds raised have been used for the
purpose for which funds were raised.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, we have neither come across
any instance of material fraud by the Company or on the Company, noticed or reported during
the year, nor have we been informed of any such case by the Management.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, a report under Section 143(12)
of the Act, in Form ADT-4, as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors} Rules,
2014 was not required to be filed with the Central Government. Accordingly, the reporting under
clause 3(xi)(b} of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and as represented to us by the
management, no whistle-blower complaints have been received during the year by the Company.
Accordingly, the reporting under clanse 3(¢) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it, the
reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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Xiii. The Company was a Public Company till July 25, 2023. Accordingly till July 25, 2023, the
Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the provisions of
Sections 177 and 188 of the Act. The details of related party transactions have been disclosed in
the financial statements as required under Indian Accounting Standard 24 “Related Party
Disclosures specified under Section 133 of the Act. Since, the Company became Private Company
w.e.f. July 26, 2023 as defined under section 2(68) of the Act and has entered into transactions
only with the related parties covered under section 2(76)(viii). Consequently, the provisions of
section 188 are not applicable to the Company. Further, the Company is not required to constitute
an Audit Committee under Section 177 of the Act. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xiii)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xiv. (a) In our opinion, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature
of its business.

(b) The Internal Audit Reports have been considered by us for the purpose of our audit to the extent
those were made available to us.

Xv. In our opinion, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or
persons connected with him. Accordingly, the reporting on compliance with the provisions of
Section 192 of the Act under clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xvi. (a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

{b) The Company has not conducted non-banking financial / housing finance activities during the
year. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi}(b} of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(¢) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the
Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi){(c) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(d) Based on the information and explanations provided by the management of the Company, the
Group (as defined in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank} Directions, 2016) does not
have any CICs, which are part of the Group. We have not, however, separately evaluated whether
the information provided by the management is accurate and complete. Accordingly, the
reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xvii.  The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the financial year or in the immediately
preceding financial year.

xviii.  There has been no resignation of the statutory aunditors during the year and accordingly the
reporting under clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.
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Xix.

On the basis of the financial ratios (refer Note 47 to the financial statements), ageing and
expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other
information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions,
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists
as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing
at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit
report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date will get discharged by the Company as and when
they fall due.

As at balance sheet date, the Company does not have any amount remaining unspent under
Section 135(5) of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx) of the Order is not
applicable.

The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of
Standalone Financial Statements. Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said clause has been
included in this report.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

r: N500016/012754N

mbership Number: 109553
IN: 24109553BKGQXI5034

Plade: Mumbai
Date: June 21, 2024
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} M Baxi Ports & Logistics Private Limited
(Earfier known as J M Baxi Ports & Logistics Limited)

Standalone Balance Sheet

(All amount are in ¥ lakhs, unless staled otherwise)

Notes 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Assels
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3{a) 319.691.76 36,248 99
Ripht-of-nse assels 3ib) 6,874.59 4,792.07
Capilel work-in-propress 3{a) 78.21 1,669.08
Onher intangible assets 4 328.58 34181
Iizangible assets under development 4 3,389.85 166 80
Financial assets
(i) Investments 5 1,54,104.28 1,30,202 38
(1) Loans 6 23,174,837 15,986 16
{iii} Other financial assets 7 1.468.68 1.307 29
Non-current tax assels (net) 43 339158 3,470 06
Other non-current assels 8 3.045.90 99027
Total non-current assets 2,41,548.30 19517491
Current assels
Financial assets
{i} Trade receivables 9 18,280.97 13,481 97
{ii) Cash and cash equivalents 0 3.161.21 12,002 73
(iii) Bank balances olher than cash and cash equivalents 11 42,444.39 1013534
{iv) Loans 12 1,123.51) 242130
(v) Other financial assets i3 10,112.92 4,653 70
Other curren) assets 4 2,720.94 4,260 64
Total current asseis TT.845.94 37835366
Total Assets 3.19.392.24 2,33.008.57
Equity and liabilities
Equiry
Equiry share capilal 15 1.0672.39 48969
Instruments entitely equity in nature 154 - 56853
Other equity 16 2,43,603.69 1.42.652 .30
Total equity 2,44.676.08 1.43.711 02
Non-current liabilities
Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 17 J5,897.23 36,372 38
(ii} Lease liabilities 33 £,296.66 2,912 06
{1t} Other financial labilities 18 3,323,45 2.012 64
Deferred 1ax liabilivies {net} 43 +364.24 225801
Other non-current Habilities 19 41,87 43.07
Toral non-current liabilities 48,923.45 43,003 16
Current liabilities
Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 20 9,279.90 2781477
{ii) Lease liabilities 33 883,51 82069
(iii) Trade payables 21
(A} total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 269.38 14273
{B} toral autsianding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 11,908.7¢ 13,308 03
(iv) Other Minancial liabilities 22 1.600,97 1,620.08
Provisions 23 574148 384 09
Other curreni Labilittes 24 1,275.38 1.604 00
Total current liabilities 25,7917 45,604 39
Total liabilities 74,716, 16 89,297.55
Total equity and liabilities 3.19,392.24 2.33,008.57
The above dalone bal. sheet should be read in conjuction with the accompanying notes
Marerial accounting policies |-2
Notes to the standalone financial statements 3-54

As per our report of even date anached

For and on behall of the Board of Divectors of
Accountants LLP J M Baxi Ports & Logistics Private Limited
NINSDO0 6 CIN: V63090MH1947PTC251291

For Price Waterhous
Firm Registration

a
2 Lt
-
Privanshu 'y K. B. Kotak D. K. Kotak J.K. Gupta i
Partner Directer Managing Director Chuef Financial Compipy Seeretary
Officer
Mmbfrship oo 1009553 DIN: (10788 DIN: (0013988 Membership No
| Mumbai A2399]

Date\ 21 June 2024
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J M Baxi Ports & Logistics Private Limited
(Earlier known as J M Baxi Ports & Logistics Limited)

Standalone Statement of Profit and loss
(All amount are in ¥ lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

Nuotes Year ended Year ended
3t March 2024 31 March 2023

Income

Revenue from operations 25 97,716.60 84.473.59
Other income 26 $,399.60 3,582.48
Total income 1.06,116.20 88,056.07
Expenses

Construction Cost 3.270.33 166.80
Employee benefits expense 27 7.204,23 4,793.97
Finance costs 28 5317.54 4,539.46
Depreciation and amortisation expense 29 4,266.14 347092
Other expenses 30 75,071.79 69 982 14
Total expenses 95,130.03 8295329
Profit before exceptional itemn and tax 10.986.17 5,102.78
Exceptional Ftems 50

Net impairment tosses on financizl and contract assets 287.00 3.188.00
Others - 1.072.20
Total Exceptional ltems 287.00 4.260.20
Profit before tax from continning operations 14,699.17 842.58

Income tax expense:

Current tax 43 1,268.49 -
Deferred tax 43 2,135.60 433.29
Excess provision of Income Tax for earlier years 43 - (196.87)
Total tax expense 3.404.09 23642
Profit for the year 7,295.08 606.16

Other comprehensive income
A [tems that will not be reclassified to prolit or loss

Remeasurement of pest employment benefit cbligations 34 (116.69) 184.52

Income tax relating to these items 43 29.37 (46.44)
Other comprehensive (loss) f income for the year, net of tax {§7.32) 138.08
Total comprehensive income for the vear 7.207.76 744 24

Earnings per equity share attributable to owners
Basic earnings per share {Rs.) 32 6.99 1.24
Diluted carings per share (Rs.) 6.81 057

The above standalone statement of Profit and Loss should be read in conjuction with the accompanying notes

Material accounting policies 1-2
Notes to the standalone financial statements 3j-5
As per our report of even date attached

For and on behall of the Board of Directors of
For Price Waterhofise Chartered Accountants LLP J M Baxi Ports & Logistics Private Limited
Firm Registratigh Ng? 012734NMN300016 CIN: LaJ090MHI1947PTC251291

e

K. B. Kotak D. K. Kotak S
Drrector Managing Director Chief Financial Comparly Setretary
Officer
DIN: 00010788 DIN: 00013988 Membership No
AZ23991

tef 21 June 2024 164



J M Baxi Ports & Logistics Private Limited
(Earlier known as J M Baxi Ports & Logistics Limited)

Standalone Statement of Cash flows

{All amount are in ¥ lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax

Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation expense

Finance costs
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment {net}

Fair value gain on remeasurement of investments in preference shares measored at amortised cost
[nterest income under effective interest rate method on financial assets measured at amortised cost

-Bank deposits

-Inter-corporate deposits (Refer Note 38)

Commission on financial guaraniees

Reversal an cancellation/modification of financial guarantee

Excess provisions/credit balances written back

Unwinding of intersst cost on security deposns taken

Provision for expected credit losses

Sundry balances written off

GST/Service tax credit reversed

Bad debt wriiten off

Income on lease remeasurement

Unwinding intersst income op securily deposit

Giratuity Expensef{Reversal) of excess provision for gratuity

Compensated absences Reversal} of excess provision for compensated absences
Unwinding interest income on finance lease receivable [Refer Note 33 (k))
Inlerest on income tax refund

Rental income

Wet impairment losses on financial and contract assets

Working capital adjustments

{Tncrease} in trade receivables
Increase/{Decrease} in trade payable
Increasedi Ciecrease} in provisions

Decreased [ncrease} in other financial assels
(Increase)/decrease in other assets
Increasef{decrease ) in financial ltabilities
Increasef{decrease} m other habililies
Change in working capital

Cash ftow generated from/{used in) operations
Income taxes paid (net}

Net cash fMlow generated frem/(used in) operating activities (A}

Cash flow from investing activities

Payment for property, plant and equipment including capital work-in-progress, intangible asset, intangible asset under

development, capital advance and relention money paid
Proceed from sale of property, plant and equipment
Loans to related parties

(nterest received in bank and inter-corporate deposit
Bank deposils

Purchase of investments

Net cash flows (used in) investing activities {B)

165

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

10,699.17 24258
4,266.14 347092
5.317.54 4,539.46

166.91 (62,52}
(524.50) (77995

4,617.23) (15129

(1.835,62) (1.426.13)
(534.47) (75012
(633.65) .

(24.84) (48.45)
- 570
223.01 76100
102,12 26546
613.06 35911
S 16.99
- (8542)
(11.61) i3.82)
= (22.87)
- {12.36)
(50.54) s
(107.07) (156.87)
(6.20)
287.00 3,188.00

13334.22 9,549 42

(5,129,13) {1,450.13)

(1,247.76) 271836

73,70 £95.70)
469,69 (55221
23843 £1,703.00}

(375.38) 17.34
(328.62) 41372

6.299.07) (651.62)
7,035.15 9,297 .80

(1,190.00) 391.41
5,845.15 9,689 21

(12,853.27) (6.102 40)

19.12 103.67
534,08 (9,626 96)

6,559.92 1,577 42

(50,247.99) (975.96)
(27,541.93) (11,565.11)
(83,530.07) (26,389 34)




J M Baxi Ports & Logistics Private Limited
(Earfier Imown as J M Baxi Porrs & Logistics Limited)

Standalone Statement of Cash flows (Continued)

{Currency: Rupees in lakhs }

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings 708053 29,459 00
Repayment of borrowings (26,068.00) (4,540 96)
Principal element of lease payment (1.515.23) (1,101 66)
Proceeds towards allotment of shares 95,589.45 -
Share 1ssue expenses (1,352.16) -
interest paid {4,891.17) (4,082 01)
MNet cash Now (used in)/zenerated from financing activities (C) 68,843,42 19,734 37
Net {decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (8,341.50) 283424
Net increase in ¢cash and cash equivalents (8,841.50) 283424
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 12,002.71 016847
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year {refer note below) 3,161.21 12,00271
Non-cash investing and financing activities
Acquisition of right-of-use assers 3,532.48 1,823 81
Conversion of preference shares into equity shares 68.32
Finance lease receivable 3.261.75
6,862.55 1,823.61

Notes to standalone statement of cash flows
|. The above Statement of cash flows has been prepared under the 'Indirect Method' as set out in the Indian Accounting Standard (Tnd AS) 7- "Statement of cash flows”
notified under Section |33 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with Paragraph 7 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules 2015 (as amended}

2. The cash comprises cash on hand, current account and deposil with bank. Cash equivalents are short term balances (with an original maturity of 3 months or less from
the date of acquisition). highty liquid investment that are readily convertiable into loan known amount of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of change in
value

3. Components of cash and cash equivalents:

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Cash on hand 1.69 243
Balances with banks
- Current accounis 754.51 3,400 28
- Deposit accounts {deposits having original maturity of 3 months or less) (refer note 10} 2.405.01 £,600.00

3.161.21 12,002 71
The above standalone statement of cash Mows should be read in conjuction with the accompanying notes
As per aur report of even date attached
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
For Price Waterhpfise £hartered Accountants LLP J M Baxi Ports & Logistics Private Limited
Firm Registrati vl O12754NNS0001 6 CIN: U63090MA1947PTC251291
C D O\M
D. K, Kotak Jb pta Mariyap

K. B. Kotak

Director Managing Director Chief Financial Officer  Compkun

DIN: 00010788 DIN: 00013988 Membership No
A2399]

Datdy 21 June 2024
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J M Baxi Ports & Logistics Private Limited
(Earlier known as J M Baxi Ports & Logistics Limited)

Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity

{Atl amount are in 2 lakhs, unless siated atherwise)

(a) Equity Share Capital
Particulars Note 31 March2024 31 March 2023
Balance at the beginning of the year i3 439.69 489 69
Changes in the equity share capital during the year £82.70 -
Balance at the end of the year 1,072.39 48969
{b) Instruments entirely equity in nature
Particulars Note 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Balance ar the beginning of the year 134 568.53 568.53
Changes in the Insiruments envirely equity in nature during (568.53) -
the year
Balance at the ¢nd of the year - 568.53
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J M Baxi Ports & Logistics Private Limited
(Eariier known as S M Baxi Ports & Logistics Limited}

Notes to the standalone financial statements
for the vear ended 31 March 2024

{ All 2zmount are in ¥ lekhs, uniess stated otherwise)

14

Company overview

I' M Baxi Ports & Logistics Privare Limited {Earlier known as ) M Baxi Ports & Logistics Limited) (“the Company™) was incorporaled on &
Movember, 1947, The Company iz engaged in providing conlainer freight stanon operation. handhng of bulk cargo, containerised rail freight
services and other ancillary services

Basis of preparation

Statement of compliance with Ind AS

The accompanying standalone financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting principles penerally accepted in India,
mcluding the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind ASY as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Indian Accounting
Standards (‘Ind AS') netified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2016 read with Section 133 of the Companies Aci, 2013
("the Act') to tie extent applicable and other relevant provisions of the Act as amended from dme Lo time

The standalone financial statementts were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company a1 their meeting held on [ 7ih June, 2024

Details of the Company's Accounting Policics are included in Note 2
The previous year numbers has been restated o account for the divisions acquired on merger dunng the year

Current-non-currenit classification:

The Company presenis assets and liabilities in 1he balance sheet based on current! nom-curreni classifeanon

a. An asset shall be classified as current when it satisfies any of the following crilena:

i) ilis expected (o be realized in, or is intended For sale or consumption in, the company’s normal operating cycle;

i) it is held primarily for the purpose of being maded;

1) it is expected 1o be realized within twelve months afier the ceporting date; or

iv) it is Cash or cash equivalent unless il is restricted from being exchanged or used to sewtle a liability for at least twelve moniths afier 1he reporting
date.

Current assets include the curtent partion of non-current financial assets

b All assets other than current assets shall be classified as non-curmment

c. A lizkility shall be classified as current when it satisfies any of the following crilera:

11018 expecied 1o be seutled in the company's nonnal operanng cycle:

it} it i3 held primnarily for the purpose of being, waded:

iii}itis due 10 be sentled within rwelve meonths afier the reporting date; or

i) the company does not have an unconditional right 10 defer setdement of the Habiliry for at Teast twelve monihs afier the reporting date

Basis of measurement

The siandalone Ainancial st ts have been prepared under the historical cosi convention, except far the foHowiny:

- certain finaneial assets and liabilities that are measured al fair value: and

- net defined benefit {asset¥ liability that are measured a1 Fair value of plan assets less present value of defined benefir obligations.

Going concern

The Company is engaged in rendering comainer Freight siaion operation services. handling of bulk cargo, conrainenised rail Freipht services,
operating cold storage and other ancillary services. Based on the future business plans and cash flows of the Conpany. the management believes
that the Company. as at 31 March 2024, will continue 10 operale as a going concern for the foresecable future. realise ils assets and discharge ns
Tiabilities as they fall due for payment, in the normal course of business

As at 31st March 2024, the Company's curreni assels excesd 1ts cumrent habilities by Rs 52,201 23 lakhs The surplus is due to proceeds received
from HL Logistics Terminal B. V.. which were then invested in fixed deposits after being utilized for ongoing projects

Based on the future business plans and cash flows of the Company, the management believes that the Company. as at 3] March 2024 will continue
to operale as a going concern for Lhe foresesable future. realise its assets and discharge its liablities as they fall due for payment, in the nonmal
course of business.

Use of esti and judp
In prepaning these standalone financial siatements, management has made judj 5. esti and ptions Lhal affzet the reported amounts
of assers, lizbiliies. income and expenses. Actual result may differ from these esimates. Estimailes and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an

onpoing basis. Revisions to accounning estimares are recopnized prospeciively
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J M Baxi Ports & Logistics Private Limited
(Earlicr known as S M Baxi Poris & Logistics Limited)

Notes to the standalone financial statements
for the vear ended 31 March 2024

(All amount are in T lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

v

Use of estil and jud {Confinued)

Judgements

Information about judgments made in applying accounting policies that have the most significanl effects on the amounts recopnised in the
standalone statement of profil and lass:

Determining whether an arrang; [ ins a lease

The Company &val if am arvangy qualifies to be 2 lease as per the requirements of Ind AS 116, [dentificarion of a lease requires significant

judgment. The Company uses significant judpement in assessing the lease term {including anticipaled renewals} and the applicable discoun| rale

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease, topether with both perfods covered by an option to extend the
lease if the Company is reasonably certzin to exercise that option; and periods covered by an option to tenminate the lease if the Company 15
reasonably certain nol 1o exercise that option. 1n assessing whether the Company is reasonably centain to exercise an option to exiend a lease, or not
to exercise an option to terminate a lease, it considers all relevant facts and circumsrances thar create an econgeme incentive for the Company o
exercise the option to extend the lease, or not 1o exercise the option 1o tenminate the lease

The diseount rate is generally based on the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease being evaluared or for a portfoho of keases with similar
charactenstics

1y wrrd sincertoinities
Information bt ptions and estimations of uncertaintiss thal have a sipnifican sk of
iarch 2024 are as follows:

material ad) in the year ended 31

o

ST

a} Useful lives of property, plant and equip and i assels

Determination of the esumated useful lives of tangible assers and the assessment as to which components of the cost may be caprtahised Useful lives of
tangible assets are based on the life prescibed in Schedule 1 of the Companies Act, 2013 In cases, where the uselul lives are dilferem from that prescrnibed
m Schedule [, they are based on iechnical advice, 1akimg mto account the nature of the asset, the estimared usage of the asset, the operaling conditions of
the asset, past hustory of replacement, anticipated technological changes, manufacuwers” warranties and mantenance support Assumptions also need to be

made, when the Company assesses, whether an asset may be capitalised and which components of the cost of the asset may be capitalised

Ik Fit ahlica b

b} Recogmition and measurement of defi e
The obligation arising from defined benefit plan and other long term employment benefits 15 determimed on the basis of actuarial assumptions Key
actuarial assumptions include discount rate, rends in salary escalabon and vested future benefits and life expectancy The discount rate 15 determined by
reference to market vields al the end of the reporting period on government bonds The period to matrity of the underdying bonds correspond to the
probable maturity of the post-employment benefit obligations

¢} Recopnition of deferred tax assets

Dieferred tax assets are recogmised For the Tuture tax consequences of lemporary differences between the carmymg values of assets and habilities and their
respecuve lax bases, and unutilised business loss and depreciation carry-forwards and tax eredits Cheferred tax assets are recognised Lo the extent that it 15
probable that future raxable ncome will be avalable agmnst which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses, depreciation carmy-forwards
and unused tax credits could be utihized

d) [Tmpairment of trade receivables

The Company reviews its trade receivables 1o assess impairment at regular wntervals The Company's credit nsk 13 pnimarily attnbulable 10 its rade
receivables [n determining whether impairment losses shouid be reported in the standalone statement of profit and loss, the Company makes judgments as
to whether thare is amy observable dala indicating that there 15 a measurable decrease i the estimated future cash flows Accordingly, sn allowance far
expected credit loss 15 made where there is an dentified loss event or condition which, based on previous expenence, 15 evidence of a reduction in the
recoverability of the cash Mows
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J M Baxi Ports & Logistics Private Limited
{Earlier known as J M Baxi Ports & Logistics Limited)

Notes to the standalone financial statemenis (Comtinned)
Jor the year ended 31 March 2024

{All amount are in ¥ lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

1B Basis of preparation (Coniinued)
iv Use of estimates and judgements (Continsied)
¢) lmpairment losses on investments

The Company reviews its carrying value of investments carried at amortised cost annually, or more frequently when there is indication for impairment. [f
the recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount, the impairment |oss is accounted for

f) Others

Further informatien about assumptions and estimations of unceriainties that have a significant risk of resultant material adjustment in the year ended 31
March 2024 are as follows:

- recognitior: and measurement of provisiens and contingencies: key assumptions about likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resource:

- fair value measurement of financial instruments; and (including derivative instruments i.e. foreign currency forward contract and cross currency interest
rale swap).

¥ Measurcment of fair values

The Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both linancial and non-financial assels and liabilities

The Company has an established control framewaork with respect to the measurement of fair values, which includes overseeing all significant fair value
measurement, including level 3 fair values by the management The management regularly reviews significant unebservable inputs and valuation
adjustments. If third party information, such as broker quetes or pricing services, is used to measure fair values, then the management assesses the evidence
obtained from the thitd parties to support the conclusion that such valuations meet the requirements of Ind AS, including the level in the fair value
hierarchy i which such valuations should be classified

When measuring the fair value of a fimancial asset or a financial liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as possible. Fair values are
categorised inte different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as fallows

Level 1; quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or babilities

Level 2; inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (ie as prices) or indirectly (ie
derived from prices}

Level 3; mputs for the asset or hability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)

I the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value higrarchy, then the fair value measurement is
categorised in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement The company
recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the change has eccurred.

¥i Business combinalions

Business combinations arising from Iransfer of interests in entities that are under the control of the shareholders that controls the Company are accounted
for using Ind AS 103, Business combinations a3 if the acquisition had occurred at the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented or, if later, at
the date that common control was established; for this purpose comparatives are revised. The assets and liabilities acquired are recognised at their carrying
amounts. The identily of the reserves is preserved and they appear in the standalone financial statements of the Company in the same form in which they
appeared in the standalone financial statements of the acquired entity. The difference, if any, between the consideration and the amount of share capital of
the acquired entity 1s transferred to capital reservefreserve / Amalgamation Adjustment Deficit Account
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J M Baxi Ports & Logistics Private Limited
(Earlier known as J M Baxi Ports & Logistics Limited)

Notes to the standalene financial statements {Cortinued)
for the year ended 3§ March 2024

(ANl smoum are i 2 lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

2A

1

.2

2

14

(i)

(i)

Material accounting policies of financial statements

Classification of assets and liabilities

Schedule 111 o the Aci, requires assets and liabilntes w be classifed as either Cumrent or Mon-current

a) An asset shall be classified as current when 1 satisfies any of the following critena

i} it 15 expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or ption in, the company's normal operating cycle,

n) ir 15 held pnmarily for the purpose of being traded;

wi} it is expected to be realised within 1welve months afier the reporting date, or

i} i 1s Cash or cash equivalent unless o is resiricted from beng exchanzed or used o seule a liabiking for at least vwelve months afier the reporing
date

b) All assets other 1han current assets shall be classified 23 non-current

<) A liabiliry shall be classified as current when i1 satsfies any of the (ollovang coleria

11t 1s expected to be seutled in the Company’s normal aperanng cycle,

1} i is held primarily For the purpose of being Iraded,

Hidat is due to be settled within (welve months afier the reporung date, or

) the company does not have an unconditional righl to defer senlement ol the hability for at least twelve months afier the reparung date

dY All habilies other than cumren Liabilines shall be classified as non-current

Operating cycle

An operaltng cycle is the ime belween the sequisiion of assets (or processing and thew realisation in cash or cash equivalems The Company has
ascertained the operating cycle as twelve mombs for the purpose of cumrent or non-current classification of assets and liabilines

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipmen ("PPE™) 15 carmed al cosl of acquisibion or construction less accumulaled depreciation and impairment loss, o any Cost
comprises is purchase pnce, including inward freisht, dubies, taxes (10 the extent not recoverable from tax authariies) and expenses incidental 1o
acquisition and ingtallation of the asset up to the 1tme the assets are ready for led use Sut on an asset after its purchage/
complelion 15 recogmised as an expense when 1ncurred wnless it is probable that such expenditure will enable the asset 1o generale fulure economic
benefitz associated wath the expenduure wall llow 10 the Company and such expenditure can be measured snd aunbured to the asset reliably. i which
case such expenditure 15 added 10 the cost of the asset

Losses ansing from retirement of and pans/ losses ansing From disposal of PPE which are carmied au cost are recogmsed i Lhe statemen of profil and
loss

Other inlangible assets

Other intangible asseis

Onher intangible assets comprise of Computer Sofiware and Raulway licence fees and are camied at cosi less accumulated amorisalion and imparment
losses. if any The cost of an Intangible asset compnizes 113 purchase price, including any import dulies and other laxes {gther than those subsequently
recoverable from the laxing authorites), and any directly atinbutable expenditure on malung the assel read)' for ils intended use and nel of any trade
discounts and rebates  Subseq Iture 15 capilahised only when 1 increases the fulure e benghi bodied in the specific assel to
which it relates All other expendulure, lmludlng expenditure on miernally generated yoodwill and brands. 15 recognised in profit or loss as incurred

Service concession arrangements

The Company recognises 11s exclusive port concession nghts granied under the Concession .ﬁgreemenl as “lnlang:bl: Assets”, m which the
Concessioning Authority controls or regulates the services prowvided the prices charged and ls any dual interest in the infrastruciure
such as PPE. 1f the infrastructure is constructed or purchased by the Company as pan of the Concession Ag Such an ble asset 15
recognised by the Company at fair value (which s the cost of the consideranon received ar receivable For the consiruchion service delivered) and 15
capitalized when the project 15 complete 1n all respects and the Company Teceives the completion certificate from the Concessiomng Authonty a5
specified in the concession agreement Port concession rights also include cenatn PPE which are reclassilied as miangible assets in accordance with
wth Appendix C of Ind AS 115 Rewvenue from Contraces with Customers™

Sub expend 15 caprialised only when it the future benefi bodied in the specific assel to which it relates All other

di ised the of profit ang loss as incurred

P

Refer note 49 for description and sigmificant ierms of service concession amangements
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25 Depreciation and amortisation

The depreciable amounl of an ilem of Property, plant and equipment is allocated on 2 systemalic basis over its useful life. The Company provides
depreciation on the straight Jme method over the useful lives as prescribed under Schedule 11 of the Act or as per techincal assessment of the
Company. The Company believes that straight line method reflects the pattern in which the asset’s future economic benefits are expected to be
consumed by the Company. The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation are reviewed at least at each financial year-end and
adjusted prospectively. if appropriate

Depreciation on additions/ (disposals) are provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from/ (up to} the dale on which the asset is ready 10 use/ {(disposed ofl)

Provided that where a company adopts a usetul life different trom what is specified in Part C, the financial statements shall disclose such difference
and provide justification in this behall duly supported by technical advice:

Amortisavion 15 calculated to write off the cost of intangible assets less their estimated residual values using the straight line method over their
estimated useful lives, and is generally recognised in profit and loss. The computer soflware is amortised over the license period or 5 years
winchever is less. Railway License fees ts amortised over the period of 20 years

Assets Management estimate of useful life Liseful life as per Schedule IT
Lease hold improvements Amortised over the lease period Amortised over the lease period
Building 30 10 60 years 60 years

Plant and Cquipment 310 21 years &1 15 years

Cormputers 3 o & years 310 6 years

Furnitures and Fixtures 110 10 years 10 years

Yehicles 7 to 10 years 812 10 years

Oflfice equipments 3o 2 years 3 years

Electrical [nstallation Amortised over Lhe lease period Amortised over the lease peried
Trailors 3107 years 8 years

Railway siding and rolling stocks 13 years 15 vears

Individual assets costing Rs. 5,000 or less are fully depreciated in the vear of its acquisition
2.6 Revenue recognition

The Company had adopted Ind AS 113 — Revenue [tomm Contracts with Customers for annual reporting period commencing from 1 April 2018 The
Company has adopted Ind AS 113 using the modilied retrospective method of adoplion. Such adoplion did not result into any adjustiments in the
financial statements

Revenue is recognised upon transfer ol control of promised services to customer in an amount that reflects the consideration which the Company
expects to receive in exchange for those service

In arrangements tor rendering of services. the Company has applied the guidance in Ind AS 115, Revenue [rorn contract with customer, by applying
the revenue recognition criteria for each distincl performance obligation. The arrangements with customers generatly meel the erileria for
considering service as distinct performance obligations. For allocating the transaction price, the Company has measured the revenue in respect of
each perfonmance obligation of a contract at its relative standalone selling price The price that 1s regularly charged for an 1tem when sold separately
is the best evidence of its standalone selling price. In cases where the Company is unable 1o determine the standalone selling price, the Company
uses the expecied cost plus margin approach in estimating the standalone selling price. The transaction price is also adjusted for the effects of the
time value of money if the contract includes a significant financing component. Any consideration payable o the customer is adjusted ta the
transaction price, unless ILis a payment for a distinct product or service from Lhe customer

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it 15 probable that the economic bencfits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be relably
measured The amount recogmsed as revenue is exclusive of Goods and services lax (GST) and is net of discounts

Port operation services and Logistics services

Revenue from port operation services and logistics services. including handling and transportation charges. ground rent and storage. rail
infrastructure and other ancillary port services are recognized in the accounting period in which the services are provided 1o the customer al an
amount that reflects the consideration to which the company expects to be entitled in exchange for those services
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2.6

2.7

Material accounting policies of linancial statements{Continied)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Equipment hire charges

Equipment hire charges includes revenue from hiring of ¢ranes, trailor and other equipment. Revenue from equipment hire charges leased out under
an operating lease are recognised over the tenure of the lease / service agreement on a straight line basis, except where there 15 uncertainty of
ultimate collection

Rail freight income, road transportation and trailor operations
Rail freight income is recognised ai the time the rake is dispatched from the place of origin. However, in case of inbound c¢argo, the income is
recognised at the time the rake reaches the Inland Container Depot

Oiher income

Business support charges, container lease charges and other anciliary income are recognised when related services are performed

Reimbursement of cost is netted off with the relevant expenses incurred, since the same are incurred on behalf of the customers

Contract assets are recognised when there is excess of revenue eamed over billings on contracts. Contract assets are classifled as unbilled
receivables (only act of invoicing is pending) when there is unconditional right to receive cash, and only passage of time is required, as per
contractual terms

Contract liabilities are recognised when there is billing in excess of revenue and advance received from customers

Ancillary revenue is recognised upen completion of the services provided. All revenue is stated exclusive of Goods and Services Tax {GST)
Discounts are netted off against revenue and are provided based on individual contracts/ operating arvangements entered in to with the customers on
accrual basis after satisfaction of performance obligation as per the individual coniracts / operating arrangements

Interest income

[nterest income is recognised using the effective interest method. The effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments of receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument to:

- the gross carmying amount of the {inancial asset; or

- the amontised cost of the financial liability

In calculating interest income, the effective mterest rate is applied to the gross carmying amount of the asset (when the asset is not credit-impaired) or
to the amortised cost of the liability However, for financial assets that have become credit-impaired subsequeni to initial recognition, interest
income is caleulated by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset. 1f the asset is no longer credit-mmpaired, then
the calculation of interest income reverts to the gross basis

Dividend from investments is recognized when the right to receive the payment is established and when no significant uncertainty as to
measurability or collectability exists

Commisston inceme on financial guarantee is measured at fair value and recognised over the period of financial guarantee on time proportion
tmethed

Lmpairment of financial and non-financial assets

Impairment on non-financial assets
The Company’s non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment, [F any such
indicavon exists, then the asset’s recoverable amouat is estimated.
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Material accounting policies of financial statements(Continued)

Impairment of financial and non-financial assets (Continued)

. Impairment on non-financial assets {Continued)

An impairment |oss in respect of goodwill is not subsequently reversed. In respect of other assets for which impairment loss has been recognised in
prior periods, the Company reviews at each reporting date whether there is any indication that the loss has decreased or no longer exisis. An
impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. Such a reversal is made only to
the extent thal the asset’s camying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised  In respect of the assets for which impairment loss has been recognised in prior periods,
the Company reviews at each reporting date whether there is any indication that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. When there is indication
that an impairment loss recognised for an asset {other than a revalued asset) in earlier accounting periods which no longer exists or may have
decreased, mmpairment loss is reversed o the extent the amount was previously charged to the Restated standalone financial statements of Profit and
Loss. [n case of revalued assets, such reversal is not recognised

Impairment on Ninancial assels

The Company recoghises loss allowances for expected credit losses on:

- financial assets measured at amortised cost, and
- financial assets measured at FYOCE- debt investments

At each reporting dale, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost and debt securities at FYQCH are credit-impaired A
financial asset is “credi-impaired” when one or more evenis that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
have occwred

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

- significant financial difficulty of the borvower or issuer;

- a breach of contract such as a default or being past due for 90 days or more:

- the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Company on terms that the Company would not consider otherwise:
- it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptey or other financial reorganisation; or

- the disappearance of an active market for a security because of binancial difficulties

The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses, except for the following, which are measured as 12
rmaonth expected credit losses:

- debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date: and

- other debt securities and bank balances for which credit risk (i.e the risk of default occurring over the expected life of the financial instrurnent) has
not increased significantly since initial recognition

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses

Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial
nstrument

12-month expected credit losses are the portion of expected credit Josses that result from default events that are passible within 12 months afier the
reporting date {or & shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is less than 12 months}

In all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum conteactual period over which the Company is
exposed to credit risk

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since inmial recognition and when estimating expected
credit losses, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This
includes both quantitative and qualitauve information and analysis, based on the Company's historical experience and informed credit assessment
and including forward-looking infonmation
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a)

b)

Material accounting policies of financial statements{Conrinted)

Impairment of financial and non-financial assets (Continued)

. Impairment on financial assets (Continued)

Measurement of expected credit losses

Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the present value of all cash shortfails {ie
the difference between the cash {lows due te the Company in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expecis to receive)

Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the balance sheet

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of the assets

Valuation of Inventories

The Company values its inventories at the lower of cost and nel realisable value Inventory include spares and consumables for heavy equipment
assets, bunker and lube oil. Casl is computed on weighted average basis {net of rebates). The cost of bunkers and lube oils is ascertained on first in
first out basis

Net Reliasable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and selling expenses

Employee benelits
Short-term employee benefits

Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months af rendering the service are classified as short-term employee benefits. These benefits
include salaries and wages, bonus, performance incentives, compensated absences such as paid annual leave and sickness leave The undiscounted
amount of shori-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the employee service is recognised as an expense as the related service
is rendered by the employee

Long term employee benefits

) Defined contributlon plan

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed coniributions into a separate entity and will have no
legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. The Company makes specified monthly contribution towards employee provident fund,
Employee state insurance scheme and labour welfare fund which is recognised as expenses in the standalone statement of Profit and Loss during the
year on an accrual basis

The Company’s contribution towards defined contribution benefil plans is accrued in compliance with the respective laws in force at the time.

i} Defined benefit plans

The Company’s gratuity benefit scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Company’s net obligation in respect of the defined benefit plan is calculated
by estimating the amount of {uture benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods: that benefit is
discounted to determine its present value  The Fair value of any assets are deducted. The calculation of the Company’s obligation under the plan is
performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method at the balance sheet date

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise acluarial gains and losses and the retum on plan assets (excluding interest) are
recognised in QC). The Company determines the net interest expense (income) on the net defined benefit fiability {asset) for the period by applying
the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the then-net defined benefit liability (asset),
taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit labiliy {asset) during the period as a result of contributions and benefit payments Net
Interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised in profit or ioss

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan 1s curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates to past service {“past service cost’ or

"past service gain’) or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in profit or loss. The Company recognises gains and losses on the
settlement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs
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Material acconnting policies of financial statements{Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)

iii) Compensated absences

.10

a}

The employees can carry forward a portion of the unutilised zccrued compensated absences and utilise it in future service periods er receive cash
compensation en termination of employment. To the extent, the employee has an unconditional right to avail the leave, the same is ¢lassified as
“current” The Company records an obligation for such compensated absences in the period in which the employee renders the services that increase
this entitlement. The obligation is measured on the basis of independent actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the balance
sheet date Remeasurements gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise

Financial instruments

Recognition and initial measurement: Trade receivables are mitially recognised at transaction price when they are origimated Al financial assets
and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. A financial asset
or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are
directly atiributable to its acquisition or issue

Classification and subsequent measurement:
Financial assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at
- amortised cost.

- FVOCI - debt investment;

- FVOCT - equity invesiment, or

- EVTPL

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition. except if and in the period the Company changes its business modgl for
managing financial assets

A financial asset 1s measured at amortised cost if' it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at F¥TPL:

-the asset is held within a business model whose objective is 1o hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and

-the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest en the
principal amount outstanding

A debt investment is measured at FYOCI if it meets both of the following cenditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:
-the asset is held within a business model whese objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and

-the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding,

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may imevocably elect to present subsequent changes mn the
investment’s fair value in OCI (designaled as FYOC! - equity investment). This election is madz on an investment-by-invesiment basis

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortisad cost or FVOC] as described above are measured at FVTPL. On initial recognition, the
Company may irvevocably designate a financial asset that ctherwise meets the requirements 10 be measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI as at
FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismarch that would otherwise arise
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Material accounting policies of Minancial statements{Convinned)

Financial instruments (Cortinued)
Financial assets (Continsied)

Business model assessment

The Company makes an assessinent of the objective of the business model m which a financial asset is held at a portfolio level because this best
reflects the way the business is managed and information is previded to management. The information considered includes:

- the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies n practice. These include whether management’s
strategy focuses on earming contractual interest income. maintaining 3 particular mterest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assels 1o
the duration of any related liabibnies or expected cash outflows or realising cash flows through the sale of the assels

- how the performance of the portfalio 15 evaluated and reported to the Company's management:

- the risks that affect the performance of the business model {and the financial assets held within thal business model) and how those risks are
managed;

- how managers of the business are compensated - e.g whether compensation is based on the fair value of the assels managed or the
contractual cash flows collected; and

- the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and expectations about fulure sales
achivity

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are not considered sales for this purpose. consistent
with the Company’s conlinuing recognition of the assels

Financial assets: Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest

For the purposes of this assessment, “principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial recognition. “Interest’ is defined as
consideration for the time value of money and for the credil risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time
and for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin

In assessing whether the contractual cash Mows are solely payments of principal and interest. the Company considers the contraciual terms of the
instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a contraclual term that could change the timing or amouni of contractual
cash flows such that it would not meet this condilion. In making this assessment, the Company considers:

= contingent events that would change the amount or uming of cash Nows;

— terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate. including vanable interest rate leatures;

— prepayment and exiensiwon features; and

— terrns that limit the Company's claim to cash Nows from speciied assels (e g noh-recourse features)

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair value basis are measured at FVTPL

Subsequent measurement and gains and losses:

Financial assets ut FVTPL
These assets are subsequently measured at fair value Net gains and losses, including any interest or dividend income. are recognised in profit or

loss

Financial assets at amortised cost
These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses
Interest income s recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss

Dbt investments at FYOCI

These assets are subsequently measured at Fair value. Interest income under the effective imterest imethed, foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognised in profit or {oss. Ciher net gains and losses are recognised in OCL On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in
OCT are reclassified to profit or loss

Equity investments at F¥OCI

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognised as income n profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a
recovery of part of the cost of the nvestment. Other net gains and losses are recogmsed in OC1 and are not reclassified to profit or loss

Dividend from investmenis is recogmzed when the right 16 recuive the payment is established and when no significant uncertainy as to
measurability or collectability exists

Profit/ {less) on sale of current investments is computed with reference to their weighted average cost
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Material accounting policies of financial statements{Comiinyed)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liability

Classillcation and subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL, A financial liability is classified as al FVTPL if it is classified as
held-for-trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Fiancial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and
nel gains and lesses, including any interest expense. are recoghised in profit or loss Other financial habilities are subsequently measured at
amgrtised cost using the effective interest method Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss Any gain
or loss on derecognition is also recognised in profit or loss

Derecognition

Financial asser:

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to
receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of owmership of the financial asset are
transferred or in which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control
of the financial asset

Financiaf liabilin:

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual ebligations are discharged or cancelled, or expire

The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are medified and the cash flows under the modified terms are substaniially
different. In this case. a new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value. On derecognition of a financial liability, the
difference between the carrying amount extinguished and the consideration paid (including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed) is
recognised in the standalone financial statements of Profit or Less

Foreign currency transactions

Functional currency is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates whereas presenlation currency is the
curtency in which the standalone financial statements are presented Indian Rupee is the functional as well as presentation currency for the
Company

A foreign currency transaction is recorded, on initial recognition in the functional currency, by applying to the foreign currency amount the spot
exchange rate between the functional currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction

At the end of each reponiing period, foreign currency monetary items are translated using the closing rate whereas non-menetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange raie at the date of the transaction; and non-monetary
iterns that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was measured
Exchange differences arising on the setilement of monetary iems or on translating monetary items at rates diflerent from those at which they were
translated on initial recognition during the period or in previous standalone financtal siatements are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in
the period in which they arise. When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in Other Comprehensive Income, any exchange
component of that gain or loss is recognised in Other Comprehensive [ncome. Conversely, when a gain or 1oss on a non-monetary item is recognised
m standalane statement of Profit and Loss, any exchange component of that gain or loss is recognised in standalone statement of Profit and Loss

179



J M Baxi Ports & Logistics Private Limited
(Earlier known as J M Baxi Poris & Logistics Limited)

Notes to the standalone financial statements (Confinied)
Jor the vear ended 31 March 2024

(AT amount are in ¥ lakhs, unless srated otherwise)

2

2,13

Material accounting policies of financial statements(Continged}

Derivative Minancial instruments and hedge accounting

The Company holds derivalive linancial instruments to hedge its foretgn currency risk exposures. Embedded derivatives are separated from the host
contract and accounted for separately if the host contract is nol a inancial asset and certain criteria are met

Derivatives are itially measured at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition, derivatives are measured at fair value, and changes therein are
aenerally recognised in the standalone (tnancial staternents of Profit and Loss

The Company designales cerlain derivalives as hedging instruments 1o hedge variability in cash lows associated willh highly probable lorecast
Iransactions arising from changes in foreign exchange rates

At inception of designated hedging relationships, the Company documents the risk management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge
The Company also documents the economic relationship between the hedged item and the hedging instrument, including whether the changes in
cash flows of the hedged item and hedging instrument are expected  offsel each other

Cash flow hedges

When a derivalive 15 designated as a cash flow hedging instrument. the effective portion of changes in the fair value of the derivative is recognised
in OCI and accumuiated in the other equity under ‘effective portion of cash flow hedges'. The effective portion of changes m the fair value of the
derivative that is recognised in OCI is limited to the cumulative change in fair value of the hedged item, determined on a presenl value basis, from
inception of the hedge. Any neffective portion ol changes in the fair value of the derivatives is recognised immediaiely in the standalone financial
statemenis of Profit and Loss

When the hedged forecast transaction subsequently results in the recognition of & non-financial item such as invenlory. the amount accumulated in
other equity is included directly in the initial cost of the non-financial item when it is recognised. For all other hedged forecast transactions. the
amount accumulated in other equity is reclassified w the standalene linancial statements of Profit and Loss in the same peried or periods during
which the hedged expected future cash flows alfect profit or Joss

If a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting or the hedging instrument is sold, expires, is terminated or is exercised. then hedge
accounting iz discontinued prospectively. When hedge accounting for cash Mow hedges is disconlinued, the amount that has been accumuiated in
other equity remains there until. for 2 hedge of a transaction resulting in recognition of a non-financial item, it is included in the non-financial item's
cost on ts initial recognition or for other cash flow hedges. it is reclassified to the standalone financial statements of Profit and Loss in the same
period or periods as the hedged expected future cash flows affect profit or loss

Compound Financial Instruments

Compound financial instruments issued by the Company comprise convertible non cumulative redeemable preference shares denominated in INR

The liability component of 2 compound financial instrument 1s innially recognised at the fair value ol a similar liability that does not have an equity
conversion option. The equity component is initially recognised at the diffecence between the fair value of the compound financial instrument as a
whole and the fair value of the hability component. Any directly anributable transaction costs are allocated to the liability and equity components in
proporticn to their initial carrying amounts

Subsequent to initial recognition, the liability component ol a compound tinancial instrument is measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. The equity component of a compound (inancial insttumenl is not remeasured subsequently

Interest refated to the financial liability is recognised in profit or loss (unless it qualifies for inclusion in the cost of an asset). In case of conversion al
maturity, the financial liability is reclassified to equity and no gain or loss is recognised
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J M Baxi Ports & Logistics Private Limited
{Earlier known as J M Baxi Ports & Logistics Limited)

Notes to the standalone financial statements (Continued)
for the vear ended 31 March 2024

(All amount are in ¥ lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

2

2.14

Material accounling policies of inancial statements{Comitiriied)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the current tax and deferred tax

1} Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or recervable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjusiment Ie the tax payable or
receivable in respect of previous years The amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the 1ax amount expected to be paid or received after
considering the uncertainty. il any, related to income taxes. [t is measured using tax raies (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the
reporting dale

Current tax assets and current 1ax liabilities are ofiset only il there is a legatly enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts. and it is intended
1o realise the asset and settle the Liability on a net basis or simultanecusly

On 30 March 2019, Minisiry of Corporate Affairs has issued amendment regarding the income tax Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments, As per
the Company’s assessment. there are no matenial income tax uncertamtiss over ingome (ax reatmenis during the current financial year

Section | 15BAA of the Income Tax Act, 1961 as introduced by the Taxation Laws (Amendment) Ordinance, 2019 with effect lrom fiscal year 2019
20, allows any domestic company to pay income tax al the rate of 23 17% subject to condition they will not avail any incentive or exemptions and
that the accumulated MAT credit would lapse The Company has opted the lower tax rale

i) Deferred tax

Deeferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabiliies for lmancial reporting purposes
and the corresponding amounts used for laxation purposes. Deferred tax is also recognised in respect of carried forward tax [osses and (ax credits
Deferred tax is not recognised tor:

« temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and that affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the transaction.

+ tiemporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements to the extent that the Company is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that they will not reverse in the foresecable future: and

+ taxable temporary difterences arising on the inilial recognition of goodwill

Deferred 1ax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable thal future 1axable profits will be available against which they can be used. The
existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence thal fulure taxable prolil may nol be available Therelore, in case ol a history of recent losses. the
Company recognises a deferred tax asset anly 1o the extent thal it has sufficient taxable lemporary differences or there is convineing other evidence
that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be realised Deferred 1ax assets- unrecognised or recognised.
are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognised/ reduced to the extent that it is probable/ no longer probable respectively that the relaled tax
benefil will be realised

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply (0 the peried when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on the
laws that have been enacied or substantively enacted by the reporting date

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax censequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects. at the reporting
date. to recover or sefile the carrying amounl of its assets and liabiiilies.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are ofTset il there is legally enforceable right 1o offser current tax liabilities and assels, and they relate 1o mcome
taxes levied by the same tax authonity on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabiliues and assets
on a net basis or their lax assets and habilibies will be realised simultansously

Deferred 1axes are recognised on temporary differences that arise from the elimination of profits and losses resuling from mtraCompany
ransaclions

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) under the provision of Income Tax Act, 1961 is recognised as current tax m the consolidated staternent of Profit
and Loss. The credit available under the Act m respect of MAT paid is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there I1s convincing
evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the period for which the MAT credit can be carried torward for set ofT against the
normal 1ax liability. MAT credit recognised as an asset is reviewed at each balance sheet date and writlen down to the extemt the aforesaid
convincing evidence no longer exists
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J M Baxi Ports & Logistics Private Limited
(Eartier known as J M Baxi Ports & Logistics Limited)

Notes to the standalone financial statements (Confinned)
Jor the year ended 31 March 2024

{All amount are in 7 lakhs, unless staled otherwise)

2

Material accounting policies of financial statements{Comnvinred)
Lease

On transition to [nd AS 116, the Company elected to apply the practical expedient to grandfather the assessment of which transactions are leases
The Company applied Ind AS 116 enly to contracts that were previously identified as leases under Ind AS 17

At the inception of a coniract. the Company assesses whether a contract 15 or comains, a lease. A contract is, or contains a lease if the coniract
conveys the right to contrel the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange of consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the
right 1o control the use of an asset the Company assesses whether:

— the contract involves the use of an identified asset — this may be specilied explicitly or implicitly, and should be physically distinct or represent
substantially all of the capability of a physical distinct asset, [F the supplier has a subslantive substilution right, then the asset is nol identified

= the company has the right to direct the use of the asset The company has this right when it has the decision makmg nights that are moslt relevant
to changing how and for what purpose the asset 1s used

Company as a Lessee

Right of use Asset

A contract is. or contains, a lease if the comract convevs the right 1o control the wse of an identified asset for o period of time in exchange for
consideration.

The Company recognises right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset for the lease term al the lease commencement date. The
cost of Lhe right-of-use asset measured at inception shali comprise of the amount ol the initial measurement of the lease liability adjusted lor any
lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of
costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying asset or restoring the underlying asset or site on which it is located
The right-of-use assets 15 subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation, accumulated impairment losses. if any and adjusted for
any remeasuremen of the lease liability. The right-of-use assets is depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencemeni date over the
shorter of lease term ot useful lile of night-ol-use asset. The estimated useful lives of righl-of use assets are determined on the same basis as those of
property. planl and equipment Right-of-use assets are lesied for impairment whenever there is any indication that their carrying amounts may not be
recoverable. [mpairment loss. if any, is recognised in the statement of profit and loss

Lease Liabilily

The Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the cormmencement date of the lease The
lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicil in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. I that rate cannol be readily
determined, the Company uses incremental borrowing rate. For leases with reasonably similar characieristics, the company. on a lease-by-lease
basis, may adopt either the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease or the incremental borrowing rate for the portfohio as a whole. The lease
payments shall include fixed payments, exercise price of a purchase option where the company is teasonably certain to exercise that option and
payments of penalties for erminating the lease. if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising an option to terminate the lease. The lease liability is
subsequently remeasured by increasing the carrying amount 1 reflect inlerest on the lease liability, reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease
paymenis made and remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease modifications or to reflect revised in-substance fixed lease
payments. The company recognises the amount of the re-measurement of lease liability due to modification as an adjustment to the right-of-use
asset and statement of profit and loss depending upon the pature of modification Where the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced to
2ero and there is a Turther reduction in the measurement of the lease liability, the company recognises any remaining amount of the re-measurement
in statement of protit and loss

The Company has elected not 1o apply the requirements of Ind AS 116 Leases to short-term leases of all assets that have a lease term of 12 months
or less and leases tor which the underlying asset is of low value, The lease paymenis associated with these leases are recognized as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term

Companty as a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an assel are classified as operaling leases
Rental income from operating lease is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevani lease, Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiang and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same
basis as rental income. Contingent renls are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned
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J M Baxi Ports & Logistics Private Limited
(Earlier known as J M Baxi Ports & Logistics Limited)

Notes to the standalone Ninancial statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended 31 March 2024

{All amount are in ¥ lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

2

2,16

2,17

2,18

2.19

Material accovnting policies of linancial statementsfCondinned)

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably,
and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to sentle the obligation Provisions are determined by discounting the
expected future cash flows (representing the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date) at 2
pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time valug of money and the risks specific 1o the liability. The unwinding of the discount
is recognised as finance cost

Contingent habilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the
occurrence o non occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the company or a present obligation that arises
from past events where it is either not probable that an outltow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the
amount cannot be made

Contingent assets are neither recognised, nor disclosed in the standalone financial statements

Earnings per share

Basic eamning per share is calculated by dividing net profit or loss atiributable to equity shareholders of the Company by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the year

Diluted earing per share is calculated by dividing net profit or loss aftributable to equity shareholders of the Company by the weighted average
number of equity shares and dilutive equity equivalent shares outstanding during the year, except where the results would be anti-dilutive

Cash flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non—cash nature and any
deferrals or accruals of past or future cash recgipts or payments. The cash flows from regular revenue generating, financing and investing activities
of the Company are segregated

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of cash flow statement comprise cash on hand and cash at bank including fixed deposit with eriginal
maturity period of three months or less and bank overdrafts that are repayazble on demand form an integral pan of the Company’s ¢ash managernent

Government grants

Govemment grants are recognised in the penod to which they relate when there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and the
Company will comply with the attached conditions

Government grants are recognised [n the standzlone financial statements of Profit and Loss on a system basis over the period

Income from Services Exports from India Scheme (*SEIS") incentives are Govemment's Foreign Trade Policy 2015-20 on port services income are
classified as "Revenue from Operations” and is recognized based on effective rate of incentive under the scheme, provided under no significant
uncertainty exists for the measurability, realization and utilization of credit under the scheme. The receivables related to SEIS licenses are classified
as " Other Mon-Financial Current Assets”
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J M Baxi Ports & Logistics Private Limited
(Earlier known as J M Baxi Ports & Logistics Limited)

Notes to the standalone financial statements (Continged)
Jor the year ended 31 March 2024
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2

2

2.22

B

(i)

(i)

Material accounting policies of financial statements¢Continued)

New and amended standard adopted by the Company

The ministry of corporate Affairs vide notification dated 31 March 2023 notified the companies {Indian Accounting Standards} Amedment Rules,
2023, which amended certain accounting standards (see below), and are effective | April 2023:

- Disclosure of accounting policies- amedment to [nd AS |
- Definition of accounting estimates- amendment to Ind AS 8
- Deferred lax related o assets and liabilities arising from a single transaction- amedment to Ind AS 12

The other amedmendis to [nd AS notified by these rules are primarily in the nalure of clarifications

These amendments did not have any material impact on the amounts recognised in prior periods and are not expected to significantly affect the
current or future periods. Specifically, ne changes would be necessary as a consequence of amedment made to Ind AS 12 as the group accountmg
policy already complies with the now mandatory treatment

Exposure draft & standard issued but not effective:
Standard issved but not yel effective:

Ministry of Corporate Affairs {'MCA’} notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For the vear ended 31st March, 2024, MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments to the
existing standards applicable to the Company

Summary of other accounting policles

Offsetting
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the standalone financial siatements of Assets and Liabililies
when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right 1o set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis
or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultancously

Functional and presentation currency
These standalone firancial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company's functional currency. All amounts
have been rounded-off to the nearest lakhs, unless otherwise indicated.
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J M Baxi Ports & Logistics Private Limited
tEarher known as S M Baxi Ports & Logesstes Limied)

MNotes to the standalone financial statements (Continned)
av or 3 March 2029

tAll gmount are in ¥ lakhs. unloss slaed otherwise)

M March 2024 31 March 3023
£ Non-currenl investments
A, Invesiment in equidy insiruments
la) B in subgidisries | d al ised cost}

Ungquoted
Visakha Contaner Termunal Prisawe Lariied 2697145 6971 43
24 300,000 (3| Morch 2023 24 2700000 Equus shares of RS 10 ¢och. falls pad-up
Delhn [naemovonal Carge Temwnol Prevate Limued (Formerly known as Inlémational 6,236.73 6,256 73
42 860.000 {31 Mareh 2023 92 860.000) Equiy sharcs of Rs 10 cach. futh. paid-up
Haldw intematonal Contawner Termnal Private Limilcd 1.600.00 16400 i
16000000 (3| March 2023 16.000.000) Equity shares of Rs 10 cach. fully pad-up
Paradp Imtcrnational Cargo Tormmnal Privaie Limied 2.965.00 T 965 DD
FOG300Z5 131 March 2023 19.650.023) Equity shares of Rs 10 cach, fulls pod-up
Kandla Inwernavonal Conainer Termnal Prvac: Lamied L4 LI
27 R2A330 (31 Mareh 2023 27.R24.050) Equity shares of Rs ({ cach. fulk pad-up
M Baxs Heavs Provate Limited (Formerly known as Boxco Logisiics Infratrans P ade 1286575 613373
30010000 (31 March 2023 30.010.0000 Equus shares of Rs 10 cach, fully pod-up
Ballacd Pagr Privale Limited 2365.00 L3
236 80.00013] March 2023 50,0000 Equuy shares of Rs 10 cach. fully pawd-up
1M Baw Cool Private Linnted L0 L
10.000 (3| Maorch 2023 140009 Equay shares of Re 10 cach, fulh paid-up
Nhara Sheda Disinbuuen womimal Briate Linmied 1.00 108
10.000 (31 March 2023 10,000 Equin shares of Rs 10 cach. fulb pud-up
Tubconn Iniemational Container Terminal Peo atg Limied 145100 100
L U3, | L0 (3] Barch 2023 10.000) Equils shares ol Rs 10 ¢ach, fulk pad-up
1 M Bava Conaner Holdings Prnate Lonited 1.00
106000131 March 2023 Mil) Equily shargs of Rs | coch, fulls paid-up
J M Baxi Port Seruees Panate Lamited (Earlier known as ) M Basi Cargo Holdings Prvate Linunted) 1.00

100000 (31 March 2023 Nilb Equus shares of Rs 1 cach. fulk pad-up

5694437 46,717 37

Less [ koss of Hakdia | | Contamner Ternnnal Provae Limmed (H600.00) 1| 01 B0

tak 55.344.37 d3 11737

MNote;

Of the abore. 13391200 (A3 ot 31 March 2023 13.591.200) cquits shares of Visakha Contaner Tormunal Prisate Lumiied, 15,021,313 (As a0 31 March 2023 130205130 cquuy
shares of Paradip imemationgl Cargo Termnal Prisate Limted and 1L 190419 {As a0 31 March 2023 14,190 419) cquity shares of Kondlo Inicrmanenal Contaner Termmal Privale
Limated 12076800 (Ag ol 31 March 2023 235000 cquiny shares of Ballard Prer Privaie Lonigd, 3,000 {As al 31 March 2023 3,000 cquuy shares of Nhava Sheva Disinbuton
termunal Pris ate Lenuted, 33 70,100 (A5 a1 31 March 2023 5.100% equils shares of Tuncorin Imgrnatianat Contamer Termmal Prisate Lamited has been phedged by the Compam, aganst
Lhe oo ings

b} Investments in joinl venture [Measuved al amortised tost)

Unguoted

Whata Sheva Frecpon Prnale Limied 2156529 L1563 12
215652900 () March 2023 11,56.31.t35) Equily shares of Rs i1} cach. fulls pavd-up

Wivag Mubpurpose Termmal Privare Lined BI04, 50

SO0EO00 (3] March 2023 Shily Equay shares o Rs [0 cach. full, pard-up

b 12,165.79 11,563 12

MNate:
Of the abone. 21,3632, 008 (As ot 31 March 2025 2272453} equiy shares of Nbava Sheva Freeport Preaic Limied  has been pledged by the Compan: agawnst the borrowings of
Mhaya Sheso Frecpont Prvale Limated

B. I in prel shares J at amortised cost) ¥
Unquoted
Delht Inemalional Carpo Termingl Private Limied 13550 65 12107727
40335000 (31 Maech 2023 40,333 1001 00)1% Mon-Comertible Non-Cumulame
Redecmable Preference shares of Rs |00 cach. folls pasd-up
Kandla Inermauoanl Contaner Terminel Prate Linnied 1.668.04 s ek ]
GAITARS (31 March 2023 6 427.563) 8% Non Comerubk Non Cumwlalng
Redeemable Preference sharcs of Rs 100 cach. [ully pad-up
Paradip tmemational Cargo Termmal Privaie Linned 2,985.83 BO3| M
12838000 131 March 2033 12X3K000) R% Non Comvertble MNon Cumilatne
Redeemable Preforence shares of Bs 100 cach. fulk pad-up

4] 13,1357 4 891 48

Mote:
3} # O the abone 6 547,380 {As a1 3| March 2023 6.347.3R0) preference shares of Pacady Imcmational Corge Ternunal Prvaie Limncd, 3. 278,058 1As ol 31 March 2023
3.2745.058) preforence shares of Kandla {mamational Comainer Termimal P aic Limited has been pledwed by the Compam against Lhe bormow ines

b1 dene of the subsidianes ore hsied on ans siock 2schance o [ndia o auiside India ond these s cstenis are camicd at cost
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J M Baxi Ports & Logstics Private Limited
(Earfter known as J M Bast Poris & Logasties Lintsed)

MNotes to the standalone financial statements (Continued)
ay af 31 Mareh 2034

1A amount are i ¥ lakhs unless sawed stherse)

3 MNon-current investments (Continsed}
C Deemed investments in subsidiaries 3] March 1024 31 March 2023
1i} In respect of Non Convertible Non Ci ive Red ble Prelt Shares at
amaortised cost ¥:
Dilhi Imcmational Carge Termunal Proate Limited 3526543 365 A3
Randly miematienal Contamer Terninol Prisate Limted 5.656.00 3365062
Faradip Ternaugnol Corge Tormnal Prvate Limied 11.230.04 167 78
(i} In respect of Gnawcial guarentees 31 FYTPL®:
Celh [memauonsl Corgo Termunal Privade Limed 98263 Uil 63
Haldia Inicrmavenal Contawner Termunal Pro ate Limited 3199 B ]
Kandla Inicrnational Conaincr Termnal P aee Limied 2464152 2459 58
J M B Heavy Prste Limiied 459 37 484 37
Ballard Pier Privale Lumied 106553 :
Total (i) +(ii) 58.462.54 AR.71 240
Less Impaimient of in 2smend wn Holfdia Imermoucns| Contaner Terminal Prsole Limied 130,99 B4
1d) 56,380,558 d5.63041
Total unquoled invesiments (a+b+ced) |j4.]04,2_0 1,30.202 2%

Apgregate amound ¢f quoted e cstments and markct ok therool .
Apgrepale amount ¢l ungualcd Incsumenls 1.54.104.28 1.30,202 3%

Apprcizale amoun of impairment of un estmeans 1.681,99 1681 94
Notes:

aj * The Company has issucd financial suaraniess an beholl of cenan subsidiancs @ banks o finangial nstlubons wahoul charging any b oc commussion The fur vake of the
Tinancial guaramees & cecoused as deemed un csiment with o comesponding creaton of fnancial guaranice hobily until the o subswd arg derp  ar mpasred

b} ¢ The Company has caleulaicd the preseal salue of estmated cash o from the nycsiment in redeemable prefercnee sharcs of i's subssdian, using the approprate discount rate
The difference betwoon the amount e csled and presend s akue 1s Iecated as deemed i ciment in respecun ¢ subswdianes

¢} Reder note 38 for related porty disclosures

M March 2024 31 March 2023

6 Noo-current loans

Vo relosed partics (Refer Mote I8)

Facars Recervabiles eomsidvred wovd « smseonred

Loan 1o Haldw Inlermaviongl Comamer Terminal Private Limiled 24624.75 2,077 21

Laoan 1o J# Baw Hzavy Private Limited (Farmerly known as Bovco Lowanes Infralems 5,266.38 062532

Privsde Limued)

Loan 1o Tutconn Inicrmanenal Conwiner Terminal Privaie Limizd 882492 2108 51

Loan w Nhasa Sheva Disribunon termmal Preae Lomied 2137 35276

Loan o Ballard Pacr Prs ase Linnied 410955 1,824 34
23,174.97 156 16

Livrs Recervahles considered donbifiel « credit mpired « insecired

Loan to Hatda inematwonal Conawer Termmal P ate Limaied 1,703.01 1.5tk 01

Lees Prowswon for loan - Halda Iuemguonal Contginer Termmal Private Limiked 11.793.01 L5061
231 74_,_81 15986 16

The Company hos pros ided boons 1o s subssdiarics These loans orc unsecurcd and arc cxiended al var g wirest cawes from 9% 10 14% p a These foans ore repsn able as per lerms
agreed There ore no foans in which the s ol cepayment or penod 15 not specilied

Other non-carrem Tinaacial assets
imeaared. Livnndered pood)

Bank deposis { with remamung mataris ol more than 12 months » 4358.83 30771
Fimance lease moen able {Reler Mot 33 (k) 258025 .
Sccurmy deposis 19,60 J90 38
T.A68 68 1,307 29
=

The Company has a hen on above bank deposits arpregaumng (o Rs 346 40 labhs {31 March 2022 Rs %07 71 lakhs)

8 Other non-current asseis
(T inseenred, consshered goog)

T refated parties (Refer Nove 38 § ~
Capral ods onces . Y 3 14301
To parties otber than related parvies Ja \

Capual sy nnces ' | 183197 HIM
Prepaid shponecs ) 293 47

‘,6 304590 w017
; R
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J M Baxi Ports & Logistics Private Limited
(Earfier known as J M Baxi Ports & Logistics Limited)

Notes to the standalone financial statements {Continiued)
as ai 3 March 2024

tAll amount are in ¥ lakhs, unless stared atherwise)

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
10 Cash and cash equivalents
Balance with banks:
In current accounts 754,51 340028
Dreposits with original maturity of less than three months 140501 §.600 00
Cash on hand 159 245
3,061.21 12,002 11
it Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Balance with banks:
In deposi toriginal ity of more than 3 months but less than 12 42.444.39 1013 54
months) *
42,444,309 1.013 34

* Fixed deposit having original mawrity of less than 12 months with banks to the extent of Rs 1,431 82 lakhs (31 March 2023 Rs 1,013 34 lakhs) are held as margin
money

12 Current loans
fUnsecnred, commicder ed good)

To related parsies (refer note 38)
Inter corporate deposits

Inter-corporate deposits - idered good - d
Paradip Internalional Cargo Terminal Private Limied £96.94 896 64
I Baxi Heavy Private Limited {Formerly known a5 Boxeo 22000 1.476 24
Louisitics Infratrans Privale Limited}
Boxeo Lagistics India Privaie Limited . 4312
Vizag Muliipurpose Terminal Private Limited 6.57 000
112351 242130
31 March 2024 31 march 2023
13 Other current financial assets

(Fivecnired, comsteered good)

To related parties

Other receivables 3.249.55 359 11
Tatal (A) 3,249.53 350411

Te parties orher thum relored portics

Bank deposits {with ofiginal mawrity of more than 12 months)” 5.901.86 63604

Finance lease receivable [Refer Nowe 33 (k)) &71.50 -

Security deposins 125.1 13571

Other receivables 164,32 287 84
Total (B) 636339 1,059 59

Total (A+B} 14,1 l?._.92 4,653 )

**The Company has lien on its bank deposits (with origina! maturity of more than 12 months)aggregaling Rs 778 71 lakhs (31 March 2023 Rs 472 89 lakhs) asat 3|
March 2024 in favour of bank towards bank guarantees given
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

4 Other corrent assets
Etmecired comstdered gomd)

Balances with governmen authorities 1,147.17 1.600 36
Advance 10 suppliers 426.77 37953
Prepand expenses 520,00 TI76 44
Advance 1o employees 18.00 d431

2,720.94 4.260 64
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] M Baxi Ports & Logistics Private Limited
(Eartier known as J M Baxi Ports & Logistics Limiied)

Notes to the Jadene fi il (Continped)
a5 of 3F March 202+

(Al amount are 1n ¥ lakhs. unless staled otherase)

15

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Equity share capital
Authorised:
1.11,00,01,000 {31 hfarch 2023 1,11,00.01,000) equnty shares of Rs | each 11400010 [FRL ]
10.00,00.000 {31 March 2023: 10,00,00,000) Series A Compulsenibr Convernible Non Curmdatrve Particrpatory Preference Shares of 10,000.00 1,000 D)
Rs 10 sach
10,00,00,000 {31 March 2023. 10,00,00,000) Senes B Compilsonly Convertible Non Cumulai ¢ Parnoipatory Preference Shares of 10,000.00 103, D0 ()
Rs LU gach

31.100.01 31 IO&
Issued, subscribed and paid-up:
10.72,39.818 equity shares (31 March 2023 489,69 110} ol Re 1 each, fulb pad up 107239 4RD 69

107239 4960

Nate:

1 Dunng ikt current year, 56,85,320 Compulsory Converuble Mon-Cumulalne Panlicipatory Prelerence Shares {CCPS) (47,0R,999 Series A 00(% CCPS and ©,76,321 Seriex B 0 01% CCPS) were
converled inlo 3.00,21,491 equity shares for consideration other than cash. These shares were comveried pursuand Lo (he approval of the compamy's members in the exita ordinary general mesting and the
separate mecling of the holders of Series A and Serics B CCPS on 07 April 2023 The Allowment commitles of the Board idered and app ] the resclution on 18 Apnl 2023

2 During the current year the company had transfemed 3,46,46,891 ¢quity shares held by Imegral Invesimenls Sowh Asia VIIT were transferred Lo HL Termina Holding BV and additional 2,49,217
wnere issued to HL Terminal Holding B ¥ pursuant to the approval of the board of the company on 19 4pnl 2023 These adduional $2,99.217 equiy shares are ofTered a1 a price ol Rs 1,158 77 per
share having Face value of INR | per share and o preminm of Rs 1,157 77 per share

Recomeiliaion of the shares auistiandiog at the beginming and the end of the year

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Number Amsunt Number Amouid
Equity shares
Balance as gt the beginning of the year 489,69, 110 489.69 439,69 110 430 49
Add shares issued durning the year HZA4921T 42,49 - -
Add shares converied duning the vear 5.00.20.491 S00.20 - -
At the end of the year 10,7239 814 1,072.40 439,69, 110 449 68

Riphis, prederemces and restvictions

Equity shares

The Company has a single class of cquiy shares Accordingly, all equity shares rank equally with regard 10 drvidends and share in the Compam's residual assets The equity shares are entiled Lo receive
dividend as declared from time Lo lime The votling rights of an cquily sharsholder en a poll (not on shew of hands) are in proporion Lo its share of the paid-up capital of the Company  Yelng nghts
cannol be exercised in respect of shares on which amy cail or other sums presently pavable have noi been pad

In the ¢vent of liguidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares wll be entitled 10 receive the remaning assels of the Company in the same proportion 35 the capital paid-up on the equuty shares
heid by them bears 10 the 1012l pad-up equity share capaal of the Company

Non ible nan lati d ble pref shares INCNCRPS)

Non rible non labive red ble prel: shares (NCNCRPS) were 1ssued at par The NCNCRPS are redeemable a1 par on 9 May 2037 and on 27 March 203% and shall bear the coupon
rale ol 0 01% per anoum

The NCNCRPS shall have prority over the gxising equity shares of [he Company in all respecis and shall be of non paricipative nature and shall ned camy amy nght 1o vole NCNCRPS carry a
il for that year lapses

[ I nght a5 Lo ] over equiry shareholders Where dvidend 15 nol declared in respect of' 2 financial year m the case of 1} p shares the
In the exent of liquidation, the preference share holders shall be enlitled 10 a prefzrental net of return of Lhe amount paid up on the shares duc ont the date of iqudation bul shail not have further Aight or
claim aver the surplus asseis of the Campany

Deetails of sharelolders mapre tham 5% shares of the aggregaie shares in ine company:

31 March 2024 3| March 2023

Mumber Perventage Wumber Percentape
Equity shares of Rs 1 aach fully paid ap held by
K & Kouk 4,44,02,260 41, 40% 20547000 TR
I K Kolak 76, 75,950 T16% 3493310 T 14%
V K Kok FI,75,950 T25% 3599310 T 35%
Integral Invesiments South East Asa VT - - 191,74, 140 39 20%
H1. Terminal Holding B ¥ 4.28.96,108 404 - x

196



J M Baxi Ports & Logistics Private Limited
(Earlier known as J M Baxi Poris & Logistics Limited)

MNudes 10 e dakyne fu ial (Contiruted)
asat 1 March 2024

(AN amount are in ¥ lakhs, unless stated otharwise)
IS  Share capital (Continued)

D Share held by promoders:

31 March X4 31 Margh 2021 Percentnge of
Promater Name Number of shares  Percentage of total  Number of shares Percentage of total change during the
shares. shares year
K B Konak 444,02, 260 41.40% 20547090 1 0% 565
D K Kok 76,75.950 16% 3498310 T 14% 0.02%:

E Aggregale number of shares issued for censideratiew olher than cash and during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporiing date:

Number of shares
During the year ended 31 March 2021, Company has issued 3,140.00| number of 0 01% Non comvertible non ¢ | ck ble prefe & shares of Rs 100 gach, fully pard-up 31.30.001
i Fovour of “K* Sieamship Agencies Py Lid These shares were ssued Pursuant 1o the scheme of Arrangenieni {‘the Scheme') approved by the Nanonal Company Law Trbunal
viide ns order dared 23 December 2020, approved Composite Scheme of Arrangement of Boxco Logihes India Private Limued { Demweraed Company™). Comifraght Shipping
Agency (Tndia) Private Lumwied { Resulony Company | ¢ Transferor Company'}, Imemational Cargo Terminals and (nfrastructure Privare Limued | Transferee Compaity) and
Hoxco Logisucs Infrawans Privae Limaed [ Resulung Compary 2 and thein respeciive Sharcholders (* the Scheme™ or “the Comy Scheme of Arrang )

Durtng the year ended 31 March 2021, Company has issued 1,323,957 number of squtty shares ol Bs 10 each, fully pad-up m Favour of Knshna Bhagwan Kovak, Mr Dhrov Knshaz 1§,23,952
Kotak, Mr Vir Knishna Kotak and Integral Investmenis South East Asiz V1l These shares were issued Pursuant to the scheme of Arrangement {the Scheme) approved by the

Nanonal Compary Law Tribunal vide ns order dated 2) December 2020, approved Composite Scheme of Arangentnt of Boxco Logisues India Pavate Limmed (- Demerged

Company™), Contfrenght Shipping Agency {India) Private Limated {“Resultmy, Company | / Transferor Company™), [ntemational Carag Terminals and Infrastructure Private Cimited

(Trarsferse Campay’} and Boxco Logistics Infratrang Privare Limnted (“Resultmg Company 27} and thear respactive Sharsholders (the Scheme™ or “the Composite Scheme of

Arrangemant”)

Duning the current year, 56,35 320 Compulsory Convertible Non-Cumulatve Parncipatory Preference Shares (CUPS) 47.08.990 Senes A 001% CCPS and 9,76,321 Senes B 500,149
01 (1% CCPS) were converled wito 500,21 491 equity shares for consideration other than cash These shares were dp 1o the approval of the pay's bers n

tha extra ordmary general meeting and (he separale meeting of the holders of Series 4 and Series B CCPS on 07 Apnl 2023 The Alloiment commumiee of the Board consdered and

approved the resolunon on |§ Apnl 2023

F Shares réserved lor issue under contract

31 March 2024
During Lhe FY 2023-24 Senigs A 0 01% Compulsory Convernble Non-Cumulative Participatory Preference Shares (CCPS) and Senes B 0 01% Compulsory Converuble Non-Cumulative Panicipalory
Preference Shares {CCPS) has been converted into equity

31 March 2013

Share ¢lass Numiber of Face Value per Amound Potential no of shares
preference shires shars ]

Senes A 001% Compulsory C ble Mon-C: I Participatory Preference 4708994 10 470 47,028,999 00

Shares (CCPS)

Zeries B 0 0% Compulsory Convertible Mon- Cunul P " ¥ F 976,321 10 9763 976,321 00

Shares iCCPS)
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I M Baxi Ports & Logistics Private Limited
(Earlier known as J M Baxi Ports & Logistics Limited)

Neies to the Jal i ial fConrinued)
a5 of 3F March 2024

{All amount are in % lakhs, unless slated othermise)

3 March 2024 31 March 2023
15A Instruments entirely equity in nature

Nil (31 March 2023 4,708 995 & 1% Series A Isority convernible lalive participalary prefe shares ol Rs 10 - 47090
2ach
il (31 March 2023: 976,321 0.01% Sencs B pubsoril; ibde non lative participatory prefarence shares of Rs, 10 - LRk ]
each

- 36833

A Reconciliation of the shares sulstanding ai the begioning and the end of ihe year

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Numbrer Ameont MNumber Amaount
0.,01% Series A kzorily nas- Lati
particpatory preference shares
Balante as at The beginming of Lthe year 47,0899 470,90 47.08,999 LR
Add Shares issuedi{convenad) dunng the year (47.08.99% (470,90) - =
Al the end of the year - - 47.08.999 470,90
0.01% Series B ily canvertilde L
participatory preference shares
Balanee 25 a1 1he beginning of the year 76,321 97.63 9,145,321 2163
Addl. Shares issued/convened) during the year 19,76,321) (97.43) -
At the end of Lhe year - - 0,756,321 U763
4708 999 Senes A and 976,321 Series B Compulsarily o ible non lative participative pref; shares have been classified as entirely equiiy in nature

B Rights, preferences amd restrictions

Series A eompalsorily ronvertible now il shares
Seanes A Compulsonly conventile noh cumulatine prererenczshann (CCPS) were issued at par n FY 2020-21 a5 bonus 1o equily shareholders n the ratio of { Series 4 CCPS for every ) 161 equity

shares held

These shares have been ssued with a term ol 19 vears and shall not carry any n;hl 10 vote Senes A CCPS shall rank senor to all ather secunivies of the Company, excepl the Senes B CCPS Where
diridend is nol declared in respect of a financial year in the case of non e pref: sharas, the ennitl for ihal vear lapses [nthe event of hquidation, the preference share holders shall be
entiled o a preferennal nght of rewm of the amgund pard up on the shares due on Ihe date of lijwdanon but shall not have firther nght ar elaum over Lhe surplus assers of the Company

Series B pulsorily ible mon particlpatary preference shares
Series B C Isorik ible non lative pancipatony preference shares {CCPS) were isswed a1 par in FY 2020-21

These shares have been 1ssued wilh a 1emm ol |9 vears and shall not carry amy nght Lo vole Senes B CCPS shall rank semior (o all olfer secunnes of the Company Where dividend 15 nol declared i
respect of a financial year in e case of non-cummulative preference shares, the entilement for thal vear lapses. [n the event of liquidation, Lhe preference share hokders shall be entitled 10 a preferantal
nght of teturn of the gmount pad up on the shares due on the date of hqwdaton but shall nel have further right or claim over ihe surplus assets of the Company

15A  Instruments entirely equity in nature {Continued)

C Details #f shavebioklers more than 5% shares of the aggregate shares in ke company

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Mumber Pertentage Munber Percenlage|
Series A 0.01% Computsory C ible Man-C Participaiory Pref Shares (CCPS)
K B Kolak = - 23,85,517 S0 /6%
D K Kolak - - 4,17, 764 LR
¥ K Kok - . 417 i 3 AT
Imiegral Intesiments Soulh Easl Asia VI - = 12,52,125 26 5%
Series & 0.01% C y C e Nya-Ci lative P: ¥ P Shares (CCPS)
[niegral Investmends South East Asia V1IT - . 92.76.321 1%

1] Share beld by promoters
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 FPerceniage off
Pramuoter Name Nomber of shaves  Perceniage of tatal  Mumber of shares Perceniage of woial thange during the
shares shares year

K B Kolak - - 2383517 50 (6% 100.00%%
D K Kotak - - 41776 £ 474 100.00%%

E 15zue of baaus shares

Dunng the year company has nod issued ame bonus shares for (he penod under considerauon
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J M Baxi Ports & Logistics Private Limited
(Earlier known as J M Baxi Ports & Logistics Limited)

Notes to the standalone financial statements (Continued)
as ai 31 March 2024

(All amount are in € lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

16  Other equity
A.(i} Equity component of non converfible non cumulative redeemable

Balance as at beginning of \he year 247.27 24727

Addition during the year - -

Balance as at the end of the year 247.27 247127
Ajii) Equity component of loan taken (rom director

Balance as at beginning of the year J45.54 34554

Addirion during the year = =

Balance as at the end of the year 345.54 345 54
B. Reserves and Surplus
(i  Securities premium

Balance as at beginning of the year 1,58,285.97 1,58,28897

Add: Proceeds rowards allotment of shares 95,575.28 -

Less: Share lssue expenses {1,832.15) -

Balance as at the end of the year 2,52,032.10 15828897
{ii)  Ceneral reserve

Balance as at beginning of the year 3,750.13 3.350.13

Add: Amount | ferred from Det Redemption Reserve 1,003.45

Balance as at the end of the year 4,753.58 375013
(i)  Retained earnings

Balance as at beginning of the year 20,847.76 21,24505

Profit{Loss) for the year 71,295.08 606 16

Less: Amount transferred to Debenture Redemption Reserve - (1,003 45)

Balance as at the end of the year 28,142.84 1084776
{iv} Amalg tion Ajust t Deficit Account

Balance as at beginning of Ihe year (45,461.11) {45461 113

Balance as at the end of the year (45461.11) (4546111}
(v)  Capital redemption reserve

Balance as a1 beginning of the year 371347 3347

Add: on account of redemption of preference shares - =

Balance as at the end of the year 371347 171147
C. Other comprehensive inceme

Balance as at beginning of the year {82.68) {220.76)

Remeasurement of defined benefit {liability)asset {37.32) 13808

Balance as at the end of the year (170.00) (82.68)
D Debenture redemplion reserve

Balance as al beginming of the year 1,003.45 -

Add: transferred from retzined eamings - 1,003 43

Less: ransferred to General Reserve (1,003.45) -

Balance as at the end of the year - 1,003 45

Total other equity 2.43,603.69 1,42,652 80
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J M Baxi Ports & Logistics Private Limited
{Earlier known as J M Baxi Ports & Logistics Limired)

Notes to the standalone financial statements (Continned)
as at 31 March 2024

(All amount are in ¥ lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

16

Ai)

Adfii)

B.(i)

B.{ii)

Other equity (Continued)

MNotes:

Equity component ol 0.01% non convertible non comulative redeemable preference shares:

Equity component of non converlible non cumulalive redesmable preference shares was created on issuance of NCNCRPS
(refer note 15)

Equity component of loan taken from director
Equity component of director loan represents difference between the carrying amount and the fair value on the date of initial

measurement discounted using an appropriate discount rate

Securities premium
Securilies premium is used 1o record the premium teceived on issue of shares. 1 is utilised in accordance with the provisions

of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act

General reserve
The General reserve is used from Lime to time to transfer profits from retained samings for appropnation purposes

B.{iii) Retained earnings :

Retained eamings are Lhe profits / {losses} thal the Company has eamed till date, less any transfer 1o peneral reserve,
dividends or other distribution paid 1o shareholders

B.(iv) Amalgamation Ajusiment Deficil Account

B.Av)

Amalgamantion Adjusimeni Defot Account is created on account of merger under Appendix C of Ind AS 103

Capital redemption reserve
Capital redsmption reserve is created on account of redemption of preference shares. These can be used for any subsequent
issue of bonus shares

Other comprehensive income
[t comprises of actuarial gain and losses, differences between the retun on plan assets and liabilities

Debenture redemption reserve
The Company has issued redeemable non-convertible debenwures. Accordingly, the Companies (Share capital and

Debentures) Rules, 2014 {as amended), require the company to create Debenture redemption reserve {DRR) oul of profits of
the company available for payment of dividend Debenlure redemption reserve (DRR) is required to be created for an amount

which is equal o 10% of 1he value of debentures issued
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J M Baxi Ports & Logistics Private Limited

(Earlier known as J M Baxi Ports & Logistics Limited)

Notes to the standalone financial statements (Continued)

as at 31 March 2024

{All amount are in T lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

17  Non-current borrowings

Secured Borrowings at amortised cost
Term loans;
- From banks
Yes Bank Limited {Refer Note 'a' below)
ICICI Bank Limited {Refer Note 'b" below)
Axis Bank Limited {Refer Note '¢' below)

- From financial institutions
Axis Fimance Limited (Refer Note e' below)

Unsecured Borrowings af amorvised cost
From related party
Delhi International Cargo Terminals Private Limited

(Formerly known as [nternational Cargo Terminals and Rail

Infrastructure Private Limited) (Refer Note 'd’ below)
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31 March 2024 31 March 2023

12,974.10 11,845.99
2,225.64 -

13,917.49 14,018.66

29117.23 25,864.65

6,780.00 923773

6,780.00 923173

- 1,270.00

a 1,270.00

35.897.23 36,372.38




I M Baxt Ports & Logistics Private Limited
fhardrer known a5 M Baxt Poris & Logasttes Leted)

Notes to the standabone financial statements (Contiied}
av ot 31 Mareh 2024

1AL amount e in % lakhs, unless stared othersise)

MNon-current borrowings

Mon-current borrowings (Continied)

Detadls of the secority and repayment (erms:

The Company has been a sanchioned Term Loan facibues of Rs 15.19% {abhs (31 March 2023 Rs 21302 Jahbs) from Yes Bank Limitad For the purp of pant i far ier freight station laciliny o
Uran. refinancing of existing Llerm loan and part Anancmy of rakessbrake vang and 115 associded expenses

The faciliies carries a floaling imerest raie of 1 f % (Spread} 04 er and above the one rear MCLR The applicable iterest rale as on 3151 March 2024 15 11 1085 pa {31 March 2023 10 35% p a) The Company

shall repm the facilily in quaniecl instalments pasable wplo Seplember 2034

“The term loan facifities is secured by:

First pan passu charge on

A) All morable fived asses of the Bomoser, present and Fuiure, including equipments (excluding all assels of the Borroners charged 1o be ¢harged 10 the vehicla finance lenders uplo an exlent of Rs 1th
Lakhs)

B} All immosable Frued Assets of the Barmower Charge on fi+ed asseis will include appros 24 31 acres of TNPT Jand fineludimy 4 94 peres of land leased irom CIDCO by the Borrower which cannot be
perfecizd due 1o unasailabilits of no objection cenificate from CIDCOY

Charge on xed assetz excludes the Following

742 acres leasehold land of the CFS 21 Dronagim Node for which the Boroner has execuled only an asreement Lo lease

-First Pan Passu charpe orer entire curreni assets of the Bomrower. present and future and all loans and adyvances extended by the Bomrower m 1he subsidianes £ Jount veniures/Associales. both present and liunre
Excluding

(1) anx memies specifically infised by Sponsor wn the Bomower forinfi n subaidanesfoin 1ated and

12) Loans and ady ances miised i Visakha Contaner Terminal Pouate Limited and Kandla Intemational Contamer Pur lid which hig 10 be b pothecated in R our of their respectie Tenders

-Furst Pan Passu Charge! assgrmen, of all the receis ables! ren snuess cash flows ol Lhe Bomoner

-First Pari passu charge on Borrower's all aceounts including without huoiian 1o 2ach of the dccounts required 1o be crealed s the Bonower under any project Docunmentis/ coniract

-Assigament of all Insurance Conlracts related Lo all assels of the Bomower over which secunts interest is crealed i terms of the inngs documenis, with the secunly irustee s the st loss paee

-Assignment of Contraclor guaraniees, lehier of credi, guaraniee or perdformance bond that mas be provided by any counter pany under any project areement

-Bortawer 10 provide uncondinanal and irrévocable undenaking 1o creale and mainiam detd seruce resene account (- DSRA™) equisalent 1o ensung the nest 3 months of debl senice requirement (pnneipal -
Interest) DSRA will be hen marked in [avour of Lenders

The Company has been sanctioned a Term Laaa [aciluy of Rs 17640031 March 2023 311} lakhs from [C1CT Bank Limited for the purposes of purchase of L0 ral rahes. Reimbursenven of equitsintemat accruals
spent for capiial expendilure for the abos e and Transaction relaed expenses

The facilily cames an interest rare of 4 30 % (Spread) over and abore the one vear MCLE The applicable inierest rale as on 3151 March 3124 5 4 30% pa (3] March 2023 Nil) The Comgpany shall repay the
faeiliry in gquanerh instalments paable uple December 20050

The term loan facilire 15 secured by

Exclusive chareg on 10 takhes financed by ICICH Bank. Limied

The Company has been sancnoned Term Loan (acilives of Rs 15,654 lakhs (31 March 2023 Rs 15684 Lakhs) from Aws Bank Limuted for the purpose of pan cefinancing of equipments and conlaner Fraiuht

station facilils al Uran. refinancing of ewsting e loan and pan financing of mhestbrahe vans. for Ainancing the capital evpendiure. Resmbutsement of equits i relaucn o acquisivon of Equipment and
T al MICT 2, niization of cash flows from MG Inlemational and associated frmsaclion costs and cxpenses

The faciliny cames an ierest rate of |4 % iSpread) over and above he one year MCLR The applicable inieren cale as on 311 March 2024 15 10 35% pa (3150 March 2023 4 50%) The Company shall repay

the facihix in quarierls instalmenis paable uplo Seplember 2032

The Facibity 1s secured by

ta) First pan passu charge on the following

(13 all the mon able fived assels o the Borrower texcluding all assers of the Borrowers chargedila be charged in favour ol vehiele finance lenders upto an extent of Rs 100 [akhs}).

(Il all immcsable Fised Assers ol the Bomower including approximaiels 24 51 {twenty four poim fifly one) acres of INPT land [including 4 *H acres of land leased from CIDCG by the Bomower which cannot
be perfecied due 1o unoyailabibiy of Mo ob certificate from CTRCOH bul exchding 7 42 acres leasehold land of the CFS a1 Dronagin Node for which  the Bomrower has executed only an agreenwmt 10

lease:
(b} trsl pari-passu charge over Al cument assets of the Borrower including all bank accounis of the korrawer, both present and fulure, (abos e secuniy ewcludes
) any momes specilically infused Promoter Promoter Group C iestSharehelders of the B er i the Bomower for infusion in subsidianes f join senlures ! ssociaies md

(i) Loans & sdvancss infused i Visabha Comtainer Terming Prisate Limiled and Kandla Invemauonal Comaner Terminal Prsate Limuted which has 1o be by pothecated i Gnour of lknders Visalhe Contaner

Ternunal Prvale Limiled and Kandla Intemational Conmtainer Private Limited respectively )

(c} first pan-passu charge over loans and ady ances extended by Borrower in the Subsidianes / Joinl Venlures / associales bolh present and (ulure.

{above securs evcludes (1) any momes specifically infused by Promover/Promaler group companies! shareholders of lhe Bomower i the Bormower for mfugion in subsidianes! joinl ventures! associoles and i)
loans & advances infused m Visalla Contaner Ternunal Pntare Linuled & Kandla Iniemabional Contaner Terminal Privale Limited which has 10 be hrpothecaled w lnour of lenders Yisakha Conlaner
Terninal Private Limied and Kandla Intemononal Conuginer Temmnal Private Limned respectinely )

td) charge by wan of assignment of all receivables. revenues cash fows of the Borrower

te) Debit Service Corerage Rano {DSCR) for an amount ¢quiralent 10 1the next | quaner of priagipal and emtarest due. pay able in respecl of the [acilny (DERA Amour

202



J M Baxi Ports & Logistics Private Limited
(artier fonown s J M Beaxt Ports & Logisties Linited)

Motes to the standal fi ial st ts (Contintied)
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(Al anount e in € lakhs, unless staed othersise}

17

Non-current borcowings (Continued)

Details of the security and repaymest terms: (C
I dt inys [rom Delh | ipnal Cango Temunal Prsale Linvied for the purpose of mesting workmg capital requirements are (o a period o 3 32ars from the dale of disbursement and camy
inlerest rale of 11 25% pa {31 March 2023 1) 23% pa)

Axis Finance Limised

The Company has been sanclioned Term Loan Facilin 6fRs 12,504 1akhs {31 March 2023 Rs 12500 Lakhs) from Axis Finanee Limied for Lhe purpese of part funding of acquismion of 263 slake in VCTEL
The Faciliy cames an nlerest rte of | 65 % [Spread} orer and abos e the one vear MCLR. The apphcable mterest rate 5 on 31 March 2024 is % 63% pa (31 March 2023 1045% pa 3 The Compam shall
repan the facilin w quanes]ly msiallments pay able uple Februan 2027

the Facility g secured by

(1) Second and Pan Passu charge on énlire presem and fulwre flsed agsets of the Bomower

(2} Second and Pan Passu charge on snnre present and future current assets of the Bomower

Collateral Secunp

31 First and Exclusive charpe on 26% shares of Visakba Contwner Termmal P aie Limited which were acquired by the Borrower

Axis Bank Limited-¥ehicle Loan
Loan | - The Compan: has been sanclioned Equipment Finance Joan of Rs 200 Lakhs (31 March 2023 200 lakhs) The fatihly cames a fived rate ol interest al 6 %5% pa The Compan: shall repay the faciliny in
mgnihly mstalments pay able uplo Februan 2027 The Equipment Finance loan [fom Awus bank 15 secured by exclusiets by the Equipment's purchased by thus faarlm

Laan 2: The Company has been sanctoned Equipment Finance loan of Rs 230 Lakhs (31 March 2023: 230 Lakhs) The Facihix camies a fived rue ol inveresi a 3 2% p a The Compan shall repa the Facilin
wi monthly instadments pavable upto June 2027 The Equipiment Finanes loan from Axis bank 15 secured by exclusively by the Equipment’s purchased by Lhs loan

Loan 3 The Company has besn sanclioned Equipment Financs loan of R 261 Lakhs (31 March 2023; Nily The facihly carries a fised rate of Interest a1 % $0% pa The company shall repa the facilny
monilils msiaments payable upto Fuls 202% The Equipment Finance loan From Axis bank 1s secured by exclusinely by the Equipiment's purchased by Uns loan

Loan - The Company has been sanctioned Equipment Finance loon of Rs (03 Lakbs (31 March 2023 Nily The fGeilin carries a fived mie of Inerest a § 8085 pa The compan shall repay the Rl i
menthls msiaments patables uplo August 2024 The Equipment Finance loan from Axis bank 1s secured by exclusiel by the Equipmen’s purchased by this loan

Loan 3 The Cornpany has been sancuoned Equipment Finance Joan of Rs 434 Lakhs (31 March 2023 Nil} The facihiy cames a fised rate of Interest ul 8 1% pa The company shall repay the Facihix
wonthly msiaments pay able uplo October 202% The Equipiment Finance toan from Axis bank 1s secured by exclusneh by the Equpment’s purchased

Loan & The Company has been sanctioned Equipment Finance loan of Bs 439 Lakhs (31 March 2023 Nil) The Taerdins cames a fived rate of loterest o1 X 70% pa The compans shall repa Lhe facilin
monthly mslallments pa able uplo November 2028 The Equipmean Finanes loan [Fem Asas bank 1s secured by exclusiveh by the Equpment’s purchased

Net Debt Recomciliation
This secuon sels oul an analx 515 of net debt and the moy ements m net debt [or cach ol the penods presented

Particulars 31 March 31 March 2023
Cash and cosh equinalents 3.161.21 12002 71
Borraw ings {45.177.13 {6, |17 [5])
Lease Liabiliies (6,1 Md‘nl {17317
Not Debl (48.196.39)| (55017 1)
CHher Assels | Linbilitics from financing activities Toaal
Cash and
Bank
Panticulars Eq Lease Linbilities |Borrowings
MNex Debu as at 1 April 2023 12.002.71 {3‘1’3235“ {6d.1 ST.]S[I (S5917.19)
Cachilows (8A41.5m 151523 15.987.47 11.661.20
Addiion 1n Jeases - (3.550.36) -
Delation in leaes . 11.52 - 1152
Interest expense - ddd 10 {4h65.62) 5312.73)
Imierest paid - - 489117 489117
MNed Debt as ai 31 March 2024 Y161.21 {6 130.47) (4517713 (48, 196.38) |
Nt Dbt as o | April 2023 ENTEEE {3,356 54} (30362 11} (33459 13)
Cashilows 283424 L0l ok {24005 iy (20982 121
Addition in leass - L3823 461) - [r XN
Delelion in leases - Thi BR - 65 B8
Inigresl expense - idl% 16y [eaL: R ENTR) 14,5000 1T}
Interest paid - - JNEZ M S 08700
Mel Deht as al 31 March 2023 [BXL 14 (3732 73) {iwl IRT 151 (55917 1
31 March 2024 31 March 1023
Other non-current Wnancial liabilities
Secunty deposits recened 1.55 .
Financial guaranie habilings irefer note SCiun 332190 ERU KRR
332345 2012464
Qiher non-corrent liabilites
Linarorsed defemed Income 41.87 HUT
JL87 43 U7
—_—
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I M Baxi Ports & Logistics Private Limited
flartier known as J M Baxi Ports & Logistics Limited)

MNotes to the standalone linancial statements (Continted)
as at 31 Mavch 2024

{All ampunt an: in ¥ lakhs, unlesy staled othernise)

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
20 Current borrowings
Secnred Borrowings of amuoriised cast
Current mawrity of long term loans (Refor Note | )
-Fram banks 1,352 26 1.970 43
From Financial institutions 253100 3,189 00
Cash credin loan froe banks (Reier Nawe "2 below] 142453 -
I ) ings at ised cost
From related party
Fortall Infosystems Prvate Dimied (Refer Mote ' below) - 10,120 B2
Delhi International Cango Torminals Prvate Limiwd {Rofer Note '¢' below) 197211 2,500 0
Diehemtores
14% non-gonvetiblc Debeniurms {Rofer Mo 'd below) - 1,034 53
4.279.50 2TRILTT

Motes !

The Cash eredic Basility of R 2800 Lakhs was sanctioned by Yes Bank and the interest s pavable & M MCLR+1 0% sevnd annual The applicable intercst raie as on 31 March 20241 L0 65% (31 March 2023
9.93%p a} The same is sucurcd by first pani passu change oa presenl and Future current asscts of the Bommower. The facility is repayable on demand

(above secunty excludes (i) any monivs specifically infused by Promuier/Fromoter group comp / sharcholders of the B inthe B for infusivn in subsidiaricsf joint ; and (i}
loans & advances wlused m Yisakha Contaner Terminal Povale Limicd & Kandla Inemavonal Coatainer Termmal Povate Limied which has 1o be hypothecated i favour of lenders Vigakha Contancr

Termunal Prvawe Limned and Kandla Inemanonal Contaner Terminal Prmoate Limited respoctclyy,
The Cash eredit fazidiny of Rs 2800 Lakhs was sancioned by Axas Bank and the intcrest 12 payable | Year MCLR The applicable mtcrest raie 25 an 31 March 20204 15 10 50% (31 March 2023 9 50%) The

same is secured by first pan passu charge on present and futere current assets of the Bomower: The faciliy is repayable on demand

{above secunty cxcludes {1) any monics specifically infused by Promower Prometer graup T f sharchalders of the B inthe B for Infusion in subgidi { jowm, and {n)
loans & advances infused in Visakha Cootaingr Terminal Privac Limied & Kandla Inwmational Container Terminal Privaee Limited which has to be hypothecated w favour of lenders Visakha Container

Termingl Prvai Limited and Kandla Intermaional Containce Terminal Prisate Limied respectively)
The Revolvng Bank Guaranice Limits of Rs 6000 Lakhs was sancooned by Yes Bank and Bank Guaraniee commission of 0 75% p a 15 payable upfront on quarieely bass The same is sccurcd by first pan passu

charge an the curment assels, both present & future, of the Bomawer

hed

{ jomnt and (n)

(above secunty excludes {1} any mamcs specifically inflised by P TPromater group { sharcholders of the B m the B For infusion in
loans & advances mfused in Visakha Contaner Torminal Privaie Limied & Kandla Inteenational Comtancr Terminal Privale Limnied which has i be hypothecated i favour of lenders Visakha Container

Turminal Piva Limiwd and Kandla ntemational Contaimer Termingl Privals: Limited respectively)
The Revohing Bank Guamntee Limits of Rs 6000 Lakhs was sanclioned by Anis Bank and Bank Guarantse commission of 0. 75% pa payable annually in advance The same is sceured by First pan passu

charge over eotire currenyt asscls of the bormower both present and Muture
{above sceunty cxcludes i) any maonies specifizally infused by PromotcrPrometer group ; ! sharcholders of the B i the B for infusian in subsidi ! yowmt i and {in}

lpans & advances infuscd in Visakha Conlainer Termingl Privale Limited & Kandla Intzmational Container Torminal Private Limited which has to be hivpothecated i Favour of lenders Yisakha Contuncr

Temmuinal Private Limited and Kandla ipnal Conuaner T | Private Limied respeetively)

The Cornpany had cniered mto an d deposit i wath Portall Infosystems Prvate Limiled in FY 2022-23 The mwercomparate deposit camed an wterest rate of 14% per annum

The unsceured micreotporate doposit is repad dunag the ycar through cquny infusion by the sharcholders

Unsycured b ings from Dalhi 1 jonal Cargo Terminal Prvate Lymited for the purpose of meciing working capital requiremunts which is repayable on dumand and carry interest rate of 900% pa

In FY 20122-23_ the Company had issued 14% unsccurcd redecmable non-convertible debenturcs amounting 1o Rs 10,000 lakhg io Integral Invesuments South Easl Asia WIIL The same has been ropaid during the
year through equiny infusion by the sharcholders

Dunng the FY 2022-23, the Company has net complicd on cenain fi ] with respeel do term Joans avarled from banks Howewver, based on the mvigw of filings mode by the Campany te the Banks,
the Banks have conunucd wiih the faedities and have not placed any demand an the loans and the facliy Accordingly, the Company conbmucs ta classifi these loans a8 curment and non-current based on the
onginal maturniy
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J M Baxi Ports & Logistics Private Limited
(Earlier known as J M Baxi Ports & Logistics Limited)

Notes to the standalone financiat statements (Confinued)
as at 31 March 2024

{All amount ar# in ¥ lakhs, unless staled otherwise)

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

12 Other current financial liabilities

Security deposits received 1609 4N
Relemiicn money payable 234.4% 46 89
Capital creditors 7112 12580
Employes bensfits payable 626,43 73760
Financial guaranies Tiabilities [ Refer Note 5 re)(it)] 406.3% 33605
Onher liabilities 36.49 31963

1.600.97 1.620.08

23 Current provisions

Provision for employee benefit obligati

Provision for compensated absences 78 2363
Provision for gratuity 417.36 24118
Ouher provisions:
Other provision - D issioning Liabiliry
-Provision for contingency 119.28 11928
314,48 384 09

24 Other curreat liabifities

Stannory dues payable £03.63 118710

Ad from { liabilitias) * [Refer Note 46 (b)] 47178 41112

Unamonised deferred Income - 578
1.275.38 1,604 00

Nate:

"R gnised thal was included in ad received fram { liabilities) at the beginning of the period Rs 411.12 lakhs (31 March 2022: 513 44

lakhs)
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J M Baxi Ports & Logistics Private Limited
(Earlier known as J M Baxi Ports & Logistics Limited)

Notes to the standalone financial statements (Continued)
Sor the year ended 3] March 2024

tAll amount are in ¥ lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

26

Revenue from operations

Revenue from Contract with customers
Sale of services

Handling and transportation charges

Rail freight income

Ground rent and storage income
Equipment hire charges

Business support charges

Container lease charpes

Other operating revenues

Miscellanecus income

Service income
Export benefit and entillement -5E15

Service concession revenue

Total Revenue lrom operations (A+B+C)

Other income

Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment {net}

Fair valug gaim on remeasurement of investments in preference shares measured at
amorlised cost

Interest income under effective imterest rate method on financial assets measuced at
amorised cost

-Bank deposits

-Inter-corporale deposits (Refer Note 38)

Interest on income tax refund

Unwinding interest income on finance lease receivable [Refer Note 33 (k)]
Commission on financial puzrantess

Reversal on cancellation/modification of financial guarankee

Excess provisionsfcredil balances wrilten back

Reversal of excess provision for gamity (refer note 34)

Reversal of excess provision for compensated absences (refer note 34)

Linwinding interest income on security depostt

Income on lease remeasurement

Miscellaneous income
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31 March 2024 31 March 2023
30,419.57 31,261 80
50,583.21 44,5168

4,298.99 531136
32603 33135
1,378.15 1,622 83
1L,134.91 1,078.14
88,160.86 84,176, 16
69,40 111.37
6,216.01 -
19.26
6,185.41 130,63
3.270.33 166.80
47.716.60 84473 5%
3.22 6252
524.50 T79.95
4,617.23 151,29
1,835.62 1.426.13
107.07 156 87
50.54 -
534.47 15012
633.65 -
24.84 48 45
- 2287
- 12.36
1.61 382
- 83 42
56.85 8268
8.399.60 3.532.48




J M Baxi Ports & Logistics Private Limited
(Earlier known as J M Baxi Ports & Logistics Limited}

Notes to the standalone linancial statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended 31 March 2024

(All amount are in T lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

27 Employee benefits expense
Salaries, wages and bonus 6,4671.61 4.496.70
Contribution 1o provident and other funds 355.21 t98.63
Gratuity expenses {Refer Mote 34) 83.45% -
Compensated absences { Refer Mote 34) 14.21 -
Staff welfare expenses 79.75 98 64
7,204.23 479367
28 Finance costs
Interast expense under effeciive interest rate method on Anancial liabilities not at fair
value through profit or loss:
- Om borowings
- from banks 3,063,5% 3.01690
- from financial institutions 1,031.81 58029
- from related parties {Refer Mot 38) 679.77 46322
Unwinding of interest cost on security deposits raken 4.81 310
Unwinding interest on lease obligations (Refer Note 33} 444,11 418.16
Orther borrowing costs 63.08 2158
Interest on indirect taxes 30.40 3361
5.317.54 4,539.46
29 Depreciation and amortisation expense
Depreciation on property, plant and equipments (refer note 3{a)) 3,754.72 249793
Depreciation on right-of-use asset {refer note 3(b)) 1,441.3% 905,34
Amortisation of intangible assets (refer note 4) 70.03 67.65
4,266.14 347092
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J M Baxi Ports & Logistics Private Limited
(Earlier known as J M Baxi Ports & Logistics Limired)

Notes to the standalone financial statements (Continued)}
Jor the year ended 31 March 2024

{All amount are in ? lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

30 Other expenses
Handling and transponiation charges 2401019 24.692.67
Haulage and rail freight 36,941.98 32,204 82
Brokerage and commissions 233647 2,196.10
Lass on sale of Property, plant and equipment 170,13 -
Contractual labour expenses 1,722.38 1657 66
Repairs and maimtenance:
Building 157.23 -
Plant and machinery 183.36 64 80
Others 363.39 43230
Power and fuel costs 1,043.18 1,182 04
Travelling and conveyance expenses 633.97 471.22
Legal and professional fees 1.770.53 1187 65
Rent {Refer Note 33) 493.39 22718
Equipment hire charges {Refer Nole 33) 478.93 4271
Advertisemeni and sales promation 392.59 506.93
Eleciricity charges : 211,49 20070
Office maintenance expenses 4476 123 83
Port and wharfage charges 18.76 19.435
Insurance expenses 2714 282.16
Software expenses 241,19 B2 74
Rates and taxes 161,43 87.82
Communication charpes 1580 68 8%
Printing and stationery 95.23 4022
Housckeeping and record maintenance expenses 9.83 10.42
Secunty expenses 302,86 297 97
Comworale social responsibility expenses [Refer Note 411 26.25 -
Payment to auditors {Refer Note below) 63.00 9438
Donalions - 022
Director sitting Fees (Refer MNote 38} 3.00 1825
Director comission - 45.00
Bank charges 128.37 1743
Sundry balances written off 102.12 265 46
GST/Service tax credit reversed 613.06 35911
Provision for expected credit losses 228.01 761.00
Bad debt - 1699
Survey expenses 351.97 31284
Other operating expenses 596,00 72348
Forzipn Exchange Loss (nef) 16.51 1035
Brand Expenses 205.00 2412
Miscellaneous expenses 55519 19272
75,071,79 69,082 14
Nofe: Payment to auditors (exclusive of GST)
As auditor
- Statutory audit 56,00 8429
- Other services 7.00 237
Reimbursement of expenses . 772
63.00 94 33
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J M Baxi Ports & Logistics Private Limited
{Eariier known as S M Baxi Ports & Logistics Limited)

Notes to the standalone linancial statements {Continued)
as ar 31 Mearch 2024

{All amount are i T lakhs, unless stated otherwise)
31 Commitments and contingencies

311 Contingent liabilities not provided for In respect ol :

Contingent liabilities 3 March 2024 31 March 2023
a Disputed demand in income tax (refer nole 1 below) 463.57 463 57
b Disputed demand in servies tax (refer nole 3 below) 417.82 42782
¢ Qther demands {refer note 2 below} 100.92 10042

Note:

1 In respect of Income Tax matters, the Company has ongoing disputes with Income Tax Authoriues relating to reatment of certarn tem by
the Department The Company’s appeals are pending before various Appellale Authorities Most of these disallowances/ adjustments, being

repetitive in natre, have been raised by the income tax authorities consistently in mosl of the years Cash ontflows for the above are

determinable only on receipt of judgements pending with various authorities/ Tribunals The Company expects lo sustam its pesition on
Tt T | Ofthe |

2 The Company has an onging dispute with Nonh Wesiern Railway over recovery of ground usages & stabling charges raised agamst the
Company while operating from Nammanol Staton in Japur Division

3 Service Lax demand including penalty charged For non-payment of tax and not Aling of returns The Company had made an appeal against
the same and the mater 15 pending with tribunal. lnthe F Y 2013-14, the Company has paid Rs 25,000,000 under protest

[The above amount includes penalties w's 77 and 78 of the Finance Act, 1994 and 1s exclusive of interest and penalty ufs 76 of the Finance Act,
1994 which is nol quantifizble]

4 The Company has evalualed the impact of the recent Supreme Court Judement in ¢ase of “Vivekananda Vidyamandir and Others v's The
Regonal Provident Fund Commissioner (113 West Bengal” and the related cwcular (Cwcular Mo C-[/1{33)2019% Vivekananda Yidya
Mandir/254} dated March 20, 2019 issued by the Employees' Provident Fund Or ion in rel o lugion of certain all es
from the definition of ~basic wages™ of the relevant employees for the purposes of determining contribution w provident fund under the
Employees™ Provident Funds & Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 There s significant uncertanty and ambiguity in interprering and giving
effect to the guidelines of Supreme Court In the of the o which is supporied by legal advice, the afaresaid matler does
not have a significant impact and accordingly, no provision has been made m these financial statements The Company will evaluate s

position and act, a5 elanty emerges on impact of the ruling

312 Capital and other com mitments

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
a  Esumated amoun of g 10 be d on capual account and not previded for 91671 3.904 23
b 1 n Yizag Multipurpose Terminal Private Limiied - Q350
The company has entered mio vanous contracls with vendors and o for the develar of project, acquisition of propeny, plant & equip
and vanous civil contracts The capital and other i disclosed above are ds thess for the: of Gan Shaku Mulu Modal

Cargo Terminal at Inchhapun station

32 Earnings per share

Basic EPS 15 caleulated by dnnding the profit atmibutable te equity shareholders of the Company by the wewthied average number of equiky
shares outstanding during the year

Diluted EP% is calculated by dividing the profit atnibutable 1o equity sharehelders of the Company by the weighted averase number of equty
shares oulstanding during Lhe year, after considering adjustment for the effects of all dilutive potenual equity shares

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Profit atiribniable to equity shareholders {basic and diluted)
Profitf{Loss} for the year aitnbutable 10 equity shareholders A 7.295.08 G606 16
Cabculation of weighted average ber of equity shares
Number of equity shares a1 the beginninu of the year 4.89.69,110 4,89.69,110
Equity shares issued during the year - ) -
Equity shares conversion during the year 5,00,21,491
Mumber of equity shares cuisianding at the end of the year 10,72.39.818 4,85,69.110
Weighted averape number of equity shares ousianding during the year (MNos ) B 10,43,74,045 43969110
Impact of Compulsonly convertible preference shares 27,964,059 568,532,200
Weighted average number of equity shares adjusted for the effect of dilution C P71, 70,104 10,58,22.310
Basic earming per share (INR) (AB) 6,99 124
Dhlwied earmmg per share |1MR) 1AC) 6.81 057
Nonnnal value of the share {INR) LoD 100
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J M Baxi Ports & Logistics Private Limited
{Eariier known as J M Baxi Ports & Logistics Linvited)

Notes to the standalone financial statements (Continsted)
as af 31 March 2024

{All amouwn are w ¥ lakhs, unless siated otherwise)

33 IND AS 116 - "Leases”
(a)  TheCo ' a5 0 lessee
The Company leases ofTice premises, equipments, vehicles and others The leases typically run for a period of 2-35 years
{b)  The following 15 the break-up of cument and non-gurtent lease liabilities
Particulars 3t March 2024 31 March 2023
Current leass habilinies #83.81 820 69
Non-currem kase liabilites 5296.66 11206
Total 6. 18047 JT3LT5
fcp  The foll g i the £ in Tease Laboinies during the year
Farticulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Ealance al the beginning 373275 358 54
Additions 1,530.36 1823 61
Deletions (11.52) (765 88)
Finance costgecrued during the period 44411 41816
Paymen of kease liabihtes (1.515.23) (1101 68)
Balance al the emd 6,180.47 1,732 75
{d}  The 1able below p deuls ding the | malurities of lezse liabwities on an undiscounted basis
31 March 2024 3| March 2023
Farticulars
Less than one year 149596 am 7
One 1o Mive years 369970 131946
Moce than five years 11,532.36 360713
Total 16,728.02 G816 32
(e)  The Company used a number of practical expedients when applying Ind AS 116 1o leases p ly classified as op g leases under Ind AS 17 In
particular, the Company
+did not gl ght-of-use assats and labl For leases fior which the lease rerm ends wathan 12 months of the date of 1mipal application,
»did not recogmse right-of-use assels and liabihwes for leases of low value assets.
rexcluded bl direet cogts (rom the measurement of the rigli-of-use asser arthe dare of iminial applicauon, and
sused hindsigln when delermining the lease term
{fn The Company has used discounl rale rangmg from 10 00% 1o 12 76% (31 March 2023 10 00% to | 2 76%) for the discounting of lease liabilities
{g)  The Company does notface 2 sigmficant Lquiduy sk wath regard 1o its lease liabilies as the current agsets are sulflcient to meet the obligations relaled 1o
lease ligbilies as and when they fall doe
(h)  Lease expense for recorded for short-term leases is as follows
The Company has &ken various p rakes and equip under Nable operating lease The Company has gven refundable securily deposit in
accordance wih agreed tems Lease paymens are recoguised in the statemen of profin and loss m respec of cancellable operaung lease under "Rent’ and
'Equipment hice charges’ of Rs 972 32 lokhs {31 March 2023 654 37 lakhg) in note 30
(i) The aggragate depreciation on ROL assets has been included under dep ion and isalk P inthe 5 of Profit and Loss
(j»  Refer note 3 (b) for disclosure related 1o Right of Use Agsets
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J M Baxi Ports & Logistics Private Limited
(Earlier known as J M Baxi Ports & Logistics Limited)

Notes to the standalone financial statements {Continued)
as at 3§ March 2024

(Al amount are 1n T lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

{k}) TheCompanyasa lessor

The Campany has kased two cranes 10 one of its subsidiary

The following are included in the bal sheet

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Current lease receivables 671.50 -
Non currenl lease receivables 2,500.25 -
The fotlowing are d in the of profit and logs:

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Finance income on the net investment in finance 50,54 -
The 1able below provides desails ling the | ilies of finance Jease receivables:

M March 2024 31 March 2023
Less than one year 209,30 -
One to five years 142759 -
More than five vears 47299 -
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J M Baxi Ports & Logistics Private Limited
(Eartier known as J M Baxi Poris & Logistics Limited)

Notes o the standalone financial statements (Continued)
ax ar 3§ AMarch 2024

(Al amount are in ¥ lakhs, unless stared oherwise)

4

Disclosure pursuant to [nd AS - 19 ‘Employee Benefits'

Deflned contribution plans

Provident fund:
Under the RPFC (Regional Provident Fund Commissionec) sch the Company is required to contribute a specified percentage of payroll ¢ost to the retirement
benefil sch 10 fund the benefi

Amount of Rs. 355,20 Takhs (31 March 2023: Rs.198.33 lakhs) represents contribution lo provident fund is recopnised as an expense and included in Employees
benefil expenses in the statement of profic and loss (refer note 27)

Employee State Insurance Scheme (ESIC)
Amount of Rs.0.01 lakhs (31 March 2023: Rs 0 3 lakhs) represents contribution 1o Employee State Insurance Sch recognised as an exp and included in
Emnployee benefit expenses in the statement of profit and loss (refer note 27)

Defined Benefit Plans

Gratuity:

The Company has an obligalion towards graunity, defined benefit gratuity plan retirement plan covering eligible employees. The plan provides for a lump swn
payment to vested employees at retirement, death while in employ or on termination of employment of an amount equivalent tof subject to a maximum limit set

by the pratity acL, amended from time 1o time)

For employee joined afier 1 June 2019;

{i1 onc month’s salary (last drawn basic salary plus fixed deamess allowance for each completed year of secnes), o

{ii} 15 days salary for each completed year of serviee calculated as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, whichever is higher,

For employee joined before 1 June 2019:
(i) last drawn basic salary plus fixed dearness allowance for each completed year of service

The employses Gratuity Fund scheme manzged by the Life Insurance Cocporation of [ndia {LIC) s a defined benefit plan. The present value of obligation 13
detenmined by the LIC based on acluarial valuation. The principal assumptions are the discount rate and salary growth rate. The diseount rate is based upon the
prevailing market yields of Indian government securities as al the balance sheel date for the estimated term of the obligation. Estimares of furure salary increases.
considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market

The amount tecognised in the Company's financial statements as at the vear end are as follows

A1 March 2024 31 March 2023
Cutrent 417.36 MLI1%

Reconciliation of the oet defined benefit (asset) / liability

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Reconciliation of present value of defined benelit obligation

Balance 21 the beginming of the year To8.12 100273
Current service cost 65.72 107 82
Imerest cost 52,05 7250
Liability Transferred InfAcquisitions 127.56 .
Liability Transferred out/Divesimenis (13.00) {13071
{Gains) Lasses on Curtailment - {166 68)
Benefit Paid Directly by the Employer (20.75) -
Benefit Paid From the Fund (93.02) (66.67)
Actuarial bosses! (gains) recognised in otker comprehensive income

Changes in demographic assumptions - (2932)
Changes in Minancial assumptions 6,29 (44 1%)
Changes in experience assumption 38.44 (37.37)
Balance o the end of the year §71.41 08 12
Recanciliation of preseat value of plan assets

Balance at the beginning of the year 466,94 S04 91
Inierest income 332 36351
Assers Translerred InfAcquisitions 127.56 9240,
Assets Translerred oul/Diveslments (13.00) (174 53)
Remeasurements

Return on pian assets, excluding interest (71.96) 73 65
1ncome

Employer conributions 884 267
Benefits paid (95.02) (6667)
Balance a1 the end of the year 459.68 466 94
Net defined benefid linbility 411,73 241 13
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J M Baxi Ports & Logistics Private Limited
{Earlier known as J M Baxi Poris & Logistics Limited)

Notes to the standalone financial statements {(Continued)
as af 34 March 2024

{All amounr are in ¥ lakhs. unless sialed otherwise)
34  Disclosure pursuant fo Ind AS - 19 'Employee Benefits' {Continned)

B. Plan assets

31 March 2024 31 March 2022

Invesiment wilh Insurer 100% 10084

C.  The components of defined benefit plan expense are as follows

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Recognised in income slatement

Currem service cosl 65.72 107 32
MNed inlerest cost 17.73 3599
(Gains) Losses on Cunailmen) - {166.68)
Total 8345 (2287)
Recognised in Other Comprehensive [mcome

Remeasurement of nel defined benefit liability/asset} 4473 (108N
Rewurn on Plan Assets, Excluding Interest Income 71.96 (73.68)
Total 116.69 (184.52)

D. Delined benefir oblizations

i Actuarial assumptions
The [ollowing were the principal actuarial prions at 1he reporting date
31 March 2024 30 March 2023
Expected Relum on Plan Assets T8 T3%%
Biscount rae TA9% Ti5%
Salary escalation rate 7.00% 7 00%
Attriiion rate 10.5% 10 5%
Mortalitv Rate During Employmen| Indian Assured Lives Indian Assured
Mortality Lives Monality|
2012-14 (Urban)  {2012-14)(Urban)
i Sensitivity Analysis
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Inerease Decrease Increase Decrease
Di rate (1% )] (37.82) 41,59 (29 13) 3203
Raie of salary increase (1% movement} 38.34 (35.81) 39 {23 90)
Rate of employes lurnowver {1% mavement} {0.33) 0.26 019 024

The above sensitivity analyses have been calculated to show the movement in defined benefit abligation in isolation and assuming thers are no other changes in
market conditions at the reporting date. In practice. generally it doss not occur. When we change one variable, it affects to others. In caleulating the sensitivity,
project unit credit method at the end of the reporting penod has been applied

i Maturity profile of the defined benefit obligation from fund

Partigulars Uptolyear Betweenlto§ Between 6 (o 10 11 and more Tolal
3t March 2024; Dedined benefit obligation 99 3% 507 47 33765 - 94411
31 March 2023: Defined benefit oblivation 128 96 347 60 30783 = T84 30

As al 31 March 2024, the weighted averape duration of the defined benefit obligation was 6 years {31 March 2023: 6 years)

The entire amoum of provision of Rs. 411.73 lakhs {31 March 2023; 24117 lakhs) t3 presented as current since the company does not have an mmeondinonal aght
to defer serlement for any of the obligation however, based on past experience the company dees nol accept all employee 1o avail the full amount of gratuity
provision or require payment for such graluity with in the next 12 monihs amounting to Rs 214.2¢ lakhs (31 March 2023: 106 81 lakhs)

Other fong term emplovee henefits plan

Compensated absences:
This obligation is recognised in the same manner as gratuity. The Company's hability on account of compensated absences is not funded and henee the disclosures

relating 1o planned assels are not applicable. Compensaled absencas of Rs 1421 iakhs expected to be paid in exchange for the services recognized as an

expense(1eversed) during the year (31 March 2023: Rs. (12 36) Lakhs). Cwrent obligation is Rs 37 .84 lakhis (51 March2023: B3, 23 63 lakhs)
- - -
The entive amount of provision of Rs. 37.84 takbs (31 March 2023: 23 63 lakhs) is presented o€ curreiit since the company does not havéan unconditional |

deler settlement for any of the obligalion however, based on past cxperience the company dées not acceptall employee to-avail the full amont of accured (B
require payiment for such leave with in the next 12 months amounting to Rs 30.96 kakhs (31 Mareh 2023 19 11 lakhs) 'fg
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J M Baxi Ports & Logistics Private Limited
(Earlier known as J M Baxi Ports & Logistics Limited}

Notes to the standalone financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 March 2024

(All amount are in ¥ lakhs, unless stated otherwise)
35 Financial instruments

A,  Accounting classification and fair values

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels are presented

Carrying amoont Fair value
31 March 2024 Note FYTPL Amortised FVQCI Total  Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Cast
Financial assets
Trade receivables ] - 18,230.97 - 15,2580.97 - - - -
Cash and cash equivalents " - 3,161.21 = 3,161.21 - - - -
Bank balance other than cash and {4 - 42,444.39 - 42,444.39 - - - -
cash equivalents
Current loans 12 - 1,123.51 - 1,123.51 - - -
Other current Anancial assets i3 - 10,112.92 - 10,112,92 - - - -
Non gurTent investment 3 2447461 1,29,629.67 - 1,54,104.28 = - 2447461 24,474,61
Non-current loans 6 - 23,174,87 - 23,174.87 - - - -
Other financial assets - non 7 - 7.468.68 - 746868 - - -
current
2447461 2,3%5.396,22 - 2,59,870.83 - - 2447461 24,474.61
Financial liabilities
Non-gurrent borrowings 17 - 35,897.23 - 35,897.23 - 35,897.23 - 35,897.23
Curreni bomrowings 2 - 9,279.90 - 9,279.90 -
Otlier nen cwrent fnancial 8 3,321.90 155 < 3,323.45 2 - 332150 3,321.90
liabilities
Trade payables 2! 12,178.17 - 12,178.17 - - - -
Oiher current financial tiabilivies 22 40635 1,194.62 - 1,600.97 - - #)6.35 406,35
3,728.25 58,531.47 - 62,279.72 - 35,897.23 3. 718.1% 39.625.48
Carrying amount Fair value
31 March 2023 Note FVTPL Amaortised FVOCI] Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Taotal
Cost
Financial assets
Trade receivables @ - 1348197 - 1348197 - -
Cash and cash equivalents 10 - 12,002 71 - 12,002 71 - - - -
Bank balance other than cash and 7/ - 1.013.34 - 1.013.34 - - - -
Current loans i2 - 2,421,320 - 2421.30 - - - -
Othet current financial assets 13 . 4,653.70 - 4,653.70 - - -
Non curtent investment 3 2860505 1.01,59733 - 1,30.202.38 - - 2860505 25,605.05
Non-current leans & - 15,986 16 - 15986.16 - - - -
Other financial assels - non 7 - 1,307.29 - 1,307.29 - - - -
current
2360505 1,52463.30 - 131068385 - - 2860505 28,605.05
Financinl liabilities
Non-current borrowings 17 - 36,372.38 - 36,37238 - 3637238 - 36,37238
Current. borrowings 20 - 2781477 - 2781437 =
Other non current financial 18 101264 - - 201264 - . 201264 2012.64
liabilities
Trade payables 21 13.45076 - 13,450 76 - -
Other curvent financial liabilities 22 33605 1,284.03 - 1,620.08 - - 336,05 3605
234869 78,921 94 - 8137063 - 3637238 3 M369 38,721 07
,z‘./ 5 i
I'If . \
, A
\i._‘ -




J M Baxi Ports & Logistics Private Limited
(Earlier known as J M Baxi Ports & Logistics Limited)

Notes to the standalone financial statements (Confinued)
as at 31 March 2024

{AD amount are in ¥ lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

35

A,

Financial instruments (Continued)
Accounting classification and fair values (Continaned)

The fair value hierarchy is based on inputs to valuation techniques that are used to measure fair value that are ¢ither observable or unobservable and consists
Level 1 - category includes financial assets and liabilities, thal are measured in whole or in significant parl by reference 1o published quotes in an active
market

Level 2 - calegory includes financial assers and ligbil ities ed using a valuation technique based on assumptions thal are supported by prices from
observable current market transactions. These include assets and liabilities for which pricing is obtained via pricing services, but where prices have not been
determined in an active market, financial assets with fair values based on broker quotes and assets that are valued using the Company's own valuation
madels whereby the material assumptions are market observable.

Level 3 - category includes financial assets and liabililies measured using valuation lechmiques based on non-market observable inputs. This means that fair
values are determined in whole or in part using a valuation model based on plions that are neither supported by prices from observable current mark et
\ransactions in the same instrument nor are they based or available market dala. However. the fair value measurement objective remains the same. that is, to
estimate an exit price from the perspective of the Company

The fair value of the financial instruments as referred to in note A above has been classified into three categories depending on the inputs used
in the valuation technigue. The hierarchy gives the highest priority 10 quoted prices in active market for identical assets or habilities (Level 1
measurements) and lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements)

The Company has not disclosed financial instruments such as cash and cash equivalents, trade payables and receivables etc. at carrying value
because their carrying antounts are a reasonable appraximation of the fair values due to their short kerm nature

Caleulation of fair value
Valuation techniques and significant unobservable inputs

The following table shows the valuation techniques used im measuring Level 2 and Level 3 fair values for financial instruments measured at
fair value in the balance sheet. as well as the significant unobservable inputs used.

Financial instruments measured at Fair value

Type Valuation technigue Significant Inter-relationship between
unobservable inpats | significant unobservable inputs
and fair value measurement

Mon current financial assets and | Discounted cash flows: The valuation medel considers the Mot applicable Not applicable
liabilivies measured at amortised |present value of expected receipt fpayments discounled

cost using appropriate discounting rales

Current investment in mulual The fair valugs of investments in mutual fund onits is based Mot applicable Mot applicable
funds on the net assel value (NAVY as stated by the issuers of

these mutual fund units in 1the published statements as al
Balance Sheet date. MAV represents the price al which the
issuer will issue Further unils of mutual fund and the price
at which issuer will redeeim such units from the investors

Mon current borrowings Discounted cash flows: The valuation model considers the Mot applicable ot applicable
present value of expected payments, discouried using a risk
adiusted discount rare

MNon-current invesinents in Discounted cash flow approach: The waluation wmodel|- Average cost of The estimatzd fair value would
unquoted instruments accounted  |considers the present value of expecied receipis, discommted| borrowings 10.30% lincrease / {decrease) if:

for as fair value through profit using a nsk adjusted discount rate - Dividend payout-Wil  |~the average borrowing cost were
and loss lower (higher)

-risk adjusted discount rate were
lower (higher)
-Dividend payoul were lower

thigher
Guarantee Commission The determination of fair value of puaraniee cominission is|- Conunission rate Commission rate 15 determined
based on the marker prices of comparable instrument with using rate of comparable
similar tenure and bearing similar counterparty credit risk 3 insgrument of banks that can hol
s be ventied
Transfers between Levels 1 and 2 :
There have been ne wransfers between Level | and Level 2 during the reporting periods i
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36

Financial risk management

The Company has exposure 1o Lhe following risks acising from financial instruments:

i} Credit risk:

i) Liquidity risk; and

fii) Market risk

Risk management Framework

The Company's Board of di has overail responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management framework

The Company's risk policies are established to identify and anabyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate nsk limits and
controls and to monitor risks and adberence to limits. Risk management policies and systzms are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market
conditions and Lhe Company's activities. The Company, through its training end standards and proced aims 1 maintain a disciplined
and constructive conirol environment m which all employess understand their roles and obligations

The board oversees how i pli with the Compamy’s nisk management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of
the risk g fr ik in relation to the risks faced by the Company, The board is assisted in its oversight role by internal audit. (ntemal audit

undertakes bath regular and 2d hoc reviews of dsk managemeni controls and procedures, the results of which are reparted 1o Lhe board

Credit rigk

Credir risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a or party o a fi ial instrumen Fails to meet its contraciual obliganions, and
atises principally from the Company’s receivables from m in fixed deposits and red ble preference shares. The camying amounts
affi ial assets rep the i credit exp

Cash and cash equival and fixed deposit
The Company held cash and cash equivalents with credit worthy banks and financial instinutions of Rs.3,161.21 lakhs as at March 2024 ( 31 March
20723: B5. 12002 71 Lakhs) and fixed deposils of ks 52,705 .08 lakhs as at 31 March 2024 { 31 March 2023: Rs 2457.1 lakhs)

The cash and cash equivalents and fixed deposit are held with bank and financial instirution parties, which are rated AA- 1o Ad+, based on
CRISIL ratings.

Trade receivables

The Company's exposure 1o credit sk is influenced mainly by the individual characieristics of each customer. H s g also iders the
factors that may influsnce the eredit risk of its customer base, including the default risk of fhe indusiry

The demographics of the including the default risk of the industry and country in which the customer operates, also has an influence on credit
risk assessment. Credit nisk is managed through credil approvals, establishing credit limits and invously itoring, the creditworthi of
customers to which the Company grants credit terms in the normal eourse of busi The Comg blishes an all for doubtful debis and

impairments thar represents irs estumates of incurred losses in respect of irade and other receivable and investment

As per simplified approach, the Company makes provision of expected eredit losses on trade receivables to mitigate the risk of default payments and
makes appropriate provision at each reporting date wherever outstanding is for lonper period and iovolves higher dsk. The weighted averape loss rate
range from 2% 1o 5%
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36 Financial risk management (Continued)
. Credit risk (Continmed}

Trade receivables {Cantinued)

The carrying amount of following financial assets and contract assets represents the maximum credit exposire:

Carrying Amounl

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Trade recenables (ncludine unbilled recen ables) (refer note ) 18,280.97 1348197
15.280.97 15481 97

The Company's exposure to credit risk for trade receivables (net) at the reporting date by operating seg are as fol

Carrying Amouml

31 Marth 2024 31 March 2023

Coniainer 9,198 62 B135 24
MNan continer B.982.35 332673
13,280.97 |3.4%] 97

Impuirment
The apeing of rade and other reccn ables that were nol impared 15 as follow -

Carrying Amount

31 Marth 2024 3| March 2023
Gross carrying amount
Meither due nor impaiced - 1438723 230439
Less than 6 months 14.507.69 W25
& mondhs - [ vear 122144 #3633
1-2 Years 10041 QOB
2-3wars 7291 170 7
dbore than 3 wears 129 82 424
Expected ecedit loss
Less Lhan 6 monthe BM4L 30T
( months -1 vear - A1 Ay
1-2 Years - iz 42
13 vears 147 /3
Mose Lhan 3 vears .
MNet amount aller impairment 18,2840.98 1345147

Managemant beliaes thal Lhe uninypansed amaounts thal are oserdude arc sl coliccble in fll. boscd on exicngn e anabsis of customer cradit rish

The movement in the loss allowance provision of wade receivables duning the year is as follows:

Particulars Amaonint
loss olfowance on | April 2022 303 07
Less  Reeen ables wrnten ofT during the vear 15 uncollecuble (LAY
Adkd Increasa in lozs allow ance recogniged in profitor oss during te wear 761,00
Loss alowance on 31 March 2023 103808
l.ess - Recen ables writlen off during the veor is uncallectible 1646.62)
Addd - Inercase n loss alfow ance recogmised 1 profin or loss dering the sear 228.01
Loss allowance on 31 March 224 6342

Investment in redeemable preference shares

The Cornpanv has mvesled a sum of Rs. 70.41506 {as at 31 March 2023: Rs.69.890 31 lakhs) in redeemable preference shares of certain subsidiary
C includi d of Rs 52.201 49 lakhs a5 a1 31 March 2024 (31 March 2023 Rs. 44,998 83 lakhs)

The Company's exposure to credit risk is influenced by an ability of the invesiee to pay the dividend and redeem the preference shares at the end of
tenor. This ability is monitored by the an ongoing basis through review of credit rating and periodic financial position of the investee. The
Company does not perceive any credil risk pertaining 16 Lhe invesoment in subsidiaries. Excepr for mwo subsidiary companies, these in are
poverned by long lenm service concession agresments and formed as special purpose vehicles

Loans & Deposits
The Company has given various deposits la t2x authorities, elecmicity boards, railway authorities, lessors in lease agreement etc. The Company does not
perceive any credit risk pertainiog to such deposit given

The Company has also loans to various subsidiaries and the Company does not perceive any ciedit risk pertaining to such loan given
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36 Financial risk management (Continied)
ii Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial habilities that
are settled by delivering cash or another financial assel. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible,
that it will have sufficient liquidity Lo meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, wilhout incuring
unacceptable iosses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation, The Company has access 10 funds from debt markets through loans
from banks, financizal institutions and other debt instruments

Exposure to liquidity risk
The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities al the reporting date. The amounts are gross and
undiscounted, and include estimated inlerest payments

| Contractual cash Mows
31 March 2024 Notes Carrying Total| Payable within 1-S years| More than 5
1 vear years
Non-derivative financial labilities:
Nan-cumrent barrowings 17 35,897.23 35,897.23 - 183,016,70 17.880.53
Current bowowings 20 9.279.90 9.279.99 9.279.90 - -
Other current financial liabililies 22 1.600.97 1,600.97 160097 - ~
Other non current financial Tliabilities in 3.323.45 3.323.45 - 3,323.45 -
Trade payables 2 12,178,17 12,178.17 12,178.17 - -
Leage Liabiliries 33 6,1580.47 16,728.02 1,495,96 3,699.70 11,532.36
68,460.19 79,00°7.74 24.555.00 25,039.85 29.412.89
< | cash flows
31 Warch 2023 Mates Carrying amount Total| Payable within 1 1-5 years More than 5
vear yearg
Nan-derivative financial liabilines:
Non-currenl borrowings i7 36,7238 36,372.38 - 20,150.73 16,221 .65
Cumem borrowings 240 2781477 27.314.77 27.814.77 . .
Other current financial liabilities 22 1,620.08 1,620.08 1.620,08
Onber non current financial habilities i3 2.012.64 2,012.64 - 2,012 64 -
Trade payables 24 13.450 76 13,4507 13.450.76 - -
Lease liability i3 3,752.75 6,216.32 839.73 2,319.46 3.607.13
8500333 88,086.95 43,775 34 24,482 83 19,828.78
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36

Financial risk management (Continued)
Market risk

Market risk is the risk of loss of furure eamings, fair values or future cash flows that may result from adverse changes in market rates and
prices (such as inlerest rates, foreign cnmency exchange rates} or in the price of markel risk-sensilive instrumenlts as a result of such
adverse changes in market rates and prices. Markel risk is anributable to all market risl itive fi ial i all forsipn
currency receivables and payables and all short 1emm and long-term debt. The Company is exposed to market risk primarily related to

interest rate risk and the market value of its investments

Exposure to currency risk
The curtercy profile of financial assets and financial liabilities as at 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023 are as below:

Trade receivables Trade payables & Other financial
liabilities
Exposure to foreign curtendy liabilities 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
USD (in millions) 0.34 Q15 .31 G.02
Equivalent INR {in lakhs) 176.54 11933 2601.20 1648
Interest rate risk
Interesi rale risk ts the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a fi ial i will fl b of changes in market

interest rates. The Company™s exposure o marker risk for changes in inlerest rates relares wo fined deposits, preference shares and
bomrowings from banks or financial institutions

Exposure to [nterest rate

The Company's main interest rate risk arises from long term borrowings with vanable interest rate and fixed interest rate camrying

in like prefi shares, fixed deposits with banks and Inter corporate deposils piven W subsidiaries, which exp the
Company to cash flow interest rate risk

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Fined rate instruments

Financial Asse

Hank deposits & lomms 19.408.47 i 3 s B3
Net financial a5set a0 Gixed rate 7940947 2 RIR 5T
Financial liabilies

Borrowings hinsludes keasa labilites ) 915157 1763409
Net financial Kabality at fixed rae 915257 27.H5R 00
Variable rale insiruments

Finaticial habiliws 4220502 0261 #1
~Borrawings

Net financial liability at varéable rate 4120502 0.36] K|

Fair valoe sensitivity analysis for fixed-rate instruments

The Company's fixed rate bank deposits and loans 19 its subsidiaries are carried at amortised cost. They are therefore not subject to
imtersst rate risk as defined in IND AS 107, since neither the carrying amount nor the forure cash fow will Auchiate becaose of a change
in market interest rates

Cash Row sengitivity analysis for variable-rate insiruments

The sensitivity analysis for Aoating rate liabilities is prepared ing the t of liability outstanding at the end of the reporting
period was outstanding for the whols pericd. A ble possible change of 100 basis points {100 bps) in interest cze at the reporting
date would have increased / (decreased) profit after tax and equity by the amount shown below:

Profit or (loss) Exquity, net of 12
100 bp imcrease 100 bp decrease 190 bp incresse 1M bp decrease]
31 March 2024
Yarinble-rote instruments 1422.05) 43205 131380 31582
3| March 2023
Wariabbe-rawz inslrumenis [ELDE3] 402 6} ol 300 23
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37 Capital management

The key objective of the Company's capital management is to ensure that it maintains a stable capital structure with
the focus on total equity to uphold investor, creditor and customer confidence and to ensure future development of
the business. The Company is focused on maintaining a strong equity base to ensure independence, security as well
as financial flexibility for potential future borrowings, if required, without impacting the risk profile of the
Company. The Company monitors capital using a ratio of 'net debt to equity'. For this purpose, adjusted net debt is
defined as total liabilities, comprising interest-bearing loans and borrowings and obligations under finance leases,
less cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances. Adjusted equity comprises all components of equity. The

Company's net debt to equity ratio at the reporting dates are as follows:

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Non-current borrowings 35,897.23 36,372.38
Current borrowings 9.,279.90 27,814.77
Lease liabilities 6,180.47 3,732.75
Less : Cash and cash equivalents

3,161.21 12,002.71
Adjusted net debt 48,196.39 55.917.19
Total equity 244,676.08 143,711.02
Adjusted equity 244,676.08 143,711.02
Adjusted net debt to adjusted equity ratio 0.20 0.39

~ Vi
:’f:’f?rzrsmmsﬁ“i
Mumbal
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38 Related Party Disclosares

{a}  Relaed parties

Nature of relatonship MName ol party

Entities haung significam mil orver compam includi HL Terminal Holding B Y (n 2T 19 Apnl. 2023)
entiti¢s haning conirols on such entives Hapag Lloyd Alnengesellschall (v ¢ (19 Apnl. 2123)
Subsidiaries Delhi Intemational Careo Temmunal Prvate Limied

(Formerly known 35 Intemational Cargo

Visakha Container Terminal Privae Limited

Faradip Ineermnaucnal Cargo Terminal Private Limited

Haldia Intemanional Container Terminal Private Limited

Kandlg Intemanonal Container Terminal Privgie Limited

1M Baxi Heavy Privale Limited

(Formed: known as Bovco Logisitics Infralrans Poyate Limied)

Vir Varem a Shipping Singapore Pre Lid (S1ep douwn subsidian )

Ballard Pier Privale Limaied

Tuticonn Intemaiicnal Contaner Terminal Private Limied (w e [ 24 August 2022)
hana Shevo Distribunion terminal Prate Limated (w ¢ £ 31 Ocwober 2022)

4 M Bari Cool Pryvate Limuted (w #1003 August 20237)

1M Baw Conininer Holdungs Provale Limited (w e [ 21 June 2023}

1 M Baxi Porl Senvices Private Limued (Eastier hnown & J M Baa Cargo Holdings Prvale Limdted} (w e 03 July 2023)

Joint wenre Mhay a Sheva Freeport Povate Limited (e I 21 July 2022)
Vixas Multipurpose Terminal Privare Limited iw &£ 16 Februan 2023)

Enterpnses ounad or significantls imflusnced by et managemenl  Ana OfTshore Servicas Privaie Limited

personnel or their relatin es Arva Omnitalk Radio Trunking Senices Povale Limuied
Arya Omnitdlk Wireless Solutions Privale Limiled
Ban Capilal Advisors (India) Prnvate Limited
Boxco Logisties fndia Py aie Limited
Boxea Shipping Senoces Privawe Limied
Boxconorld Logistics India Private Limned
Boxcoworld Prvale Limited
Breal Estae Cne Privaie Limited
Bulk Carge Cometor
Conmainer Mo ement {Bambin ) Transport Prizie Limiled
Diabos Global FZE
ICT Inftastruciure Private Limuled
Integral Iny esiments South East Asiz VII
J M Bau & Co
K* LinetIndia) Private Limited
K Sieamship Agencies Privale Limned
Poriall Infoss stems P ate Limated
Frime Mantime OWC-LLC
Tapan Constructions Py e Limited
The ¥idya Bhapwan Kotk Foundanon
United Livers Shipping Serices LLP
Vir Kergk Holdings Ple Lid
Bharal Feeder and Shipping Senvices Private Limied
Uniled Liners Shipping Services LLP
Propelor India Py ae Limited

Haras ana Orbital Rail Corporation Lunuled
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33 Related Farty Disclocwres {Continned)

(b}  Key Mamagerial personnel K. B Kok Direclor
D K Kolak, Dirgctor
Diby ¢ndu Base. Director jupto 15 June 2023)
Gopal Knshna. Direclor (upte 28 June 2023)
Paininder Singh, Director (upto 14 April 2023)
Rajashres Nambior Dvrector {upto 28 June 2023)
Rushi Mandaw al. Director (upio 19 April 2023)
JK Gupla, CFQ
Dheeraj Bhava (v e 1% Apnl 2023)
Rollf Enc (w &l 1% Apnl 2023}
Manyappan Madu Balray fw ¢ [ L7 June 20243
Kithan Kumayai{w e (. 2| November 2023, uplo 17 June 2024)
“Yesha Maniar. C5 (upio 27 Gelober 2023)

Mrs Kamim knshna kotah
Mrs Adi Dhno Kotk
M. Sumran Vir Kok

Mrs Yidva Kotk

VK Kok

{¢)  Relatives of Key M

(d)  Related parties with whowmn transactions have taken place
during the year
Mawre of relationship Name of party
Subsidianies Delhi Fuemanonal Carge Terminl Prsate Limied
(Formerly known as Intemaronal Cargo Terminads and Ral Inffasiruciure Privale Lirmiled)

Vizghha Container Temminal Prisvare Limited

Paradip Intemational Cargo Termina Provate Limled
Haldia Intemattonal Container Terminal Prisale Limued
Kandla Intemational Contaner Terqunal Private Limuied

J M Bas Heawy Prvane Limated

(Formerls known as Bosco Lowisitics

Ballard Prer Prvale Limited (v & [ 26 Ociober

Tutrconn Intemational Contaner Temminal Pryale Limited
Mhaa Sheya Disiribution temminal Prisate Limited

J M Baxi Cool Pnyate Limited

Enterprises cwned or significanily inflluenced by ke ag AnaC ardd Electronics Services Provate Limited
personnel of their relaines Ana Offshere Semoces Py ade Limned
Ana Omnualk Badio Trunking Senices Prisale Limied
Ana Omnilalh Wireless Solutions Private Limied
Ban Capital Adusors (indva) Prvate Limned
Bharal Feeder and Shupping Sen ices Pnvate Limtied
{Formerly known a5 Samudera Bhara Feeder Privale Limued}
Bosco Logisties India Private Limited
Bovco Shipping Senvices Ponale Limuled
Boscoworld Logistics Prisate Limued
Breal Estale One Prase Limuted
Bulk Cargo Commor
Container Mos ement {Bomba » Transpont Prsate Limoted
Duabos Global FZE
Irmegral Inesiments South East Asia VI
I M Bav & Co
K Sleamehip Agencies Prs ate Limiled
'K* Ling (india) Privale Lomuted
Poniall Infoss slems Prsae Limited
Pnme Mantime DWC-LLE
Tapan Consinuctions Private Linuted
Yir Kolak Holdings Pie Lid
United Liners Shipping Senices LLP

Note:
The list of parties abey2 hase been limied to those with whom transachons hase taken place during the L ear or balance are cuistanding ¢ af the s eor end
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38 Related Party Dischosures (Coatimen)
(&) Transactions with retaled party during the year

Nature of iransacion

Tnigrest mcome

Paradip tniemanonal Cargo Terminal Prs ate Limued
Haldia Intemational Comamner Terminal Proate Linuted
Kandla [nlemational Container Terminal Private Limited
1M Bani Heavy Private Limited (Formedy known as Boxeo Logisiucs Inftmrans Pruage Limited)
Bexco Logisies India Private Limuled

MNhava Sheva Disinbution P41 LId

Ballard Prer Pri Lid

Vizag Mulnpurpose Terminal Pos are Linuied

Tutliconin Imemational Container Terminal Prisale Limited

interest Expense on inder corporaie laam taken

Delhi Inlemanonal Carge Termunal Private Limited

(Formerly knoarn as | jonal Cargo Terminals and Rail Private Lamited)
Portall Infoss slems Pavate Limied

Integral Inv esinents Soulh East Asia VI

Rent income
Limited Liners Shipping Senices LLP
J M Baxi Heay Prvave Limiled (Formerh known as Bovco Logisitics Inftairans Prsate Limated}

Rent expesnes

Ana Ofshore Sertices Pnvale Limiled

Taupan Construclions Prisate Limited

Delini intemational Cargo Terminal Private Limited ( Formerly
known s 1 tonal Carge Terminals and Rail Infi
Prvate Limuted)

Breal Estale One Private Limited

Paradip [ntermauonal Cargo Terminal Private Limoted
Kandlz Iniemational Container Termimal Privale Limuted
Comtainer oy emenl (Bombay } Transpon Privale Limited
J i Baxi & Company

Uguted Liners Shipping Senuces LLF

Sale of Fined Assets
Bovco Shipping Sen ices Private Limuted

Carporale Cross Charge

Visakha Contaner Terminal P11 Lid

Kandla Intemational Contamer Termunal Pon ae Limated
Delhi Intemational Cargo Termunal Pasale Limited
Haldia Intemadtonal Cnir Termingl Privace Limoted
Paradip Intemational Carge Terminal Private Limuled
Balland Prer Prsate Limited

J™ Bas Heawy Prvate Limited

Tuticonn Inlemating Comaniner T Privale Limited
Nhina Sheva Disii Termmnal Private Limited

Revenue from operations

Boseo Logistics India Pro aie Limied

4 Baxi Heavy Private Lymited (Farmerls known a5 Bosco Logistics Inffaieans Pris aie Liited)
Boscoworld Logishics Private Limdted

Paradip Intemational Carge Terminal Privole Limiled

Liruted Liners Shipping Senices LLP

Pnme Mannme DWC-LLC

Hapag Llosd Akuengesallschail

Propelor India Prsate Limuied

Purchases of lixed assets

Visabha Contaner Teminal Pr aie Limned

)M Basi Heavy Privale Limited {(Fommerly knoun s Boxeo Lomsiics Infrairans P ate Limited)
Dl Intzmational Cargo Termunal Private Limived | Foemerls

known a5 Inlemational Carge Terminals and Rl infrasirucione

Private Limuied)

Kandla Imemanonal Contaner Terminal Privawe Limined
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(Al amouni are m 2 lakhs ynless slaled othervase)
1 Related Party Discloswres (Cominmed)
(¢} Transactions with rekated party during the year (Continered)
Nature of transaciion 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Purchases f Service received

1 M Bai & Co 4,40 94 82
Ana Omnitak Radio Trunking Sen ices Pu Lid - 1462
Ana Communialions and Elecironics Servoes Privale Lunied - #07
Ana Omnilalk Wireless Solations Private Limnted - 027
Ana Ofshore Senices Prsate Limaled - 1347
Container Movement {Bormbay ) Transpon Frivaie Limiled - a4
United Liners Shipping Senices LLP ALl B3 16
Boxcowerd Logistics Prsate Limiled .05 TroY
T A1 Baci Heavs Prooaie Limned (Formerh knonn a5 Bowco Logislics [nfratrans Prisate Limited } 28,75 .
Dhabos Global FZE 14004 4 T
Brea! Estale One Private Limited .76 .
Kandla [ntemational Container Terminal Privaie Limited 27.30 918
Dedhi Imemational Cargo Termunal Private Limiledi Formerly known as [nlemational Cargo Terminals and Rail %652 52932
Inffastructure Private Limited)

Paradip Intemational Cargo Terminal Private Liraled 6.19L.0¢ H.A03 i
HL Terminal Holding B ¥ 834 .
Hapag Llowd Akiiengesellschal - -
Visakha Contauner Termunal Pns ale Limied - 122 1%
WVir Kolak Holdings Ple Lid 94.74 179 50
Boxeo Logisnics India Pry 2te Limited 260,40 202747
Bain Capital Advisors (india} Pnvate Limited - 0542
1CT Infrastruciure Private Limuied inm o2
Propelor India Privase Limued 39.73 067
thata Sheva Distribunon Temungl Prooate Lirited 043 -

K Sigamship Agencies Pryate Lamiled 013 023
Corporate social responsibitity es